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STRATHBOGIE SHIRE COUNCIL

Notice is hereby given that a Meeting of the Strathbogie Shire Council will be held, virtually,
on Tuesday 21 September 2021, commencing at 6.00 p.m.

Chair:

Councillors:

Councillor-Elect:

Municipal Monitor:

Officers:

Chris Raeburn (Mayor) (Honeysuckle Creek Ward)

Laura Binks

Reg Dickinson
Sally Hayes-Burke
Kristy Hourigan
Paul Murray
David Andrews

Janet Dore
Julie Salomon
David Roff
Amanda Tingay
Dawn Bray

Kristin Favaloro

(Mount Wombat Ward)
(Lake Nagambie Ward)
(Seven Creeks Ward)
(Seven Creeks Ward)
(Hughes Creek Ward)
(Lake Nagambie Ward)

Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

Director, Corporate Operations (DCO)
Director, Community and Planning (DCP)
Executive Manager, Governance and
Customer Service (EMGCS)

Executive Manager, Communications and
Engagement (EMCE)

Until further notice, all meetings conducted by Strathbogie Shire Council will be held
virtually, and live streamed on our website at www.strathbogie.vic.gov.au. This ensures we
are meeting the Victorian Government’s current COVID-19 restrictions.

We encourage all community members to watch the meeting online, given we are required to
conduct meetings virtually, with all Councillors and Officers also participating in the meeting by
virtual means.

Questions for the Ordinary Council Meeting can still be submitted, and will be read out by the
Mayor during the Public Question Time component of the meeting and responded to in the usual
way by Councillors and/or Officers. Questions must be submitted by 12 noon on Tuesday 21

September 2021 by emailing info@strathbogie.vic.gov.au



http://www.strathbogie.vic.gov.au/
mailto:info@strathbogie.vic.gov.au
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1.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Welcome

Acknowledgement of Traditional Land Owners
‘I acknowledge the Traditional Owners of the land on which we are meeting. |
pay my respects to their Elders, past and present’

Apologies / Leave of Absence

Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest

Confirmation of Minutes of Previous Meetings
e Council Meeting — Tuesday 17 August 2021
e Extraordinary Council Meeting — Tuesday 31 August 2021

Petitions

Reports of Mayor and Councillors and Delegates

Public Question Time

Public Question Time will be conducted as per Rule 31 of Strathbogie Shire
Council’'s Governance Rules. A copy of the required form for completion and
lodgment, and associated Procedural Guidelines, are attached for information.

As the questions are a permanent public record and to meet the requirements of
the Privacy and Data Protection Act 2014, only the initials of the person asking the
question will be used together with a Council reference number.

Officer Reports

9.1 Strategic and Statutory

9.2 Community

9.3 Infrastructure

9.4 Corporate

9.5 Governance and Customer Service

9.6 Executive

Notices of Motion

Notices of Rescission

Urgent Business

Confidential Business

Julie Salomon
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

17 September 2021
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NEXT MEETING

The next monthly Meeting of the Strathbogie Shire Council is scheduled to be held on
Tuesday 19 October 2021, commencing at 6.00 p.m.

It is intended that this meeting be held at the Euroa Community Conference Centre,
however, it should be noted that if coronavirus restrictions are in force, the meeting will be
held virtually.
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; Council Ref. ... 12021

Public Question Time Form
Stra(,t/:)?c? le Ordinary Council Meeting

Strathbogie Shire Council has allocated a time for the public to ask questions in the business of an
Ordinary Meeting of the Council.

How to ask a question:

Questions submitted to Council must be:

€) in writing, state the name, address and telephone number of the person submitting the
question and generally be on this form, approved by Council; and

(b) submitted to Council in person or electronically.

The Chair may refrain from reading a question or having a question read if the person who submitted
the question is not present in the gallery at the time when the question is due to be read. Please
refer to the back of this form for procedural guidelines.

Question/s: (please print clearly with a maximum of 25 words)

F o [0 LT PP PPPPUPRRRRRR
1] o1 a0 T o =20 110 T2 0] o = SRR
Signature: (signature not required if submitted by email) ...........ccoiiiiiiiiiii

Date of Ordinary COUNCIl MEELING: ....ciiiiiiiiiiiiie ittt e e sre e

Privacy Declaration: Personal information is collected on this form to allow Council to undertake
follow-up / response and to confirm identity for future reference where necessary. The questioner’s
initials only, together with a question reference number, will be included in Council’s Minutes. Council
Minutes are a public document which will be published on Council’'s Website and are available for
public scrutiny at any time. Other personal details included on this form will not be included in the
Minutes and will be kept for Council reference only, unless disclosure is required for law enforcement
purposes or under any other statutory requirement
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Public Question Time — as per Rule 31 of the Strathbogie Shire Council Governance

Rules

31. QUESTION TIME

31.1

31.2

31.3
314

31.5
31.6

31.7

31.8

31.9

31.10

31.11
31.12

31.13

31.14

There must be a public question time at every Council meeting fixed under Rule 19 to

enable members of the public to submit questions to Council.

Sub-Rule 31.1 does not apply during any:

31.2.1 period when a meeting is closed to members of the public in accordance with
section 66(2) of the Act; or

31.2.2 election period.

Public question time will not exceed 30 minutes in duration.

Questions submitted to Council must meet all of the following:

€) be in writing and state the name and address of the person submitting the
question;

(b) be generally be in a form approved or permitted by Council; and

(©) be lodged either by delivery to Council's main office, or electronically at the

prescribed email address prior to 12 noon on the day of the Council meeting.
No person may submit more than two questions at any one meeting.
If a person has submitted two questions to a meeting, the second question may:
31.6.1 at the discretion of the Chair, be deferred until all other persons who have
asked a question have had their questions asked and answered; or
31.6.2 not be asked if the time allotted for public question time has expired and Council
has not resolved to extend the time allocated for public questions.
If the person who has submitted the question is not present at the meeting the Chair, or a
member of Council staff nominated by the Chair, will read out the question on the person's
behalf if the person has elected not to participate in the meeting either by way of the live
streaming software or by teleconference.
A question may be disallowed by the Chair if the Chair determines that it:

(a) relates to a matter outside the duties, functions and powers of Council;

(b) Is defamatory, indecent, abusive, offensive, irrelevant, trivial or objectionable
in language or substance;

(© deals with a subject matter already answered;

(d) is aimed at embarrassing a Councillor or a member of Council staff;

(e) relates to personnel matters;

) relates to the personal hardship of any resident or ratepayer;

(9) relates to industrial matters;

(h) relates to contractual matters;

0] relates to proposed developments;

0] relates to legal advice;

(k) relates to matters affecting the security of Council property; or

0] relates to any other matter which Council considers would prejudice Council or
any person.

Any guestion which has been disallowed by the Chair must be made available to any other
Councillor upon request.

All questions and answers must be as brief as possible, and no discussion may be allowed
other than by Councillors for the purposes of clarification.

Like questions may be grouped together and a single answer provided.

The Chair may nominate a Councillor or the Chief Executive Officer to respond to a
question.

A Councillor or the Chief Executive Officer may require a question to be put on notice. If a
question is put on notice, a written copy of the answer will be sent to the person who asked
the question within five (5) working days and the answer included in the following Council
meeting's agenda.

A Councillor or the Chief Executive Officer may advise Council that it is his or her opinion
that the reply to a question should be given in a meeting closed to members of the public.
The Councillor or Chief Executive Officer (as the case may be) must state briefly the reason
why the reply should be so given and, unless Council resolves to the contrary, the reply to
such guestion must be so given.
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12. URGENT BUSINESS 260

12.1 Oath of Office 260
Councillor-Elect for Lake Nagambie Ward

13. CONFIDENTIAL BUSINESS 261

CONFIDENTIAL APPENDICES

APPENDICES DEEMED CONFIDENTIAL IN ACCORDANCE

WITH SECTION 66(2)(A) AND PART 1, CLAUSE 3 OF THE LOCAL

GOVERNMENT ACT 2020

(9) private commercial information, being information provided by a

business, commercial or financial undertaking that—

(i) if released, would unreasonably expose the business,
commercial or financial undertaking to disadvantage

Appendix 1:  Tender for Contract CN21/22-01: Operation and
Management of Pools




Strathbogie Shire Council

Page 1 21/09/21

Council Meeting Agenda

9.
9.1

9.11

OFFICER REPORTS

Strategic and Statutory Planning

Planning Permit Application No. P2021-072

Use and Development of land for a dwelling and associated outbuilding ~ 24

Babbler Lane, Tabilk

Author: Town Planner

Responsible Director: Director Community and Planning

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The proposal is for the Use and Development of land for a dwelling and
associated outbuilding at 24 Babbler Lane, Tabilk VIC 3607.

The application was advertised, and one (1) objection was received. Further
detail is contained within this report.

The application has not been assessed within the 60-day statutory timeframe
(15 days outside of the statutory timeframe) due to the timing of the Council
Meeting.

The proposal generally meets the objectives of the Planning Policy Framework,
Local Planning Policy Framework, the Farming Zone and Bushfire
Management Overlay.

It is recommended that Council resolve to issue a Notice of Decision to Grant
a Permit in accordance with the Officer's recommendation.

APPLICATION DETAILS

Application is for:

Use and Development of land for a dwelling and
associated outbuilding

Applicant’s/Owner’s Name:

Weam Elbedewy

Date Received:

23 April 2021 Application Received

Statutory Days: 75 days
Application Number: P2021-072
Planner:  Name, title & Trish Hall
department Town _Planner
Planning and Investment Department
Crown Allotment 32 Portion 3, Certificate of Title
Land/Address: Volume 9713 Folio 622
24 Babbler Lane, Tabilk VIC 3607
Zoning: Farming Zone (FZ)
Overlays: Bushfire Management Overlay (BMO)

Is a CHMP required?

The subject site is within a Culturally Sensitive Area,
however; a single dwelling is an exempt activity
- No CHMP required

Is it within an Open Potable
Catchment Area?

The subject site is not within an Open Potable Water
Catchment Area

Under what clause(s) is a
permit  required?  (include
description)

Clause 35.07-1 Use of land for a dwelling
Clause 35.07-4 Buildings and works in the Farming
Zone

Restrictive covenants on the
title?

No

Current use and development:

Agriculture
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9.1.1 Planning Permit Application No. P2021-072
Use and Development of land for a dwelling and associated outbuilding ~ 24
Babbler Lane, Tabilk (cont.)

RECOMMENDATION

That Council having caused notice of Planning Application No. P2021-072 to
be given under Section 52 of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 and
having considered all the matters required under Section 60 of the Planning
and Environment Act 1987 decides to issue a Notice of Decision to Grant a
Permit under the provisions of Clause 35.07-1 and Clause 35.07-4, of the
Strathbogie Planning Scheme in respect of the land known as Crown
Allotment 32 Portion 3, Certificate of Title Volume 9713 Folio 622 24 Babbler
Lane, Tabilk VIC 3607, for the Use and Development of land for a dwelling in
accordance with endorsed plans, subject to the following conditions:

Endorsed Plans:

1. The development must be sited and constructed in accordance with
the endorsed plans. These endorsed plans can only be altered or
modified with the prior written approval of the Responsible Authority,
or to comply with statutory requirements.

Amended Plans:

2. Prior to the commencement of the dwelling, the following plans must
be submitted to and approved by the responsible authority. When
approved, the plans will be endorsed and will then form part of the
permit

a) An updated Integrated Land Management Plan including a site
plan demonstrating proposed fencing and shelters within the
area identified for farm use.

Section 173 Agreement:
3. Prior to the commencement of works a Section 173 Agreement must
be entered into at no cost to Council, which ensures the following:

(a) Prevent subdivision of the land so as to excise the dwelling.

(b) Require that the use of the land for a dwelling must be
undertaken in accordance with an agricultural use of the
property in accordance with the Whole Farm plan and
Integrated Land Management Plan endorsed as part of this
permit.

(c) The Owner acknowledges and accepts that the possibility of
nuisance from adjoining or nearby agricultural operations may
occur. The possible off-site impacts include but are not limited
to dust, noise, odour, waste, vibration, soot, smoke or the
presence of vermin, from animal husbandry, animal waste,
spray drift, agricultural machinery use, pumps, trucks and
associated hours of operation.

The Section 173 Agreement must be prepared by Council’s solicitors, to the
satisfaction of the Responsible Authority and must be recorded on the folio
of the Register to the subject land pursuant to Section 181 of the Planning
and Environment Act 1987.
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9.1.1 Planning Permit Application No. P2021-072
Use and Development of land for a dwelling and associated outbuilding ~ 24
Babbler Lane, Tabilk (cont.)

Engineering Conditions:
Rural Vehicle Crossing Location
4. Prior to the commencement of works on site, any new, relocated,
alteration or replacement of required vehicular entrances to the subject
land from the road shall be constructed at a location and of a size and
standard in accordance with the requirements of the relevant Authority
and shall be at the applicant's expense. The final location of the
crossing is to be approved by the Responsible Authority via a Vehicle
Crossing Permit. Reference should be made to Clause 12.9.2 “Rural
Vehicle Crossings” of the Infrastructure Design Manual. Refer to
standard drawing SD255 for small vehicles or SD265 for large vehicles.

5. The vehicular crossing shall have satisfactory clearance to any power
or Telecommunications pole, manhole cover or marker, or street tree
and have a minimum of 50mm of gravel from the shoulder to the
property boundary.

Internal Access Roads

6. Prior to the commencement of the usef/issue of the Certificate of
Occupancy all internal access roads must be constructed, formed and
drained to avoid erosion and to minimise disturbance to natural
topography of the land to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority.
Internal access, including the turn-around areas for emergency
vehicles, must be all weather construction with a minimum trafficable
width of 4m.

Rural Drainage - Works
7. All stormwater and surface water discharging from the site, buildings
and works must be conveyed to the legal point of discharge drains to
the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority/Goulburn Murray Water
or dissipated within the site boundaries. No effluent or polluted water
of any type may be allowed to enter the stormwater drainage system.

8. Appropriate steps must be taken to retain all silt and sediment on site
during the construction phase to the satisfaction of the Responsible
Authority and must be carried out in accordance with the following
EPA guidelines and policies: -

e Environmental Guidelines for Major Construction Sites (EPA
publication No. 480, December 19985); and

e Construction Techniques for Sedimentation Pollution Control
(EPA publication No. 275, May 1991)

9. Prior to the commencement of any works, the design parameters for
any defined watercourse crossing(s), both structural and hydraulic
design, shall be approved by the Responsible Authority (GBCMA -
Works on Waterways Permit).
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9.1.1 Planning Permit Application No. P2021-072

Use and Development of land for a dwelling and associated outbuilding ~ 24

Babbler Lane, Tabilk (cont.)

Council’s Assets
10. Before the development starts, the owner or developer must submit to

the Responsible Authority a written report and photos of any prior
damage to public infrastructure. Listed in the report must be the
condition of kerb & channel, footpath, seal, street lights, signs and
other public infrastructure fronting the property and abutting at least
two properties either side of the development. Unless identified with
the written report, any damage to infrastructure post construction will
be attributed to the development. The owner or developer of the
subject land must pay for any damage caused to the Councils
assets/Public infrastructure caused as a result of the development or
use permitted by this permit.

Health Department Conditions:

Septic Tanks Code of Practice

11.

12.

13.

All sewage and sullage waters shall be treated in accordance with the
requirements of the Environment Protection Act 1970 and the
Guidelines for Environmental Management: Code of Practice — Onsite
Wastewater Management 891. 4 (2016) and the Responsible Authority.

All wastewater shall be disposed of within the curtilage of the land and
sufficient area shall be kept available for the purpose of wastewater
disposal to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority.

No wastewater shall drain directly or indirectly onto an adjoining
property, street or any watercourse or drain to the satisfaction of the
Responsible Authority.

Approval of wastewater disposal

14.

15.

The system must be at least 300 metres from potable water supply. The
system must be at least 60 metres from any watercourse and/or dam
(non-potable water supply) for primary sewage and 30 metres for
secondary sewage, on the subject or neighbouring properties.

Prior to installation/alterations work commencing on the septic tank
system, a Permit to Install/Alter must be obtained from Council.

Area of wastewater disposal

16.

No buildings or works shall occur over any part of the approved waste
disposal system including the septic tank in accordance with the
requirements of the Environment Protection Act 1970, the Guidelines
for Environmental Management: Code of Practice — Onsite Wastewater
Management 891.4 (2016).

Dwelling Conditions:

17.

The dwelling must be connected to a reticulated potable water supply
or have an alternative potable water supply with adequate storage for
domestic use as well as for fire fighting purposes.
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9.1.1 Planning Permit Application No. P2021-072

Use and Development of land for a dwelling and associated outbuilding ~ 24

Babbler Lane, Tabilk (cont.)

18. The dwelling must be connected to a reticulated electricity supply or
have an alternative energy source.

Qutbuildings
19. The use of the approved outbuildings must be restricted to that of

incidental activities associated with the normal enjoyment of the new
dwelling.

20. All shedding and approved outbuildings must not be used at any time
for the purposes of human habitation.

General Conditions:

21. The external cladding of the proposed buildings, including the roof,
must be constructed of materials in good order and condition and be
of muted colours to enhance the aesthetic amenity of the area. Material
having a highly reflective surface must not be used.

22. The amenity of the area must not be detrimentally affected by the use,
through the:

(a) Appearance of any building, works or materials.

(b) Transport of materials, goods or commodities to or from the
land.

(c) Emission of noise, artificial light, vibration, smell, fumes,
smoke, vapour, steam, soot, ash, dust, wastewater, waste
products, grit or oil.

(d) Presence of vermin.

Bushfire Protection Measures:

Water Supply
23. A minimum of 10,000 litres of effective water supply for firefighting
purposes must be provided which meets the following requirements:

Be stored in an above ground water tank constructed of concrete
or metal.

Have all fixed above ground water pipes and fittings required for
firefighting purposes made of corrosive resistant metal.

Include a separate outlet for occupant use.

Be readily identifiable from the building or appropriate
identification signage to the satisfaction of the relevant fire
authority.

Be located within 60 metres of the outer edge of the approved
building.

The outlet/s of the water tank must be within 4 metres of the
accessway and unobstructed.

Incorporate a separate ball or gate valve (British Standard Pipe
(BSP 65 millimetre) and coupling (64-millimetre CFA 3 thread per
inch male fitting).

Any pipework and fittings must be a minimum of 65 millimetres
(excluding the CFA coupling)
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9.1.1 Planning Permit Application No. P2021-072

Use and Development of land for a dwelling and associated outbuilding ~ 24

Babbler Lane, Tabilk (cont.)

Access
24. Access for fire-fighting purposes must be provided which meets the

following requirements:

e All weather construction.

e Aload limit of at least 15 tonnes.

e Provide a minimum trafficable width of 3.5 metres

e Be clear of encroachments for at least 0.5 metre on each side and
at least 4 metres vertically.

Curves must have a minimum inner radius of 10m.

e The average grade must be no more than 1in 7 (14.4 per cent) (8.1
degrees) with a maximum of no more than 1in 5 (20 per cent) (11.3
degrees) for no more than 50m.

e Dips must have no more than a 1in 8 (12.5 per cent) (7.1 degrees)
entry and exit angle.

Permit Expiry:

25. This permit will expire if one of the following circumstances applies:

(a) The development is not started within two (2) years of the date
of this Permit,

(b) The development is not completed within four (4) years of the
date of this Permit.

The Responsible Authority may extend the periods referred to if a request is
made in writing:

o before the permit expires; or

e within six months afterwards if the use or development has not yet
started; or

e within 12 months after the permit expiry date, where the
development allowed by the permit has lawfully started before the
permit expires.

Planning Notes:

This Permit does not authorise the commencement of any building
construction works. Before any such development may commence,
the Applicant must apply for and obtain appropriate Building
approval.

This Permit does not authorise the removal of any native vegetation
including for access. Before any such works may commence, the
Applicant must apply for and obtain appropriate Planning approval.
This Permit does not authorise the creation of a new access
way/crossover. Before any such development may commence, the
Applicant must apply for and obtain appropriate approval from
Council.

Environmental Health Notes

A High Risk Template - Land Capability Assessment must be provided
for this proposal to determine if wastewater can be contained on site
before any further comment can be made by the Environmental Health
Department.
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9.1.1 Planning Permit Application No. P2021-072
Use and Development of land for a dwelling and associated outbuilding ~ 24
Babbler Lane, Tabilk (cont.)

PROPOSAL

The application is for the use and development of land for a dwelling and associated
outbuilding at 24 Babbler Lane, Tabilk formally known as Crown Allotment 32
Portion 3, Certificate of Title Volume 9713 Folio 622.

It is proposed to develop the site with a dwelling and garage in association with a
farming use at the site.

The subject site is identified as requiring a land size of 100 hectares for an as of
right use for a dwelling under the Farming Zone in the Strathbogie Planning
Scheme. The subject site has an area of 5.99 hectares.

The proposed dwelling is proposed to be setback 140.5 metres from the eastern
boundary and Babbler Lane, 23.5 metres from the southern boundary and over 300
metres from the western boundary and the Wormangal Creek riparian area. The
proposed dwelling is located outside of the Bushfire Management Overlay.

The proposed site plan is as follows:
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Dwelling
The proposed dwelling is:

Single storey

Four (4) bedrooms including Main bedroom with WIR and Ensuite
Study

Open entry meals/living, dining and kitchen

Walk in Pantry

Laundry

Bathroom

Separate toilet

Wrap around Verandah

Serviced by a 35,000-litre water tank, 10 metres from the north western side
of the dwelling.
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9.1.1 Planning Permit Application No. P2021-072
Use and Development of land for a dwelling and associated outbuilding ~ 24
Babbler Lane, Tabilk (cont.)

The dwelling is proposed to be 28 metres by 13.8 metres with a total floor area of
386.4 square metres.
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9.1.1 Planning Permit Application No. P2021-072
Use and Development of land for a dwelling and associated outbuilding ~ 24
Babbler Lane, Tabilk (cont.)
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The dwelling is proposed to have an eave height of 2.7 metres with a pitched roof
and a total height of 5.274 metres.

Double Garage
The garage is proposed to be 2.84 metres from the south eastern corner of the
dwelling. The garage is proposed to have a pitched roof with an eave height of 2.7
metres. The garage is proposed to be 6 metres by 6 metres with a total area of 36
square metres.

Existing Shed
The existing shed towards the site frontage in the north quadrant is proposed to be
retained. The shed is 10 by 10 metres with an area of 100 square metres.

Existing bungalow

The existing bungalow has a total area of 144 square metre and is proposed to be
relocated along the southern boundary. The bungalow is proposed to be 10 metres
from the south western corner of the dwelling.

Materials
e The proposed dwelling is clad in hardwood weatherboards
e Galvanised steel roof

¢ Verandah would be supported by galvanised steel posts and with treated
pine flooring.
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9.1.1 Planning Permit Application No. P2021-072
Use and Development of land for a dwelling and associated outbuilding ~ 24
Babbler Lane, Tabilk (cont.)

Land Management
The land is proposed to be used for the breeding and husbandry of goats.

The intended use is for animal husbandry — the rearing and sale of goats. There
are to be ten to twenty (10-20) goats initially.

The breed will be Boer Goats. The Boer goat is a breed of goat that was developed
in South Africa in the early 1900s and is a popular breed for meat production.

It is proposed the dwelling intended for the site will allow for permanent on-site
management of the farm, ensuring water supply, regular distribution of feed, and
oversight of the livestock.

The water source for the goats will be the on-site dam. This will have overflow of
water from the water tank, which will be fed by the roof of the dwelling.

The existing canopy trees on-site will be retained ensuring ongoing canopy cover
for the goats, particularly in hot weather.

The site will be divided into separate paddocks with internal fencing. This will
separate the goats from the driveway and dwelling areas while ensuring ongoing
access to the dam.

Four to five (4-5) shelters would be provided around the site. These allow for the
goats to sleep and avoid hot sun or rain. These shelters will have a floor area of
around 1.5m x 1.5m with a 1.2m height, and generally a small verandah.

The goats will be drenched for worms and powdered against parasites at regular
intervals.

SUBJECT SITE AND LOCALITY

The subject site is formally addressed as 24 Babbler Lane, Tabilk also legally
known as Crown Allotment 32 Portion 3, Certificate of Title Volume 9713 Folio 622.
The subject site has an area of 5.99 hectares in area. The land is relatively irregular
in shape.

The subject site is in a 100-hectare area for an as of right use for a dwelling.

2232\BR3900

The subject site is on the west side of Babbler Lane and south of Nagambie-
Locksley Road, in Tabilk. The site has a frontage of 100.58m to Babblers Lane.
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Planning Permit Application No. P2021-072
Use and Development of land for a dwelling and associated outbuilding ~ 24
Babbler Lane, Tabilk (cont.)

The eastern boundary adjoins Babbler Lane. Babbler Lane is unsealed, and the
road reserve is heavily vegetated with trees.

The western Boundary adjoins the riparian area surrounding the Wormangal Creek.
The area is heavily vegetated.

The subject site contains a bungalow, water tanks, shedding and a disused car.
The existing tanks and disused car mid-site are proposed to be removed and the
existing shed towards the site frontage, and the bungalow, would be retained.

The site contains grasses and includes clumps of trees to the east. Two single
paddock trees can be found towards the middle of the site.

There is a dam along the eastern boundary and no identified waterways are found
on site.

DAM ONSITE

iné Ml 21> ’
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Surrounding lot sizes in the area vary in size.

It is noted there is a rectangular section of land which contains twelve (12) smaller
parcels of land. Eight (8) of these parcels have been developed since 1984 with
dwellings and associated infrastructure.

The area is not recognised in the 2004 Strathbogie Shire Rural Residential
Strategy.

These parcels are being utilised for rural living with smaller types of agricultural use
and other uses including boarding kennels.
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9.1.1 Planning Permit Application No. P2021-072
Use and Development of land for a dwelling and associated outbuilding ~ 24
Babbler Lane, Tabilk (cont.)

SURROUNDING AREA

2252 823900

On a broader context the parcel sizes and uses vary. Some are still smaller than
the 100-hectare requirement and dwellings, whilst others are utilised for intensive
farming practices such as the Broiler farm located 968 metres to the west of the
site ensuring a buffer between uses.
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9.1.1 Planning Permit Application No. P2021-072
Use and Development of land for a dwelling and associated outbuilding ~ 24
Babbler Lane, Tabilk (cont.)

LOCALITY AREA

RURS B0 7160;

$30CIER3900]

MORGANSIUANE -

*
*

Dwellings on lots less than 100 hectares

Intensive farming practices such as the Broiler farm

The subject site is in the Farming Zone, partly affect by the Bushfire Management
Overlay.

SUBJECT SITE OVERLAY

It is also identified in the Bushfire Prone Area and located in an area of Aboriginal
Cultural Heritage Sensitivity.
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9.1.1 Planning Permit Application No. P2021-072
Use and Development of land for a dwelling and associated outbuilding ~ 24
Babbler Lane, Tabilk (cont.)

PERMIT/SITE HISTORY
A search of Council’s electronic records showed no planning permits issued for the
site.

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION
The application has been advertised pursuant to Section 52 of the Planning and
Environment Act 1987, by

¢ Sending letters to adjoining and nearby landowners

¢ Placing (a) sign on site

e On Council’s website.

The notification has been carried out correctly.

One (1) objection has been received. The key issues that were raised in the
objections are:
e A house is not needed to watch over 20 sheep - the proposal is more about
life styling than farming.
o Dorper sheep are a low maintenance breed and do not require full time care
or attendance.
e This area will end up becoming a rural living estate in a good farming area.
e The farm plan is not strong enough to show how a house is actually needed.
e The most useful thing to happen is to have this lot combined with another
one and be incorporated into a larger holding.
e The Shire needs to stop letting people build houses on small lots in farming
areas.
e Farm land should be used to grow food, not houses.
e Rising valuations of farming land.

Officer's Response

The points raised in the objection would normally apply to an application for a
dwelling in the Farming zone on a lot that was under the scheduled minimum lot
size, and indeed, raises valid planning matters in this respect. However, given the
context of the area where there are a number of small lots that have been created
and developed since the 1980’s for rural lifestyle living, and the size of the land, the
lot cannot be utilised for viable larger scale farming activities. It is considered that
rather than leave the lot vacant and potentially unmanaged which would
detrimentally affect the neighbouring properties and farms, it is in this instance
considered that the use for a dwelling can be supported, in conjunction with a small-
scale agricultural pursuit.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT
The proposal was advertised as per the Planning and Environment Act 1987.

The Objector was sent a copy of the applicant’s formal response which detailed
that:
e The dwelling intended for the site will allow for permanent on-site
management of the farm, ensuring water supply, regular distribution of feed,
and oversight of the livestock.
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9.1.1 Planning Permit Application No. P2021-072

Use and Development of land for a dwelling and associated outbuilding ~ 24

Babbler Lane, Tabilk (cont.)

Protection of predators will be essential. These will be breeding goats where
birthing mothers and kids will be vulnerable.
This is not a cropping operation which can be done remotely.

The objector reviewed the response and would like their objection to still stand.

They are still concerned regarding the loss of farming land.

The objector acknowledges the subdivision is seen as a historical error and
does not want to see the situation worsen.

They consider area change is incremental, so even if one house doesn't
make a huge different the gradual changing does make a difference.

REFERRALS

External Referrals/Notices required by the Planning Scheme:

Referrals/Notice Advice/Response/Conditions

Section 55 Referrals Nil

Section 52 Notices Nil

Internal Council | Advice/Response/Conditions

Referrals

Asset Services No Objection subject to Conditions

Health Department No Objection subject to Conditions
ASSESSMENT

Farming Zone

Purpose:

To implement the Municipal Planning Strategy and the Planning Policy
Framework.

To provide for the use of land for agriculture.

To encourage the retention of productive agricultural land.

To ensure that non-agricultural uses, including dwellings, do not adversely
affect the use of land for agriculture.

To encourage the retention of employment and population to support rural
communities.

To encourage use and development of land based on comprehensive and
sustainable land management practices and infrastructure provision.

To provide for the use and development of land for the specific purposes
identified in a schedule to this zone.
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9.1.1 Planning Permit Application No. P2021-072

Use and Development of land for a dwelling and associated outbuilding ~ 24

Babbler Lane, Tabilk (cont.)

Officer's Response:

The proposal has been assessed against the decision guidelines of the zone as

follows:
Decision Guidelines Officer Comments Complies?
General Issues
The Municipal Planning | Assessment against MPS & PPF is provided | v Yes
Strategy (MPS) and the | below.
Planning Policy
Framework (PPF).
Any Regional | It is considered the proposal will not have any | v Yes
Catchment Strategy | adverse impact on the local Pranjip water
and associated plan | catchment. The Pranjip zone incorporates the
applying to the land Pranjip, Branjee, Wormangal and Creightons
Creek catchments.
The proposed works are more than 100
metres from any waterway (Wormangal Creek
to the west) and any septic tank will be
required to meet health standards.
The proposal is considered in accordance with
the Regional Catchment Strategy.
The capability of the | A Land Capability Assessment has not been | v Yes
land to accommodate | prepared as part of the application. The land is
the proposed use or | considered large enough to hold any
development, including | wastewater from a single dwelling. The
the disposal of effluent. | dwelling is proposed over 300 metres from the
Wormangal Creek. The application has been
referred to Council’'s Environmental Health
Department who have consented to this
application, subject to conditions.
How the use or | The subject site is in an area of 100 hectares | v' Yes
development relates to | for an as of right use for a dwelling.
sustainable land | However, the site only measures 5.99
management hectares and is bound by the creek to the west
the road reserve to the east and similar sized
parcels to the north and south which have
been developed with single dwellings.
The application includes a Whole Farm Plan
for the breeding of Boer Goats. The existing
trees will be maintained for shade. The
applicant proposes to have a stock rate of 10-
20 goats initially this is considered appropriate
considering the size of the land.
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9.1.1 Planning Permit Application No. P2021-072
Use and Development of land for a dwelling and associated outbuilding ~ 24
Babbler Lane, Tabilk (cont.)

Whether the site is | Surrounding lot sizes in the area vary in size. | v' Yes

suitable for the use or
development and
whether the proposal is
compatible with
adjoining and nearby
land uses.

It is noted there is a rectangular section of land
which contains twelve (12) smaller parcels of
land. Eight (8) of these parcels have been
developed since 1984 with dwellings and
associated infrastructure. The area is not
recognised in the 2004 Strathbogie Shire

Rural residential Strategy. These parcels are
being utilised for rural living with smaller types
of a'gricultural use including boarding kennels.

= Conditions
will be included to ensure that muted tones are
used for any buildings and the landowners
accept any amenity impacts from surrounding
agricultural uses.
The development of a dwelling on this lot is
unlikely to create any additional detrimental
impact on the adjoining land uses. The
proposal is bound by lots which have been
developed in a similar manner.
It is important to note however it is considered

any future development should not be
approved on smaller lots beyond the
rectangular quadrant which has been

identified as this would lead to future
proliferation of dwellings. The subject site has
no opportunity to be absorbed by other larger
parcels for larger agricultural use.
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9.1.1 Planning Permit Application No. P2021-072
Use and Development of land for a dwelling and associated outbuilding ~ 24

Babbler Lane, Tabilk (cont.)

How the wuse and
development make use
of existing infrastructure
and services.

The subject site already contains some
infrastructure which will be utilised as part of
this proposal.

Any Planning permit issued will include
conditions and regards to access and provided
services.

The proposed dwelling will be accessed from
Babbler Lane. Babbler Lane is gravel and
adjoins Nagambie-Locksley Road to the north
(207 metres). Nagambie- Locksley Road is a
connector road from the Hume Freeway to
Nagambie.

A condition would be included on any planning
permit issued that the vehicle crossing be
constructed at a location and of a size and
standard to the satisfactory to the Responsible
Authority.

Water, sewer and gas are not available to the
subject site, alternative sources will be
required to be provided on site.

v Yes

Agricultural issues and

the impacts from non-agricultural uses

Whether the use or
development will
support and enhance
agricultural production

As discussed above the site has an area of
5.99 hectares and does not have the
opportunity to be absorbed by larger
agricultural pursuits due to site constraints and
surrounding development.

The application includes a Whole Farm Plan
for the breeding of 10-20 Boer Goats. This is
considered appropriate due to the size of the
land. The Whole Farm Plan will be endorsed
and included in a Section 173 Agreement for
any planning permit issued.

The land size will be able to continue grazing
and or smaller boutique agricultural
enterprises should the land ownership
change.

v Yes

Whether the use or
development will
adversely affect soll
quality or permanently
remove land  from
agricultural production.

Smaller agricultural pursuits will be able to be
undertaken on the site.

A Section 173 Agreement will be required on
any planning permit issued preventing any
future subdivision, or house lot excision. The
agreement will also acknowledge agricultural
pursuits being undertaken on the surrounding
properties.

v Yes
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9.1.1 Planning Permit Application No. P2021-072
Use and Development of land for a dwelling and associated outbuilding ~ 24

Babbler Lane, Tabilk (cont.)

The potential forthe use | It is considered the proposed use and | v Yes
or development to limit | development will not further limit the operation
the operation and | of adjoining and nearby agricultural uses due
expansion of adjoining | to the location of the site and surrounding
and nearby agricultural | development. A Section 173-agreement
uses. required on title will acknowledge agricultural
pursuits being undertaken on the surrounding
properties.
The land is bound by Wormangal Creek to the
west, Babbler Lane to the east and small rural
lots to the north and south.
A broiler far is located to the west (as shown
with the green star below). There are a number
of other dwellings on small lots in between the
subject site and the broiler site, it is therefore
considered the proposal will not have a direct
impact in limiting the operation and expansion
of adjoining and nearby agricultural uses. The
same applies to larger lots to the north, east
and south.
The capacity of the site | The subject site is 5.99 hectares and therefore | v' Yes
to sustain the | any agricultural use is limited and would be
agricultural use considered to be either a hobby farm, or
boutique enterprise. The site will still be able to
be utilised for grazing and is suited to smaller
type agricultural pursuits.
The agricultural | A discussed throughout this report. No | v Yes
qualities of the land, | detrimental impacts are likely to result from
such as soil quality, | this proposal.
access to water and
access to rural
infrastructure.
Any integrated land | A Whole Farm Plan has been prepared. v Yes
management plan
prepared for the site.
Dwelling Issues
Whether the dwelling | The proposed dwelling will not result in the | v' Yes
will result in the loss or | further loss or fragmentation of productive
fragmentation of | agricultural land. As previously discussed, lot
productive agricultural | sizes in the area vary, and some of the lots
land contain dwellings and shedding.
The development of a dwelling on this lot is
unlikely to create a detrimental impact on the
adjoining land uses. It is considered the land is
already lost in the identified quadrant below
due to historical subdivision pattern which has
been developed since 1988.
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9.1.1 Planning Permit Application No. P2021-072

Use and Development of land for a dwelling and associated outbuilding ~ 24

Babbler Lane, Tabilk (cont.)

Whether the dwelling
will be adversely
affected by agricultural
activities on adjacent
and nearby land due to
dust, noise, odour, use
of chemicals and farm
machinery, traffic and
hours of operation.

The dwelling is proposed to be used in
conjunction with an agricultural pursuit and is
appropriately located on site.

A Section 173-agreement required on title will
acknowledge agricultural pursuits being
undertaken on the surrounding properties.

v Yes

Whether the dwelling
will adversely affect the
operation and
expansion of adjoining
and nearby agricultural
uses.

The use of the land for a dwelling is unlikely to
impact on the surrounding agricultural
properties.

The parcel is separated from larger parcels to
the west by Wormangal Creek riparian area,
smaller rural lots and the Nagambie-Locksley
Road to the north, small rural lots to the south
and Babbler Lane to the east.

v Yes

The potential for the
proposal to lead to a
concentration or
proliferation of
dwellings in the area
and the impact of this
on the use of the land
for agriculture.

Eight (8) of the twelve (12) parcels have been
developed since 1984 with dwellings and
associated infrastructure. It is considered
these lots now only lend themselves to small
rural enterprise associated with a dwelling.
However, under no circumstances the existing
development should go beyond the
Wormangal Creek reserve, Nagambie-
Locksley Road and Babbler Lane. In addition,
development should not be allowed to creep
further south.

v Yes

Environmental Issues

The impact of the
proposal on the natural
physical features and
resources of the area, in
particular on soil and
water quality.

The dwelling and associated infrastructure has
been sited appropriately on the site. The land
is flat. The proposed dwelling is located over
300 metres from the Wormangal Creek. The
application was referred to Strathbogie
Environmental Health Department who does
not object subject to conditions.

v Yes

The impact of the use or
development on the
flora and fauna on the
site and its surrounds.

No native vegetation is proposed to be
removed. The dwelling is located 300 metres
from the Riparian area associated with the
Wormangal Creek.

v Yes
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Use and Development of land for a dwelling and associated outbuilding ~ 24

Babbler Lane, Tabilk (cont.)

The need to protect and | The proposal does not include the removal of | v' Yes
enhance the | any native vegetation, nor is it likely that it
biodiversity of the area, | would lead to vegetation removal in the future.
including the retention | The dwelling is proposed to be located more

of vegetation and faunal | than 300 metres from any identified waterway.

habitat and the need to

revegetate land

including riparian

buffers along

waterways, gullies,

ridgelines, property

boundaries and saline

discharge and recharge

area.

The location of on-site | On site effluent disposal will be carried out in | v' Yes
effluent disposal areas | accordance with the requirements of the

to 17rganiza the impact | Responsible Authority.

of nutrient loads on

waterways and native

vegetation.

Design and siting issues

The need to locate | The proposed dwelling is located appropriately | v' Yes
buildings in one area to | on the site, where it can be appropriately

avoid any adverse | drained, and is located away from the
impacts on surrounding | boundaries and clear of vegetation. A Whole
agricultural uses and to | Farm plan has been submitted as part of the
minimise the loss of | application.

productive agricultural

land.

The impact of the siting, | The proposed siting is considered appropriate. | v' Yes
design, height, bulk, | The design and materials employed are

colours and materials to | appropriate within the rural context and the

be used, on the natural | site’s landscape.

environment, major | Should a permit be issued, a condition will be

roads, vistas and water | placed on the permit requiring muted tones on
features and the | the exterior of the dwelling. The proposed
measures to be | dwelling is appropriately located on site and
undertaken to minimise | will be screened by trees in the road reserve

any adverse impacts. and in the riparian area to the west.
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9.1.1 Planning Permit Application No. P2021-072

Use and Development of land for a dwelling and associated outbuilding ~ 24

Babbler Lane, Tabilk (cont.)

The impact on the
character and
appearance of the area
or features of
architectural, historic or
scientific significance or
of natural scenic beauty

or importance.

The proposed dwelling is unlikely to detract
from the existing character and amenity values
of the area. Permit conditions will require that
muted materials are used. This along with
screening from existing trees will mitigate any
potential adverse visual impacts from
buildings.

v Yes

The location and design
of existing and
proposed infrastructure
including roads, gas,
water, drainage,
telecommunications

and sewerage facilities

The proposed building is appropriately located
on the site away from significant vegetation
and significant physical features.

The proposal utilises the existing
network.

The only other infrastructure to be constructed
will be the wastewater management system,
which will be located in an appropriate place
on the site.

road

v Yes

Whether the use and
development will
require traffic
management
measures.

As the proposal is for a single dwelling, it is
deemed not necessary for there to be traffic
management measures implemented.

v Yes

Bushfire Management Overlay

Purpose:

e To implement the Municipal Planning Strategy and the Planning Policy

Framework.

e To ensure that the development of land prioritises the protection of human
life and strengthens community resilience to bushfire.
e To identify areas where the bushfire hazard warrants bushfire protection
measures to be implemented.
e To ensure development is only permitted where the risk to life and property
from bushfire can be reduced to an acceptable level.

Officer's Response:

The proposed buildings and works are located outside of the Bushfire Management
Overlay and therefore a planning permit is not required under Clause 44.06.

The Planning Policy Framework (PPF)
Clause 13.02-1S Bushfire planning
e To strengthen the resilience of settlements and communities to bushfire
through risk-based planning that prioritises the protection of human life.
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Use and Development of land for a dwelling and associated outbuilding ~ 24
Babbler Lane, Tabilk (cont.)

Officer Comment:

The subject site is within a bushfire prone area. The subject site has access to
Wormangal Creek which adjoins the western boundary, along with a dam located
on the eastern boundary and a proposed 35,0000 litre water tank. The dwelling is
proposed to be developed to meet a 12.5 Bushfire Attack Level (BAL) and has
existing access. Standard bushfire protection conditions regarding water supply
and access will be included on any planning permit issued.

Clause 13.04-2S Erosion and landslip

Objective
e To protect areas prone to erosion, landslip or other land degradation
processes.

Officer Comment:

The subject site is not within the Erosion Management Overlay. The proposed
dwelling, and associated works is proposed to be located on relatively flat land.
The land does not contain any steep rises or ridgelines.

Conditions will be included on any planning permit issued to ensure any works
required for the construction of the dwelling or ancillary services will be stabilised
to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority to ensure there is no runoff into the
creek system.

Clause 14.01-1S Protection of agricultural land
Objective
e To protect the state’s agricultural base by preserving productive farmland.

Officer Comment:

As discussed within this report it is considered due to historical creation of small
lots and development which has occurred since 1988 that the area in which the
proposal is located has already been removed from agricultural pursuits.

The land will continue to be used for low level agricultural production in accordance
with the relevant policies within the Planning Policy Framework. The Whole Farm
Plan will be endorsed as part of any planning permit issued and any conditions will
include a Section 173 agreement prohibiting any future subdivision including house
lot excision to prevent any proliferation of dwellings in the area.

The development of a dwelling on this lot is unlikely to create a detrimental impact
on the adjoining land uses.

Surrounding lot sizes in the area vary in size. It is noted there is a rectangular
section of land which contains twelve (12) smaller parcels of land. Eight (8) of these
parcels have been developed since 1984 with dwellings and associated
infrastructure. The area is not recognised in the 2004 Strathbogie Shire Rural
residential Strategy. These parcels are being utilised for rural living with smaller
types of agricultural use and other uses including boarding kennels.
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Babbler Lane, Tabilk (cont.)

Clause 14.01-2S Sustainable agricultural land use
Objective
e To encourage sustainable agricultural land use.

Officer Comment:

The dwelling is proposed for the ongoing operation and security for a Boer Goat
stud. The use of the land for a dwelling in conjunction with an agricultural use and
ongoing land management is considered an appropriate land use for the site given
its size and location.

Surrounding land is within the area specified in this report is generally used for
residential purposes in conjunction with small agricultural pursuits. It is
acknowledged that the broader area is also used for larger agricultural uses and
these must be protected, however it is considered the historical development that
has occurred in this area allows for the addition of this proposed dwelling in
conjunction with an agricultural pursuit for the following reasons:
e The land has an area of 5.99 hectares
e The land is bound by the creek reserve to the west and Babbler Lane to the
east
e The lots to the north and south are of similar size and development
e The land has limited opportunity to be absorbed by larger agricultural
practices
e The development of the dwelling and proposed farming enterprise will assist
in the reduction of weeds and pests in the area.

However, further development beyond the perimeter of the historic lots should not
be allowed to be developed further to protect the broader farming enterprises.

The land will continue to be used for agricultural production in accordance with the
relevant policies within the Planning Policy Framework.

Clause 14.02-1S, Catchment planning and management
Objective
e To assist the protection and, where possible, restoration of catchments,
waterways, water bodies, groundwater, and the marine environment.

Clause 14.02-2S Water quality
Objective
e To protect water quality

Officer Comment:

The dwelling is proposed to be located over 300 metres from the waterway
(Wormangal Creek) to the west. Standard drainage conditions will be included on
any planning permit issued.
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The Local Planning Policy Framework (LPPF) - including the Municipal
Strategic Statement (MSS) and local planning policies
Clause 21.02-4 Rural Zones
Objective
e To protect and maintain established farming areas.
e To ensure suitable land is available to provide for emerging rural
enterprises, e.g. intensive animal husbandry, horticulture and equine
industry.

Officer Comment:

The subject site is in an area of 100 hectares for an as of right use for a dwelling.
The land is proposed to continue to be used for agricultural production (at a hobby
farm scale) in accordance with the relevant policies within the Planning Policy
Framework. The surrounding lots are typically used for rural living with smaller
types of agricultural use and other uses including boarding kennels.

A condition will be included on any planning permit issued requiring Section 173
Agreement that acknowledges amenity impacts from surrounding agricultural
pursuits.

Strathbogie Shire Planning Scheme outlines the minimum requirement for an as of
right use for dwellings in the Farming Zone. The land sizes vary across the Shire
from 40 hectares to 100 hectares dependant on the agricultural values of the land.
Whilst this parcel is located in the 100-hectare area, eight (8) of the twelve (12)
parcels identified below have been developed.

The area is not recognised in the 2004 Strathbogie Shire Rural Residential Strategy
and further development for dwellings on small lots should not be considered
beyond this perimeter.

Clause 21.02-6 Building Material — Muted Tones
Objective:
e To ensure that all structures blend in with the surrounding environment and
that the aesthetic amenity of the area is preserved and/or enhanced.

Officer Comment:

The dwelling is proposed to be constructed of new materials. The materials are
unlikely to impact the aesthetic amenity currently enjoyed in the area. Standard
conditions will be included on any planning permit issued to ensure the materials
are muted and of good repair.

Clause 22.01-3 Dwellings on small lots in the Farming Zone
Policies:
e The construction of a new dwelling on an existing small lot will be
discouraged unless it meets all the following requirements:
o The lot is accessed by an all-weather road and has appropriate
service provisions.
o Emergency ingress and egress is at an appropriate standard.
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o The dwelling will not inhibit the operation of agriculture and rural
industries.

o The site must be able to contain and treat onsite effluent and
wastewater in accordance with the relevant Code of Practice and
Australian Standards, and;

o Meets at least one of the following requirements:

» The dwelling should be associated with a sustainable rural
pursuit that requires a dwelling on the land to manage that
pursuit. The application should be supported by a farm
management plan that justifies the need for a dwelling to
assist in the operation of the farm.

» The applicant can substantiate that the land has no
agricultural potential due to environmental significance and
the dwelling is to be used in conjunction with sustainable
land management and the significant vegetation is protected
on title.

* The lot has been identified in the Strathbogie Shire Rural
Residential Strategy, 2004 as rural residential; implying that
that there is an historic use and development pattern.
Consideration should be given to the recommendations in
the Strategy.

*» The applicant is proposing to consolidate one or more lots in
the same ownership with the subject land prior to the
construction of the dwelling.

Officer Comment:

The lot is accessed by an all-weather road. Babbler Lane is gravel and is regularly
graded, it adjoins Locksley-Nagambie Road 207 metres to the north. Nagambie-
Locksley Road is the main connector road between the Hume Freeway and
Nagambie. The existing rural access is proposed to be upgraded to meet Councils
IDM standards and will be conditioned on any planning permit issued.

It is considered the dwelling is appropriately setback on the subject site. A Section
173 Agreement included on title via conditions will ensure any future occupiers
accept the potential of any adverse amenity impacts due to agricultural pursuits
being undertaken on neighbouring sites. The agreement will also prevent further
subdivision including house lot excision.

The subject site is not identified within the 2004 Strathbogie Shire Rural Residential
Strategy. However, as identified throughout this report the land is part of an historic
subdivision which has been developed and the parcel cannot be re-absorbed by
surrounding agricultural land. An assessment of how the proposal complies with
the relevant policy is as follows:
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9.1.1 Planning Permit Application No. P2021-072
Use and Development of land for a dwelling and associated outbuilding ~ 24
Babbler Lane, Tabilk (cont.)

Policy Requirement Officer Comment Complies?

The lot is accessed by an all- | Babblers Lane is an unsealed road but | v" Yes
weather road and has |is appropriately graded for the use of
appropriate service provisions. | vehicles. It has a width of generally 4m
— 5m and can accommodate access
by emergency vehicles. There is also
an existing driveway into the site that
can accommodate emergency
vehicles.

The existing rural access will be
required to meet Councils IDM
standards and will be Conditioned on
any planning permit issued.

The dwelling will be able to connect
services or have an alternative source
and this will be conditioned on any
planning permit issued.

The property is large enough to
contain onsite wastewater for a single
dwelling.

Emergency ingress and egress | The proposed driveway will be | v Yes
is at an appropriate standard. required to be constructed to allow all
weather access and minimum
trafficable width for safe ingress and
egress of emergency vehicles.

The dwelling will not inhibit the | The dwelling is setback appropriately | v' Yes
operation of agriculture and | on the subject site. The land will
rural industries continue to be used for agricultural
production on a small lot in
accordance with the relevant policies
within the Planning Policy Framework.
As discussed in the report the subject
site does not meet the 100-hectare
requirement in the Farming Zone,
however future growth for agricultural
pursuits are limited on this site. A 173
Agreement will be conditioned on any
planning permit issued to ensure
current and future landowners
acknowledge the agricultural pursuits
on adjoining land.
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9.1.1 Planning Permit Application No. P2021-072

Use and Development of land for a dwelling and associated outbuilding ~ 24

Babbler Lane, Tabilk (cont.)

following requirements:

The dwelling should be
associated with a
sustainable rural pursuit
that requires a dwelling
on the land to manage
that pursuit. The
application should be
supported by a farm
management plan that
justifies the need for a

Council’s local policies listed above
that dwellings should be in association
with agricultural/farming uses. That is
the case in this proposal, with this
dwelling being required to oversee the
rearing and sale of goats. Although the
enterprise is small in nature it is
considered appropriate due to site
constraints and the inability for the lot
to be absorbed by larger agricultural
enterprises.

The site must be able to contain | The application has been referred to | v Yes
and treat onsite effluent and | Environmental Health who do not
wastewater in accordance with | object subject to conditions. It is
the relevant Code of Practice | intended to install a wastewater
and Australian Standards disposal system onsite to treat any
wastewater. This will be distributed on-
site by sprinklers or permeable piping.
This would ensure soil filtration and is
compatible with livestock.
Meets at least one of the | Itis clear from the zone purposes, and | v Yes

dwelling to assist in the
operation of the farm.

The policy requires that a Section 173 Agreement condition be included on any
planning permit issued to ensure subdivision of the land which increases the
number of lots including house lot excision is prevented and that the property owner
acknowledges and accepts that the possibility of some amenity impacts from
adjoining and/or nearby land uses including agriculture.

Although the land will not meet the 100-hectare area for an as of right the land will
continue to be used for small scale agricultural production within the site constraints
in accordance with the relevant policies within the Planning Policy Framework.

Relevant Particular Provisions
There are no provisions considered applicable to this planning permit application.

The decision guidelines of Clause 65
Clause 65.01, Approval of an application or plan, states that; before deciding on an
application or approval of a plan, the responsible authority must consider, as
appropriate:

e The matters set out in Section 60 of the Act.
The Municipal Planning Strategy and the Planning Policy Framework.
The purpose of the zone overlay or other provision.
Any matter required to be considered in the zone, overlay or other provision.
The orderly planning of the area.
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9.1.1 Planning Permit Application No. P2021-072
Use and Development of land for a dwelling and associated outbuilding ~ 24
Babbler Lane, Tabilk (cont.)

e The effect on the amenity of the area.

e The proximity of the land to any public land.

e Factors likely to cause or contribute to land degradation, salinity or reduce
water quality.

e Whether the proposed development is designed to maintain or improve the
quality of stormwater within and exiting the site.

e The extent and character of native vegetation and the likelihood of its
destruction.

¢ Whether native vegetation is to be or can be protected, planted or allowed
to regenerate.

e The degree of flood, erosion or fire hazard associated with the location of
the land and the use, development or management of the land to minimise
any such hazard.

e The adequacy of loading and unloading facilities and any associated
amenity, traffic flow and road safety impacts.

Other relevant adopted policies/strategies — (e.g. Melbourne 2030.)
No relevant policies external to the Strathbogie Planning Scheme are applicable to
the proposal.

Relevant incorporated, reference or adopted documents
Rural

Relevant Planning Scheme amendments
There are no relevant planning scheme amendments that are applicable to the
proposal.

Risk Management
The author of this report considers that there are no significant Risk Management
factors relating to the report and recommendation.

Strategic Links — policy implications and relevance to Council Plan
The author of this report considers that the report is consistent with Council
Policies, key strategic documents and the Council Plan.

POLICY CONSIDERATIONS
Council Plans and Policies

There are no implications on the Council Plan or any Council Policies as a result of
this decision.

Regional, State and National Plans and Policies
One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that regional, state and national plans and policies are to be taken into
account in strategic planning and decision-making.

The state policies are considered in the Planning Policy Framework section (above)
from the Strathbogie Planning Scheme.
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9.1.1 Planning Permit Application No. P2021-072
Use and Development of land for a dwelling and associated outbuilding ~ 24
Babbler Lane, Tabilk (cont.)

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that Council decisions are to be made and actions taken in accordance
with the relevant law.

This application is being considered under Section 61 of the Planning and
Environment Act 1987.

Conflict of Interest Declaration

All officers, and/or contractors, involved in the preparation of this report have signed
a written declaration that they do not have a conflict of interest in the subject matter
of this report.

Transparency
One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the transparency of Council decisions, actions and information is
to be ensured.

This application is being heard by Council as the proposal has received one (1)
objection. Hearing the application in the public meeting will allow all parties the
opportunity to be heard by the councillors prior to a decision being made.

SUSTAINABILITY CONSIDERATIONS

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the economic, social and environmental sustainability of the
municipal district, including mitigation and planning for climate change risks, is to
be promoted.

Economic

The applicant has demonstrated the land will continue to be used for small scale
agricultural production in accordance with the relevant policies within the Planning
Policy Framework. The dwelling is setback appropriately setback on the subject
site.

Social

It is considered that there are no negative broader social implications from the
proposed use and development or as a result of this application. It is clear from the
zone purposes, and Council’s local policies listed above, dwellings should be in
association with agricultural/farming uses. That is the case in this proposal, with
this dwelling being required to oversee the rearing and sale of goats. Although the
enterprise is small in nature it is considered appropriate due to site constraints and
the inability for the lot to be absorbed by larger agricultural enterprises.

Environmental

The application has been assessed against the relevant provisions of the Planning
and Environment Act 1987 and subject to the proposed conditions any potential
environmental impacts will be managed.
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9.1.1 Planning Permit Application No. P2021-072
Use and Development of land for a dwelling and associated outbuilding ~ 24
Babbler Lane, Tabilk (cont.)

Climate change

The Strathbogie Planning Scheme has incorporated broader considerations on
Climate Change. Of relevance is Clause 13 within the Strathbogie Planning
Scheme which considers a broad range of considerations for Environmental Risks
and Amenity. There are a number of permit conditions associated to this application
that manage any potential environmental impacts.

HUMAN RIGHTS CONSIDERATIONS

There are no human rights implications with this proposal. The application is being
assessed in accordance with relevant legislation, and all parties will be afforded all
relevant rights of appeal at the Victorian Civil and Administrative Tribunal.

SUMMARY OF KEY ISSUES

As discussed in the report the subject site does not meet the 100-hectare
requirement in the Farming Zone. However, it is considered the proposal is
appropriate and when assessed against the decision guidelines is found to support
them.

The applicant has demonstrated the land will continue to be used for small scale
agricultural production in accordance with the relevant policies within the Planning
Policy Framework. The dwelling is setback appropriately setback on the subject
site.

It is acknowledged that the proposal is a rural lifestyle lot with a hobby farming
enterprise. This is considered appropriate due to the historic subdivision patterns
and development of dwellings since 1988. It is considered due the previous
development and the location of the lot there is limited potential for the land to be
absorbed into a larger agricultural lot.

It is considered the proposal will not contribute to any further proliferation of
dwellings beyond the area identified in this report.

With regard to the Bushfire Management Overlay: The proposed buildings and
works are located outside of the Bushfire Management Overlay and therefore a
planning permit is not required under Clause 44.06.

In summary, the proposal meets the objectives of the Planning Policy Framework,
Local Planning Policy Framework, Zone, and Overlay.

CONCLUSION

After due assessment of all the relevant factors, it is considered appropriate to issue
a Notice of Decision to Grant a Permit, subject to conditions, in accordance with
the officer recommendation.

ATTACHMENTS
Attachment 1: Site Plan
Attachment 2: Site Locality Map
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ATTACHMENT 1: Site plan

2230PR3900

ATTACHMENT 2: Site locality map
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9.1.2 Planning Applications Received and Planning Applications Determined
-1 to 31 August 2021

Author: Director Community and Planning

Responsible Director: Director Community and Planning

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This report provides listings of all Planning Applications Received (Attachment 1)
and Planning Applications Determined (Attachment 2) for the period 1 to 31 August
2021 are provided for information.

It is noted that there were 27 planning applications received, 17 planning
applications issued, 2 planning applications lapsed and 1 planning application was
withdrawn during this period.

RECOMMENDATION

That Council:

1. Note that there were 27 new planning applications received, 17
planning applications issued, 2 planning applications lapsed and 1
planning application withdrawn during the period 1% to 31 August
2021.

2. Note the report.

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND
To report to Council on the current planning application activity and matters
considered under delegation.

ISSUES, OPTIONS AND DISCUSSION

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that Priority is to be given to achieving the best outcomes for the
municipal community, including future generations.

Council is a Responsible Authority under the Planning and Environment Act 1987
(the Act). In this role, Council administers the Strathbogie Planning Scheme
(Planning Scheme) and, among other things, determines planning permit
applications made for the use and development of the land in the municipality.
Under delegated authority of Council, Council officers determine some matters.

Many types of use and development do not require a planning permit and may take
place without being recorded as part of the planning approvals data. The statistics
presented do not represent all development activity in the municipality. In addition,
some planning permits are not acted on, or there may be a delay between when
the approval is granted and when works take place.



Strathbogie Shire Council Page 34 21/09/21
Council Meeting Agenda

9.1.2 Planning Applications Received and Planning Applications Determined
- 1 to 31 August 2021 (cont.)

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT
One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the municipal community is to be engaged in strategic planning
and strategic decision making.

Individual applications consider these requirements through assessment phase of
each application as per the Planning and Environment Act 1987 and the provisions
of the Strathbogie Planning Scheme.

Conflict of Interest Declaration

All officers, and/or contractors, involved in the preparation of this report have signed
a written declaration that they do not have a conflict of interest in the subject matter
of this report.

Transparency
One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the transparency of Council decisions, actions and information is
to be ensured.

This report continues to demonstrate that Council is being transparent in its position
in relation to all applications received and determined by the Council.

CONCLUSION
This report is provided for Council to note the current planning application activity.

ATTACHMENTS
Attachment 1 Planning Applications Received
Attachment 2 Planning Applications Determined
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ATTACHMENT 1:

Tuesday, 3 August 2021

Application Number
Display

Site Address

Application Description

298 Mitchellstown Road, Tabilk VIC 3607 P2021-140 Native Vegetation Removal (3 large trees) to allow for the construction of an internal access road. $0.00

Thursday, 5 August 2021

Application Number

Site Address "
Display

Application Description

20-22 Tarcombe Street, Euroa VIC 3666 P2021-141 Development of land for a storage shed/verandah and signage associated with a retail premises  $15,000.00

Friday, 6 August 2021

Application Number

Site Address Application Description

Display
115 Grenada Road, Mangalore VIC 3663 P2018-131SC 1 Use and development of land for nine (9) dwellings, water pump station and signage $0.00
66 Loddings Lane, Nagambie VIC 3608 P2021-154 Use and development of land for a public pathway. $2,812,256.83

Monday, 9 August 2021

Application Number

Site Address Application Description

Display

Murray Street, Nagambie VIC 3608 P2015-078 EOT 2 Staged 25 Lot Subdivision $0.00

Tuesday, 10 August 2021

Application Number

Site Address Application Description

Display

12 MclLeod Street, Kirwans Bridge VIC 3608 P2021-143 Development of land for alterations to an existing dwelling $250,000.00
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1491 Merton-Strathbogie Road, Strathbogie P2021-142 Development of land for the construction of a shed (Agricultural Use) $0.00
VIC 3666

Thursday, 12 August 2021

Application Number

Site Address Application Description

Display
2 Daisy Street, Violet Town VIC 3669 P2021-146 Use and Development for a Dwelling and Outbuilding $0.00
5 Lewis Street, Euroa VIC 3666 P2021-144 Two (2) Lot Subdivision $0.00

Friday, 13 August 2021

Application Number

Site Address .
Display

Application Description

3 Hill Close, Ruffy VIC 3666 P2021-145 Construction of a Garage and Carport $9,500.00

Tuesday, 17 August 2021

Application Number

Site Address Application Description

Display
181 Millards Lane, Euroa VIC 3666 P2021-148 Use and Development for a Dwelling $498,000.00
18-20 Frost Street, Euroa VIC 3666 P2021-147 Two (2) Lot Subdivision $0.00
7-11 Scott Street, Euroa VIC 3666 P2021-157 Development of Six Dwellings, Six Lot Subdivision, Reduction in Car Parking $980,000.00

Wednesday, 18 August 2021

Site Address Application Number

Application Description

Display
205 Goulburn Weir Road, Goulburn Weir P2021-150 Addition to a Dwelling $120,000.00
VIC 3608
6 Cree Street, Euroa VIC 3666 P2021-097-SC1 Development of land for an extension of dwelling $0.00
667 Creightons Creek Road, Creightons P2021-149 Development of land for a carport $29,700.00

Creek VIC 3666
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Thursday, 19 August 2021

Application Number

Site Address Display Application Description
143 High Street, Nagambie VIC 3608 P2018-026-1 S72 Update to masterplan for Nagambie Caravan Park $6,440,000.00
34 Kelvin View School Road, Kelvin View P2021-151 Construction of a Verandah $41,800.00
VIC 3666

Friday, 20 August 2021

Application Number

Site Address Display Application Description
51 Wattlevale Road, Bailieston VIC 3608 P2021-152 Construction of an Outbuilding $40,617.00
99 Binney Street, Euroa VIC 3666 P2019-112-1 EOT Development of land for an extension to a court house; Two lot boundary re-alignment $0.00

Monday, 23 August 2021

Application Number

Site Address Display Application Description
1175 Lambing Gully Road, Avenel VIC 3664 P2021-155 Construction of an outdoor entertainment area (inc storage, cool room, toilets and front service $150,000.00
counter)
23 Kettels Road, Kirwans Bridge VIC 3608  P2019-078 SC C1 Development of land for alterations and extension to a dwelling $0.00
43-45 Tarcombe Street, Euroa VIC 3666 P2021-153 Two (2) lot subdivision and access to a road zone category 1 $0.00

Tuesday, 24 August 2021

Application Number

Site Address Application Description

Display

2654 Heathcote-Nagambie Road, Graytown P2021-156 Native Vegetation Removal (small saplings) to allow construction of telecommunications tower. $0.00
VIC 3608
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Wednesday, 25 August 2021

Application Number

Site Address "
Display

Application Description

272-278 High Street, Nagambie VIC 3608 P2020-141-1 Development of land for a two-storey commercial building; Eleven (11) Lot Subdivision; Reduction $0.00
in car parking requirements

Friday, 27 August 2021

Application Number
Display

Site Address

Application Description

380 Drysdale Road, Euroa VIC 3666 P2017-021-1 SC C2 Inclusion of staff amenities block at existing a free range egg farm $0.00

Tuesday, 31 August 2021

Application Number

Site Address Application Description

Display

Murray Street, Nagambie VIC 3608 P2015-078- 1 COR Staged 25 lot subdivision - correcting condition 1a on permit to reflect correct number of lots $0.00
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ATTACHMENT 2:
05/08/2021
. Application Number . ..
Site Address Display Application Description
4 Hughes Street, Avenel VIC 3664  P2021-060 Two Lot Subdivision $0.00 Issued
Mt Cecelia Road, Gooram VIC 3666 P2020-087 Development of land for a dwelling, barn, garage and internal access $0.00 Issued
11/08/2021
. Application Number I A Cost Of
Site Address Display Application Description Works
22-24 Jean Street, Longwood VIC P2021-055 Development of land for the construction of a second dwelling on a lot $161,000.00 Issued
3665
261 McKenzies Road, Locksley VIC ~ P2021-109 Three Lot Re Subdivision $0.00 Issued
3665
44 MclLeod Street, Kirwans Bridge ~ P2021-064 Use and Development of land for a landing and jetty $12,000.00 Issued
VIC 3608
6 Cree Street, Euroa VIC 3666 P2021-097 Development of land for an extension of dwelling $30,000.00 Issued
13/08/2021
. Application Number P .o Cost Of
Site Address Display Application Description Works
12 James Grant Lane, Longwood P2020-068 Development of land for the installation of powerlines, construction of road and associated $0.00 Issued
VIC 3665 removal of native vegetation
17/08/2021

Site Address Appllcat_lon - Application Description
Display

3 Hill Close, Ruffy VIC 3666 P2021-145 Construction of a Garage and Carport $9,500.00 Issued
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337 Mt Camel-Graytown Road, P2021-062 Re-subdivision of three (3) lots into two (2) lots $0.00 Issued
Moormbool West VIC 3523
18/08/2021
Site Address Appllcat_uon b L Application Description
Display
197 Ryans Lane, Locksley VIC 3665 P2021-112 Development of land for a shed (Agricultural) $52,936.00 Lapsed
290-292 High Street, Nagambie VIC P2021-077 Development of Two Retail Premises with Accommodation $300,000.00 Issued
3608
533 Zanelli Road, Nagambie VIC P2021-050 Use and Development for a Mineral Processing Facility (to process gold bearing ore with $2,000,000.00 Issued
3608 tailings processing and storage); and Native Vegetation Removal
20/08/2021
Site Address Appllc;t_lon Ll Application Description
isplay
61-63 Tulip Street, Violet Town VIC P2021-057 Two Lot Subdivision $0.00 Issued
3669
23/08/2021
Site Address Appllcat_lon PR Application Description
Display
Dunnings Road, Balmattum VIC P2021-079 Use and Development of a Dwelling $0.00 Lapsed
3666
24/08/2021

Application Number
Display

Application Description

Site Address

2654 Heathcote-Nagambie Road, P2021-156 Native Vegetation Removal for telecommunications tower— no planning permit required $0.00 Withdrawn
Graytown VIC 3608 removal of saplings under 10 years in age.
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25/08/2021
Site Address Appllcat_uon b L Application Description
Display
205 Goulburn Weir Road, Goulburn  P2021-150 Addition to a Dwelling $120,000.00 Issued
Weir VIC 3608
26/08/2021
Site Address Appllcat_lon b L Application Description
Display
1175 Lambing Gully Road, Avenel P2021-155 Construction of an outdoor entertainment area (inc storage, cool room, toilets and front $150,000.00 Issued
VIC 3664 service counter)
51 Wattlevale Road, Bailieston VIC  P2021-152 Construction of an Outbuilding $40,617.00 Issued
3608
667 Creightons Creek Road, P2021-149 Development of land for a carport $29,700.00 Issued
Creightons Creek VIC 3666
27/08/2021
. Application Number P s Cost Of
Site Address Display Application Description Works
2329 Euroa-Mansfield Road, P2021-066 Construction of a Farm Shed and Water Tanks $30,000.00 Issued

Gooram VIC 3666
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9.2

COMMUNITY

9.2.1 Euroa lLittle Theatre Inc. — Application for Sponsorship

Author: Manager Tourism and Community Services

Responsible Director: Director Community and Planning

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Euroa Little Theatre (ELT) Inc. have submitted a request for sponsorship of
$3,000 from Council to be used towards their theatre production event being held
in October 2021. These funds will assist to enable the purchase and hire of safety
and access equipment for this production.

The funds will be utilised for the following purpose:

1. The purchase of ground operated, wind-up lighting towers to reduce the current
OHS risk, undertaken by volunteers during the event.

2. The hire of a wheelchair lifter to address accessibility issues and barriers to
inclusion for the performers at this event.

Their application was of a very high standard with all questions addressed and
scored a 21/25 against the measured criteria of the Sponsorship Program. This
sponsorship application is the first for the 2021 — 2022 financial year with a budget
of $30,000 of available funds still remaining in the program.

This application for sponsorship aligns with the following priority focus areas of
Council for the Sponsorship Program which are to:

1. Promote community engagement and participation

2. Support gender equality and social inclusion and improve accessibility

3. Contribute to building health and vibrant communities.

This report seeks approval for the provision of this sponsorship request. Should
Covid-19 restrictions prevent this event from occurring in October, the event will be
postponed until restrictions ease.

RECOMMENDATION

That Council endorse the request for $3,000 in sponsorship, to be funded
from the 2021 — 22 budget allocation for community sponsorship, for the
Euroa Little Theatre Incorporated to assist with their event production being
held in October 2021.

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND

The Euroa Little Theatre (ELT) Inc has been active since 1956, presenting a variety
of stage performances and workshops within the Strathbogie Shire. Membership is
open to all ages and abilities, with an emphasis in recent years on scripts written
within the Euroa Community. ELT Inc. is open to anyone in the community and
develops production and personal skills around theatrical performance.
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9.2.1 Euroa Little Theatre Inc. — Application for Sponsorship (cont.)

The funds from the sponsorship program will be put towards the purchase of wind-
up lighting towers for ongoing use in the performance space at The Euroa School
House where ELT Inc conduct their rehearsals and performances. This will ensure
that lighting crew volunteers will not have to climb five (5) metre high ladders to
hang lights, providing a safer environment for all to work in.

In addition, the hire of a wheelchair lifter will provide greater inclusion for performers,
as the School House stage is only accessible by steps, meaning that a wheelchair
is currently prohibited from accessing the stage area.

ISSUES, OPTIONS AND DISCUSSION

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that priority is to be given to achieving the best outcomes for the
municipal community, including future generations.

The sponsorship assistance provided by Council will facilitate a safer, more
accessible and inclusive environment in which ELT Inc may conduct both their
rehearsals and performances, enabling them to afford appropriate equipment for
use in the lighting of and accessible access to the stage area.

Currently, it is an Occupational Health and Safety issue for volunteers to have to
climb five (5) metre high ladders to hang and change lighting configurations for the
event performance. The sponsorship funds requested will allow for the purchase
of wind-up lighting towers that are operated at ground level, and these will be able
to be utilised at the October 2021 event as well as other events/performances in
the future. Should Covid-19 restrictions prevent this event from occurring in
October, the event will be postponed until restrictions ease.

The requested sponsorship funds will also be utilised for the hire of a wheelchair
lifter, which will address accessibility issues and barriers to inclusion for the
performers at this event.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT
One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the municipal community is to be engaged in strategic planning
and strategic decision making.

Community engagement was undertaken in development of the Arts and Culture
Strategy 2019 -2023, with the following goal and key objective identified:

e ‘A culturally capable community’ — To increase the capacity for the community
to lead and deliver arts and cultural experiences, by supporting opportunities
for growth and learning.

This request for sponsorship to assist with both accessibility and OHS issues aligns
with this goal as identified by the community in the Arts and Culture Strategy 2019
-2023.



Strathbogie Shire Council Page 44 21/09/21
Council Meeting Agenda

9.2.1 Euroa Little Theatre Inc. — Application for Sponsorship (cont.)

POLICY CONSIDERATIONS

Council Plans and Policies

This initiative addresses the key objectives of the Council Plan 2017 — 2021 as

follows:

e Goal One: To enhance community health and wellbeing

o Key strategies — Plan for improved community health, wellbeing and

liveability; Engage and participate with the community in
Council/Community initiatives; Support and drive community, arts and
cultural events

This initiative also directly relates to the Arts and Culture Strategy 2019 -2023 as

follows:

e Goal 1: A Connected and Vibrant Community which is focused on strengthening
the strong sense of belonging and community pride, by increasing the
opportunities for creative stimulation and connectedness.

o Strategic Objective 1.1 — we will support initiatives that bring people
together, encourage collaboration and partnerships and create
networks.

It also relates to the Liveability Plan 2017-2021 as follows:
e Priority One: Stronger Together. Establish strong partnerships and increase
collaboration.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that Council decisions are to be made and actions taken in accordance
with the relevant law.

The provision of a safe workplace environment and adequate all abilities facilities
are a basic workplace right, and to eliminate ‘as far as possible’ discrimination on
the ground of disability is one of the main objectives under the Disability and
Discrimination Act 1992.

Conflict of Interest Declaration

All officers, and/or contractors, involved in the preparation of this report have signed
a written declaration that they do not have a conflict of interest in the subject matter
of this report.

Transparency
One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the transparency of Council decisions, actions and information is
to be ensured.

In the interest of transparency and open and honest communication with our
community, it is recommended that this request for sponsorship of the Euroa Little
Theatre be acknowledged in a public forum providing full disclosure of how
potential allocated sponsorship funding is being distributed within our community.



Strathbogie Shire Council Page 45 21/09/21
Council Meeting Agenda

9.2.1 Euroa Little Theatre Inc. — Application for Sponsorship (cont.)

FINANCIAL VIABILITY CONSIDERATIONS
One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the ongoing financial viability of the Council is to be ensured.

This request for sponsorship is the first request received for the 2021 — 2022
financial year, with a budget of $30,000 currently remaining in the Sponsorship
Program. The event production scheduled for October 2021 has good support from
local sponsors providing cash contributions as well as ELT Inc contributing their
own funds to the project.

SUSTAINABILITY CONSIDERATIONS

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the economic, social and environmental sustainability of the
municipal district, including mitigation and planning for climate change risks, is to
be promoted.

Economic
This event will assist in bringing people from the surrounding areas into Euroa to
enjoy the event with the possibility of a small economic stimulus to the township.

Social

The event supports social connection by providing an all community event within
the town of Euroa enabling those residents who usually have to travel to access
cultural events out of town access to a cultural event within their own town, by their
own community.

Environment
There may be some minimal environmental impacts including additional electricity
consumption that will be required to deliver the event.

Climate Change
This event can provide the opportunity for attendees to carpool to the venue,
reducing the carbon footprint on the environment.

INNOVATION AND CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT
One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is the pursuit of innovation and continuous improvement.

The recognition of the need for all abilities access to the performance stage area
at the event highlights the pursuit of continuous improvement in the area of equality
and accessibility for all.

COLLABORATION

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that collaboration with other councils, levels of government and
statutory bodies is to be sought.

This event will be a collaboration between the local community, local
philanthropists, Shire, and the Euroa Little Theatre Inc Committee.
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9.2.1 Euroa Little Theatre Inc. — Application for Sponsorship (cont.)

HUMAN RIGHTS CONSIDERATIONS

The sponsorship funding will assist to facilitate the right to equality under The
Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities Act 2006 by the provision of a
wheelchair lifter to enable access the performance stage at the event for all abilities.

CONCLUSION

It is recommended that the request from the Euroa Little Theatre Inc for $3,000 to
support the requirements of their event production to take place in October 2021
be granted for the reasons as identified in this report.

ATTACHMENTS
Nil
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9.2.2 Tourism, Arts and Culture Advisory Group — Minutes of Meeting held on
Monday 21 June 2021

Author: Manager Tourism, Arts and Culture

Responsible Director: Director Community and Planning

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This report presents the accepted minutes of the Tourism, Arts and Culture Advisory
Group for the most recent meeting held to date in 2021/2022 — Monday 21 June
2021 for noting by Council.

No formal meeting took place in July 2021 as a quorum of members was unable to
be achieved.

There are no required actions of Council relating to these minutes.

RECOMMENDATION

That Council note the minutes of the Tourism, Arts and Culture Advisory
Group meeting held on Monday 21 June 2021.

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND
The objectives of the Strathbogie Shire Council Tourism, Arts and Culture Advisory
Group are:

e To provide a formal mechanism for Council to consult with key stakeholders,
seek specialist advice and enable community participation in the
development and implementation of a Tourism, Arts and Culture Strategy
Plan.

e Act as advocates and champions for Tourism, Arts and Culture programs
and projects with the Shire that are of community benefit.

e Provide a forum for discussion of tourism, arts and culture industry trends
and best practice in the Local Government sector.

The role of the Committee is to carry out the following functions:

e To assist with the development and implementation of a Tourism, Arts and
Culture Strategy Plan.

e Respond to issues referred by Council to the committee.

¢ Assist Council to work strategically to encourage, foster, value and promote
tourism, arts and culture.

e Provide a consultative mechanism for Council on tourism, arts and culture
activities within the Shire.

e Assist in identifying and responding to key issues relating to tourism, arts
and culture in the Shire.

e Provide advice on the review and implementation of the future Tourism, Arts
and Culture Strategy Plan.

The Tourism, Arts and Culture Advisory Group Charter was adopted by Council on
15" of August 2017 and reviewed and further adopted on 17" of September 2019.
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9.2.2 Tourism, Arts and Culture Advisory Group — Minutes of Meeting held on Monday
21 June 2021 (cont.)

ISSUES, OPTIONS AND DISCUSSION

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that priority is to be given to achieving the best outcomes for the
municipal community, including future generations.

There are no actions requiring Council consideration within the attached minutes.
The minutes are for Council and community information at this time.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT
One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the municipal community is to be engaged in strategic planning
and strategic decision making.

The Tourism, Arts and Culture Advisory Committee provides specialist advice
and enables community participation in developing and implementing a
Tourism, Arts and Culture Strategy Plan which helps drive key tourism-related
items in the Council Plan.

POLICY CONSIDERATIONS

Council Plans and Policies

The Tourism, Arts and Culture Advisory Group is an advisory group of Council and
not a decision making body and are subject to the terms of the Charter of the
Tourism, Arts and Culture Advisory Group as endorsed by Council on 17
September, 2019.

Regional, State and National Plans and Policies
One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that regional, state and national plans and policies are to be taken into
account in strategic planning and decision-making.

State:
- Creative Victoria - Creative State Victoria’s First Creative Industries
Strategy
- Victorian Visitor Economy Strategy
- Visitor Economy Recovery and Reform Plan.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that Council decisions are to be made and actions taken in accordance
with the relevant law.

Conflict of Interest Declaration

All officers, and/or contractors, involved in the preparation of this report have signed
a written declaration that they do not have a conflict of interest in the subject matter
of this report. Itis also reflected in the minutes of the meeting should any attendees
believe that they have a conflict of interest with the subject matter discussed within
the meeting.
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9.2.2 Tourism, Arts and Culture Advisory Group — Minutes of Meeting held on Monday
21 June 2021 (cont.)

Transparency
One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the transparency of Council decisions, actions and information is
to be ensured.

Transparency goals are achieved by making the minutes of the Tourism, Arts and
Culture Advisory Group meetings available as attached.

SUSTAINABILITY CONSIDERATIONS

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the economic, social and environmental sustainability of the
municipal district, including mitigation and planning for climate change risks, is to
be promoted.

Economic

There are many positive economic benefits deriving from the actions of the
Tourism, Arts and Culture Advisory Group. The group work to continually promote
Strathbogie Shire as a visitor destination through the many and varied offerings the
shire has available.

Social
The group comprises of a membership of Councillors, community
representatives/stakeholders and Council staff that meet regularly.

Environment

Throughout initiatives driven by the Tourism, Arts and Culture Advisory Group there
are opportunities to promote and enhance the natural environment through the
shire.

Climate Change

As aresult of the natural topography, there are opportunities to promote ecotourism
a primary focus on experiencing natural areas that fosters environmental and
cultural understanding, appreciation and conservation.

INNOVATION AND CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT
One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is the pursuit of innovation and continuous improvement.

Members of the Tourism, Arts and Culture Advisory Group are appointed by
Council to assist with being a voice for our community and offer input into innovation
and continuous improvement within the areas of Tourism, Arts and Culture for our
Shire.

HUMAN RIGHTS CONSIDERATIONS

The author of this report considers that the recommendation does not limit any
human rights under the Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities Act
2006.
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9.2.2 Tourism, Arts and Culture Advisory Group — Minutes of Meeting held on Monday
21 June 2021 (cont.)

CONCLUSION

The minutes of the Tourism, Arts and Culture Advisory Committee are being
presented to Council for information and in the interests of transparency. No further
Council action is required at this time.

ATTACHMENTS
Attachment 1. Minutes of the Tourism, Arts and Culture Advisory Committee of

Monday 21 June 2021.
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ATTACHMENT 1.

TOURISM, ARTS AND CULTURE
ADVISORY GROUP

MEETING MINUTES
Monday 21 June 2021 Strathbogie

Council Offices. Meeting Room 2 (Old SES Building) S‘ ﬂ/’@
3:30pm — 4:30pm

Anticipated Attendees

Cr Paul Murray Councillior {acting Chair) : Kathi Clark-Orsanic Community Representafive
Claire Taylor Strathbogie Shire Kristen MacKenzie Community Representative

Rosa Purbrick Community Representafive

Apologies
Sissy Hoskin Go Magambie Jillian Hayes Euroa Chamber of Commerce
Tess Moonan Egan Community Cr Laura Binks Councillor
Representalive
ITEM PERSON
RESPONSIBLE

1.WELCOME MEMBERS AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF COUNTRY CHAIR
2. APOLOGIES — as above Al
3. DECLARATION OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST - Nil All
4, ACCEPTANCE OF PREVIOUS MINUTES (May 24, 2021) All

Kathi Clark-Orsanic — Accepted
Rosa Purbrick — Seconded
UPDATE OF ONGOING MATTERS

4.1 Update on Actions from previous minutes

411 Nagambie Mural
Rosa has met with Gus Leunig; he will drop in some sketch books at
the schools to draft some ideas. Seems well organised and will
speak with the school next term on more ideas for the mural

412 Graytown POW Camp Map on site
Claire has organised for weatherproof DL flyer holders for the Claire
Graytown site, currently seeking approval from Parks Victoria about
where to place them on site.

4.1.3 RAVin Residence
Further follow up required with RAV around the November dates Claire
provided to them and the viability of holding a RAV in Residence
then.

5. TOURISM

9.1 General Tourism Matters
Discussion took place about the development of the Economic Development
Strategy and how this will feed in to the development of a Tourism and
Events Strategy, which Strathbogie Shire Council currently don't have,
making it difficult to identify a future vision and direction for Tourism within
the Shire
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6. ARTS & CULTURE INITIATIVES
6.1 Arts ACTION
Report will be provided on the outcomes of the workshops once it has been | Claire
received
6.2 Update to Arts & Culture Strategy — 12-month Action Flan
TACAG members went through some of the goals, strategic abjectives and | Claire
actions in the meeting to discuss what had been achieved. Claire to format
the spreadsheets to highlight actions achieved for a final report
6.3 Arts & Culture Officer
This new position has been advertised, with the new officer hopefully able to
be announced at the next TACAG meeting to be held in July Claire
7. OTHER BUSINESS All members

8. MEETING CLOSED - 4:40pm

9. NEXT MEETING/S:
Monday 26 July 2021
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9.2.3 Resource Recovery Centres — Refrigerant Management and Cost Recovery

Author: Waste Management Officer

Responsible Director: Director Corporate Operations

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Changes to the Environment Protection Act 2017 (the Act) that came into effect on
July 1 2021 require a renewed attention to the best waste management practices
and obligations required of Council regarding materials received at our Resource
Recovery Centres (RRC). The new Act emphasises the tenet of general
environmental duty, which is understood as our duty as individuals and as a
business to minimise the risk of harm to environmental and human health from the
activities conducted within our Shire.

The Act has introduced a new waste classification system, with controls and
obligations toward managing waste materials based on their level of hazard to
environmental and human health.

Council receives materials at four (4) of its RRC’s that are classified as reportable
priority waste (RPW). Refrigerants, most commonly contained in refrigerators and
air conditioning units, are classified as a RPW, given they contain ozone depleting
substances (ODS) or synthetic greenhouse gases (SGG) that are potentially
extremely hazardous if not handled correctly.

The management of refrigerant containing materials requires Council staff to
engage a licensed contractor who obtains an Environmental Protection Agency
(EPA) approved permission to safely either collect these items and transport off site,
or, decommission the refrigerant on site, transport and safely dispose or rebirth the
contained material.

The engagement of a licensed contractor will ensure Council meets their obligations
under the new Act, whilst ensuring we correctly manage potentially hazardous
materials that are directly correlated with enhancing climate change.

The cost to recover hazardous ODS’s and SGG’s contained in refrigerators and air
conditioning units is substantially higher than what the members of our community
are currently charged to dispose at our RRC’s. Therefore, Council is provided with
three (3) options to update the cost-recovery method that will reflect the best
outcome for our Shire across economic, environmental and social pillars.

It is recommended that Council update the charges at our RRC'’s to reflect the true
cost of recovery - Option 3.

RECOMMENDATION

That Council increase the charges associated with the disposal of refrigerant
containing materials at our Resource Recovery Centres to $20 to reflect the
true cost of handling ozone depleting substances and synthetic greenhouse
gases under the new Environment Protection Act 2017.
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9.2.3 Resource Recovery Centres — Refrigerant Management and Cost Recovery (cont.)

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND

Under the new Act there is a greater emphasis placed on managing waste the right
way. This is embodied through the Act’s core tenet of General Environmental Duty
(GED). The GED applies to all Victorians, and especially applicable to how we
manage waste received at our Resource Recovery Centre’s (RRC). To uphold our
GED, we must ensure that we reduce the risk of harm from our activities to
environmental and human health, and from pollution and waste.

Due to the changes to the Act, which came into effect on July 1 2021, we need to
reassess how we best manage waste materials received at our RRC’s. The
Environment & Waste team have ensured that we remain partnered with suppliers
who also uphold their GED and have the correct permissions to conduct their
respective activity. However, some materials we receive require a renewed
attention from Council, as their waste classification has changed, or new measures
are in place to ensure the handling, transportation and disposal of such materials
are conducted that best prevents harm to environmental and human health.

The results of such changes have either; increased the cost to manage items the
right way, or, created the need to find an alternate, sustainable solution to ensure
we meet our obligations under the Act.

Refrigerants are classed as a reportable priority waste (RPW) under the new Act,
where if not properly managed, are extremely harmful to the environment.
Refrigerants are most commonly contained in air-conditioning units and
refrigerators. We accept refrigerant containing materials at four of our RRC’s. The
sites accepting these items are; Avenel, Euroa, Nagambie and Violet Town.

Depending on the age of an air conditioning unit or refrigerator, the unit’s refrigerant
will either consist of chlorofluorocarbons (CFC’s), hydrochlorofluorocarbons
(HCFC’s) or hydrofluorocarbons (HFC’s). CFC’s and HCFC’s are extremely
hazardous, ozone depleting substances, whereas synthetic HFC’s are not an ozone
depleting substance, but its composition has greater greenhouse gas potency than
carbon dioxide, contributing to climate change.

Council’'s management of refrigerant containing materials has oscillated between
various management models, including; bulk haulage of materials and on-site
material degassing, with neither model having a long-term agreement or contract
in place.

To ensure that we properly handle Ozone Depleting Substances (ODS) and
Synthetic Greenhouse Gases (SGG), whilst meeting our obligations under the new
EP Act, Council is required to determine the best cost recovery process regarding
the reclamation of refrigerants received across our RRC'’s.

ISSUES, OPTIONS AND DISCUSSION

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that priority is to be given to achieving the best outcomes for the
municipal community, including future generations.
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9.2.3 Resource Recovery Centres — Refrigerant Management and Cost Recovery (cont.)

The management of refrigerants accepted at our RRC’s is an important factor
toward ensuring that we minimise our ecological footprint within our Shire, ensuring
the best outcomes for our community and future generations.

Council staff have conducted further research into engaging a contractor to
sustainably manage the proper reclamation of refrigerants, on a longer-term,
sustainable basis. However, the ability for our Shire to attract potential contractors
faces geospatial and material throughput barriers. These barriers are reflected in
the pricing received from potential contractors to collect or decommission units
onsite, as potential contractors must travel to Strathbogie and reclaim a lower
number of units than they would usually service.

The current charge for members of our community when disposing of refrigerant
containing materials for the 2021-22 financial year at our RRC’s is $10, whereas to
hire a contractor to recover refrigerants will cost between $18.18 and $28.10 per
unit.

As the cost incurred to manage this material the right way will cost more than what
is currently being recovered from members of our community, Council staff propose
the following options for Council to determine as the best cost recovery method.

OPTIONS

The following options and associated costs are based on the annual recovery of
400 units, with the price per unit based on the most cost-effective contractor
($18.18).

Option 1 - No Change: Council covers the extra cost of recovery. The cost to
Council to cover the excess would be $3,272 this financial year.

Option 2 - Staggered Charge Increase: The charges will increase annually by
25% based off the current charge for financial year 2021/22 ($10), until the supplier
service charge and cost recovery are equal (2024/25). Assuming a 3% annual
increase in the supplier’s service charge, the relevant charge and costs to council
over the next four (4) years would be:

Year 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25
Service Charge $18.18 $18.73 $19.29 $19.87
(Unit)

Charge Per Unit  $12.50 $15 $17.50 $20
Cost to Council $2,272 $1,492 $716 $0

Option 3 - Full Charge Increase: The charge for materials requiring refrigerant
recovery at our RRC’s to be updated to reflect the full cost of recovery of $20. This
option would not carry any excess costs to Council.
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9.2.3 Resource Recovery Centres — Refrigerant Management and Cost Recovery (cont.)

ISSUES
The adoption of Options 2 and 3 have the potential to create several issues.

Primarily, increasing the charges associated with refrigerant containing materials
will have an economic effect on members of our community, which may prevent
best waste management practices in the household. The economic barrier may
entice members of the community to decommission refrigerant containing materials
improperly before transporting units to our RRC’s (decommissioned units are
accepted free of charge). This will release ODS’s and SGG’s into our atmosphere,
having an adverse effect on the environment. The inhalation of refrigerants can
also result in damaging human health effects.

Increasing the charges for refrigerant containing materials at our RRC’s may also
lead to an increase of illegally dumped materials. lllegally dumped rubbish poses
as an economic, environmental and social risk to Council and members of
community. Furthermore, illegally dumped refrigerators and freezers pose as a
hazard and safety risk in our community, particularly for children and adolescents,
whilst also enhancing the likelihood of attracting further dumped rubbish that does
not include refrigerant containing materials.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT
One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the municipal community is to be engaged in strategic planning
and strategic decision making.

There has not been any community engagement undertaken prior to the production
of this report. The community has not been engaged as this is an operational
decision that requires Council to make a financial decision based on the best
economic, environmental and social outcomes for members of our community.
Council will have the ability to inform the community once a decision has been
made and its justification.

POLICY CONSIDERATIONS

Council Plans and Policies

The proper management of refrigerants received at our RRC’s furthers Council’s
plan to sustainably manage our natural and built environment. The acceptance of
refrigerant containing materials at four (4) of our RRC’s highlight our ability to
promote and support sustainability initiatives, with refrigerant reclamation an
important tool toward mitigating the effects of climate change.

The engagement of a suitably qualified refrigerant reclaimer will also support
Council’s Climate Change Emergency Declaration, ensuring that ODS’s and SGG’s
that enhance the effects of climate change are not released into the atmosphere.

Regional, State and National Plans and Policies
One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that regional, state and national plans and policies are to be taken into
account in strategic planning and decision-making.




Strathbogie Shire Council Page 57 21/09/21
Council Meeting Agenda

9.2.3 Resource Recovery Centres — Refrigerant Management and Cost Recovery (cont.)

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that Council decisions are to be made and actions taken in accordance
with the relevant law.

The management of refrigerant containing materials is essential for Strathbogie
Shire Council to meet their obligations under the new Act. Furthermore, the
management and handling of refrigerants must conform with national policies and
regulations including; The Ozone Protection and Synthetic Greenhouse Gas
Management Act 1989 and Ozone Protection and Synthetic Greenhouse Gas
Management Regulations 1995.

Council has the ability to set fees as it does annually in its Budget.

Conflict of Interest Declaration

All officers, and/or contractors, involved in the preparation of this report have signed
a written declaration that they do not have a conflict of interest in the subject matter
of this report.

Transparency

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the transparency of Council decisions, actions and information is
to be ensured. This matter is being discussed in an open Council meeting. Hence,
Staff are seeking the approval of Council to determine the best cost recovery
method when processing refrigerant containing materials.

FINANCIAL VIABILITY CONSIDERATIONS
One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the ongoing financial viability of the Council is to be ensured.

The costs to Council are outlined earlier in the report. The highest cost incurred
would be $3,272 this financial year if Option 1 is selected. Option 2 would cost
$2,272 to Council this financial year, decreasing year on year. Option 3 would bear
no excess financial cost to Council.

SUSTAINABILITY CONSIDERATIONS

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the economic, social and environmental sustainability of the
municipal district, including mitigation and planning for climate change risks, is to
be promoted.

Economic

The determination of a cost-recovery method will have economic ramifications for
Council, our Shire’s community, or a combination of both. The costs associated
with best (and required) waste management practices may act as a deterrent to
sustaining these practices, however, the costs associated with inaction over ODS’s
and SGG’s will be greater in the future than it is in the present for Council and our
community.
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9.2.3 Resource Recovery Centres — Refrigerant Management and Cost Recovery (cont.)

Social

Adjusting the charge associated with refrigerant containing materials and providing
the justification as to why these materials need to be managed the right way can
increase awareness amongst our community of the best management practices of
environmentally hazardous materials. However, price increases may act as a
deterrent for members of our community to dispose of materials responsibly,
potentially creating further environmental and human health risks.

Environmental

The management of hazardous ODS’s and SGG’s are of utmost importance to
Council and the community toward ensuring we meet our general environmental
duty. Refrigerant containing materials we receive at our sites contain these
substances, and it is our obligation under the Act to ensure that we minimise the
risk of harm to environmental and human health from the conduction of all activities
in our Shire.

Climate Change

There is a direct correlation between the improper management of ODS’s and
SGG’s and climate change. Therefore, determining the best cost recovery method
will assist Council toward ensuring that we meet our obligations under State and
National frameworks, whilst informing the community of the efforts we undertake
and are required so as to ensure best socio-environmental outcomes for present
and future generations.

INNOVATION AND CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT
One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is the pursuit of innovation and continuous improvement.

The engagement of a suitably qualified refrigerant reclaimer will allow Council to
improve its resource recovery endeavours. Reclaimed refrigerant of good quality
can be rebirthed and reused. Thus, ensuring Strathbogie Shire Council plays its
role toward ensuring adherence to the Montreal Protocol by preventing the release
of ODS’s into the atmosphere.

COLLABORATION

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that collaboration with other councils, levels of government and
statutory bodies is to be sought.

Council Staff engaged fellow counterparts from member Councils of the Goulburn
Valley Waste Resource and Recovery Group. Staff were able to shortlist or exclude
potential contractors based on the feedback provided from other Environment and
Waste Officers in the region.

HUMAN RIGHTS CONSIDERATIONS
There are no human rights considerations arising from the issues discussed in this
report.
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9.2.3 Resource Recovery Centres — Refrigerant Management and Cost Recovery (cont.)

CONCLUSION

The management of refrigerant containing materials requires a renewed attention
due to adoption of the new Act and the potentially serious environmental and
human health risks associated with these harmful substances. With this renewed
attention, the costs associated with the proper management of refrigerants
currently outweighs what is being recovered from the community when materials
are disposed at our RRC’s. Therefore, Council is required to decide on increasing
the associated charges of refrigerant containing materials we accept to fully reflect
the cost of recovery.

ATTACHMENTS
Nil.
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9.2.4 2021 -2022 Community Grants Program Guidelines

Author: Coordinator Community Services and Inclusion

Responsible Director: Director Community and Planning

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Strathbogie Shire Community Grants Program encourages community
organisations and community groups to apply for funding to support projects that
improve the liveability of Strathbogie residents.

A review of the grant program guidelines was undertaken in April 2021, with a
number of opportunities identified and endorsed by Council to strengthen the
guidelines for the 2021/22 program. This included the removal of emergency
services, educational institutions and religious organisations eligibility for funding as
these organisations have access to funding via their governing bodies.

During Round 1 of the 2021/22 Community Grants Program, Council Officers
identified that while educational institutions are now not eligible, further clarification
is required regarding the definition. Specifically, it is considered that non-privatised
early education providers, who receive minimal funding and operate in Council
facilities, should remain as eligible organisations for this grant program.

This report seeks to amend the Community Grant Program Guidelines to provide
greater clarity around the eligibility intent of educational institutions.

RECOMMENDATION

That Council adopt the revised 2021-2022 Community Grant Program
Guidelines to provide further clarification around the definition and eligibility
of educational institutions.

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND

The Strathbogie Community Grants Program is the annual grants program offered
by Council and provides funding for small and medium sized projects, events and
initiatives that respond to the social, cultural, recreational and economic needs of
Strathbogie residents.

The Strathbogie Community Grants Program has been a significant source of
funding of the Strathbogie community since 1998. The program aims to:
e develop partnerships between Council and community groups to achieve
Council's strategic directions;
e direct resources to both the emerging and specific needs of community
groups;
¢ develop a positive approach to the resolution of local social issues;
e support local groups, activities and community connectedness; and
e support the implementation actions identified in local Community Action
plans.
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9.2.4 2021 — 2022 Community Grants Program Guidelines (cont.)

The Strathbogie Community Grants Program was administered throughout June
2021 with successful applicants notified in August. Due to the remaining funds in
the adopted budget, at the August 2021 Council Meeting Council endorsed to
undertake a second round of the community grants opening in October with a
funding pool of $20,000 available.

ISSUES, OPTIONS AND DISCUSSION

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that Priority is to be given to achieving the best outcomes for the
municipal community, including future generations.

To further strengthen the Community Grants Program the following amendment is
recommended to be made to the Guidelines; the suggested amendment is the
additional wording of “excluding non-privatised early education providers operating
in Council facilities” to be added to provide greater clarity around the intent of
educational institution eligibility. The rationale behind allowing non-privatised early
education providers access to apply is founded on the basis that these
organisations receive minimal funding and operate out of Council facilities. Other
educational institutions are well supported by key funding bodies and private
enterprise

The guidelines under the section “who is not eligible to apply” would be amended
to read as follows:
e Emergency services, Educational Institutions (excluding non-privatised
early education providers operating in Council facilities) and Religious
organisations.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT
One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the municipal community is to be engaged in strategic planning
and strategic decision making.

No community consultation process undertaken for this report. Council Officers
deem this amendment to provide further clarification of the guidelines and
consultation with the community is not required.

POLICY CONSIDERATIONS
Council Plans and Policies

The author of this report considers that the report is consistent with Council
Policies, key strategic documents and the Council Plan, in particular, aligning with:

Goal 1: To enhance community health and wellbeing
(2) Engage and participate with the community in Council/Community
initiatives
(4) Support and drive Community, arts, and cultural events.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that Council decisions are to be made and actions taken in accordance
with the relevant law.
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9.2.4 2021 — 2022 Community Grants Program Guidelines (cont.)

Under the Local Government Act 2020 Council must be accountable for how public
funds are spent and governance arrangements around decision making.

Strathbogie Shire Council has a Community Grants Program Assessment Panel
responsible for the assessment of all grants ensuring consistency, equity and
transparency across the program. A Terms of Reference have been created
outlining Strathbogie Shires governance arrangements for the assessment panel.

Strathbogie Shire Council Community Grants Program Guidelines and subsequent
funding agreements managed via the SmartyGrants system will ensure
accountability and transparency regarding decision making by Council in awarding
grants and the responsibility of recipients in the spending and acquittal of funds.

Conflict of Interest Declaration

All officers, and/or contractors, involved in the preparation of this report have signed
a written declaration that they do not have a conflict of interest in the subject matter
of this report.

All officers, and/or contractors, involved in the preparation of this report have signed
a written declaration that they do not have a conflict of interest in the subject matter
of this report.

Transparency
One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the transparency of Council decisions, actions and information is
to be ensured.

In the interest of transparency and open and honest communication with our
community it is recommended that these changes to the community grants
guidelines be acknowledged in a public forum providing full disclosure of the
changes to the community.

FINANCIAL VIABILITY CONSIDERATIONS
One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the ongoing financial viability of the Council is to be ensured.

The 2021/2022 Strathbogie Community Grant Program has a total budget
allocation of $85,000. The first round of the Community Grants utilised $57,593
from this allocation.

As determined at the August 2021 Council Meeting, a second round of the
Community Grants Program will be offered and assigned a budget of $20,000. The
remaining $7,407 will be allocated to the Small Grants Program.

SUSTAINABILITY CONSIDERATIONS

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the economic, social and environmental sustainability of the
municipal district, including mitigation and planning for climate change risks, is to
be promoted.



Strathbogie Shire Council Page 63 21/09/21
Council Meeting Agenda
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Environment

Through the application process, community projects that deliver environmental
benefits to residents of the Shire will be encouraged. Applicants will be asked to
outline the environmental impacts/benefits of their project as part of the application
process.

Climate change

Through the application process, community projects that deliver improved
outcomes for climate change will be encouraged. In addition, any successful
applications that undertake events (on Council owned or managed land) will be
required to so in line with Council’s Zero Plastic Events Policy.

Economic
The community grants program has four key categories available for funding of
projects up to the value of $5000. The categories include:

e Active and Healthy Communities

e Arts and Culture

¢ Environment and Sustainability

e Facilities and Infrastructure.

In addition, grants are available for small projects up to the value of $1000.

Projects in all four categories have the potential to increase economic development
within the Shire. Arts and Culture projects have historically created tourist
opportunities celebrating our rich indigenous history as well as our thriving art
community, bringing exhibitions and tourists to town. Facilities and Infrastructure
grants have enabled groups to become more efficient and sustainable as well as
improving facilities to enable activities that bring financial gain to the group.

Social

The community grants program promotes community engagement as members of
the community collaborate to develop their project ideas, apply for funding and work
together to deliver their projects. The grants program helps to drive a sense of
community and deliver change and improvements to the community.

INNOVATION AND CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT
One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is the pursuit of innovation and continuous improvement.

The changes proposed to the guidelines for 2021/2022 program demonstrates
continuous improvement by providing greater clarity around the eligibility intent of
educational institutions.

CONCLUSION

The recommendation put forward for endorsement forms part of our continuous
improvement process and will only enhance the well-established program and
processes of the community grants program.

ATTACHMENTS
Attachment 1: Community Grant Assessment Guidelines (with proposed
amendments highlighted)
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Online applications can be
lodged at
www.strathbogie.vic.gov.
auScommunity/community-

fund ing/commun ity- grants-
program

Strathbogle Shire Council

1094 Binnay St, Eurca
PO Box 17T, Euroa 3666

Frea call: 1800 065 993
www.strathboglewlc.gov.au
Infofstrathboglew lc.gov.au

Ifyou are unsura about any
Information outlined In thesa
Guldslines or would Uks to

dlscuss your application further,
pleass contact a member of tha
Community Services and Incluslon
Team on ST95 0000 or by amalling
Info@strathboglewic.gov.au
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Important things you need

to know before you start

Read the Guidelines
carefully. It is important to
have a full understanding
of the Guidelines before you
start completing the online
application.

Tha tarm project 12 used throughout
this documant. Project maans any
activity, event, Initlative or program
that you ars sesking funds for.

It Iz & condition of your application
that you discuss your proposed
project with a member of tha
Community Services and Inclusion
Team.

Fk‘,’h'ﬂél{ ﬂﬁ[ﬁ Eﬁlup I aliglble for

funding.

+ Check your project s aligibls to
be fundad and that you ara
applying In the correct catagory.

+ Check your project Is in Linae with
the relevant Community Actlon
Plan whare applicabla

+ Clarlfy any queries you may have
about the guldalines and onlina
application process.

Plaase nota If you apply undaran
Incorract catagory we are unabla
to move your application toa more
appropriats category and your
chanca of recelving funding will
ba reducad.

Tha amount of funds awarded

will be depandeant on number and
quallty of applications. Pleasa nota:
you may not recetve the full amount
of funds you hava appliad for.

Strathbogie Shire Counail

Tha maximurm grant amount for
sach category 1S as follows:

If your group 1z submitting an
application for funding you may

also agres to act as an ausplcing
group for another non-Incorporated
group.

If your group has racalved
Community Grants Funding
prevlously you must have
completed any outstanding project
acquittal requiremants bafora baing
allglble to reapply for the current
round of the Community Grants
Program. Tha Grant Acquittal Form
Iz avallable on the SmartyGrants
account that you used to apply for
your previous Grant.

Any questions regarding acquittal
requiremants can be directed

to the Community Services and
Inclusion Team on 785 0000,

Active and Healthy
Communities - $5000

Arts and Culture - $5000

Environment and

Sustainability - $5000

Facilities and
Infrastructura - $5000

Small Projects - $1000

Applicants are requirad

1o contributa towards the
Implemantation of thelr project:
thiz may Include cazh or In kind
contributlons or a comb ination

of both. Thara I=no minimum
contribution required howewver
avidance of the contributlon must
ba provided.

Council will require evidence

of appropriate Public Liability
Insurance prior to the recalpt
of funds. The prefarrad minimum
covarags I to be $20,000,000 or
othar amount to the satlsfactlon
of Councll.

Applications can only be recelved
from Incorporated groups. If your
group Iz not Incorporatad, you will
nead to sesk out an Incorporated
group or a Community Planning
Rafarance Group (also known as
Community Action Group) who Is
willing to ausplca (endorsa) your
application.
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Community Grants Program
timeline 2021-2022

. ; condition of opplication thot
A Ppllﬂatlﬂns open rour proposed project

- June 1, 2021 f the Community

Services ond Inclusion Team.

Applications close
- June 30, 2021

Applications assessed
- July 2021

Recommendations to Council for decision
- August 17, 2021

Applicants advised of outcome
- August 27, 2021

Project can commence from
- August 27, 2021

Project completed and acquittal submitted
- May 31, 2022

Small Projects Grants

- available to apply allyear

(or until funding allocation is exhausted)
applications open from 1st July

2021-2023 Communily Grants Pragram Guidelines 3
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Principles of the Community
Grants Program

The Community Granis Program provides an opportunity for
groups to undertake profects that complement the focus areas
identified as priorities for the Strathbogie Shire Council.

Applications are sought for projects that:

Promote community engagement and participation.

Support gender equality and social inclusion

and improve accessibility.

Contribute to building healthy and vibrant communities.

General guidelines
- for all categories

1. Who is eligible to apply?

To be aligibla for funding undar
tha Community Grants Program,
applicants must be:

A not for profit community group,
organigation or club that Is
Incorporatad.

OR

An unincorporated not for profit
community group, organisation or
club only If they have a Community
Planning Referanca Group (also
kmown as Communilty Actlon
Group) or an Incorporatad body
that I willing to act as ausplca for
the application.

Sitrathbogie Bhire Counsil

2. Features of an
ellgible application

Tha projact must ba basad In tha
Strathbogls 3hire municipallty.

Tha project will ganarata positive
putcomes for Strathbogle Shire
razldants and/or visltors.

Tha applicant |z able to
damaonstrata thalr own contribution
o the project In the form of funds
or In kind support.

Thara |2 demonstrated support for
tha project from other groups within
the community (such as formal
partnerships, lettars of support
and/or a financlal commitmant to
tha projact).

The applicant Is able to demonstrate
sound project planning.

Tha project conslders gandar
aquity, Inclusion, accassibllity
and cultural diversity aswall as
amvIronmantal Impacts/ benafits.

It 1= racommeandad that your project
should diractly relats to a stratagic
goal that = spacifiad In ona or mora
of tha following documants:

Strathbogle Shire Council Plan
2017-2021 - elick hare

Strathbogle Shire Council
Liveability Plan 2017-2021
= glick hara

A Community Plan developad
by the Community Planning
Refarence Group Inyour
community - click hare

3. Who is not eligible
to apply?
An Individual.

An unincorporated not for profit
community group, organisation
or club without an approprizts
auspleing body.

Emergency semvices, Educational
Institutions (excluding non-privatized
early education providers operating n
Council faciliies) and Religious
organications.

Any group who has an overdua

acqultial of a previous Commun ity
Grant.

Any group already recaiving othar
financial support from Council
{such as a Community Planning
Refarance Group) orwhara thalr
funding and service agrasmeant
pracludas accass to othar Council
funding.

Private, profit making organlsatlons.



Applications for retrospective
funding, Including for projacts
that are dus to start befors 2Tth
August 2021.

Applications sesking funds to
cover the cost of fundralzing,
prizas and/or wagas.

Applications seeking sponsorship
o attend conferences or sporting
avants.

Project=s that are to ocour
primarily ocutside of Council’s
municipal boundary.

Appllcations from federal or state
govarnmeant agencles and privata
profit making organisations or
Indhviduals.

Appllcations that are Incomplate
such as: not attaching evidence of
public lability Insurance covaraga
and not attaching coplas of
relevant quotas.

Projects that are already
recalving other financlal support
from Council or an altarnate
funding source.

Whara tha applicant s reglstarad
for GST Councll will pay tha grant
amount requastad plus 10%. Tha
Applicant will than remit to the
Australlan Tax Office (ATO).

If tha applicant I not reglstared
for GST, or 1= not ausplced by a
group reglstarad for GST, 10X will
be added to GST ltems as part of
the total gramt sum.

Grant maximum amounts to remaln
ag suggestad, noting that the
amountwill covar GST, with any
amount ower that 1o be funded by
tha applicant.

6. Grant conditions

Succaszful applicants will ba
required toe

Entar Into a funding agreemant
and adhera to the condltlons of the
agrasment.

Spand the grant monay only as
stated Im tha orlginal application.
Approval for any proposad
varlatlon to the project must be
sought In wrlilng vla the Managear
Tourlem & Community Services,
and parmission racelved In
writing, prior to a new project or
variatlon commencing.

Raturn any unspent funds at the
complation of the projact or tha
and of the agreamant unlass prior
approval has been obtalned to
axpand the funds.

2021-2022 Communily Grants Pragram Guidelines
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4. What 1s not eligible 5. Community Grants + Complste a project plan and obtaln
for funding? and GST all necessary permits, complianca

requirements as desmead necessary
fior your application.

Obtain all necessary approvals
(.g. lettar from land owner) and
parmits (bullding/planning or othar
statutory requirements) assoclated
with your project; fallurs to do

zo will rasult In tha project baing
delayed, or potentially, stopped.

Any Jolnt application from multlpla
clubs for the same project must
hiave sign off by all clubs that thay
willwork collaborativaly to delivar
tha project. Indlvidual applications
for the same project will not ba
accaptad

Imform Councll officars of changas
to kay project comtact detalls,
Including talaphona numkber, amail
or postal addrass.

Ensure any outstanding acquittals
ara submitted by 31 May 2022 (or
other date as agreed to by Council).
(If this I= not dona, your application
will not ba consldarad).

I ite Councll officers and Ward
Counclllors to tha project launch
If applicabla.

Acknowledge Council In all public
and promotlonal materials.
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How to apply

Al appiat o l :1“ :sa‘:;: lenla m?;\l
ere n ncy on this
completed online at: Extieria W Mia st Hwowr
www.strathbogle vlc.gov.au/ due to the Increasing number
community/community-funding/ of applications for Community
community-grants-program Grants Funding It Is no longer
Ible to assass Incomplete
Please answer all questions pos
and attach all Information as SEplctibgs o (W
requestad. In this matter Is appreclated and
wa look forward to recelving your
Faillure to answer all questions application with all requestad
and attach all Information as documentation Included.
requested will render your :
application Ineligible and your b addmmnp 2 I"“m :ml! e
application will not be assessed. sucp' °’°h ca: a bullding permit or avent
approval may be required for the
Implementation of your project.

This Is different from the required
documents for a complets
application. If applicable, this
Information will be soughtwhen a
project has bean short listed and
will not impact onyour aligibility
for assessment.

Applicants may only submit
one application for Community
Grants per year.

Late applications will not be

considered, and no extensions
will be granted.

A successful funding application
In any round does not imply
ongoing funding.

Strathbogie Shire Council
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Specific grant category guidelines

Tha Community Grants Program
Is divided Into five categories,
aach of which has specific
guldalines. Plaass make sura you
ratar to the specific guldelines:
tor the relevant category befora
you start.

Somatimes the projact may
appaar to ba applicabls to mora
than ona catagory - If this |s tha
case, please discuss this with

the Community Sarvices and
Imclusion Team to for advice about
whilch |= the bast cataegory to
submit your proposal.

Onca the application has baan
submittad It Is not possibla to
changa It to a more appropriate
category and your chanca of
succass may be reduced.

Active and Healthy Communities

{To ba read In confunciion with the general guidedines)

The Active and Health
Communities category
supports:

Local projects that promote
collaboratlon and resource
gharlng among groups.

The devalopment of new or
axpanding existing programs

and actlvitles for ecampla craft
workshops, walking groups,
community engagemant programs
or formal and Informal sport and
lelsura activitlas.

The purchase of project ralataed
aqulpment/mater|als e.g.=
purchasa of printer, materlals for
workshops and/or projact costs
such as printing, facillty hira,
consumablas.

Bullding more capable community
groups for écample committas of
managament training, leadarships
skill dewalopment and/or voluntesr
devalopment andsor =kills training
Inltlathves that will Incraass tha
afficlency ofvoluntesr rolas and
responsibilithas.

Provislon of essentlal equipmeant
with priority ghven to safaty
aquipmant a.g. defibrillator, safety
padding.

The project should be froe or low
cost for the community to attend.

Applicants must keap a record/
raglster of voluntear Involvemant
and audlence attendancs at all
activities assoclatad with the
project and submit with the project
acqulttal report.

Eligibility
Succaessful applicationss
applicants will be required to:

Demonstrate how the projact
contributes to developing the
health and wellbalng of residants
of the Strathbogla Shire.

+ Damonstrate the Commun ity

banafits of tha project for exampla
howwill the project strangthan
and devealop community skills,
promota awaraness and/or actlon
with regards to community Isswes
and provide oppor tunitles to
Increasa skills/knowladga of
community membars

20212022 Communily Grants Pragram Guidslines

Demonstrate how the project Is
accessible and Inclushve of all
mambars of the community and IF
It addressas gandar equallty.
Demonstrate sound Projact
Planning/Managemeant and Risk
Managemant skills.

Succassful funding In this round
does not Imply ongolng funding.

Groups should alwayswork
towards a sustalmable funding
model for projects that are
Intended to be omgolng.
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Arts and Culture

(To be read in conjunction with the general guldelines)

The Arts and Culture grant
category supports:

Arts and Culture based Initiatives
that angage the broader
community In creatlve activities
l.e. workshops, resldencles,
master classes, tours, exhibitions.

Local artists and organisations to
develop art projects that Increase
the community participation In
the arts.

Local arts and culture based
activities that celebrate diversity
and reduce Isolation. Local arts
and culture basad activities

that promote awareness of
community Issues and strengthen
and develop community skills.
Opportunities that assist to
sustainably bulld the reglon’s
tourism products that relats to
Arts and Culturs.

Strathbogie Shire Council

The project should be free or low
cost for the community to attend.

Applicants must keep a record/
raglster of volunteer Involvement
and audlence attandancs at

all actlvitles assoclated with

the project and submit with the
project acquittal report.

Please note: In previousyears
Community Grants Program has
provided funding for Events,
however, as of 2019-2020, Event
funding has been transfarred to
the Sponsorship Program.

Click: Sponsorship Program

Please discuss your project with
the Arts Culture Economy Team,

Eligibility
Successful applications/
applicants will be required to:

Demonstrate how the project
contributes to developing the

.

cultural vibrancy of the Strathbogle
Shire area and supports local
creativity and Innovation.

Demonstrate the Community
benefits of the project for axample
how will the project strengthen
and develop community skills
such as leadershlp, performance
skills, svent management.

Demonstrate how the project Is
accessible and Inclusive of all
members of the community and If
It addresses gender equallty.

Demonstrate sound Project
Planning/Managemaent and Risk
Management skills.

Successful funding In this round
does not Imply ongoing funding.

Groups should always work
towards a sustainable funding
model for projects thatare
Intanded to be ongolng.
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Environment and Sustainability

(To be read in conjunction with the general guldelines)

The Environment and The development of Environmental  Demonstrate the Community

Sustainability category and Sustalnabllity educational benefits of the project for example

supports: programs, behavioural change how will the project strengthen
project, field days or workshops, and develop community skills such

Community groups to undertake development brochuraes, booklets as leadership, performanca skills,

arange of environmentally and other resource materlals. event management.

sustainable projects which Improve

our natural and bullt environments,  1he project should be free or low Demonstrate how the project is

for example, community garden cost for the community to attend. accessible and Inclusive of all

projects or the provision of Abplicants miust keop arecord/ members of the community and If it

essentlal group equipment. re‘:;‘:stor of volunteer Involvement ~ 2ddresses gender equality.

Environmental projacts for waste and audlence attendance at all Demonstrate sound Project

and resource management, and activitles assoclated with the Planning/Management and Risk

recycling inttiatives. project and submitwith the project  Management skills.

Sustalnabillity projects to Improve acqu.mal o Succassful funding In this round

energy efficlency or Implement Eligibility does not Imply ongoing funding.

sustainable transport Initiatives. Succassful applications/applicants  Groups should atways work

Conservation and climate change will be required to: towards a sustainable funding

projects such as landscape Danscastyate b th oralect modal for projects that are

restoration and re-vegetation SR bt omlrot:no:na{ Intended to be ongoing.

projects or pest, plant and animal sustalnabllity outcomes and

control projects. benefits.

2021-2022 Community Grants Program Guidelines
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Facilities and Infrastructure

(To be read in conjunction with the general guidelines)

The Facilities and
Infrastructure category
supports:

+ Minor capltal purchasas such as
furniture and equipment.

+ Improvements to community
facllitles such as minor capltal
work projects or maka non-
essentlial modifications to
community facilities, for the
benefit of facility usars.

+ Small Infrastructurs projects such
as costs towards an all abilitles
ramp.

+ Children’s playgrounds or
recreational spacs Improvemants.

The project should be free or low
cost for the community to attend.

[

Strathbogie Shire Council

Applicants must keep a record/
reglster of volunteer Involvement
and audlence attendancs at all
activitles assoclated with the
project and submit with the project
acquittal report.

Eligibility

Successful applications/
applicants will be required to:

Demonstrate how the project
contributes to Improving

and developing facllitles and
Infrastructure In Strathbogle
Shire.

emonstrate the Community
benefits of the project, for
axampla, how will the project
Impact on user groups of the
facility.

Demonstrats how the project Is
accessible and Inclusive of all
members of the communlty and if
It addresses gender equallty.

Demonstrate sound Project
Planning/Management and Risk
Management skills.

Provide avidence of approval from
the bullding owner for any works
to be undertaken.

Successful funding In this round
does not Imply ongoing funding.
Groups should always work
towards a sustainable funding

model for projects that are
Intended to be ongolng.




Strathbogie Shire Council
Council Meeting Agenda

Page 76

21/09/21

Small Projects Grants

(To be read in conjunction with the general guldelines)

Small Projects Grants are
available for applicants that
have missed the submission
dates for Community Grants
from other categories.

Groups are only sligible to

racalve this grant oncs per year
and ara not eliglble for a Small
Project Grant If they are currently
expending other Strathbogle Shire
Community Grant Funds.

Small Project Grants must meat
the criteria for one of the four
Community Grant Categorles:

+ Actlve & Healthy Communitles
+ Arts & Culture

« Environmental & Sustainablility
« Facllitles & Infrastructure

Small Projects Grants must be
acquitted within slx months of
the submission of thelr Terms
and Conditions unless otherwise
negotlated with the Manager
Community Servicas & Incluslon.

Application process

Applications are acceptad all
year (or untll funding allocatlon Is
axhaustad) from 1st July 2021

Small Project Grants are assessed
on a monthly basls.

Applications should be recelved
before 12 pm on the last Monday
of the month

2021-2022 Community Grants Program Guidslines

« Applications then undergo pre-
eligibllity chacks bafore balng
forwarded to Assassors

« Applicants will be advised of the

outcoma by the first Monday of
the month

Any application racalved after

12pm on the last Monday of
the month will be assessed the

following month.
Eligibility

As per Community Grants
Category under which the

applicant Is applying.
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Evaluation Process

All Community Grant submissions The panel will consider all aligible Where the Strathbogle Shire

will be evaluated by Strathbogle applications submitted. A list of Community Grant Program

Shire Council’s Community Grants  Ineligible applications recelved Assessment Panel chooses to

Program Assessment Panael. will also be presanted to the make a recommendation (efther to
assessment Panel. fund or not fund) that sits outside

The Community Grants Program
Assessment Panel will be made up
of three (3) Councll officers from

All applications will be reviewed and
assassed agalnst a scoring matrix

the Strathbogle Shire Community
Grants Program Policy and/or these
Terms of Reference, the rationale

within the Communlty Services 10 ensure consistency, equity and

& Incluslon team. Additional transparency across the program. m ;::ommm::l;‘bo
advice will be provided by other All recommendations will be el

officers dependaent on thelrarea of  consistentwith the sligibility criterla

axpertisa In the grant categorles and funding prioritles as outlined In
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Criteria description Weighting
Alignment to Community Grants Outcomes and Strategic Plans 30%
+ Ara the application’s alms and outcomes claarly ldentified?
+ Does the application support the Communlty Grants outcomes and Strategle plan of
Councll and/or Local Community Referance Group Strataglc plan?
+ How s tha project evaluated — how will they know If the project has achleved tha
community grants outcomes?
+ Does the appllication addrass anvironmantal sustalnabllity?
Community Need 20%
+ |5 thare a cleary ldentifled and demonstrated local need for this application?
+ Does the application and activities ldentified effactively address this nesd?
+ Has the application appropriately angaged with the local community 7
+ Have local peopla, particlpants, mambars or sarvice users bean Involved In ldentifying this
naad and have Input Into the responsa?
Organisational Capacity 20%
+ |5 the application well planned and achlevabla within tha timeframa?
+ |5 thare a clear link betwean the community need, the community outcomeas and tha
activities that will ba dalverad?
+ Doas the application Identify appropriate partners that will work with them In a
collaborative way?
+ |z the scope of tha project appropriata?
Access and Equity 15%
+ Does the application address Izsues of soclal excluslon or barrlers to participation?
+ Does the application target vulnerable sectors of tha commun ity ?
+ |5 the application accessible and Inclushve?
+ Does the application address Izsues of disadvantage?
Budget 15%

Does the budgat accurately reflect the scopea and scale of the application?

Hawvea other funding sources baen Idantifled?

Have the resourcas that are required to daliver the project bean clearly Identlfied?

Iz the application financlially viable and does It demonstrate sound managemant?

2021-20322 Communily Grants Program Guidelines

13
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9.2.5 Euroa Community Garden

Author: Coordinator Community Services and Inclusion
Responsible Director: Director Community and Planning

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
The Euroa Action Group Committee (ECAG) were successful in securing a budget
allocation of $10,000 for a community garden in Council’s 2021/22 Budget via a
submission to the ‘Pitch My Project’ platform. The vision of ECAG is to revitalise an
underutilised space in Euroa to create a communal gathering place where people can
connect through food and companionship.
Following the adoption of the 2021/22 Council Budget, Council Officers have met with
ECAG to identify potential sites to house the community garden. Key attributes of the
required land that would suit a community garden include:

o At least 500 square metres in size

¢ Well lit, safe and accessible by roads and footpaths

e Access to water mains

e Close to main street and local community facilities.

A parcel of land has been identified for the proposed community garden at 16A Bury
Street, Euroa and is owned by Council (refer to Figure 1). This parcel of land
encompasses the Euroa swimming pool and runs through to Brock Street. Within the
parcel of land, there is an underutilised vacant section within the land adjacent to Brock
Street. The parcel of land has not been utilised since such time as the netball courts
were decommissioned and does meet all of the above requirements.

Figurel Sugject.S't
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Now that a potential location has been identified, further consultation is required with
surrounding residents and the broader community to further determine the suitability
of the site. Following this process, a summary of the community engagement and
recommended next steps in response to community feedback will be presented to
Council for consideration.
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9.2.5 Euroa Community Garden (cont.)

RECOMMENDATION
That Council:

1. Continue to work with the Euroa Community Action Group to
progress the concept of a community garden at 16A Bury Street,
Euroa by;

a. undertaking consultation with surrounding residents and
community members regarding a community garden on this site

b. receiving a report from officers outlining a summary of the
community engagement and recommended next steps in response to
community feedback.

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND

Community gardens are an important part of building resilient communities. They build
connection, increase food security, and can support with a range of mental health and
wellbeing outcomes.

Sustain, a leading food network organisation in Australia created the first ever national
Pandemic Gardening Survey in 2020. The report reflects the voices of over 9,000
gardeners from urban, regional and remote communities across Australia who shared
how edible gardening is good for the mind, body and soul. 62% said the garden meant
a great deal to them during the pandemic. Along with their substantial mental health
benefits, edible gardens have the power to create greener cities, reduce household
waste, strengthen community connectedness, enhance food security, and encourage
fresh produce consumption. This shows the opportunity of creating community through
food production with the establishment of an edible Community Garden.

The Euroa Community Action Group under the leadership of their new committee
completed a Pitch My Project submission as part of the draft budget consultation
process that then resulted in an allocation of $10,000 in Council’s 2021/22 Budget.

Community gardens offer a shared space for people to come together to help build a
vibrant, diverse community who connect, share and grow through local food production
and cultivation.

The key outcomes of the Euroa community garden include:

e toincrease the opportunities for building intergenerational relationships through
the practice of growing food leading to stronger mental health and wellbeing
outcomes

o to develop local food production skills that can be shared between people to
increase knowledge and wisdom about food and nature
to generate sufficient food that increases food security and healthy living options

e to build the garden in a way that is environmentally sustainable and provides
approaches to inspire locals to be more sustainable in their homes.
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9.2.5 Euroa Community Garden (cont.)

The garden will provide an opportunity to educate the community on the importance of
local food production, how to build gardens in their own backyard as well as create a
communal space to gather and grow.

ISSUES, OPTIONS AND DISCUSSION
One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that priority is to be given to achieving the best outcomes for the municipal
community, including future generations.

In progressing 16A Bury Street, Euroa (owned by Council) as a potential site to
establish a community garden, a number of considerations need to be explored:

Planning and Building considerations:

The land is subject to the following planning Overlays and Planning Zones:

e Land Subject to Inundation Overlay (LSIO)

e General Residential Zone (GRZI)

e Urban Floodway Zone (UF2)

e Public Park and Recreation Zone (PPRZ)
The land has been vacant following the decommissioning of the netball courts over 20
years ago. The use of a community garden at this site is aligned with the planning
zones for the parcel of land considering it is low intensity and will be used for agriculture
and recreational purposes. Urban development is generally not encouraged in urban
floodway zones leaving the land underutilised. There are no requirements for planning
or building permits for the current proposed garden. Should ECAG wish to construct a
rotunda and sheds a building permit will be required.

Community Support:

The ECAG have undertaken consultation within the group's membership. Additional
consultation with nearby residents and the broader community needs to be undertaken
to ensure full community support for the project.

Operations and Maintenance:

Key considerations will need to be made regarding the installation and ongoing annual
cost of the garden as well public safety requirements. A licence agreement would need
to be established for the use of the land, detailing responsibilities, and costs of the
tenant.

The initial required budget for the community garden was estimated between $28,800
— $38,800 depending on site upgrade requirements. Should community consultation
support the establishment of a community garden at 16A Bury Street, further scoping
would need to be undertaken regarding installation and ongoing maintenance costs to
ensure a suitable community garden is delivered within the assigned budget of
$10,000.

It is estimated that based on the size and scale of the location, the annual cost for
operations and maintenance will be approximately $1,000 - $2,500. ECAG would be
responsible for on-going costs and will target a mix of funding of Council grants and
philanthropic donations to cover these costs.
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9.2.5 Euroa Community Garden (cont.)

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the municipal community is to be engaged in strategic planning and
strategic decision making.

Consultation has been undertaken by the ECAG with committee members before
submitting a budget proposal through the Pitch my Project Platform.

Now that a potential location has been identified, further consultation is required with
surrounding residents and the broader community to further determine the suitability
of the site.

POLICY CONSIDERATIONS
Council Plans and Policies

The author of this report considers that the report is consistent with Council Policies,
key strategic documents and the Council Plan, in particular, aligning with:

Goal 1: To enhance community health and wellbeing
8} Plan for improved community health, wellbeing and liveability
(2) Engage and participate with the community in Council/Community
initiatives
3) Enhance community resilience including supporting and increasing the
participation of volunteers
Goal 2: To sustainably manage our natural and built environment
D Promote and support sustainable environmental initiatives
Goal 3: To provide quality infrastructure

(2) Provide best practice management of all assets
(2) Provide passive and active recreational facilities

Goal 4: To support and drive economic development

D Promote and support local business and produce.

In addition, the recent Strathbogie Shire Council Engagement Report, which informed
the development of a Community Vision and Council Plan, identifies the community’s
top service priorities in Euroa as the Environment (2nd), climate change (4th) and
parks and garden (5th).

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that Council decisions are to be made and actions taken in accordance
with the relevant law.

There is no specific legislation governing the establishment of a community garden,
however under the Local Government Act 2020 Council must be accountable for how
public funds are spent and governance arrangements around decision making.
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9.2.5 Euroa Community Garden (cont.)

Should the Euroa Community Garden procced, to formalise governance agreements,
a licence agreement would be put in place between Council and the ECAG in
accordance with Council’s Lease and Licencing Policy.

Conflict of Interest Declaration

All officers, and/or contractors, involved in the preparation of this report have signed a
written declaration that they do not have a conflict of interest in the subject matter of
this report.

Transparency

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the transparency of Council decisions, actions and information is to be
ensured.

In the interest of transparency and open and honest communication with our
community, it is important that this matter is acknowledged and discussed in a public
forum providing full disclosure to the community.

FINANCIAL VIABILITY CONSIDERATIONS
One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the ongoing financial viability of the Council is to be ensured.

A budget allocation of $10,000 has been made in the 2021/22 Council budget for the
development of a community garden. Through preliminary discussions with ECAG,
ongoing maintenance and operational costs for the garden will be the responsibility of
Euroa Community Action Group, which includes the cost of utilities used on site.

SUSTAINABILITY CONSIDERATIONS

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the economic, social and environmental sustainability of the municipal
district, including mitigation and planning for climate change risks, is to be promoted.

Economic

Community gardens deliver economic benefits to the community by providing fresh
locally produced food. Food can be sold at the farmers market or on site to raise funds
for continued improvement of the garden.

Social

Community gardens have the potential to have a strong impact on social outcomes in
the community by connecting people through food and education. Gardens provide a
space for intergenerational interactions and provide an opportunity to educate the
community on the importance of local food production, how to build gardens as well as
creating a space to gather and work together.

Expected outcomes to be seen include:
- astronger sense of community and improved community health and well-being
due to the increase in community connections driving down social isolation;
- providing the community access to fresh, nutritious locally produced food;
- increasing physical activity through garden maintenance activities; and
- improved mental health and promote relaxation.
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9.2.5 Euroa Community Garden (cont.)

Environmental

Community gardens can help reduce negative environmental impacts by promoting
sustainable agriculture; reducing food miles and transportation costs; reducing water
runoff and improving air and soil quality.

Climate change

Community garden will have positive climate change impact for the community by
reducing our carbon footprint through the release of oxygen back into the environment
from the green space created by the garden and the reduction in food miles of the
locally grown produce.

CONCLUSION

The proposed community garden has the potential to deliver positive change to the
health and well-being for the Euroa Community. The position of the land being easily
accessible and visible will lend itself to high utilisation by the community. Now that a
potential location has been identified, further consultation is required with surrounding
residents and the broader community to further determine the suitability of the site.

ATTACHMENTS
Nil.



Strathbogie Shire Council Page 85 21/09/21
Council Meeting Agenda

9.2.6 Action Group Funding 2021/22

Author: Coordinator Community Services and Inclusion
Responsible Director: Director Community and Planning

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Funding allocation for Strathbogie Shire Council’s eight Action Groups opened on 1
August 2021 and closed on the 27 August. Council Officers consulted with each of the
Action Groups throughout June and July regarding the new structure for funding in the
2021/22 financial year.

The purpose of the Action Group Funding Allocation is to provide an opportunity for
Action Groups to undertake projects that complement the focus areas of Council and
encourage participation in community activity. Project submissions are to be based on
the Action Groups strategic plans. This year there are a number of groups in the final
year of their strategic plan, with some groups completing all actions highlighted in their
respective plans. To continue to support these Action Groups, submissions were
accepted for projects not listed in the strategic plan providing the Action Group could
demonstrate community support for the suggested project.

The total budget allocation for the 2021-2022 Action Group Funding is $70,000, with
$20,000 of this allocation attributed toward administration costs, festivities, and
community engagement with each individual action group receiving $2,500. The
remaining $50,000 is made available to support community projects.

This year total project submissions equate to $17,864 leaving $32,136 in the funding
allocation. Council Officers will continue consultation with those Action Groups which
have not submitted projects and support them in proceeding with an application prior

to year end, with proposed funding applications to be heard at the December Council
Meeting.

RECOMMENDATION

That Council:

1. Award funding to five (5) projects for the total sum of $17,864 to the
following Action Groups;
Application/Action Group Proposed funding
Maintenance Community Centre /Graytown Action Group $1,000
Repair/Maintenance Police Building/Avenel Action Group $5,000
Monthly newsletter/printing/Violet Town Action Group $4,364
Fairy Lights — Binney Street/Euroa Action Group $5,000
Planting and signage/Euroa Action Group $2,500

2. Authorise officers to continue consultation with Action Groups who

did not submit projects and re-open funding commencing 22
September 2021, closing 19 November 2021 with recommendations of
funding allocations to be put forward in the December 2021 Council
Meeting.
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9.2.6 Action Group Funding 2021/22 (cont.)

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND

Action Group Funding Allocation is structured to provide an opportunity for Action
Groups to undertake projects that complement the focus areas of Council and
encourage participation in community activity. Action Groups are able to apply for
multiple projects up to the value of $5,000 per project.

A total of four submissions were received for the 2021-22 Action Group Funding
Program, with a total of six projects and a total funding amount requested of $29,864.
The funding round is under subscribed with four Action Groups not submitting projects
for funding.

The 2021-22 applications have been assessed by Council Officers which comprised
of the following:

e Coordinator Community Services and Inclusion

¢ Community Development Officer

Additional advice was sought from other departments across Council dependent on
their area of expertise in the grant categories and included Officers from Operations
and Projects and Planning.

The applications were evaluated and scored against the funding criteria as detailed
below:

e Alignment to Community Plan and Council Plan (40% weighting)

e Community Need (25% weighting)

¢ Demonstrated Community Capacity (20% weighting)

¢ Budget (15% weighting).

The Officers have recommended that five of the six projects receive funding, as one of
the listed projects from Euroa Action Group for upgrade to town signage already has
funding allocated in the 2021/22 Council Budget.

Eligible applications were received from the following Action Groups
e Euroa, requesting $15,500
e Avenel, requesting $9,000
e Graytown, requesting $1,000
¢ Violet Town, requesting $4,364.

No applications were received from Ruffy, Strathbogie, Nagambie or Longwood.

ISSUES, OPTIONS AND DISCUSSION
One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that priority is to be given to achieving the best outcomes for the municipal
community, including future generations.

Four of the Action Groups have not proceeded with funding applications. Please find
a summary below of the communication in the lead up to the funding period with these
groups:

e Strathbogie Action Group — considered projects that they may be able to deliver
by end of financial year while currently in recess. Decided there were no
projects they currently wished to proceed with. Will utilise $2,500 from funding
to support administration costs and community engagement.
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9.2.6 Action Group Funding 2021/22 (cont.)

e Ruffy Action Group — new leadership, reviewing the current strategic plans and
decided not to proceed with project listed as did not deem it was necessary.
Looking to engage with community to ascertain future projects for Ruffy. With
ongoing support from Council could be a candidate to submit a project for
funding prior to year end should Council support this approach in the
recommendations. Will utilise $2,500 from funding to support administration
costs and community engagement

e Longwood Action Group — no response to phone calls and emails regarding
funding closure dates. Attended the funding workshop held by Council.

¢ Nagambie Action Group — no response to phone calls, emails and did not
attend workshops

Of the applications submitted for review, two of the four submissions have been
recommended for approval as per their application. This is Graytown and Violet Town.

Euroa Action Group have applied for three projects in total, one project has not been
recommended for funding as the project is for upgrading the entry signs to Euroa,
$30,000 has been assigned in the 2021/22 Council Budget for this purpose and as
such additional funding to the Action Group has not been recommended for funding.

Avenel Active’s request for funding was $9,000 for their project to upgrade the Old
Police Residence in Jubilee Park, this is a Council asset managed by a Committee of
Management. The Action Group Funding program supports projects up to the value of
$5,000. As such, the recommendation to Council is for this project to be capped at
$5,000 in line with the guidelines.

Table 1 Below provides a summary of the officer assessment panel recommendations:
Table 1: Summary of Proposed Projects

Action Group Brief Project Description Ré(;r:g;?éd Reclgur?]rgiigded

Graytown Maintenance of the Community Centre $1,000 $1000
Repair and maintenance to the Old Police

Avenel Residence building $9,000 CB000

Violet Town 50% Monthly newsletter printing and $4.364 $4.364
posting costs

Euroa Fairy lights to improve ambience of Binney $5.000 $5.000
Street

Euroa Plantlr_1g of local bgsh tuc_ker plants and $2.500 $2.500
associated educational signage

Euroa Change the welcome to Euroa signage $8,000 $0.00

Attachment 1 provides further detail of the proposed 2021-22 Action Group Funding
recommendations. Attachment 2 provides details of the projects not recommended for

funding.
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9.2.6 Action Group Funding 2021/22 (cont.)

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the municipal community is to be engaged in strategic planning and
strategic decision making.

A workshop with all Action Groups was facilitated in March 2021 to discuss the funding
model. Minor amendments to the funding model were approved by Council in June.
Follow up information sessions were held across June and July to introduce the
changes and discuss the application process. Sessions were held during work hours
and after hours to provide flexibility and opportunities for representatives to attend the
sessions. The workshops were well attended with all Action Groups present except
Nagambie Action Group who did not attend a session.

Emails were sent to the secretary of each Action Group to notify them that the funding
round was open. Officers also followed up by phone to offer support throughout the
application process to those Action Groups that had not yet submitted applications. A
final reminder of the round closing was also sent to the secretary in the final week of
the round.

POLICY CONSIDERATIONS

Council Plans and Policies

* Council Plan goal one:

- To enhance community health and wellbeing
o Key strategy - engage and participate with the community in Council /
Community initiatives.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that Council decisions are to be made and actions taken in accordance
with the relevant law.

The 2021-22 Applications have been assessed against an updated weighted
scorecard to ensure consistency, equity and transparency across the program.

Conflict of Interest Declaration

All officers, and/or contractors, involved in the preparation of this report have signed a
written declaration that they do not have a conflict of interest in the subject matter of
this report.

Transparency

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the transparency of Council decisions, actions and information is to be
ensured.

In the interest of transparency and open and honest communication with our
community it is recommended that the attached 2021-2022 Action Group Funding
Program — Applications Recommended for funding be released to the public providing
an understanding of the assessment process and outcomes of the program.
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9.2.6 Action Group Funding 2021/22 (cont.)

FINANCIAL VIABILITY CONSIDERATIONS
One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the ongoing financial viability of the Council is to be ensured.

It is not considered that there are any further financial implications involved other than
those already outlined in this report.

SUSTAINABILITY CONSIDERATIONS

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the economic, social and environmental sustainability of the municipal
district, including mitigation and planning for climate change risks, is to be promoted.

Economic

The distribution of funds through the 2021-22 Action Group Funding Program will
greatly assist community groups progress with projects that would otherwise be unable
to go ahead due to lack funding. Many projects will support improvements to facilities
and promote participation and engagement which will have a positive impact on the
Shire’s economic future.

Social

The awarding of funding for these groups will further assist with rebuilding the sense
of community that has been challenged during the various lockdown periods
throughout the COVID-19 pandemic.

Environmental
The application from the Euroa Action Group specifically focuses on the enhancement
of the environment through the planting of vegetation.

Climate change
As highlighted above the Euroa Action Group will enhance the natural environment
and decrease our carbon footprint on the environment.

INNOVATION AND CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT
One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is the pursuit of innovation and continuous improvement.

An updated Action Group Funding Guidelines document was created for the 2021-22
Program. The updates included a new look and feel and presented information in an
accessible format.

For transparency purposes the updated guidelines included the addition of the
weighted scorecard to be used as well as the minor changes adopted by Council at
the June Council Meeting. These included removing the funding allocation based on
population but instead on project merit. Council Officers will continue to review the
funding allocation process for further improvements in future year programs including
the timing of application for this funding.

HUMAN RIGHTS CONSIDERATIONS
It is not considered that there are any Human Rights that will be impacted as a result
of the 2021-22 Action Group Funding Program.
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9.2.6 Action Group Funding 2021/22 (cont.)

CONCLUSION

It is recommended that Council endorse the recommendation to award funding to the
four applicants for the 2021-22 Action Group Funding Program and support Council
Officers to continue to engage with the remaining four Action Groups to identify and
apply for funding prior to year end.

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment 1: 2021-22 Action Group Funding Program — Applications Recommended
for funding

Attachment 2: 2021-22 Community Grant Program — Applications Not Recommended
for funding
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ATTACHMENT 1: 2021-22 Action Group Funding Program — Applications Recommended for Funding

Applicant Project Title Brief Project Description Amount Total Recommended Funding Conditions
Organisation Requested | Project Funding
Cost
Graytown Community Centre Maintaining the community centre $1,000 $1,000 $1000 Liaise with Council’s
Community Maintenance and surrounding garden area to Facilities and Recreation
Action Group ensure safety and increased use Officer in relation to works
to be undertaken
Avenel Active Inc. | Old Police Residence Avenel Community Hub Project $9,000 $9,000 $5,000 Funding caps projects at
Building ReVamp Repair and maintenance to the Old $5000
Police Residence building in Jubilee
Park
Violet Town Monthly Newsletter 50% Monthly newsletter printing and | $4,364 $8728 $4364 Request that recycled
Action Group Inc | Costs posting costs paper is used in the
production of the
newsletter if not already in
place
Euroa Community | Solar Fairy Lights in Fairy lights to improve ambience of | $5,000 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 Requirement to work with
Reference Group | Binney Street Binney St. Will support Euroa Council
Chamber of Commerce in their operations/outdoors team
plans to revitalise Binney St and can regarding installation
be used at events or all year round. works
No operating costs due to solar
installation
Euroa Community Work with Taungurung LawC and $2,500 $2,500 $2,500 Liaise with Council staff

Reference Group

Bush Tucker Trail

the Arboretum to plant local bush
tucker plants and then have signage
that highlights First Nations culture
and builds awareness of native food

prior to commencement
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ATTACHMENT 2: 2021-22 Action Group Funding Program — Applications Not Recommended for Funding

Applicant Project Title Brief Project Description Amount Total Recommended | Funding Conditions
Organisation Requested | Project Funding

Cost
Euroa Community Change the welcome to Euroa $8,000.00 | $8,000.00 | $0,000.00 $30k has been assigned to

Reference Group

Entrance Signage in
town

signage, to a new, artistic slogan
and design that aligns to the new
objectives of council

upgrading town entrance
signs in the capital budget.
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9.2.7 Tender for Contract CN21/22-01: Operation and Management of Pools

Author: Coordinator Community Services and Inclusion

Responsible Director: Director Community and Planning

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Council owns four outdoor swimming pools within Strathbogie Shire. These pools are
located in Avenel, Euroa, Nagambie and Violet Town. Last financial year, the
management of the outdoor pools was undertaken via a contractual arrangement with
a third party following a competitive procurement process. The 2020/21 pool season
was successful with facilities vastly improved through the management of a well-
established pool management company.

At the June 2021 Council Meeting, Council decided in part to:

- Authorise Officers to proceed with a competitive tender process to source a
provider to manage and operate Council’s aquatic facilities for an initial three-
year period with the option of two, one year extensions subject to satisfactory
performance.

Council invited submissions through a public open tender process for Contract Number
21/22-01 Operation and Management of Pools on Friday 2 July 2021.

At tender closing on Friday 6 August 2021 one (1) tender submission was received.
This was a conforming tender and following the evaluation of this tender it is
recommended that Council award contract number 21/22-01 to Belgravia Leisure
Services for a period of three years.

RECOMMENDATION
That Council:

1. Receives and notes the outcome of the tender assessment process for
Contract Number 21/22-01 — Operation and Management of Pools;

2. Award Contract Number 21/22-01 Operation and Management of Pools to
Belgravia Leisure Services for the value of $1,018,223 excluding GST
($1,120,045.30 incl GST) for the period of three years, inclusive of a 3%
annual CPl increase;

3. Authorise the Chief Executive Officer to execute Contract Number 21/22-
01 by signing and affixing with the Common Seal of Strathbogie Shire
Council; and

4, Subject to satisfactory performance, authorise the Chief Executive
Officer to approve two single year extensions only upon
recommendation from the Director of Community and Planning, for
seasons 2024/25 & 2025/26 for the amount of $359,972.68 and
$370,771.86 both excluding GST per annum.
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9.2.7 Tender for Contract CN21/22-01: Operation and Management of Pools (cont.)

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND

In 2020 Strathbogie Shire Officers conducted an analysis of the management and
operational model of the Shire’s aquatic facilities and concluded the most appropriate
model going forward was to contract out the management and operations of all four
pools to a professional aquatic management organisation for the 2020/21 season. The
maintenance, capital improvements and preparation of the pools was managed by the
Strathbogie Shire Operations (Works) Department as per previous seasons. This
approach was endorsed by Council at the May 2020 Council Meeting and a
procurement process was undertaken with a one-year contract awarded for the
2020/21 season. The pool season under operational management through a third party
contractor was successful with facilities vastly improved utilising their expertise and
knowledge in this sector and strong focus on safety and risk management at each pool.

At the June 2021 Council Meeting Council supported the Officer recommendation to
establish a longer, fixed term contract with a professional aquatic management
organisation to deliver long term strategic goals and mutually beneficial outcomes for
the community in line with Strathbogie Community Pools 10 Year Strategy.

ISSUES, OPTIONS AND DISCUSSION
One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that Priority is to be given to achieving the best outcomes for the municipal
community, including future generations.

Based on the successful outsourcing of aquatic management in 2020-21 season and
subsequent analysis of management options undertaken in June 2021, Council
advertised a public open tender process on 2 July 2021 for the management and
operations of all outdoor pools for the next three opening seasons. The tender also
included that subject to satisfactory performance, two, one year extensions may be
enacted.

Tender process

The Tender for the Contract Number 20/21-20 Operation and Management of
Municipal Swimming Pools was released for submission on Friday 2 July, via
TenderSearch, with listing on the Strathbogie Shire website. State-wide advertising
was provided in the Public Notices of The Age, Saturday 3 July 2021, and advertising
provided in the following local newspapers, Euroa Gazette, Shepparton News
Classifieds, Benalla Ensign, Violet Town Village Voice, and Nagambie Community
Voice throughout the following week/fortnight depending on print date.

A tender extension was granted due to ongoing Covid restrictions and lockdowns.

At the close of tender at 4pm on Friday 6 August one (1) submission was received.
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9.2.7 Tender for Contract CN21/22-01: Operation and Management of Pools (cont.)

Table 1 below lists the organisation that submitted documents at close of the
advertised tender period.

Table 1: Tender submissions

Tender Submissions Received at Close of Tender

Period

(in Alphabetical Order)
Belgravia Leisure Services

Table 2 below is the Tenderer lump sum offer with annual breakdown (excluding GST)
at the close of the advertised quotation period.

Table 2: Pricing

Lump Sum Price provided at Close of Tender Period
(excl GST)

Lump sum amount $1,018,223.00

Annual price breakdown
2021/2022 - $329,426.00

2022/2023 - $339,308.78
2023/2024 - $349,488.04

The tender evaluation panel consisted of the following Strathbogie Shire Council staff
members:

Director Community and Planning

Coordinator Community Services and Inclusion
Recreation and Facilities Officer

Procurement and Tenders Officer (moderator).

The Panel assessed the submission in line with the selection criteria and best value
for money principals.

In accordance with the Procurement Policy, the evaluation panel and evaluation
criteria weightings were nominated prior to opening.

Table 3: Selection Criteria

Criteria Weighting %

Price 60%

OH&S, Environmental, Management 10%

Capacity 10%

Capability, Experience, Personnel, 10%
Methodology

Local Content, Regional Benefit 10%

Total 100%
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9.2.7 Tender for Contract CN21/22-01: Operation and Management of Pools (cont.)

Evaluation Moderation Process

The purpose of the moderation meeting was to discuss and moderate scoring
discrepancies larger than three points and to raise any concerns and/or queries that
may need to be put to the tenderers prior to recommending the preferred Tenderer.

The Tender Evaluation Panel individually reviewed the tender submission in detail and
assessed the submitted schedules and attachments against the evaluation criteria.
The Moderator (Procurement and Tenders officer) averaged the scores and
highlighted scoring discrepancies larger than three (3) points. On Friday 27 August
2021 the Panel's members met for the tender moderation meeting.

PANEL ASSESSMENT SUMMARY

The result of the Panel evaluation and the subsequent moderation meeting was that
Belgravia Leisure Services provided the best value for money and experience to
deliver the operational management of Council’s outdoor swimming pools for a three-
year period.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the municipal community is to be engaged in strategic planning and
strategic decision making.

The tendering of the management of the pools during the pool seasons considered not
to require any community engagement as the tender specifications were consistent
with current expectations of relevant stakeholders. The tender process was
undertaken as a public process conducted in accordance with Council’'s Procurement
Poalicy.

In addition, it is proposed that the Pools Advisory Committee meetings will re-
commence and be held on a quarterly basis. The Committee has Council
representation through Mayor Raeburn and Cr Murray and is to have 2 Council
Officers, up to 8 community representatives and up to 8 youth representatives. The
role of the Committee is to carry out the following functions to:
- participate in the implementation of Strathbogie Shire Community Pools
Strategy 2019-2029
- participate in the development of levels of service for pool access and
infrastructure
- Respond to issues referred by Council to the Committee associated with issues
pertaining to marketing, promotion, safety and other pool opportunities.

POLICY CONSIDERATIONS

Council Plans and Policies

The author of this report considers that the report is consistent with Council Policies,
key strategic documents and the Council Plan, in particular, aligning with:

- The Strathbogie Community Pools Strategy 2019-2029
- Council Plan Goal 1: Enhance community health and wellbeing
- Council Plan Goal 3: To provide Quality Infrastructure
o Strategy 2: Provide Passive and Active Recreational Facilities.
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9.2.7 Tender for Contract CN21/22-01: Operation and Management of Pools (cont.)

Regional, State and National Plans and Policies

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that regional, state and national plans and policies are to be taken into
account in strategic planning and decision-making.

The author of this report considers that the report is consistent with Best Value,
National Competition Policy and Trade Practices Act requirements.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that Council decisions are to be made and actions taken in accordance
with the relevant law.

The public open tender process was undertaken in accordance with Council’s
Procurement Policy and the procurement requirements under the Local Government
Act 2020.

Conflict of Interest Declaration

All officers, and/or contractors, involved in the preparation of this report have signed a
written declaration that they do not have a conflict of interest in the subject matter of
this report.

No member of Council staff, or other person engaged under a contract, involved in
advising on or preparing this report has declared a direct or indirect interest in relation
to the matter of the report.

Transparency

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the transparency of Council decisions, actions and information is to be
ensured.

It is considered by the author of this report that all steps have been taken in line with
Council’'s Procurement Policy which ensures transparency in the process

FINANCIAL VIABILITY CONSIDERATIONS
One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the ongoing financial viability of the Council is to be ensured.

The following has been allocated in the Council budget for the 2021/2022 pool season:
- Swimming Pools — Management/Operations - $325,200 (includes operating
costs, materials, advertising)

- Swimming Pools — Maintenance - $56,600

- Capital Expenditure - $942,120 (allocated in years 2021/22-2023/24). This
does not include an allocation of $1,000,000 for a splash park in Nagambie in
2021/22.

The price of the tender submitted come in slightly over 2021/22 allocated budget
amount by approximately $20,000. The shortfall of funds will be fund through any
operational savings that may occur throughout the financial year.
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As part of the tender specifications, the kiosk management and takings are the
responsibility of the contractor. The admission fees are directed to Council.

SUSTAINABILITY CONSIDERATIONS

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the economic, social and environmental sustainability of the municipal
district, including mitigation and planning for climate change risks, is to be promoted.

Environmental considerations were made during this Tender process. Tenderers were
asked to provide and were assessed on their Environmental Policies as a component
of the Quality Management Schedules. The tender and tender evaluation was
undertaken in accordance with Council’s procurement policy.

Economic

The aquatic facilities remain a large economic investment for the Council. In
outsourcing to a contractor, management costs can be negotiated and consistent and
easily managed through the contract clauses.

Social
Public aquatic facilities can provide much more than just “places to cool off in summer”.
A properly managed pool and aquatic strategy can deliver a sense of community,
improve social capital, offer access to water safety education and increase patron
enjoyment. The Shire's aquatic facilities have the potential to deliver increased value
to the community and can be measured by such things as:
a) sense of community — e.g. stakeholder participation, recognition of diversity,
social cohesion
b) community services — e.g. range and quality of services for different groups
(children and families, young people, elderly people and people with
disabilities), accessibility of services or cost of services
c) community health and well-being — e.g. recreation facilities, public safety,
health services and facilities or public health implications
d) education and skills development — e.g. number and quality of education
options for the community, life-long learning opportunities.

Environmental

Improved operational management of the Shire’s aquatic facilities has the potential to
reduce water consumption across the pools and our impact on the environment. This
includes appropriate use of pool blankets to decrease water evaporation as well as an
introduction of automated disinfection system allowing for better management of
chemical use and chemical consumption. Chemicals usually require significant energy
to produce, transport, high use of plastic storage containers and can be harsh and
damaging to the environment. The reduction of chemical consumption can therefore
be a significant ecological benefit. In addition, it has been recommended that the Shire
purchase automatic commercial pool cleaners to enable effective cleaning of the pool
which can contribute to a further decrease in chemical usage.

Climate change

The above listed improvements in the operational management of our pools can deliver
ecological benefits across all facilities supporting our commitment to making effective
change to reduce our carbon footprint and act on climate change.
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9.2.7 Tender for Contract CN21/22-01: Operation and Management of Pools (cont.)

HUMAN RIGHTS CONSIDERATIONS
The author of this report considers that the recommendation does not limit any human
rights under the Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities Act 2006.

CONCLUSION

Council invited submissions through a public open tender process for Contract Number
21/22-01 Operation and Management of Pools on Friday 2 July 2021. Attender closing
on Friday 6 August 2021 one (1) tender submission was received. This submission
was evaluated strictly in accordance with the Council’'s Procurement Policy and against
the provided specifications.

Following the evaluation of this tender it is recommended that Council award contract
number 21/22-01 to Belgravia Leisure Services for a period of three years.

ATTACHMENTS
Attachment 1: Tender Evaluation for Contract No. 21/22-01: Operation and
Management of Pools — CONFIDENTIAL
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9.2.8 Contracts Awarded Under Delegation (as approved in Council’s 2021/22 Capital
Works Budget)

Author: Manager Projects

Responsible Director: Director Community and Planning

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to inform Council and the community of the status of
request for tenders that have been awarded under delegation and those that have
been publicly advertised but are yet to be awarded as of 1 September 2021. This report
specifically relates to works that form part of Council’'s 2021/22 capital works budget.

RECOMMENDATION

That Council note the:

1. Contracts awarded under delegated authority by the Chief Executive
Officer
2. Contracts awarded under delegated authority by a Director.

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND

In line with Council’'s approach to transparency and good governance, the Contracts
Awarded Under Delegation report will be tabled for information purposes at each
Council Meeting. The report details any contracts that have been awarded under
delegated authority by the Chief Executive Officer, a Director, or Manager within their
approved financial threshold. This report specifically relates to works that form part of
Council’s approved 2021/22 capital works budget.

The report also details an update on the commencement time of projects that have
previously been awarded by Council.

ISSUES, OPTIONS AND DISCUSSION
Any contract awarded under delegation is undertaken in line with Council’s
Procurement Policy. Through the Instrument of Delegation to the Chief Executive
Officer the Council has delegated authority to the following:
- Chief Executive Officer — award a contract up to the value of $150,000 for
Goods and Services and $200,000 for Works
- Director Corporate Operations — award a contract up to the value of $100,000
for Goods and Services and $100,000 for Works
- Director Community and Planning - award a contract up to the value of
$50,000 for Goods and Services and $50,000 for Works
- A Manager — award a contract up to the value of $15,000 for Goods and
Services and $15,000 for Works.
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9.2.8 Contracts Awarded Under Delegation (as approved in Council's 2021/22 Capital

Works Budget) (cont.)

Tendered Contracts Awarded under Delegated Authority by the CEO

Contract No.

PN 20-21-34A

Contract Name

Footpaths Renewal Program

Contract Details

Lump Sum Contract for the Gravel Footpath construction along
Anderson Street Avenel connecting with Ewing’s Road to Ash Street
Avenel.

Value Excluding

$69,500.00

GST
Awarded to BR Excavations Pty Ltd
Scheduled September 2021
Commencement
Scheduled
Completion Date October 2021
Contract No. CN 21-22 - 02

Contract Name

Replacing Euroa Cinema Seating

Contract Details

Lump Sum Contract

Value Excluding | $91,000.00
GST
Profurn (approved under delegation due to funding
Awarded to obligations/timeframes and lead order time for the actual chairs)
Scheduled
Commencement October 2021
Scheduled March 2022

Completion Date

Tendered Contracts Awarded under Delegated Authority by a Director

Contract No.

PN 20-21-34B

Contract Name

Footpaths Renewal Program

Contract Details

Lump Sum Contract for the Gravel Footpath construction along Queens

Street Avenel from Ewing’s Road to Pinneger Street Avenel

Value Excluding

$29,000.00

GST
Awarded to BR Excavations Pty Lt
. Scheduled September 2021
ommencement
Scheduled

Completion Date

October 2021
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9.2.8

Contracts Awarded Under Delegation (as approved in Council’s 2021/22 Capital

Works Budget) (cont.)

Contract No.

Quotations

Contract Name

Digital Projector and Screen Avenel Memorial Hall

Contract Details

Lump Sum Contract

Value Excluding $13,000.00
GST
Awarded to Soundsaround
Scheduled September 2021
Commencement
Scheduled

Completion Date

September 2021

Contract No.

Quotations

Contract Name

Footpath Renewal Program

Contract Details

Lump Sum Contract for Footpaths and School Crossing Works at Euroa
and Nagambie

Value Excluding | $19,900.00
GST
Awarded to Spot on Concrete
Scheduled September 2021
Commencement
Scheduled

Completion Date

November 2021

Contract No.

Quotations

Contract Name

Footpath Renewal Program

Contract Details

Lump Sum Contract for Footpath widening construction works at
Hyacinth Street Violet Town to Tulip Street Violet Town and continuing
to Lily Street Violet Town

Value Excluding | $83,520.00
GST
Awarded to Canlong
Scheduled September 2021
Commencement
Scheduled

Completion Date

November 2021
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9.2.8 Contracts Awarded Under Deleqgation (as approved in Council's 2021/22 Capital
Works Budget) (cont.)

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the municipal community is to be engaged in strategic planning and
strategic decision making.

Where required, external stakeholders have been engaged providing input on relevant
projects.

Conflict of Interest Declaration

All offices, and/or contracts involved in the preparation of this report have signed a
written declaration that they do not have a conflict of interest in the subject matter of
this report.

Transparency

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the transparency of Council decisions, actions and information is to be
ensured.

This report demonstrates that Council is being transparent by providing information to
the community regarding the awarding of any capital works contract.

FINANCIAL VIABILITY CONSIDERATIONS

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the ongoing financial viability of the Council is to be ensured. The
contracts awarded under delegation are projects that have formed part of Council’s
adopted 2021/22 budget.

SUSTAINABILITY CONSIDERATIONS

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the economic, social, and environmental sustainability of the municipal
district, including mitigation and planning for climate change risks, is to be promoted.

Economic

Works awarded under delegation provide an opportunity to generate great economic
benefit using local contractors and the purchasing of materials and supplies. In
addition, the enhancement of infrastructure continues to make our municipality a place
of destination, one where people choose to live, work and play.

Social

Each project includes several social benefits to our community. Some of these benefits
include enabling infrastructure that encourages health and wellbeing activities and
amenity improvements.

Environmental
The works will be undertaken in line with an approved scope of works and ensure that
the site is made good upon completion of the works.
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9.2.8 Contracts Awarded Under Deleqgation (as approved in Council's 2021/22 Capital
Works Budget) (cont.)

Climate Change
As identified above, the opportunity to enhance the natural environment will reduce our
carbon footprint.

HUMAN RIGHTS CONSIDERATIONS
This report considers that the recommendations do not limit any Human Rights under
the Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities Act 2006.

CONCLUSION

It is important that decisions and actions taken under delegation be properly
documented and transparent in nature. The report details the publicly advertised
contracts awarded by the Chief Executive Officer and Directors under delegated
authority of the Council during the period 1 August 2021 to 1 September 2021.

ATTACHMENTS
Nil.
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9.2.9 Designation of a Bushfire Place of Last Resort - Euroa

Author: Manager Operations/Municipal Fire Prevention Officer (MFPO)

Responsible Director: David Roff

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Councils in country Victoria are required to designate Neighbourhood Safer Places or
Bushfire Places of Last Resort (BPLR) under the Country Fire Authority Act 1958 (CFA
Act).

The CFA Act requires that a proposed BPLR be given the Municipal Fire Planning Sub-
Committee approval, and endorsement by the Municipal Emergency Management
Planning Committee. The Council are required to approve the site by Council resolution
and can only do so once the proposed BPLR site has the approval of the CFA.

This report recommends that the Euroa BPLR be relocated from the current Kirkland
Avenue site to the carpark area at the Euroa War Memorial Swimming Pool.

The proposed location has been assessed against eleven criteria, as set out in the
Council’'s Neighbourhood Safer Places Plan adopted by the Council on 15 June 2010.
The site has been assessed and certified by the Country Fire Authority as being
suitable for a BPLR.

The report seeks Council’'s endorsement of this proposal.

RECOMMENDATION

That Council:

1. Designate the car park location at 16a Bury Street, Euroa (Euroa War
Memorial Swimming Centre) as a Bushfire Place of Last Resort in
accordance with section 50G of the Country Fire Authority Act 1958;

2. Install directional signage to guide the public to the site;

3. Decommission the current Bushfire Place of Last Resort on Kirkland
Avenue, Euroa;

4. Advise the Country Fire Authority of Council’s decision; and

5. Communicate to the public of the changes to the designated Bushfire
Place of Last Resort for Euroa, once the Bury Street site is
established, through Council’s website, newspaper column and
social media.

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND

In country Victoria, councils have an obligation to identify and Designate Bushfire
Places of Last Resort (BPLR), which were previously known as Neighbourhood Safer
Places (NSP).
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9.2.9 Designation of a Bushfire Place of Last Resort — Euroa (cont.)

There are total of eight (8) BPLRs designated within the Strathbogie Shire located in
the townships of Euroa, Violet Town, Strathbogie, Longwood, Avenel, Mangalore,
Ruffy and Nagambie.

During a recent annual review of the Victorian Bushfire Risk Register for the
Strathbogie Shire by the Municipal Fire Planning Sub-Committee, a discussion was
held about the ongoing suitability of the current BPLR in Euroa, being a section of
Kirkland Avenue, Euroa, between Bury Street and Clifton Street.

The BPLR for Euroa was initially designated at the service centre on the Hume
Freeway and was changed to Kirkland Avenue when Council did not wish to meet the
demands of the service centre operator to continue the site as a BPLR (refer item 9.7.3
Council meeting 20 November 2018).

This report proposes that consideration be given to alter the location of the Euroa
BPLR prior to the commencement of the 2021/2022 fire danger period.

ISSUES, OPTIONS AND DISCUSSION

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that Priority is to be given to achieving the best outcomes for the municipal
community, including future generations. It is difficult to find an alternative BPLR open
space site within the Euroa township area.

BPLRs are not community fire refuges or emergency relief centres. BPLRs are places
of last resort during the passage of a bushfire and are intended to be used by persons
whose primary bushfire plans have failed. BPLRs are places of relative safety only.

They do not guarantee the survival of those who assemble there. Furthermore, there
may be serious risks to safety encountered in travelling, and seeking access, to BPLRs
during bushfire events. Depending on the direction of a fire, it may not be a safer place
to assemble than other places within the municipal district. At that point in time, it
almost certainly will be a matter for individual judgement and decision as to which, if
any, BPLR a person or persons should travel in the presence of fire.

The existing Kirkland Avenue BPLR site being a roadway has potentially created some
confusion as to the exact location of the BPLR. All the signage is erected on the edge
of the adjacent parkland beside the Seven Creeks, which encourages people using
the site to be in the reserve instead of indicating that it is the roadway which has been
designated as the BPLR.

One of the reasons for reconsidering the location for the BPLR was the fact that the
Euroa Kindergarten has been recommended for inclusion in the Victorian Bushfire Risk
Register in the event of a bushfire incident, given the proximity of vegetation along the
Seven Creeks reserve/parkland and its designation in the Municipal Emergency
Management Plan as a vulnerable facility.

At the Fire Sub-Committee meeting it was initially thought that the main shopping strip
area in Euroa could be considered but upon further investigation, the clearance zone
of 310m around an open area Bushfire Place of Last Resort ruled this location out.
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The Friendlies Reserve wasn’t considered but it would clearly not meet the clearance
(vegetation) requirements as it is nestled near the Seven Creeks reserve with
significant treed areas similar to the issues with the Kirkland Avenue existing site.

The proposed site at the pool car park meets the clearance guidelines and has been
assessed by CFA under 11 criteria and been found to be suitable.

The site needs to be in place for the upcoming fire season and if another site was to
be considered there would not be time to have it assessed then go through Municipal
Fire Planning Committee and Municipal Emergency Planning Committee and then
Council .The Council cannot resolve unless approval has been received from the CFA
re :assessment of the site.

There is also a requirement for an annual review process and this can be considered
next year.

Whilst the Council needs to make a resolution in this matter, the Council has no
authority over the MEMPC or the Fire Sub-committee (under new arrangements they
are not Committees of Council), which may well reject/fail to endorse an alternative
proposal.

Any potential BPLR site is required to be assessed against criteria as set out in the
Council’s Neighbourhood Safer Places Plan which was adopted by the Council on 15
June 2010. A summary of the assessment in contained in Attachment No 1.

The key criteria are;

A minimum of 310 metres clearance to vegetation (bushland/grasslands)
Community access availability

Proximity to major highways and standard of access (roads)
Capacity of the proposed site

Suitable access for emergency services

Suitable access for pedestrians available

Disabled accessibility

24/7 accessibility

. Appropriate signage in place

10. Inspection and maintenance regime in place

11. Community informed.

CoNoohRWNE

Criteria 9 to 11 inclusive would be addressed following a Council decision to proceed
with the BPLR at 16a Bury Street and prior to the site becoming operational.

For a building as a BPLR the clearance requirement is reduced to 140 metres. The
Council’s existing offices in Bury Street, Euroa, would not comply with this requirement.
Other building sites could be considered, although the requirement to have 24 hour
access could prove problematic from a building security and standby staffing costs
perspective if the building was Council owned or security and access agreements for
non-Council owned sites.
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9.2.9 Designation of a Bushfire Place of Last Resort — Euroa (cont.)

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the municipal community is to be engaged in strategic planning and
strategic decision making.

The responsibility for emergency management planning now rests with the Strathbogie
Shire Municipal Emergency Planning Committee (MEMPC) which reports to the Hume
Regional Emergency Management Committee. The MEMPC is not a committee of the
Council although Council has representatives on the MEMPC and the Director
Corporate Operations chairs this committee.

The MEMPC has established a specialist sub-committee, the Municipal Fire Planning
Sub-Committee (MFPSC).

The matter of establishment of BPLRs relies heavily on the CFA’s technical
assessment of the proposed site and the specialist guidance of the MFPSC. The
MFPSC have recommended support for the proposed BPLR and the MEMPC has
supported this proposal.

In this instance a wider community engagement process is not required, although the
Strathbogie Shire Community will be engaged in the triannual review of the existing
Municipal Emergency Management Plan which is scheduled in 2022.

In relation to community awareness of fire related issues, including individual fire
plans, primarily the fire season messaging is provided by State Government with
Council playing a support role

POLICY CONSIDERATIONS
Council Plans and Policies

The consideration of a Bushfire Places of Last Resort (BPLR) supports the Council’s
strategy (1.3) in the 2017/2021 Council Plan by enhancing community resilience.

Regional, State and National Plans and Policies
One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that regional, state and national plans and policies are to be taken into
account in strategic planning and decision-making.

The consideration of BPLRs is a requirement of state legislative requirements and is
consistent with emergency management planning at regional and state levels.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that Council decisions are to be made and actions taken in accordance
with the relevant law.

Under section 50G (1) of Country Fire Authority Act 1958 a council in country Victoria
must identify and designate places as Neighbourhood Safer Places (now referred to
as Bushfire Places of Last Resort) within its municipal district.
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9.2.9 Designation of a Bushfire Place of Last Resort — Euroa (cont.)

Council must refer any proposed BPLR site to the CFA for a detailed assessment and
cannot designate the site as a BPLR until the site has been certified by the CFA. The
CFA have assessed the proposed BPLR and have certified its approval — refer to
Attachment 3.

Council is further obligated to undertake an annual review of all its BPLRs and maintain
them during the declared fire danger period.

Conflict of Interest Declaration

All officers, and/or contractors, involved in the preparation of this report have signed a
written declaration that they do not have a conflict of interest in the subject matter of
this report.

Transparency

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the transparency of Council decisions, actions and information is to be
ensured.

This report and the matters discussed achieve public transparency goals as the
proposal has been raised with both the Municipal Fire Planning Sub-Committee and
the Municipal Emergency Management Planning Committee, was available to the
public on Council’s website and is being discussed in a Council meeting open to the
public.

FINANCIAL VIABILITY CONSIDERATIONS
One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the ongoing financial viability of the Council is to be ensured.

Minimal costs would be associated with the establishment of the BPLR, with some
existing signage being able to be reused from the existing BPLR site.

The existing emergency management budget can accommodate the costs of this
proposal.

All BPLRs are inspected annually and monthly during the declared fire danger period,
and therefore, as the proposal will not increase the total number of BPLRs, no
additional inspection costs will be incurred.

SUSTAINABILITY CONSIDERATIONS

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the economic, social and environmental sustainability of the municipal
district, including mitigation and planning for climate change risks, is to be promoted.

Economic
Nil impacts.

Social

The implementation of the Bushfire Place of Last Resort at the Euroa Pool Carpark
site will contribute to resilience and the health and safety of the community by providing
a designated alternative site in the event of a bushfire impacting on the community
where individual fire response plans have failed.
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Environmental
No impacts.

Climate change

Current evidence suggests that fire seasons are becoming longer, and extreme
weather conditions are becoming more frequent. A regular review of the Council’s
emergency management arrangements including the designation of Bushfire Places
of Last Resort (BPLR) is required by legislation and is necessary to ensure that these
arrangements are able to respond to the increasing risks due to climate change.

INNOVATION AND CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT
One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is the pursuit of innovation and continuous improvement.

The recommendation in this report is a direct result of a review of the suitability of an
existing BPLR by the Municipal Fire Planning Sub-Committee and is a demonstration
of continuous improvement principles in Council's emergency management
arrangements.

COLLABORATION

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that collaboration with other councils, levels of government and statutory
bodies is to be sought.

Collaboration has occurred across a wide range of agencies as represented on the
Municipal Emergency Management Planning Committee and the Municipal Fire
Planning Sub-Committee.

HUMAN RIGHTS CONSIDERATIONS

The proposal is supportive of human rights as contained in the Charter of Human
Rights and Responsibilities Act 2006, including the protecting life and the protection of
families and children.

CONCLUSION

An alternative Euroa BPLR site has been identified which offers increased protection
and reduces potential confusion for the community compared to the existing BPLR on
Kirkland Ave Euroa.

It is recommended that the Council designate the carpark at the Euroa War Memorial
Swimming Pool as the BPLR (NSP) and decommission the existing Kirkland Ave BPLR
site.

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment 1: Council assessment of the Carpark site at 16a Bury Street, Euroa.
Attachment 2: Locality map showing the 310 metres defendable space requirement.
Attachment 3: Country Fire Authority Certification of the site at 16a Bury Street, Euroa
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ATTACHMENT 1:

Assessment of the car park area at 16a Bury Street, Euroa, as a Bushfire Place of Last
Resort (BPLR)

The following is an assessment undertaken in accordance with the Council’'s approved
Neighbourhood Safer Places Plan adopted on 15 June 2010.

ITEM | BPLR CRITERIA COMMENTS
1 Defendable space - 310m | Y | Refer to map showing 310m radius
clearance to vegetation as per around the site
CFA recommendations
2 Consents & right of access v | Council owned land — no restrictions
3 Access & Egress
Proximity to major | ¥ | Centre of Euroa. Close to old Hume
highways/population centres Highway & Euroa Shepparton Rd
v" | Clifton St and Anderson St. All sealed
Easy and clear access from roads. Limited vegetation.
sealed major roads v | Over 50 car parking spaces please
adjoining on-street parking.
Capacity , Approximately 200 plus person capacity.
% Refer attached maps.
Available
Emergency vehicle access Proposed BPLR tending to encourage
Pedestrian accessing site - safety people to move away from more highly
vegetated areas

4 Maintenance v | Council responsible — already maintains
the site

5 Operation of BPLR (24hrs) v | Can operate effectively 24/7

6 Signage v | Signs to be installed once BPLR
designation approved

7 Disabled access v' | Site accessible, good pedestrian path
network.

8 Community communication v | Media/communication to be undertaken
once the site is approved as a BPLR and
the signage has been installed.

Assessment completed by Council’s Municipal Emergency Management Officer (MEMO)

and the Municipal Fire Prevention Officer (MFPO) and the Car Park associated with the

Euroa War Memorial Swimming Pool is recommended as a designated a Bushfire Place

of Last Resort (BPLR formerly an NSP).

S0 =T o P

Date:................

Daniel Haysom (MFPO) Brian Doyle (MEMO)
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ATTACHMENT 2: Locality Map for the Proposed Euroa Bushfire Place of Last Resort
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ATTACHMENT 3: Country Fire Authority Certification

s n s | Heighbhourhood Safer Place — Bushfire Place of Last Resort
CFA Assessment Certification
Site Details:
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CFA ReBion Morth East CF4 District 22
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Site dssessment Officer
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9.2.10 Refugee Council of Australia - Afghanistan Advocacy

Author: Coordinator Community Services & Inclusion

Responsible Director: Director Community and Planning

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Refugee Council of Australia have written to all Refugee Welcome Zone Councils
calling on support to advocate to the Australian Federal Government on the unfolding
crisis in Afghanistan. The Refugee Council of Australia are urging the Federal
Government to implement the below seven practical steps to provide safety for people
from Afghanistan:

Evacuate people who are at grave risk

Urge governments in the region to keep borders open

Offer additional refugee resettlement places for Afghan refugees

Increase Australian aid to the region

Support people whose asylum claims have been previously rejected to be able
to submit new claims in the light of the changed circumstances in Afghanistan.
Extend permanent protection to 4300 Afghans on temporary protection visas
Assist Afghan Australians with urgent family reunion applications for relatives
who are at particular risk.

arwnNpE

No

In 2017, Strathbogie Shire become a Refugee Welcome zone. A Refugee Welcome
Zone is a Local Government Area which has made a commitment in spirit to:

- Welcoming refugees into the community

- Upholding the human rights of refugees

- Demonstrating compassion for refugees, and

- Enhancing cultural and religious diversity in the community.

Over 300 organisations, businesses, and community groups have signed on to a joint
letter to all Federal MPs and Senators calling on them to take urgent action on the
devastating situation in Afghanistan. The Refugee Council are calling on our support
to back their urgent advocacy on the unfolding crisis in Afghanistan, including support
for Afghan refugees here in Australia and their separated families.

RECOMMENDATION

That Council advocate to the Australian Federal Government by including
Council’s support to the Refugee Council of Australia’s advocacy calling on
the Federal Government to implement seven practical steps to support the
people of Afghanistan and our local Afghan community.

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND

Over 300 organisations, businesses, and community groups have signed on to a joint
letter to all Federal MPs and Senators calling on them to take urgent action on the
devastating situation in Afghanistan. The Refugee Council are calling on our support
to back their urgent advocacy on the unfolding crisis in Afghanistan, including support
for Afghan refugees here in Australia and their separated families.
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9.2.10 Refugee Council of Australia - Afghanistan Advocacy (cont.)

As the Taliban takes control of Afghanistan, years of work to support the education,
safety and autonomy of Afghanistan’s women, including programs generously
supported by Australian aid, is being destroyed and many people are in fear for their
lives. They include people who have worked with Australian and other western
governments and organisations as translators, security and support staff, NGO
workers and journalists. Members of religious minorities are also at grave risk,
including the many Shia members of the Hazara community.

Civil society groups in the Asia-Pacific region, refugee-led organisations such as the
Asia Pacific Network of Refugees and members of Australia’s Afghan diaspora have
shown wide consensus on seven important and urgent actions the Australian
Government can take:

Do everything possible to evacuate people who are at grave risk within
Afghanistan, including those who have worked for or assisted the Australian
Government and Australian organisations (including the embassy, armed
forces, NGOs and media), human rights defenders and women and girls whose
lives and security are under great threat.

Urge governments in the region to keep borders open for people trying to flee
persecution in Afghanistan, including and particularly Pakistan and Iran.

Offer additional refugee resettlement places for Afghan refugees immediately,
as the Australian Government did in 2015 with 12,000 additional places for
Syrian and Iragi refugees. Canada has already announced its commitment of
20,000 additional places for Afghan refugees. Australia could match this offer
and urge other resettlement states to do the same, sending a strong and
positive message to states receiving Afghan refugees that the world is ready to
share responsibility in the protection of lives at risk.

As many people are now at risk from hunger and lack of shelter due to their
forced displacement, immediately increase Australian aid to the region to
support programs to assist people who have been displaced across borders
and, wherever possible, support organisations still offering assistance within
Afghanistan.

Welcome the extension of temporary visas of all Afghan citizens in
Australia announced by Immigration Minister Alex Hawke on 17 August. A vital
next step of thisis to ensure that people whose asylum claims have been
previously rejected be supported to submit new claims in the light of the
changed circumstances in Afghanistan.

Extend permanent protection to 4300 Afghans on temporary protection visas,
recognising that members of this group are unlikely to be able to return in safety
for many years to come and need the assurance that they can continue to live
in Australia without the constant fear of forced return.

Assist Afghan Australians, including people with temporary and permanent
protection visas, with urgent family reunion applications for relatives who are at
particular risk, as members of minorities targeted by the Taliban or people likely
to be targeted because of their connections to western nations. This should
include giving priority to finalising family reunion applications which have
previously been lodged but are waiting on a decision from the Department of
Home Affairs.
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9.2.10 Refugee Council of Australia - Afghanistan Advocacy (cont.)

ISSUES, OPTIONS AND DISCUSSION
One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that Priority is to be given to achieving the best outcomes for the municipal
community, including future generations.

As a Council in the Refugee Welcome Zone Council has made a commitment in spirit
to:

- Welcoming refugees into the community,

- Upholding the human rights of refugees,

- Demonstrating compassion for refugees and

- Enhancing cultural and religious diversity in the community.

Demonstrating Council’s support to The Refugee Council of Australia is an opportunity
to stand by this commitment. In addition, Council has a long-standing relationship with
Rural Australian Refugees (RAR), who are an informal network of regional and rural
groups supporting and advocating for refugees and people seeking asylum.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the municipal community is to be engaged in strategic planning and
strategic decision making.

Council Officers have engaged with the Strathbogie Shire’s Rural Australian for
Refugees committee and they have confirmed that they support this initiative and
Council’s advocacy.

POLICY CONSIDERATIONS

Council Plans and Policies

Our Values and 2017-21 council Plan highlight the need for openness, the highest
ethical standards and transparency.
Council Plan Goal
- To enhance community health and wellbeing and liveability
o Plan for improved community health, wellbeing and liveability
o Engage and participate with the community in Council /
Community initiatives
- To be a high performing shire
o To communicate and engage effectively with our community and
key stakeholders
o To be equitable and fair in all decision making processes
- Liveability Plan
o Stronger Together

Regional, State and National Plans and Policies

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that regional, state and national plans and policies are to be taken into
account in strategic planning and decision-making.

The Refugee Council are seeking Council to advocate for Australian Federal
Government to take practical steps including a focus on the Government’s immigration
policies to support Afghan families, specifically resettlement places, temporary visas,
temporary protection visas and family reunion applications.
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9.2.10 Refugee Council of Australia - Afghanistan Advocacy (cont.)

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that Council decisions are to be made and actions taken in accordance
with the relevant law.

The Refugee Council of Australia are urging the Federal Government to implement
seven practical steps to provide safety for people from Afghanistan. Detailed within the
seven practical steps includes initiatives for Federal Government review existing policy
direction including extending permanent protection to 4300 Afghans on temporary
protection visas and offering additional refugee resettlement places for Afghan
refugees immediately.

Conflict of Interest Declaration

All officers, and/or contractors, involved in the preparation of this report have signed a
written declaration that they do not have a conflict of interest in the subject matter of
this report.

Transparency

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the transparency of Council decisions, actions and information is to be
ensured.

The request for Council to advocate with Refugee Council of Australia to the Australian
Federal Government is put forward in this report to ensure public transparency.

FINANCIAL VIABILITY CONSIDERATIONS
One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the ongoing financial viability of the Council is to be ensured.

There is no financial commitment to Council associated with this report.

SUSTAINABILITY CONSIDERATIONS

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the economic, social and environmental sustainability of the municipal
district, including mitigation and planning for climate change risks, is to be promoted.

Economic
Economic modelling undertaken by Deloitte in 2019 suggests that increasing
Australia’s humanitarian migration intake could have a notable impact on the broader
economy. An increase in the humanitarian intake could:
- Increase the size of the Australian economy by $37.7 billion over the next
50 years.
- On average, Gross Domestic Product (GDP) could be $4.9 billion greater
annually between 2018-19 and 2067-68.
- Sustain on average an additional 35,000 full time equivalent jobs in the
Australian economy every year for the next 50 years.
- Increase private consumption, which is the best measure of consumer
welfare in the CGE model, by $18.2 billion
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9.2.10 Refugee Council of Australia - Afghanistan Advocacy (cont.)

Social

Increasing Australia’s humanitarian migrant intake will have a significant social impact.
Humanitarian migrants actively contribute to the multicultural and diverse fabric of
Australian Society.

The following social benefits derived from this proposal include:

@) sense of community — promoting social cohesion through advocacy for
the Afghan community;
(b) community health and well-being — improving the plight of refugees

Environmental

The impacts of climate change are numerous and may both trigger displacement and
worsen living conditions or hamper return for those who have already been displaced.
Limited natural resources, such as drinking water, are becoming even scarcer in many
parts of the world that host refugees. Crops and livestock struggle to survive where
conditions become too hot and dry, or too cold and wet, threatening livelihoods.

Climate change
As mentioned above the impacts on the natural environment and wide and varied as
a result of climate change.

INNOVATION AND CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT
One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is the pursuit of innovation and continuous improvement.

Advocating on behalf of The Refugee Council to our Federal Government to act and
support refugees is an opportunity for continuous improvement by making a step-
change difference to the experience of people displaced and impacted by the takeover
of Afghanistan by the Taliban.

HUMAN RIGHTS CONSIDERATIONS
Supporting the Refugee Council in advocating our Federal Government aligns with the
Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities Act 2006, including:
(i) recognition and equality before the law;
(i) right to life;
(iii) protection from torture and cruel, inhuman or degrading treatment;
(iv) freedom from forced work;
(v) freedom of movement;
(vi) privacy and reputation;
(vii) freedom of thought, conscience, religion and belief;
(viii) freedom of expression:
(ix) peaceful assembly and freedom of association;
(x) protection of families and children;
(xi) taking part in public life;
(xii) cultural rights;
(xii) property rights;
(xiii) rights to liberty and security of person; and
(xiv) fair hearing; and

The above human rights are all at risk of being impacted by the Taliban’s control in
Afghanistan and outline the need to advocate on behalf of Afghanistan and Afghan
refugees.
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9.2.10 Refugee Council of Australia - Afghanistan Advocacy (cont.)

CONCLUSION

Over 300 organisations, businesses, and community groups have signed on to a joint
letter to all Federal MPs and Senators calling on them to take urgent action on the
devastating situation in Afghanistan. The Refugee Council are calling on our support
to back their urgent advocacy on the unfolding crisis in Afghanistan, including support
for Afghan refugees here in Australia and their separated families.

ATTACHMENTS
Nil.
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9.3

INFRASTRUCTURE

9.3.1 Strathbogie Shire Council Road Management Plan Review

Author: Manager Asset Planning
Responsible Director: Director Community and Planning

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
The Strathbogie Shire Council Road Management Plan (RMP) is a document which
describes road assets within road reserves for which Council is responsible.

The document sets inspection intervals and response times as well as stating
management systems that Council will implement to ensure that responsibilities within
the Road Management Act 2004 are met.

Under the Road Management Act 2004 and in accordance with the Road Management
(General) Regulations 2016, Council must review and publish its Road Management
Plan every four years. In line with the general Council election held in October 2020,
the plan is now due for renewal.

At the June 2021 Council Meeting, Council resolved to undertake a Section 223
process in accordance with the Local Government Act 1989, calling for submissions in
relation to Council’s periodical review of the Road Management Plan.

The purpose of the consultation was to provide an opportunity for the community to
comment and provide feedback on the draft Road Management Plan, including how
effective the previous version was. This feedback is collated in this report and is
presented to Council as part of their consideration and deliberation before adopting
the final Road Management Plan.

Following the submission period, 12 submissions regarding the draft Road
Management Plan were received. Two (2) of the 12 submitters were heard in support
of their written submission. This hearing took place on 10 August 2021. A summary of
the submitters’ objections can be found further in this report.

The changes to the Plan were based on community feedback and engagement with
relevant stakeholder groups. The body of the Plan has been updated and reflects
improvements to policies and maintenance and management practices.

The Plan seeks to balance the competing influences that impact Council's level of
service - including economic, technical, social, safety and environmental influences.
In managing the local road system, Council seeks to establish a reasonable level of
service to meet the expectations of road users and the local community.

RECOMMENDATION
That Council:
1. Endorse the Road Management Plan 2021 — 2025.

2. Note that a notice of the decision will be published in the Victoria Gazette.
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9.3.1 Strathbogie Shire Council Road Management Plan Review (cont.)

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND

The purpose of this report is to seek endorsement for the amended Road Management
Plan which has been developed pursuant to the Road Management Act 2004 and
Road Management (General) Regulations 2016.

Council’'s powers and obligations as a road authority are set down in the Road
Management Act 2004 and associated regulations. A number of Codes of Practice
also guide Council’s role as a road authority especially the Code of Practice for
Operational Responsibility for Public Roads which outlines the division of
responsibilities between Council and Department of Transport (VicRoads). In
accordance with the Road Management (General) Regulations 2016, Council, as a
road authority, must conduct a review of its RMP during the same period as it is
preparing its Council Plan following a general election. This was completed earlier this
year and an amended RMP was made available for community input through Council’s
Share Strathbogie web page.

The RMP has a number of functions:

¢ Defines, in a Public Road Register, the roads Council considers are required for
public use in an integrated network and will be maintained to the defined
standards;

e [Establishes a management system for the road management functions assigned
to Council as the Road Authority for local roads;

o Bases the system on policy and operational objectives within the resources
available, and;

e Sets relevant standards for carrying out inspection, repair and maintenance
functions for the road infrastructure.

ISSUES, OPTIONS AND DISCUSSION
One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that priority is to be given to achieving the best outcomes for the municipal
community, including future generations.

Council’'s Asset Planning team undertook an internal review of the RMP with
representatives from the Operations Department. The primary focus of the review was
to assess the appropriateness of the established levels of service, taking account of
what is considered reasonable, affordable, and achievable.

Changes made to the plan include: -

¢ I|dentification of stakeholders

¢ Diagram to assist with determining who is responsible for the road

e Figures to describes the most common operational demarcation scenario found
for the arterial road network

e Provision of clearer explanations and additional definitions.

In accordance with the Act and the Regulation, the amended version of the RMP was
placed in the daily circulating newspaper calling for submissions from the general
public over a 28-day period from the date of advertisement.
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9.3.1 Strathbogie Shire Council Road Management Plan Review (cont.)

The exhibition included:

e The publication of a notice to review and amend the RMP in the Government
Gazette (on 1 July 2021);

o Copies of the amended RMP being available for viewing at Council’'s Euroa and
Nagambie Customer Service Centres;

e A webpage to view the amended RMP and provide feedback; and

e Promotion on Council’s social media channels.

At the conclusion of the exhibition period 12 submissions regarding the draft Road
Management Plan were received. Two (2) of the 12 submitters were heard in support
of their written submission. This hearing took place on 10 August 2021.

Many of the submissions focussed on requests for specific road maintenance and
updates and/or changes to specific road and intersection treatments.

The following recommendations were made to Council: -

o Remove the use of the word Paper Road

o Clarify flow chart responsibilities

¢ Include three new fire access roads

e Put more effort into Project Management and supervision of contractors

¢ Include Mitchell Shire as an abutting Shire to the Shire of Strathbogie

o Clarification needed on terms “fire access track” and “fire access roads”

¢ Improve roadside vegetation section for clarity

¢ Include section about road maintenance program including roadside spraying or
slashing

¢ Include section outlining road marking and compliance with applicable acts and
standards.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the municipal community is to be engaged in strategic planning and
strategic decision making.

Council adopted the Draft 2021 Road Management Plan to be released for community
consultation at its June meeting.

Council used www.share.strathbogie.vic.gov.au to provide the community with a copy
of the draft plan and a submission form to have their say. The community was also
able to email and post submissions.

The consultation period was open for four weeks and during this time Council ran a
communication campaign that included a media release, advertising, social media,
eNews, website content and emails seeking feedback to key stakeholders.

Overall Council received 12 submissions. Of these nine were received through the
Share Strathbogie platform, two via email and one in writing. The project achieved
290 views on Share Strathbogie platform and our social media campaign achieved a
reach of more than 1300.


http://www.share.strathbogie.vic.gov.au/
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9.3.1 Strathbogie Shire Council Road Management Plan Review (cont.)

POLICY CONSIDERATIONS

Council Plans and Policies

e Council Plan:
o Goal 2 — To sustainability manage our natural and built environment;
o Key Strategy — Protect and enhance our built environment.

¢ Asset Management Policy
o Asset renewal — is the upgrading or replacement of an existing Asset, or a
component, that restores the service capability of the Asset to its original
functional condition and performance.

¢ Asset Management Strategy
o Ensure the Shire’s infrastructure enhances efficiency for people and freight
movement, service delivery and community amenities.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that Council decisions are to be made and actions taken in accordance
with the relevant law.

Road Management Act 2004

The Road Management Act 2004 lists the roles and responsibilities of different
authorities across Victoria’s road networks. It establishes the functions and powers of
councils as the road authority for local roads.

Under section 40, councils have a statutory duty to inspect, maintain and repair public
roads. This legislation also requires councils to maintain a register of all roads for which
they are responsible. Under the Road Management Act, councils can choose to
develop a RMP that details standards or policies on how they will perform their road
management duties.

This includes:

e Service levels

e Criteria on what defects to repair

e What type of response the council will use for different defects.

Whilst, it is not compulsory for councils to develop a RMP, it can provide a defence to
civil cases brought against a council for damages related to their roads. Councils need
to comply with the standards set out in their RMP and maintain records of compliance
in order to rely on this defence. Councils that choose to have an RMP must consult
their community on it.

Local Government Act 2020

The new Local Government Act 2020 is being introduced gradually over four tranches.
At the time of writing this report, the provisions of the Local Government Act 1989
remain in place in relation to council powers over roads. Further, the requirements for
public submissions to be lodged under section 223 of the Act still remain in place.




Strathbogie Shire Council Page 124 21/09/21
Council Meeting Agenda

9.3.1 Strathbogie Shire Council Road Management Plan Review (cont.)

The following provisions of the Local Government Act 1989 are relevant and at this
stage, are continuing indefinitely: -

e Section 206(1) (Power of Councils over Roads)

e Clause 2 (Power to deviate Roads) of Schedule 10 (Powers of Councils over
Roads)

Section 207A (Submissions under section 223)

Section 223 (Right to make submissions)

Section 207B (Certain land used, or to be used for Roads to vest in Council)
Section 207D(1)(b) (Registration of titles of land affected by action concerning
roads)

e Section 207E Alterations to titles if land exchanged).

Conflict of Interest Declaration

All officers, and/or contractors, involved in the preparation of this report have signed a
written declaration that they do not have a conflict of interest in the subject matter of
this report.

Transparency

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the transparency of Council decisions, actions and information is to be
ensured.

An internal review has been completed and to continue the review process the draft
Road Management Plan will be placed on exhibition for further community feedback.

The Road Management Plan establishes a management system for the road
management functions of Council which is based on policy, operational objectives and
available resources. It is also used to establish the service standards which Council is
required to meet in the discharge of those road management functions.

FINANCIAL VIABILITY CONSIDERATIONS
One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the ongoing financial viability of the Council is to be ensured.

The current capital works and operational budgets and forward budget projections are
sufficient to maintain the standards established in the RMP.

The current Long Term Financial Plan contains forecasts for the capital investment
required to maintain roads, footpaths and road related assets to the required
standards.

SUSTAINABILITY CONSIDERATIONS

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the economic, social and environmental sustainability of the municipal
district is to be promoted.

Economic
The author of this report has considered that there are no economic implications of the
Road Management Plan.
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9.3.1 Strathbogie Shire Council Road Management Plan Review (cont.)

Social

The proposed amendments to the Road Management Plan maintains and improves
on the existing service levels and standards for the maintenance of Council’s road and
pathway infrastructure. The proposed amendments should result in positive social
impacts.

Environmental

Early efforts to create sustainable roads focused on reducing the ecological footprint
of new roads by optimising route alignment, managing storm water runoff and
controlling erosion. Best practice in sustainable roads has now moved into a second
phase of initiatives, where sustainable road construction and maintenance centres
around energy and resource efficient materials and methodologies.

Climate change

Climate change can have direct and indirect impacts on road infrastructure. The direct
impacts are due to the effects of the environment, chiefly rainfall and temperature.
Rainfall changes can alter moisture balances and influence pavement deterioration.
Temperature can affect the aging of bitumen resulting in an increase in embrittlement
of the surface seals that represent more than 90% of the rural sealed roads within the
Municipality. Embrittlement of the bitumen causes the surface to crack, with a
consequent loss of waterproofing of the surface seal. The result is that surface water
can enter the pavement causing potholing and fairly rapid loss of surface condition.
More frequent reseal treatments will amend the problem, but at a cost to Council.
Changes in temperature and rainfall patterns can interact where higher temperatures
increase cracking, which compounds the effects of increased rainfall.

The indirect impacts of climate change on roads are due to the effects on the location
of population and human activity altering the demand for roads.

HUMAN RIGHTS CONSIDERATIONS

The Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities Act 2006 is a consideration when
reporting to Council. The author of this report considers that the recommendation does
not limit any human rights under the Victorian Charter of Human Rights and
Responsibilities Act 2006.

CONCLUSION

Council is required to undertake a review of the RMP in consideration of section 9 of
the Road Management (General) Regulations 2016 after each general election and
during the same period as it is preparing its council plan. An internal review and a
broad community engagement has been undertaken on the draft Road Management
Plan 2021-2025.

It is recommended that the Road Management Plan 2021-2025 is accepted with an
implementation date of 30 September 2021.

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment 1: Consultation Response

Attachment 2: Road Management Plan 2021-2025 version 7 — Draft 4 to become final
version once approved with updated date on cover page
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ATTACHMENT 1: Consultation Response

Request . Officer
to speak ST ST Response
1. DELWP via NO The Department would like to provide the following comments regarding the draft plan:
email

Section 1.6 Glossary of Terms:

The document defines: “Unused Road Reserve or Paper Road” as “A road reserve that The term ‘Paper

exists on paper but does not contain a physical road”. Road’ removed
and definition

DELWP Comment: The plan does not refer anywhere to “Paper Road” and we suggest amended

this term be removed. “Unused Road” as defined under the Land Act 1958, “means a road
or any part of a road which is the subject of a notice under section 400(1)”. Scheduling of
all or part of a road under this section means that DELWP may issue an agricultural
licence under the Land Act 1958.

Section 4 Demarcation of Responsibility

The flow chart on Page 9 could be seen as misleading to the public because of the No changes to
definition (provided in your glossary) for unused road. DELWP is only responsible for flow chart
administering unused road Licences under the Land Act 1958 over unused roads. required due to
DELWP are of the opinion that all other management requirements (including access) of the amended
unused roads (whether licenced or not) fall under the “care and management” of Council, definition for

in accordance with section 205 of the Local Government Act 1989. “Unused Road”

While nothing in the Road Management Act 2004 can be construed as requiring that a
road which is specified to be an unused road under section 400 must be opened to the
public or maintained to any standard, DELWP believes that section 205 of the Local
Government Act 1989 makes Council responsible for the care and management of all
Public Highways under Common Law on Crown land. Reiterating above, DELWP is only
responsible for the management of the Licence and Licensee.
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buses the road needs to be widened to reduce the huge clouds of dust that cover our
houses, washing, and we breathe in. We have to refrain from having our doors and
windows open from spring to winter to minimize the dust inside.

2. Strathbogie No One of the roles of the Council's Emergency Management Officer position is to provide General
Shire Council administrative support to the Municipal Fire Planning Sub Committee (MFPSC) and comments have
Emergency convene weekly catchup meetings with the CFA Group Officers and the CFA's Strathbogie | been forward to
Management Catchment Officer to discuss issues of concern. Council’s Asset
Officer Planning and
| have recently completed inspections of existing fire access roads accompanied in some Operations
instances by the CFA Group Officers from Euroa and Violet Town. The former Municipal teams to action
Fire Management Planning Committee (prior to 1st December 2020) had discussed the
inclusion of some additional fire access tracks in the Fire Plan and a recent weekly
meeting of the CFA Group Officers including the Strathbogie CFA Catchment Officer
endorsed the following new fire access roads for consideration by the Council in the Road
Management Plan.
1. Unnamed Fire Access from Arcadia Two Chain Road to Frosts Road 1630m Miepoll -
length 1630m
2.Sugarloaf Road from Sheans Creek Road 3415 to end of road 9032m Kithbrook length
4900m
3. Wakenshaws Road from Polly McQuinns Road 98 to Coach Road 2765m Strathbogie
length 2667m
As indicated in the proposed Road Management Plan, fire access tracks are only required
to be trafficable during the declared fire season such that minimal maintenance is
generally required which typically would include trimming of low branches and grading or
otherwise filling in some ruts/larger potholes which may have developed.
3. General No Baxters Rd Goulburn Weir desperately needs a good layer of gravel put down and rolled. The general
submission comment has
been forward to
Council’'s
Operations team
to action
4. General No In regards to roads in Euroa that need improvement one is Birkett Street from Branjee The general
submission Street to Drysdale Road. Due to the volume of traffic especially semi trailers and school comment has

been forward to
Council’s Asset
Planning team to
action
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Making the road better will only make more traffic not what locals need. It's dust in summer
travels for kms over the homes and farms in summer. | have video over our farm. They
travel onto the old Hume without stopping and myself and family members have been run
off the road.

On long weekends I've seen 20 plus cars and trailers trying to get back on the Hume
taking 1/2 hour or more as the traffic is moving thick back to Melbourne and travelling at
110 kms.

The road is potholes plus at the moment. Big gravel trucks run on this road nonstop and
drive fast. | hope no one is killed before something is done, it would be better if they could
get on the Hume near Euroa.

5. General No Any time there is rain Wormangal-Wahring Rd turns to mush and despite slowing to 20-30 | General
submission km/h my all wheel drive still slides and locks up with lights lit up all over the dash. comments have
been forward to
| have stood on the side of the road many times watching the school bus lock up and or Council’'s Asset
skid as it tries to stop to let my kids off. Our car gets so filthy every single trip that trying to | Planning and
get in and out of the car without covering our clothes in mud which dries to white is near Operations
impossible. When the local primary school uniform is black my kids end up turning up at teams to action
school looking filthy each morning despite being dressed in freshly washed clothes.
The rest of the year the road releases a thick white dust when driven on. This covers every
surface in our house and with my husband as an asthmatic | spend hours wiping surfaces
each week. Once again the bus stop becomes a dangerous environment as we can’t
breathe easily for a minute or two as each vehicle goes past while waiting at the stop.
The road is used by numerous trucks travelling at 200km/h all year round but more
frequently during harvest time.
| would love to see the road properly formed and covered in bitumen to make it safer and
healthier for all the local residents. While there are only a small number of houses on the
road the number of trucks and farm machinery travelling on this road greatly exceeds that
number.
6. General No Look at local traffic only on Mansfield-Longwood Rd. It has become the bypass of Euroa. General
submission Traffic move on that road at a 100km plus. comments have

been forward to
Council’s Asset
Planning and
Operations
teams to action
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7. General No 1. Formalise traffic management at intersection of Binney St and Railway St with a small The general
submission roundabout comment has
been forward to
2. Modify drainage on N side of Binney St between Brock St and Bury Street (nearly need | Council’'s Asset
a 4x4 to access between road and footpath at times) Planning team to
action
8. General No Turning circle required at the end of Fleming road, Arcadia South The general
submission comment has
been forward to
Council’s Asset
Planning team to
action
9. General Yes Thank you for the opportunity to submit our points of awareness and concern. We The general
submission understand that Strathbogie Shire has been, since the previous Councillors, prior to 2020 comments have

election, are on somewhat of a mission to improve the roads of their various classes in the
Strathbogie Shire this is very commendable, we have withessed it often and more in depth
when we had to wait for machinery to be do their work.

This is a good start, but the quality of the work does not seem to be of any sort of high nor
enduring standard, you have 20-40-100yr standards on roads keep to it. A lot more effort
into Project Management and Supervision on behalf of the Shire’s Supervising body
seems to be greatly needed. An example of this is the ‘below par’ effort is the corner of
Livingstone Street and Ewings Rd Avenel. To the observer, over the greatly extended time
in which the works were going on, the project appeared to be poorly managed and
executed, lacked supervision from the relevant authority and the work done is not
seamless to its surrounds, the lines were in the wrong place, new lumps and bumps on the
new road, the shoulders were and still are in a very poor condition, to access
footpaths/driveways it is unpleasant to put it mildly and messy.

Then a big disconnect from the ‘works’ start and end to the existing roads, Queen Street
drainage has not been addressed, the many side roads that were used over the extended
period due to these works are shoulders damaged, potholes and uneven surfaces then
throwing some gravel on the area may have looked good but the rain sorted that out in
less than an hour!

been forward to
Council’s Project
Delivery, Asset
Planning and
Operations
teams to action
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Seriously it is a badly done job leaving a mess all about the greater project area. Ewings
road; in total road shoulders are appalling, it is well used and hazardous. Children, Adults,
cyclists walk along this road and then to cross the railway line is just a hazard as they have
to walk on the road to cross the railway line, go figure.. it is a major access road into and
about Avenel.

Very recently, as in this week, grading works on Hovell St in Avenel occurred but totally
pointless as there appears to be no drainage at all, so runoff is the road, it is a mess, this
same situation too is obvious in Vearings Rd.

Fergusons Lane the same, waste of time with poorly conducted works. Also Vearings Rd
Bank Street intersection is very deceptive when travelling north, Bank street is not easily
seen and the signage is not well placed. Footpaths: Make them at least 1200mm wide,
Granitic sand is fine but, it needs to have a correctly set up base and materials worked in
and rolled well, otherwise, as all can see, it deteriorates quickly and where it has been
done well, quite some years ago, these footpaths still have a solid base so the upkeep if
done correctly should be minimal if done well, once again pointing to a management and
supervision problem.

The Avenel to Seymour road, who is in care of this? It is not in good shape, ARTC caused
quite some damage but not all of it, that goes back to badly executed work practices,
ignorance of how to do it should not be a mitigating circumstance and once again points to
management and supervision the lack of, workers and contractors seem to only do what
they feel they can get away with, this is not good work practice or direction, nor have high
standards obviously been explained, put it in the contract, redoing a bad job badly does
not mean that it is fixed!

The intersection of Mangalore Road over the railway line at Mangalore heading to Avenel
is shameful, check it out, fix it! Why is Station Road Mangalore not fully sealed? The
amount of traffic through this area is increasing not decreasing. Tree ‘sorting’ on the road
verges main or domestic roads, one tree is close to falling across Livingstone street onto
Pioneer Reserve rd more rain and wind and it will topple. But someone will trim some
branches of it and it will be left to fall another day. Take old dying falling leaning trees out
from areas of public space and replace them with new ones, same sort | don’t care but the
romance of old trees dying gracefully is not a concept | am comfortable with neither is the
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idea that people can be badly maimed or killed by same, take them out plant trees that will
not cause harm.

For your information Mitchell Shire is also an abutting Shire to the Shire of Strathbogie Corrected
paragraph 4:1 of the Draft Strategy. There is a lot more to be said in the greater area of
Strathbogie Shire and | would be happy to discuss it.
10. General Yes The purpose of my submission is to recommend the Council install signs on non- The general
submission maintained council roads to that effect and that the road may be impassable. Near our comment has

family farm is Airstrip Road which on Google Maps and car GPS displays runs from
Drysdale Rd north to Wood Rd as shown, Airstrip Road is also shown on the Shire’s Road
Register, but notes only 545 metres north of Drysdale Rd is maintained.

| believe the balance isn’'t maintained because Council feel it doesn’t service a Council
asset or ratepayer. | assume Airstrip Road is an Unsurfaced Road, (page 14 Strathbogie
RMP 27/04/2021) and Council is not obliged to undertake Maintenance works however it is
on the Register of Public Roads contrary to par 4.11. | don’t believe it is an unused road
reserve as per par 4.5 and 4.9 which the Council also accepts no responsibility for, under
the Act.

These unused roads reserves are also not included in the Road Register. (Submission
included photo taken on June 27 2021 in Airstrip Road at the intersection with Wood
Road). The installation of the Give Way sign suggests someone believes the road has
more than limited access. My point is that the general public on viewing Google Maps or
their GPS could reasonably assume they could safely use that road. As that section is not
maintained the road is impassable in winter and challenging in the dry.

(Submission included photo taken on June 27 2021 looking south in Airstrip Road at the
intersection with Wood Road). To ensure the Council shows a duty of care to road users,
signs should be installed at each end of the non-maintained road saying the road is not
maintained. | assume there are similar situations elsewhere in the shire and these should
also be addressed.

It is disappointing on reading par 1.5.1 and 1.5.2 that in part states that “the three most
damaging effects of road construction and management are noise, dust and vibrations”.
No mention is made of the importance of road reserves as wildlife corridors or the need to
preserve and revegetate indigenous trees and understorey.

been forward to
Council’s Asset
Planning team to
action

Forms part of
Council’s
Roadside
Management
Plan, Roadside
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Also, the management of weeds doesn’t seem to be addressed. Our road reserves also
carry evidence of our First Nations prior occupation of the country, i.e.. scar trees and yet
this history and its preservation isn’t referenced in the draft plan.

First Nations artefacts are protected by state law,
https://www.aboriginalvictoria.vic.gov.au/fact-sheet-aboriginal-scar-trees and | assume
someone in Council is tasked with that responsibility.

Maintenance —
Spraying and
Slashing Policy.

Managed by
Planning team

11. CFA
Catchment
Officer

No

As the CFA Catchment Officer for Strathbogie, | thank you for the opportunity to review
your DRAFT Roadside Management Plan, I've only a couple of comments to make, the
majority of which relate to Fire Safety/Prevention.

* “Fire Access Track” is this term in reference to tracks that are used for predominantly
firefighting vehicle access, as opposed to designated “Fire Access Roads” under the Fire
Access Road Subsidy Scheme (FARSS funded) to which there are FARSS funded roads
within the Shire of Strathbogie i.e. Bonds Lane, Weibye Track etc. FARSS funded roads
have a limited maintenance requirement.

» Roadside Vegetation, This section is a little confusing in relation to the statement “A road
authority does not have a statutory or a common law duty to maintain, inspect or repair
land on any public highway that is not a constructed path or roadway (section 107 of the
Act)”.

Should the plan not mention the roadside maintenance program of the shire including the
roadside spraying or slashing for road safety reasons including fuel management on
roadsides, or is this outside the scope of the document.

Lastly, would a brief section detailing the Shires position on road markings, that being
compliance with applicable Acts and Standards, be referenced in the Road Management
Plan to clearly articulate the Council’s position on road markings.

General
comments have
been forward to
Council’'s Asset
Planning and
Operations
teams to action

Forms part of
Roadside
Maintenance —
Spraying and
Slashing Policy

Reference is
made for use of
the relevant
standards
throughout the
RMP
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12. General
submission

| am writing in regards to the Draft Road Management Plan, | have two roads to report.
These roads are Harrington Rd from Pine Lodge Rd to Violet Town Boundary Rd and
Chanters Rd between Violet Town Boundary Rd to Wallis Rd.

These two roads are used extensively as new owners of land on either side of the road
have increased the traffic . Also the Violet Town Boundary Rd, between Chanters Rd and
Icks Rd, which needs repairs. | would like to meet some of the staff to explain these roads
re water over them, and culverts and road repairs and explain the new owner's direction
compared to the past owners.

General
comments have
been forward to
Council’s Asset
Planning and
Operations
teams to action
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Strathbogie
Shire Council

Road
Management
HE

rathbogie
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1 GENERAL

1.1 Distribution & Availability

The Director Community & Planning shall be responsible for: -
e Control of this RMP,
e Distribution of the RMP, and the
e Control and issue of any amendments

Copies of the RMP shall be held by: -
e Manager Asset Planning,
e Manager Operations,
e Council Libraries, and
e Team Leader Community Relations

This RMP is available at the following locations and may be viewed, free of charge, by the public
during office hours each working day: -

Municipal Offices Nagambie Customer Service
109A Binney Street, 293 High Street,

Euroa, 3666 Nagambie, 3608

Phone: 03 5795 0000 Phone: 1800 065 993

Mon — Fri. 9.00 am to 5.00 pm Mon — Fri 10.00 am to 4.00 pm

The RMP is also available on Council’'s website at www.strathbogie.vic.gov.au

12 Amendment Register
Document Control

Rev No. Date Revision Details
Draft 31/08/04
Ver 1.0 10/09/04 Version 1: Public exhibition
Ver 1.0 16/11/04 Version 1: Adopted
Ver 2.0 11/07/05 Version 2: Public exhibition
Ver 2.0 20/09/05 Version 2: Adopted
Ver 3.0 04/08/06 Version 3: Public exhibition
Ver 3.0 15/05/07 Version 3: Adopted
Ver 4.0 19/06/12 Version 4: Adopted
Ver 5.0 Feb 2014 Version 5: Adopted
Ver 6.0 April 2017 Version 6: Adopted
Ver 7.0 June 2021 Version 7: Public exhibition
Ver 7.0 Version 7: Adopted
1.3 Delegations

The Chief Executive Officer has delegated the various functions under the Road Management Act
2004 (the Act) and the Road Management (General) Regulations 2016 to the respective officers
of Council detailed in an Instrument of Sub-Delegation. This allows Council, through its various
members of staff to respond quickly to technical and administrative matters under the RMP.
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1.4 Climate Change Impact on Pavement Maintenance and Rehabilitation

Climate change can have direct and indirect impacts on road infrastructure. The direct impacts
are due to the effects of the environment; chiefly rainfall and temperature. Rainfall changes can
alter moisture balances and influence pavement deterioration. Temperature can affect the aging
of bitumen resulting in an increase in embrittlement of the surface seals that represent more than
90% of the rural sealed roads within the Municipality. Embrittlement of the bitumen causes the
surface to crack, with a consequent loss of waterproofing of the surface seal. The result is that
surface water can enter the pavement causing potholing and fairly rapid loss of surface condition.
More frequent reseal treatments will amend the problem, but at a cost to Council. Changes in
temperature and rainfall patterns can interact where higher temperatures increase cracking, which
compounds the effects of increased rainfall.

The indirect impacts of climate change on roads are due to the effects on the location of
population and human activity altering the demand for roads.

Road infrastructure is a long-lived investment, with roads typically having design lives of 20 to 40
years and bridges of 100 years and an understanding of the expected impacts of future climate
change by Councils’ Manager Asset Planning and Manager Operations could generate
considerable cost savings in the long term.

15 Environmental Impact on Pavement Maintenance and Rehabilitation

1.5.1 Environmental Issues Related to Road Management

Roads can have both positive and negative influences on people and the environment. On the
positive side roads provide the opportunity of mobility and transport for people and goods. On the
negative side roads occupy land resources, form barriers to animals and can also cause adverse
impacts on natural water resources and discharge areas.

The three most damaging effects of road construction and management are noise, dust and
vibrations. Noise mainly occurs during road construction phases, but it can also occur to a lesser
degree during maintenance operations and the condition of roads has an effect on noise level, for
example if a road is in poor condition and cars are traveling fast, this can cause more noise than if
the road is in good condition. Dust is created during the construction and rehabilitation of gravel
roads and unbound aggregate layers. Excess dust production can be treated by a range of
means such as watering, the use of alternative materials and by using dust binders near houses.
Vibration can be caused by uneven road surfaces and can pose significant impacts and problems
to transported goods and structures close to the source.

1.5.2 Reducing the environmental impact

Early efforts to create sustainable roads focused on reducing the ecological footprint of new roads
by optimising route alignment, managing storm water runoff and controlling erosion. Best practice
in sustainable roads has now moved into a second phase of initiatives, where sustainable road
construction and maintenance centres around energy and resource efficient materials and
methodologies.

1.6 Glossary of Terms
Ancillary Area An area designated as an ancillary area by the co-ordinating road
authority under section 18 of the Act.
Arterial Roads Freeways, Highways & Declared Main Roads which are managed

by the State Government through the Department of Transport
(DoT) and Rural Roads Victoria (formally VicRoads).

Code of Practice Code of Practice for Road Management Plans (13t September
2004). Supporting document to the legislation, which provides
practical guidance to Road Authorities in the making of RMPs.

Condition Inspections Inspections conducted to assess the life of the road and footpath
network and to prioritise major works.
Consent Applications Applications made by other Road Authorities and Utilities

companies to perform works on Council-managed roads.
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Co-ordinating Road The road authority which has coordination functions as determined

Authority in accordance with section 36 of the Act.

Fire Access Track A track that primarily exists to allow access for fire fighting
vehicles.

"Force Majeure" Clause | A clause included in the RMP that describes the conditions under
which a Council can suspend its maintenance and inspection
responsibilities under the RMP due to the occurrence of events
outside their control.

Defect A localised failure in an asset, for example, a pothole in a road
surface or a joint displacement in a concrete footpath.

Intervention Level The size or severity of a defect at which a mandatory response is
required. The response could be to either repair the defect or
make it safe.

Manager Asset Road Authority staff responsible for the management and

Planning & Manager maintenance of roads as determined by the classification system

Operations within the Act, and as contained in the roads register.

Municipal Road A public road within the municipality where Council is the

designated Co-ordinating Road Authority.

Non road infrastructure | Includes infrastructure in, on, under, or over a road, which is not
road infrastructure.

The RMA provides examples of non-road infrastructure that
includes gas pipes, water and sewerage pipes, cables, electricity
poles, bus shelters, rail infrastructure, public telephones,
mailboxes, roadside furniture and fences erected by utilities or
providers of public transport.

Other Roads Includes roads in State reserves and roads on private property.
Council is not responsible for the care and maintenance of these
roads.

Pathway A footpath, bicycle path or other area constructed or developed by

a responsible road authority for use by members of the public other
than with a motor vehicle. Does not include any path which has
not been constructed by a responsible road authority; or which
connects to other land.

Proactive Inspections Inspections performed as part of a scheduled program, according
to the hierarchy of roads, which is based on the road classification,
volume of traffic etc.

Public Highway Any area of land that is a highway for the purposes of the common
law.
Public Road A road that is reasonably required for general public use.

Public Road Register A list of public roads within the municipality where Council is the
designated Co-ordinating Road Authority. Council is required to
keep a register under section 19 of the Act.

Reactive Inspections Inspections performed in response to a complaint about the
condition of the road, or report of injury and/or property damage to
a member of the public.

Response Time The maximum time allowed before a response is required on a
defect that is above intervention level. The response could be to
either repair the defect or make it safe. Response time is
measured from the time the defect is inspected by Council.

Responsible Road The road authority which has operational functions as determined

Authority in accordance with section 37 of the Act.

Road Includes any public highway; any ancillary area; or any land
declared to be a road under section 11 of the Act.

Road Infrastructure The infrastructure which forms part of a roadway, pathway or

shoulder, including: -
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— Structures forming part of the roadway, pathway or shoulder;
and the road-related infrastructure.

— Materials from which a roadway, pathway or shoulder is made;
such as asphalt, bitumen, gravel, lane markers and lines.

Road Management Act
(the Act)

Road Management Act 2004 (Vic)

The Act provides a statutory framework for the management of the
road network in Victoria.

Road Management

A document developed by Councils to assist in the management of

Plan (RMP) their road related duties and responsibilities, as defined in the Act.
Road Related Infrastructure which is installed by the relevant road authority for
Infrastructure road related purposes to: —

— Facilitate the operation or use of the roadway or pathway
— Support or protect the roadway or pathway.

Examples: Traffic islands, traffic management, signage, traffic
control sign, traffic light, kerb and channel, a bridge,
culvert or ford, road drain or embankment, a noise wall,
gate, post or board installed on the road reserve.

Road reserve

All of the area of land that is within the boundaries of a road.

Roadside

Roadside means any land that is within the boundaries of a road
(other than the shoulders of the road) which is not a roadway or a
pathway and includes the land on which any vehicle crossing or
pathway which connects from a roadway or pathway on a road to
other land has been constructed.

Regional Roads
Victoria (RRV) —
formally VicRoads

Regional Roads Victoria (RRV) was established in September
2018, to respond to community needs, focus on regional issues
and improve the condition of regional roads. On 1 July 2019, RRV
and VicRoads came together with Public Transport Victoria (PTV)
and the Department of Transport, to form a new, integrated
Department of Transport.

Sealed Road

A road within a road reserve that has been sealed with bitumen or
asphalt.

Shared Path

A pathway that caters for both pedestrians and bicycles that has
been constructed on a road reserve where Council is the
responsible road authority or on land managed by Council that has
unrestricted public access. Excludes the following: —

— ‘on-road’ bike lanes
— paths or tracks on land that Council does not manage
— unconstructed paths or tracks.

Traffic Lane

The part of a sealed or unsealed road designed to carry through
traffic, excludes parking lanes, shoulders and table drains.

Unformed Road

A track within a road reserve that has not been formed or surfaced.

Unsealed Road

A road within a road reserve that has been formed and surfaced
with crushed rock or gravel, but not sealed with bitumen or asphalt.

Unsurfaced Road or
Limited Access Road

A road or track within a road reserve that has been formed
(shaped) but not surfaced. These roads have limited access and
are suitable for dry weather only.

Unused Road

A road becomes an unused road when Council has given notice to
DELWP that it considers that the road is not required for public
traffic and is an unused road.
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2 INTRODUCTION

2.1 Background

This Road Management Plan (RMP) is a document which describes road assets within road
reserves for which Council is responsible.

The document sets inspection intervals and response times as well as stating management systems
which this Council will implement to ensure that its responsibilities within the Act are met.

For Council to show that it has satisfied its duty of care to road users, it is required to demonstrate
that it has in place a reasonable regime for inspecting the road network to discover defects and a
reasonable regime for planning and implementing repairs to overcome those defects. These
aspects of inspection and response are dealt with in Section 5 and are the key components of this
RMP.

Implementation and management of the RMP is consistent with Council’s various strategic and
corporate documents and policies.

2.2 Purpose

In accordance with Sections 1, 49 and 50 of the Act, the purposes of this RMP are: -

e To establish a management system for the road management functions of the Council
which is based on policy and operational objectives and available resources;

e  To specify the relevant standards in relation to the discharge of duties in the performance of
those road management functions; and

e To establish good road asset management practices focussed on delivering optimal
outcomes while having regard to affordability, available resources, and the policies,
priorities and strategies of governments and road authorities.

This RMP details the management system that the Council proposes to implement in the
discharge of its duty to inspect, maintain and repair public roads for which the Council is
responsible.

2.3 Key Stakeholders
The RMP is intended to demonstrate to stakeholders that Council is managing its roads and the
road related assets responsibly. The key stakeholders include: -

e  Community - as users of services that rely on sound asset management

e  Councillors - as stewards of Council’s infrastructure assets

e  State & Federal Governments as funding providers for road infrastructure development

. Utilities / Developers - as infrastructure providers

e  Employees — responsible for managing Council’s infrastructure assets

e  Contractors / Suppliers - as service providers

e  Emergency agencies (Police, Fire, Ambulance, VIC SES).

2.4 Vision and Strategy

The RMP forms an integral part of the Council’s Asset Management Strategy and recognises the
linkage between the effective management of road assets and the standard of maintenance
outlined in this RMP. The overall objective of asset management (AM) is to ensure that Council’s
road infrastructure continues to provide sustainable, safe and economic service. Council has
adopted an Asset Management Policy with the objective to set the broad framework for
undertaking asset management in a structured and co-ordinated way.
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2.5 Review of This Road Management Plan

251 Audit

A program of auditing, using both internal and external auditors, is regularly conducted for the
purposes of ensuring that all the management systems in place are delivering the levels of service
adopted by Council for its road network assets. The outcomes of these audits shall be reported to
Council’'s Audit and Risk Committee and then through to Council.

Council supervisors undertake auditing of completed works, both maintenance and capital, to
ensure that the works are being delivered to the specified standards. Council also undertakes
condition audits for the purposes of reviewing asset condition and meeting statutory obligations.

2.5.2 Road Management Plan Review

This RMP will be reviewed in accordance with section 11(1) of the Road Management (General)
Regulations 2016 and will be conducted every four years in line with Council elections.

The review will consider the levels of service for road infrastructure on public roads maintained by
this Council. Particular attention will be given to managing the demand for asset maintenance
with the proposed level of resources made available through the Council budget.

2.5.3 Amendment

If the adopted level of service, i.e. tolerable level of defect and/or rectification response time, is not
achievable, the level of maintenance effort may need to be varied. The level of service, the
anticipated quantity of works and Council’'s budget and resources would have to be reviewed and
a new RMP proposed.

Any revised RMP would be subject to the consultation and approval processes as detailed in
Section 54 of the Act.

3 LISTING OF ROAD INFRASTRUCTURE

3.1 Classification of Infrastructure

Council has adopted hierarchies which provides for the classification of assets of a similar nature.
The objective of a classification is to group assets based on factors including, but not limited to: -

e Type and volume of use
e Risk factors
e Standards of construction and maintenance.

Details of Council’s road asset hierarchies are included in Appendix .

3.2 Asset Registers

Council maintains asset registers of roads, roadways, pathways, road infrastructure or road
related infrastructure for which Council is the responsible road authority.

3.2.1 Reqister of Public Roads

A 'public road' is a road reasonably required for general public use as defined in Section 17 of the
Act. Section 19 of the Act places a mandatory requirement that a road authority keeps a register
of public roads. The purpose of the Register is to list those road assets which will be maintained

by Council in accordance with this RMP. The Act provides guidance as to what must be included
in the Road Register, which includes: -

e Road name

e Date the road became a public road (if after 1 July 2004)
e Date the road ceases to be a public road

o Classification, if any

o Reference to any plan or instrument that fixes or varies the boundaries of the public road
(if made after 1 July 2004)
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e Any ancillary areas

o Reference to any arrangement under which management function is transferred to or from
another road authority

e Any matter required to be included by the relevant road minister under section 22 of the
Act.

Council’s register is held as a database. A copy of the Register is available for public viewing at
the Municipal Offices. The mandatory information to be kept is listed in Schedule 1 of the Act.

A hard copy record of the location of road assets is kept in the Council Publications File in the
Records Department. The Road Register is available to the public for inspection at no charge at
the Municipal Offices, 109A Binney Street, Euroa, during normal business hours. lItis also
available for inspection anytime through Council’s website.

3.2.2 Bridges & Major Culverts Asset Register

The register lists all bridges and major culverts for which Council is the responsible road authority.
The register is held as a database and includes the following information: -

e Location
e Dimensions
o Age

e Description of type.

3.2.3 Footpaths Asset Reqgister

The register lists footpaths for which Council is the responsible road authority. The register is held
as a database and includes the following information: -

e Location
e Materials
e Dimensions.

3.2.4 Car Parks Asset Register

Both on and off street car parks are maintained by this Council. Maintenance requirements for car
park pavements, drains, signs and line markings are the same as Access Roads as described in
this RMP.

4 DEMARCATION OF RESPONSIBILITY

There are a number of areas where Municipal roads interface with roads or railways which are
maintained by other authorities such as neighbouring Municipalities, RRV, Parks Victoria,
DELWP, Goulburn Valley Water, Goulburn-Murray Water, CFA and the Railways.

There may be a differing level of service arising at this interface, due to the change in the way
roads are managed by the various road authorities.

The diagram below outlines the “tests” used to help determine who is responsible for a road.
Where it is a public road, that body becomes the coordinating road authority.
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4.1 Bordering Municipalities

In the instance of boundary roads with other municipalities the responsibility is allocated according
to an agreement between municipalities. The agreement allocates routine maintenance
responsibility split on an equitable cost basis. Capital works, reseals costs are shared equitably
by both municipalities. The Strathbogie Shire Council borders: -

¢ Benalla Rural City to the east

e Campaspe Shire to the north-west

e City of Greater Bendigo to the west

e City of Greater Shepparton to the north
e Mansfield Shire to the south-east

¢ Mitchell Shire to the south-west

e Murrindindi Shire to the south.

4.2 Arterial Roads

The operational responsibility for arterial roads is shared between Council and RRV. While RRV
is the co-ordinating road authority for arterial roads, Council is the responsible road authority for
aspects of the arterial road behind the kerb and/or channel such as footpaths.

The figure below, based on the Operational Responsibility for Public Roads Code of Practice,
describes the most common operational demarcation scenario found for the arterial road network.
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A State Road may be a Freeway, a Declared Arterial Road or a Non-Declared Arterial
State Road.
Freeways in the Strathbogie Shire are: -

e Hume Freeway
e Goulburn Valley Freeway — Sections 1 and 3.

Highways in the Strathbogie Shire are: -
¢ Goulburn Valley Highway (Mitchellstown Road to Wahring)

Declared Arterial Roads in the Strathbogie Shire are: -

Official Name Local Name

Avenel Nagambie Road Avenel Nagambie Road
Dookie Violet Town Road Dookie Violet Town Road
Euroa Mansfield Road Euroa Mansfield Road
Euroa Main Road Euroa Main Road

(the old Hume Highway through Euroa) (Clifton St/Tarcombe St in town)

Euroa Shepparton Road Euroa Shepparton Road

Heathcote Nagambie Road Heathcote Nagambie Road
(Vickers Road in town)

Murchison Violet Town Road Murchison Violet Town Road
(Urmston Street in town)

Wahring Murchison East Road Wahring Murchison East Road

Under section 40(4) of the Act, the road authority’s statutory duty to inspect does not
apply to any roadside that has not been developed by a road authority for use by the
public as a roadway or pathway, nor to non-road infrastructure which is installed in the
road reserve; and under section 107 the road authority does not have a statutory duty or
a common law duty to maintain, inspect or repair the roadside of any public highway
(whether or not a public road).

4.3 Council Responsibility

The Council has the power to determine the standard to which it will construct, inspect,
maintain and repair roadways as set out in the Act. The Council is responsible for
implementing processes and systems to ensure compliance with those standards.
Section 205 of the Local Government Act 1989, which is still in forced despite the
introduction of the Local Government Act 2020, also empowers Council with
responsibility for the care and management of local roads within its responsibility.

4.4 Road-user Responsibility

Road user obligations are set out in Section 17A of the Road Safety Act 1986 (as
amended by the Road Management Act) and summarised below.

A person who drives a motor vehicle on a highway must drive in a safe manner having
regard to all relevant factors including (but not limited to) the: -

e physical characteristics of the road
e prevailing weather conditions
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o level of visibility

e condition of the motor vehicle

e prevailing traffic conditions

e relevant road laws, advisory signs and roadworks restrictions
¢ physical and mental condition of the driver.

Note: The above factors are relevant to section 106 of the Road Management Act 2004
(Matters which may be considered to constitute contributory negligence).

A road user other than a person driving a motor vehicle must use a highway in a safe
manner having regard to all the relevant factors.

A road user must have regard to the rights of other road users and the community, taking
reasonable care to avoid conduct that may: -

e endanger the safety and welfare of other road users
¢ damage any infrastructure on the road reserve
¢ harm the environment of the road reserve.

4.5 Crown Land (Other than Road Reserves)

A number of roads are located on crown land managed by the Department of
Environment Land Water and Planning, and Parks Victoria. Where these roads do not
service a Council asset or ratepayer, the road may be the responsibility of the relevant
Department. In some instances, a road may pass through the crown land and Council
may remain the responsible authority.

There are many free hold / private properties that are only accessed via roads located on
crown land or via unused road reserves, and Council is under no obligation to provide or
maintain access to those lots. There are also hundreds of kilometres of unused road
reserves throughout the Shire that Council accepts no responsibility for, under the Act.
These road reserves are also not included in the Road Register.

4.6 Rail

Road authorities and rail infrastructure managers are required under the Rail Safety Act
2006 to identify and assess risks to safety associated with road/rail interfaces and enter
into a Safety Interface Agreement (SIA) for the purpose of managing those risks. The
parties to the agreement recognise the need for a collaborative approach towards the
management of risk associated with road/rail interfaces.

The SIA defines the interface boundaries between the parties, outlines demarcation at
road/rail interfaces and identifies stakeholder responsibility. For defined interface points,
responsibilities and demarcation boundaries applicable to the SIA, refer to the Safety
Interface Agreement for Level Crossing and Grade Separated Interfaces Located within
Strathbogie Shire Council.

4.7 Utility Services

The relevant service provider including water, gas, sewer, phone or power is responsible
for the maintenance of its infrastructure located within the road reserve.
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4.8 Private Roads

Council has a role in supervising the construction of private subdivisional works that
occur within the municipality. This ensures that assets are constructed to an appropriate
standard. Roads which are constructed as part of a subdivision are generally private
roads until such time as the Statement of Compliance is finalised at which point, they
become public roads.

There are some roads (and road related assets) which remain privately owned and
maintained. Private Roads and other roads which are not available to the general public
are excluded from this plan. These roads are not the responsibility of Council to inspect,
repair or maintain. However, Council may enter into an agreement with an owner,
leaseholder or relevant authority to carry out works. These roads are not listed in
Council’s Register of Public Roads.

49 Unused and Unformed Roads

All unused road reserves and unformed roads within the municipality are excluded from
the inspection and defect response requirements of the RMP. Council is not obliged to
undertake any of the following: -

e Pro-active inspections
e Maintenance works

o Capital renewals

o Capital improvements.

Unused road reserves and unformed roads are not included in the Register of Public
Roads.

410 Fire Access Tracks

In addition to Municipal Roads, Council also undertakes periodic maintenance on
nominated tracks to allow access for fire fighting vehicles. These fire access tracks are
not maintained to a standard suitable for public access and are excluded from the
inspection and defect response requirements of the RMP. Council is not obliged to
undertake any of the following: -

e Pro-active inspections
¢ Maintenance works

e Capital renewals

e Capital improvements.

These roads are not required for general public use and as such are not included in the
Register of Public Roads.

411 Unsurfaced Roads (or Limited Access Roads)

Roads that have been formed (shaped) but not surfaced provide limited access and are
usually only suitable for dry weather use. A number of roads in the municipality have
been formed over the years but not surfaced; these roads are excluded from the
inspection and defect response requirements of the RMP. Council is not obliged to
undertake any of the following: -

e Pro-active inspections
e Maintenance works

e Capital renewals

o Capital improvements.
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However, Council may inspect these roads on occasion and may program limited
maintenance work (such as grading) if resources permit.

These roads generally provide limited access to specific properties rather than general
public use and as such are not included in the Register of Public Roads.

412 Unsealed Roads

Unsealed roads are roads that have been formed and surfaced with crushed rock or
gravel, but not sealed with bitumen or asphalt. These roads provide access in all
weather conditions and are included in the inspection and defect response requirements
of the RMP. Council will undertake the following: -

e Pro-active inspections
¢ Maintenance works
e Capital renewal works.

Capital renewal works are only designed to renew the unsealed road to its original
condition. Council is not obliged to improve the road further, e.g. seal an unsealed road.
These roads are included in Council’s Register of Public Roads.

413 Capital Upgrades

In accordance with Section 40(2) of the Act, Council does not have a duty to upgrade a
road or to maintain a road to a higher standard than the standard to which the road is
constructed. Council is not obliged to: -

Provide a road in an unused road reserve

Construct or improve an unformed road

Provide an all-weather surface on an unsurfaced road
Seal an unsealed road.

Upgrade works requested by landowners that only benefit a limited number of properties
will not be funded by Council. Residents may elect to fully fund the cost for these
upgrade works; however, they will be required to undertake the works in accordance with
the relevant standards and with the appropriate permissions and permits. Council will
only take over responsibility for the ongoing maintenance of the road when satisfied that
the road has been constructed to an appropriate standard.

If the upgrade works can be demonstrated as providing a clear benefit to the general
public and not just the adjacent landowners, Council will rank the project against other
similar projects using cost/benefit criteria. High ranked projects will be considered as
part of the preparation of Council's budget.

414 Owner Responsibilities

4.14.1 Vehicle Crossings

A vehicle crossing is a point next to a road to enable a person using the road to have
access to land on the other side of a pathway (footpath, reserve path or shared path) or
channel (kerb and channel or table/open drain).

The Act provides that a road authority is not liable for private vehicle crossings
(driveways) and pathways on road reserves that provide access to land adjoining a road,
this responsibility being with the adjoining landowner. Schedule 10 and Section 225 of
the Local Government Act 1989 gives Council the power to require the property owner to
maintain or reconstruct the crossing to Council’s approved standard at the property
owner’s cost. Council’s Community Local Law 2 (2020), Clause 47 further supports this
provision.
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Vehicle crossings are considered private property and repair of and damage to them is
the responsibility of the property owner, however council remains responsible for any
section of the crossover that is used by the general public as a footpath. This section of
footpath shall be inspected and maintained to the same standard applied to other public
footpaths.

Council does not inspect the remaining area of the vehicle crossover that does not form
part of the footpath. If there is no footpath on the nature strip, Council does not inspect
the nature strip.

If the property owner wishes to construct a new vehicle crossing or renew an existing
vehicle crossing, the property owner must obtain a Works Within Road Reserves permit
(WWRR) and comply with Council specifications and WWRR permit conditions when
constructing vehicle crossings. Council will not contribute funds towards the construction
of the pathway or channel sections in these situations.

4.14.2 Footpaths and Overhanging Vegetation

A landowner has a responsibility to keep a footpath clear of vegetation growing from their
property. Under the provisions of Council’'s Community Local Law 2 (2020) Clause 10,
Council may direct the landowner to trim the overhanging branches.

4.14.3 Obstructing Footpaths and Roads

It is the responsibility of landowners to keep footpaths and roads clear of obstructions,
including circumstances relating to: -

e Tables, chairs, shop displays and signs on footpaths in commercial areas
e Obstructions on nature strips
e Vegetation affecting visibility.

excepting where the activity is approved by Council in accordance with Community Local
Law No. 2 (2020).

4.14.4 Roadside Vegetation

A road authority does not have a statutory duty or a common law duty to maintain,
inspect or repair land of any public highway that is not a constructed path or roadway
(section 107 of the Act).

In accordance with Clause 52.17 of the Victoria Planning Provisions, Council is exempt
from the requirement to obtain a permit for native vegetation removed, destroyed or
lopped to the minimum extent necessary to maintain the safe and efficient function of
an existing road.

4.14.5 Nature Strips

Nature strips are the piece of land situated between the edge of a road and the property
boundary (excluding any kerb and formed pathway). Nature strips form part of the road
reserve and provide: -

e A space for authorities to house their assets
e May contain trees for shade and beautification of a street.

While a resident does not own the nature strip in front of their homes, they are
encouraged to maintain it. Maintenance carried out by the resident typically involves
regular mowing, weeding, cutting the edges and picking up litter.

In accordance with sections 40 and 107 of the Act, Council does not have a statutory or
common law duty to inspect, maintain and repair the nature strip.

Maodifications or landscaping of nature strips must be undertaken in accordance with
Council’s Nature strip Policy.
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4.14.6 Consent to Perform Works in Road Reserve

In general, any person considering performing works in road reserves must obtain
consent from the Co-ordinating Road Authority unless they are exempted under the
Road Management (Works & Infrastructure) Regulations 2005. Advice and application
forms are available from the Municipal Offices for work on municipal roads.

4.15 Access Control

Under the provisions of the Act a road authority may make a decision concerning access
onto a public road in relation to: -

e Location

e Restrictions of use
e Conditions

o Works.

RRV may specify requirements for highways and arterial roads and Council for local
roads.

Under the Planning Permit process Council may impose conditions on a permit for the
use or development of land in relation to: -

e Stock Crossings,

e Vehicle crossings,

e Driveway dimensions,

e Turning lanes, and

e School bus stopping areas.

5 STANDARDS FOR INSPECTION

Road and path asset inspections are conducted at pre-determined intervals, according to
the classification. The timing of inspections is determined by a number of factors, such
as seasonal weather and use, traffic type, gravel type, and may be carried out at various
times throughout the year and may vary according to the season of year.

The main reasons for the inspection of road assets are: -

e To identify defects and act to minimise the risk of injury to the asset users

¢ To identify defects in time and repair to prevent premature failure of assets and
minimise the financial impact to the community.

51 Types of Inspections

The Council and the community collectively identify the defects on roads. Inspections
are performed in three modes as follows: -

e Mode 1 Inspection by service inspector (proactive maintenance/defect
inspection)

e Mode 2 Inspection based on customer complaints or reports
(reactive/safety inspection)

e Mode 3 Inspection by works officers or by independent team (condition
inspection).

Details of inspections are included in Appendix 3.
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5.1.1 Pro-active Inspections

Pro-active inspections are regular programmed safety inspections designed to identify
those defects that exceed the stated intervention level.

Pro-active inspection frequencies are based on risk and are aligned to the asset
hierarchies detailed in Appendix 1.

All inspections are recorded against the asset, as well as any defects detected that
exceed the stated intervention level.

Pro-active inspections for bridges (Level 1 inspections) are undertaken in accordance
with VicRoads guidelines on a 12-monthly basis.

Any defects likely to affect road user or public safety identified in the pro-active
inspections will have a response timeframe as detailed in Appendix 4.

5.1.2 Re-active Inspections

Re-active inspections are initiated by requests from the public (the customer).
Customer requests regarding road infrastructure and road related infrastructure will be
inspected within 15 working days of the request being lodged.

Any defects above intervention level identified in the re-active inspection will have a
response time frame as detailed in Appendix 4 and will be treated the same as those
identified in the pro-active inspections. The defect response time is measured from the
time the defect is inspected by Council.

5.1.3 Condition Inspections

Condition Inspections are used to determine the overall structural condition and
remaining life of the assets. They are used to program periodic rehabilitation and
replacement, as well as for determining depreciation costs when valuing the assets.
Condition Inspections are not undertaken to identify individual defects; however, they
may be conducted in conjunction with pro-active safety inspections.

The frequency of the asset condition assessments are not governed by the RMP.

5.2 Defect Intervention Levels and Response Times

A defect is a localised failure in an asset, for example, a pothole in a road surface or a
joint displacement in a concrete footpath. The defect intervention level is the size or
severity of a defect at which a mandatory response is required. An appropriate response
could be to undertake maintenance works to ensure the defect no longer exceeds
intervention level.
The response time is the maximum time allowed before a response is required on a
defect that is above intervention level. Response time is measured from the time the
defect is inspected by Council and is determined from the defect intervention level and
the hierarchy of the asset.
Within the relevant response time, Council may also at its discretion and where
appropriate employ temporary measures to defects that exceed a stated intervention
level utilising one of the following: —
e Provision of warning signs
e Provision of safety barriers
e Traffic control action -
— Diverting traffic around the site
— Install temporary speed limit
— Lane closure or road closure
— Closure of the road to certain vehicles (e.g. Load limit)
e Spray painting footpath lips.

Response times for repair work exclude major capital works (i.e. maintenance work only).
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6 SERVICE LEVELS

The desirable minimum design targets for road and bridges, including road related
infrastructure, for each road classification are set out in Appendix 2, with reference to
Australian Standards, VicRoads Supplementary Guidelines and Austroads Guidelines.
The design targets are the desirable minimum standards to be achieved, where possible,
when reconstruction or replacement of the asset is undertaken.

The existing assets are generally of a lower standard, and this standard will be
maintained until any upgrade works are programmed.

Roads are classified according to their function and traffic volumes.

The level of service provided by a road is determined by its geometrical design standard
and its surfacing.

A road with a bituminous surface seal provides a higher level of service than an unsealed
gravel road due to improved ride quality and all-weather, dust free surface.

Council may change the classification of a road if the function or usage of the road
changes and this may affect the service level provided and the standard of maintenance.
It is Council’s intention to upgrade the classification of a number of Fire Access / Zero
Class roads progressively over the life of this RMP. This will be implemented as funding
for both the capital upgrade works and ongoing maintenance is made available. Roads
will be prioritised for reclassification by assessment of their network importance, the
number of existing houses, the length of the road and the current traffic volumes. (Refer
to Road Assessment Matrix at Appendix 6).

To qualify for assessment, the roads will need to provide prime access to a dwelling or
have been identified as High Usage in the 2021 RMP review.

7 STANDARDS FOR MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR

Council has determined standards in relation to the condition to be achieved in
maintenance and repair of roads, pathways and other road infrastructure.

Details of maintenance in relation to intervention levels are included in Appendix 4.

By agreement with Council, the users of roads not satisfied with construction standards
or service levels may undertake road improvement works at their cost.

Residents and road users should contact Council to discuss the requirements and
costings for proposed improvements on an individual basis.

Such works will be subject to the VicRoads “Code of Practice for Worksite Safety —
Traffic Management” and “a Works within Road Reserves* permit from Council.
Improvement works must be approved by Council and carried out by a Council approved
contractor.

Improvement works may include:

e Maintenance grading

e Addition of dust suppressant to the surface of an unsealed road
e Sealing of the road surface

e Construction works to upgrade the road to Council standards.

If an urgent or high risk situation is identified either through the Council’s routine
maintenance inspections, or through another inspection mechanism, Council will take
appropriate action, as a matter of priority, to reduce the risk of an incident, by means of
appropriate warning until the maintenance/repair works are completed. These works
may be considered as emergency works.



Strathbogie Shire Council Page 154 21/09/21
Council Meeting Agenda

8 MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

Council’s asset information is stored on an electronic database known as the Asset
Management System (AMS). This system is continually being developed and enhanced.
The system is currently being upgraded to manage and record maintenance information,
enabling work done on specific assets to be traced more readily. Projects are also
underway to improve the integration of the AMS with Council’s other information
systems.

The AMS is also increasingly being used to manage information on risk and to model
deterioration and replacement scenarios.

Key aspects of the management system utilised by Council includes:

e Regular inspections of the asset portfolios
e The setting of intervention levels

e The type of intervention action

e The target time for intervention action.

The maintenance management system is illustrated in Appendix 5.

9 “FORCE MAJEURE”

Council will make every endeavour to meet all aspects of its RMP.

However, in the event of natural disasters and other events including, but not limited to,
fires, floods, droughts and the like, together with human factors, such as lack of Council
staff or suitably qualified contractors, because of section 83 of the Victorian Wrongs Act
1958, as amended, Council reserves the right to suspend compliance with its RMP.

In the event that the CEO of the Council has to, pursuant to section 83 of the above Act,
consider the limited financial resources of the Council and its other conflicting priorities,
meaning Council’'s RMP cannot be met, they will write to Council’s Officer in charge of its
RMP and inform them that some, or all, of the timeframes and response times are to be
suspended.

Once the events beyond the control of Council have abated, or if the events have partly
abated, Council’'s CEO will write to Council’s Officer responsible for Council's RMP and
inform them which parts of Council’'s RMP are to be reactivated and the timeframes for
each part of the RMP to be reactivated.

10 ROAD ADVISORY COMMITTEE

The purpose of the Road Advisory Committee is to provide input into the cost-effective
management of the Council’s road network. A separate document that contains the scope,
function, composition and meeting frequency will be developed and approved by Council
for the operation of the Committee.

11 APPENDICES

Appendix 1 — Road & Footpath Hierarchy

Appendix 2 — Design Targets

Appendix 3 — Inspection Targets

Appendix 4 — Maintenance Targets and Response Times for Roads
Appendix 5 — Maintenance Management System

Appendix 6 — Road Assessment Matrix



Strathbogie Shire Council
Council Meeting Agenda

Page 155 21/09/21

Appendix 1 — Road & Footpath Hierarchy

Road Hierarchy

Road Class
Class 0
. ass Class 1 Class 2 Class 3 Class 4
Fire Access
Functional Definition:  Unformedor  Formed  Sealed or Sealed or  Sealed or
Classification: Formed with with unsealed unsealed unsealed
no pavement  Generally, Generally, Generally,
pavement  (may be sealed) 50 to 150 to >500vpd
<50vpd 150vpd 500vpd
Link Prime function:
link between n/a n/a L2 L3 L4
major roads, and
regions
Collector Prime function:
mixed function —
traffic mobility n/a C1 C2 C3 C4
and property
access
Access Prime function:
access to n/a A1 A2 A3 n/a
residences
Access - Prime function:
property only  “property only” A0 A1 n/a n/a n/a
access
Fire Access Prime function:
access for 4wd FA n/a n/a n/a n/a
fire vehicles
Footpath Hierarchy
Classification Definition

Priority 1

High Use Areas

These are footpaths within the CBD of towns where public footpaths
have been constructed. Also included in this category is any footpath
in the vicinity of Hospitals, Churches, Schools, Aged Hostels, and
strategic routes to areas of significance.

Priority 2
Other Areas

Primarily included in this category is any footpath specifically
constructed as access to residential and other areas & have less use
than Priority 1 footpaths.
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Appendix 2 — Design Targets

Traffic Seal Pavement Pavement Formation Bridge Bridge

Road Volume  Width Width Depth Width Width  Design
Classification

(vpd) (m) (m) (mm) (m) (m)  Loading
Link L4 >500 7.0 7.3 250 11.0 74 SM 1600
Link L3 150-500 6.8 7.1 250 10.0 74 SM 1600
Link L2 <150 6.2 6.5 250 9.2 74 SM 1600
Collector C4 >500 6.8 7.1 200 10.0 7.4 SM 1600
Collector C3  150-500 6.2 6.6 200 7.8 7.4 SM 1600
Collector C2 <150 6.2 6.6 200 7.8 7.4 SM 1600
Access A3 >150 6.2 6.6 150 7.8 7.4 SM 1600
Access A2  50-150 4.0 150 6.0 4.5 SM 1600
Access A1 <50 4.0 150 6.0 4.5 SM 1600

L4 roads will be associated with strategic freight routes (gazetted B-double routes)
hence will need to meet Austroads geometric design requirements.

The desirable minimum design targets for road and bridges, including associated
road related infrastructure, are in accordance with the relevant Australian
Standards, VicRoads Supplementary Guidelines and Austroads Guidelines.
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Appendix 3 — Inspection Targets

FREQUENCY
INSPECTIONTYPE ~ Class 0,
Fire Class 1 Class 2 Class 3 Class 4
Access

Road Defect Inspection 12 months 12 months 6 months 3 months 3 months

Road Night Inspection n/a n/a n/a 12 months 12 months
Bridge Inspection 12 months 12 months 12 months 6 months 6 months
(Level 1)
Safety/Hazard As required Asrequired Asrequired Asrequired As required
inspection
FREQUENCY
FOOTPATH
INSPECTION Priority 1 Priority 2

Defect Inspection 6 months 12 months
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ROAD CLASS
ACTIVITY/TOLERABLE DEFECT INTERVENTION
HEVEL: .Class 0 Class 1: Class 2: Class 3: Class 4:
Fire access
Bridges
Damage affecting structural performance: 1 mth 1 wk. 1 wk. 2 days 2 days
Bridge signage/railing/drain cleaning 12 mths 6 mths 6 mths 3 mths 3 mths
Waterways After major storms
Sealed surfaces:
Pothole: n/a >500mm dia. and | >300mm dia. and | >300mm dia. and | >300mm dia. and
>150mm deep >100mm deep >100mm deep >100mm deep

Pothole repair response time: n/a 2 mths 1 mth 14 days 14 days
Deformation (under 3m straight edge): n/a > 100mm > 100mm > 100mm > 100mm
Deformation repair response time: n/a 2 mths 1 mth 14 days 14 days
Rutting (under 1.2m straight edge): n/a > 100mm > 100mm > 100mm > 100mm
Rutting repair response time: n/a 2 mths 1 mth 14 days 14 days
Edge break: (fretting) n/a > 300mm > 300mm > 200mm > 200mm
Edge break repair response time: n/a 2 mths 2 mths 14 days 14 days
Sealed road shoulder drop-off: n/a >100mm >100mm >100mm >100mm
Shoulder drop-off repair response time: n/a 2 mths 2 mths 14 days 14 days
Shoulder rutting: n/a >100mm >100mm >100mm >100mm
Shoulder rutting repair response time: n/a 2 mths 2 mths 14 days 14 days

Unsealed surfaces:
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ROAD CLASS
ACTIVITY/TOLERABLE DEFECT INTERVENTION
LEVEL: Class 0
: . Class 1: Class 2: Class 3: Class 4:
Fire access
Rough surface: see note 2 see note 3 see note 3 see note 3 see note 3
Rough surface repair response time: n/a 6 mths 6 mths 3 mths 3 mths
Unsealed road crossfall: see note 2 1% < xfall < 8% on | 1% < xfall < 8% on | 1% < xfall < 8% on | 1% < xfall < 8% on
>20% of road >20% of road >20% of road >20% of road
Crossfall repair time: n/a 6 mths 6 mths 6 mths 3 mths
Pothole: n/a >500mm dia. and | >500mm dia. and | >500mm dia. and | >500mm dia. and
see note 2 >150mm deep, or | >150mm deep, or | >150mm deep, or | >150mm deep, or
>100mm deep over | >100mm deep over | >75mm deep over | >75mm deep over
>30% of road >30% of road >30% of road >30% of road
Pothole repair response time: n/a 6 mths 3 mths 3 mths 2 mths
Rutting: see note 2 > 150mm > 150mm > 150mm > 150mm
Rutting repair response time: n/a 6 mths 6 mths 3 mths 3 mths
Roadside Drainage:
Table drains see note 2 < 25% of capacity | < 25% of capacity | < 25% of capacity | < 25% of capacity
Table drain response time As resources 6 mths 6 mths 3 mths 3 mths
permit
Culverts see note 2 < 25% of capacity | < 25% of capacity | < 25% of capacity | < 25% of capacity
Culvert response time As resources 6 mths 6 mths 3 mths 3 mths
permit
General:
Roadside vegetation — clearance envelope. see note 2 Limb clearance < 5.0 m high above road surface, guidepost line width
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ROAD CLASS
ACTIVITY/TOLERABLE DEFECT INTERVENTION
LEVEL: Class 0
: . Class 1: Class 2: Class 3: Class 4:
Fire access
Clearance envelope response time: As resources As resources allow — See note 4 6 mths
permit
Regulatory & hazard signs n/a Replace within 1 month if missing or substantially ineffective
Linemarking, Pavement Markings & Delineation: n/a Missing or faded so as to render them ineffective
Linemarking, Pavement Markings & Delineation response n/a Annual Program subject to funding — See note 5
time:
Guideposts: n/a culverts only required required required
Guidepost repair response time: n/a 6 mths 6 mths 2 mths 1 mth
. see note 1 see note 1 Turn out time — 30 minutes Remedial works/appropriate
Emergency works: see note 1 :
warning — 2hrs

Footpaths Priority 1 Paths Priority 2 Paths
Footpaths -paved: >20mm abrupt step >20 mm abrupt step
Footpath repair response time: 2 weeks : Refer to Program
Street trees: 2.5m minimum clearance above footpath
Clearance response time: 2 months 6 months

Notes:

1. When Council is notified of a hazard, Council staff will inspect and rectify it if possible, or provide appropriate warning within the repair/response time indicated.
Where, because of the nature of the repair required or workload, it is not possible to rectify within the time shown, appropriate warning of the hazard will be

provided until the repair can be completed.

2. “Class 0, Fire Access” roads will be maintained to a standard that allows for the passage of a fire truck in dry weather.

Grade the formation and table drains as required to maintain standard and prevent loss of formation as resources permit.
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3.
4.

Safe travelling speed is reduced to <60% of the environmental speed or scour channels/corrugations >75mm deep over >30% of road.

For Priority 1 and 2 roads (access and egress) indicated on CFA’s Strathbogie Shire Bushfire management plan an extension of the roadside vegetation clearance
envelope to include removal of regrowth to 6 metres from the edge of the carriageway. This work to be done as resources permit.

To be undertaken in accordance with the requirements of the relevant Australian Standards, VicRoads Supplementary Guidelines and Austroads Guidelines.
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Appendix 5 — Maintenance Management System

CUSTOMER

CONDITION

INSPECTOR

AUDIT

EMERGENCY
REQUEST

PROACTIVE CUSTOMER

INSPECTION REQUEST

\

ASSET PLAN

N

EMERGENCY
WORKS
COMPLETE

DEFECTS WORK
ORDER
(MMS Database)

COUNCIL RELEVANT
ASSET ? d AUTHORITY

DETERMINE
gﬁfels EXTENT OF
. WORKS

CAPITAL WORKS
PROGRAM

PERFORM
WORKS

REPAIR WITHIN
RESPONSE TIME
(Appendix 4)

RENEWAL
COMPLETE

REPAIR
COMPLETE

Customer Service Commitments

Roads & Bridges Maintenance
Pot Holes - Sealed Roads

Inspect within 14 days
Repairs as per Appendix 4 of the RMP

Pot Holes - Gravel Roads
Inspect within 3 months
Repairs as per Appendix 4 of the RMP

Bridges - Class 3 & 4
Inspect and make safe structural damage to
bridges within 2 working days of report
being received

Footpaths
Inspect and make safe dangerous footpaths within two

(2) working days of a report being received

Drains
Investigate blocked Council owned drains and pits
within 2 working days of a report being received

Inspect and make safe missing or damaged pit lids
within 1 working day of a report being received
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Appendix 6 — Road Assessment Matrix

wnod s2d 1503 153mo| 51 Auoug

syurod i 21005 [BI0]

26 SunySiam
(Peos YENoay3 104 24025 N4 3] OT 40 IN0 0I5 TANAILIIUUOT) HJomMIaN
30N
o 1=2d 1507 [ 2peaddn [ IYo0s | 1ol |FunySiep [ suoos | pero) | SunySiapy | 2u005 je1o] | SunySiapy | 2uo0g lero) | SunySiap | U005 1e1o) | SunySiapy | 21005
0 150
Aauord L | o Spa3n ALUNUIWO Y USnIPUOT PEOY SIS5IUISNG IO JO JACLUNQ S3SNOH 40 I3guingy AANDIUUCY HI0MIAN fageool | w yasuat Swepy peoy
ElI2}14D) JUSLISSISSY
ape.J3dn Jo04 speod asnuond o) ljeon

Speoy sse|D) 0437 JO speuddn




Strathbogie Shire Council Page 164 21/09/21
Council Meeting Agenda

9.4

CORPORATE

9.4.1 Adoption of 2020/21 Annual Financial Report

Author and Responsible Director: Director Corporate Operations

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Local Government Act 2020 (the Act) states it is essential there is a legislative
framework that provides for councils to be accountable to their local communities
in the performance of functions and the exercise of powers and the use of
resources. It is a statutory requirement under the Act that councils prepare and
report on medium and short term plans to discharge their duties of accountability
and transparency to their communities.

The Act specifically requires that Council pass a resolution giving its approval in
principle to the Annual Financial Report prior to formally submitting to the Auditor-
General Victoria and the Hon. Shaun Leane MP, Minister for Local Government.
The Act further requires that Council must authorise two Councillors to approve the
Report.

The Audit Committee, at its meeting on Friday 17 September 2021, in accordance
with the Local Government Act 2020, having reviewed the Annual Financial Report
consisting of the Financial Statements and Notes, recommends the 2020/21
Annual Financial Report be considered for approval by Council.

Section 99 of the Act also applies to this report.

Draft copies of the Annual Financial Report have been circulated to Councillors for
their consideration and are attached to this report.

RECOMMENDATION
That Council:

1. Notes the recommendation of the Audit Committee to approve the
Financial Statements;

2. Approve in principle the 2020/21 Annual Financial Report;

3. Authorise Councillors Raeburn and Murray to sign the 2020/21 Annual
Financial Report;

4, Authorise the Chief Executive Officer to make minor amendments to
the 2020/21 Annual Financial Report, if required, and brief Council if
amendments are made;

5. Authorise the Chief Executive Officer to certify the 2020/21 Annual
Financial Report; and

6. Upon receipt of the Auditor’s Certified Report, submit the Annual
Report to the Hon. Shaun Leane MP, Minister for Local Government
and make the Annual Report available for public inspection.
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9.4.1 Adoption of 2020/21 Annual Financial Report (cont.)

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND
The Victorian Auditor-General’'s Office has completed the external audit of the
2020/21 Financial Report.

The Annual Financial Report consisting of the Financial Statements and Notes
(refer Attachment 1) has been prepared in accordance with relevant legislation,
applicable Australian Accounting Standards and other related accounting
guidelines.

The Victorian Auditor-General’s certification is anticipated in September 2021.

ISSUES, OPTIONS AND DISCUSSION

The Annual Financial Report is prepared strictly in accordance with the applicable
Australian Accounting Standard which includes the Australian equivalent to
International Financial Reporting Standards (AIFRS). These Standards require
the preparation of five mandatory statements. These statements include —

o “Comprehensive Income Statement” (Operating — Accrual Statement). This
comprises non-cash items such as Depreciation and cost of goods (assets)
sold, and excludes Capital Expenditure and Transfers to and from Other
Reserves.

e “Balance Sheet” which lists Councils’ assets and liabilities. It indicates the
overall financial position of Council as at 30" June 2021.

o “Statement of Changes in Equity”. This indicates movements in Council’s
Reserve Funds.

o “Statement of Cash Flows”. This indicates all cash expended and received for
all activities during the financial year.

o “Statement of Capital Works” which details Council’s capital works expenditure
for the financial year. It sets out the expenditure on creating or buying property,
infrastructure, plant and equipment by each category of asset.

For the 2020/21 financial year, Council is also required to prepare two “Budget
Comparison Notes” with variance explanations to the 2020/21 Annual Budget.

These being —
1. Income and Expenditure
2. Capital Works.

The following analysis of the 2020/21 Annual Financial Report is at a macro level,
which reflects the nature of the Report’s disclosures. It is not designed nor intended
to be used as a Management report that provides details of programs, or resultant
variances. No analysis has been provided for the Statement of Changes in Equity.
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9.4.1 Adoption of 2020/21 Annual Financial Report (cont.)

1. Income Statement

The operating result represents the accrual accounting treatments, which
includes the non-cash items of depreciation and cost of goods (assets) sold,
but excludes expenditure on Capital items, loan proceeds and loan principal
repayments and transfers to and from other reserves.

For the year ended 30 June 2021, Council reported an Operating surplus of
$6,365,056. Operating costs were $30.9 million.

The result was also impacted by changes in Accounting Standards as
follows:
¢ Need to reduce operating grantincome by $305,172 to reflect grants
received but with obligations still attached at 30 June — will adjust in
2020/21 so no overall impact
¢ Need to reduce Capital grant income by $3,401,555 similar to above
e Recognition of expense of $257,822 for amortisation of “right of use
“assets, finance costs for leases (non cash Item)

2. Balance Sheet

Council’'s Balance Sheet indicates that Council’s overall financial position
and its cash and liquidity position is sound and within acceptable financial
parameters.

Council’s cash position as at 30 June 2021 was represented by cash on
hand and investments of $22.90 million. This represents an increase in cash
holdings of $6.32 million during the 2020/21 financial year due primarily to
receipt of significant capital grants and less than budgeted expenditure on
capital works. A number of capital works will also be carried over into the
2021/22 financial year.

The value of Council’s property, infrastructure, plant and equipment non-
current assets as at 30 June 2020 is $282.66 million, an increase of $1.84m
million, due primarily to the acquisition of assets as part of Council’s capital
works program offset by the effects of depreciation and an external
revaluation of property assets.

Council’s end-of-year working capital ratio is 2.16:1, which is greater than
the target ratio of 1.1:1. This ratio is used to assess Council’s ability to meet
current commitments and is derived by dividing current assets by current
liabilities.

3. Cash Flow Statement

Cash flow reflects expenditure on capital works and there are a number of
projects carried forward to 2021/22.
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9.4.1 Adoption of 2020/21 Annual Financial Report (cont.)

4, Statement of Capital Works

Council completed $10.43 million worth of projects for 2020/21, an increase
of 53% over the previous year as resourcing in the Project delivery area has
improved and projects completed. There remain some carried over works
to be completed in 2021/22, some of which are attached to substantial grant
funding received in 2020/21.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT
One of the Overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the municipal community is to be engaged in strategic planning
and strategic decision making.

The Annual Financial Statements are prepared and audited and once completed
Council is required to advertise the fact that they are available for inspection as part
of the Annual Report

POLICY CONSIDERATIONS
Council Plans and Policies

The report is consistent with Council Policies, key strategic documents and the
Council Plan.

Regional, State and National Plans and Policies
Some of the items completed during the year are consistent with Policies of other
levels of government, some of which have provided funding to assist.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS

The Annual Statements have been prepared in accordance with timelines laid out
in the Local Government Act and in accordance with relevant Accounting
Standards.

Conflict of Interest Declaration

All officers, and / or contractors, involved in the preparation of this report have
signed a written declaration that they do not have a conflict of interest in the subject
matter of this report.

Transparency
The Annual Statements will be presented to an open Council meeting and will then

be available on the website and at the Customer Service Desk at Euroa and
Nagambie for public review.

FINANCIAL VIABILITY CONSIDERATIONS

The annual Statements show Council to be in a sound financial position, with the
Long Term Financial Plan to be updated to reflect the end of year result and any
items required to be carried over into 2020/21 (both income and expenditure).
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9.4.1 Adoption of 2020/21 Annual Financial Report (cont.)

SUSTAINABILITY CONSIDERATIONS

Economic

The financial report and associated documentation provide published evidence and
data on the financial costs and benefits across the main areas of Strathbogie Shire
Council income and expenditure. Our report is intended to inform the community of
the wider financial and economic impact of council expenditure.

Social

Strathbogie Shire Council, in partnership with other levels of government, is
responsible for aspects of everyday life that our community value — from our public
open spaces, to accessible libraries, to strong local business and employment
opportunities. Effective planning and reporting by councils is essential for ensuring
transparency and accountability to the community and other levels of government
as to how public money is being spent and the quality of services delivered.

INNOVATION AND CONTINUOUS IMPROVMENT

Council continues to refine its end of year processes and with the advent of
Coronavirus COVID-19, the audit has been conducted remotely and officers have
adapted to this way of working

COLLABORATION

Council staff and Council’s external auditor, the Victorian Auditor-General’s Office
and Council’s Audit Committee have worked cooperatively in the preparation of
these reports.

CONCLUSION
This report summarises the end of year result and recommends approval in
principle of the Annual Financial Report.

ATTACHMENTS
Attachment 1: Annual Financial Report 2020/21
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Certification of the Financial Statements
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Income

Rafes and charges

Elmburory feas snd fines

User fees

Grants - operating

Granks - capital
Caonfribufons - monefary
Confribufions - Nor-monefary

Comprehensive Income Statement
For the Year Ended 30 June 2021

Wef gain [or kozs] on disposal of propesty, infrasineciures, plact snd =quigment
Ehare of pet profils for lozs) of exsocisfes and joint venfures

Other noome
Tokal incomez

Expenses

Empiloyee costs

Materisls and senvices

z o

Amporissfion - nbngible axssty
Amorisaion - Aight of use as=ei=
Bad and doublul d=ibls
Bomowing costs

Firanee costs - keases

Other expermes

Total expenses

Surplushdeficis for the year

Other comprehensive income

kems that will not be reclassified to surplus or deficit in future pericds
et azsed reusiunbion imeemenb]decramend)
kems that may be reclassified to surplus or deficit in future periods

Total comprehensive result

Mot

a1
d.2
d.3
i4
d4
4.5
1.5
1.6
6.3
a7

4.1
4.2
4.3
44
4.5
45
a7
45
49

6.2

2021 20
H H

20,085 572 19,824 720
661,449 401 657
747 79 ££3,298
7714 366 7 A0S 568
5785233 4,174 795
311,706 355,983

1,363,611 -

143 B89 99 754
28,141 8,714

283 508 474943
TAMEM 33 409,443
12,078,311 10,334,811
11,812,354 11,318,010
£,253 080 6,030,078
B4 55 9 845
236,078 199,732
13,430 50,233
20,556 75,783
21,744 1,867
450 548 505,108
T W859778 26545968
E365,058 4853415
410458  [17,565870)
2254 598 [12.702,385)

The abowe comprefensive income shal=ment should be resd in conjunchion with the accompanying nofes.
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Sirathbogie Shire Council
20202021 Financial Report
Balance Sheet
As at 30 June 2021
Mote 20 2020
5 5

Azszets
Current asssts
Cash and cash equivalents 51 5,950,064 28735872
Trade and other receivables 51 2,588,020 3118075
Cither financial assats 51 17,350,000 13,704 764
Nom-curent assels classified as held for sale 6.1 297,384 BE0 334
Cither assats 52 590,0:30 762 932
Total currant azssts 26,493,303 21,148 827
Non-cument assets
Trade and other recaivalbiles 51 43 094 57313
Otker financial assets 541 2032 2032
nvasiment=s in associates, joint arangements and subsidiares 6.3 255 287 227 146
Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 6.2 282 027,083 280,818 278
Right-of-us2 assats 58 636,453 872530
niangikle assats 5.2 78,167 108,703
Total non-currant asasts 283,043 118 282 084, 203
Total aszsts 309,538,621 303,234,030
Liabiktias
Currant liabilities
Trade and other payables 53 3,178,804 2154303
Trust funds and degosits 53 500,058 381474
Un=amed income 53 3,708,727 1481 712
Pronvisions 55 4 584 145 3,695 814
In{erest-bearing liakdites 54 94,000 85,116
Lease fabiiies 58 178,337 230,029
Total currant |Eabilities 12,240,073 7,808 448
Non-cument liabilities
Trust funds and degosits 3.3 55,166 4,203
Provvisions 55 4 830,380 4 752 5349
Inierest-bearing liakdites 34 191,425 282 425
Lease Rabiitizs 58 474 083 652 421
Total non-current liabilities 5,991,054 5,731,888
Total liabilities 17,791,127 13,741,137
Nat asasts 201,747 494 289 452 B9
Equity
Accumulated surplus 104 541 524 98,252 B85
Reserves a1 187 205,970 191,240 208

Total Equity 201,747 494 280,402 883
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Accumulated Ravaluation Other
Hote Total Surplus Raserva Resarvas
202 5 $ 5 $
Balance at beginning of the financial year 289 492 869 98,252 604 190,381,250 858 858
Adjusted Opaening balance 209 402 202 98,252 684 180,381,250 838,858
Sunplusi{deficd) for the year 6,365,056 6,365 056 - -
Met asset revaluation incremantidecrement) B2 [4.110,458) - (4,110,458)
Trarsfers to other reserves 81 - (TE,Z220) - 78,220
201, 74T 484 104, 541,520 186,270,782 835178
Balance at end of the financial year 201,747 480 104,541,520 186,270,782 233,178
Accumulated Rawaluation Orthier
Total Surplus Raserva Resarvas
2020 5 $ E $
Balance at beginning of the financial year 265,750,650 93,388 208 201,502 484 858,938
Adjusted Opaning balance 205,730,650 93,380 208 201,502 484 858 858
Sumlusiidafic] for the year 4 BE3 476 4 863 478 -
Net asset revaluation incremant{decrement) B2 {17,565 870) - (17,585 870)
Aszets recognised first fime B2 6,444 636 - £.444 636 -
2840 452 802 98,252 684 190,381,250 858 858

Balance at end of the financial year 200402802 98252684 190,384,250 858,058
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202 2020
Inflowsai Inflowal
[ Ourtflorwea) (Dutflowa)
Mote $ §
Cash flows from operating activities
Rates and charges 0,077 132 19,149,820
Statubory fees and fines B61,449 401 BT
User f2es 775,129 527 210
Grants - operating 7. 112,385 9,091,084
Grants - capital 9,396 850 5,595,329
Confributions - monetary 308, 524 358 165
Inferest recaived 107 922 178,278
Trust funds and deposits taken 2030176 1,703 484
Other receipts 405,025 459 683
Nat GST refundipayment 1,779,539 1,781, 544
Emplayee costs (11,112,240 (10,208,743)
Materials and services (12,601,893) (13,843,090)
Trust funds and deposits repaid {1.,920631) [1,985,484)
Other payments {446 B96) [334,168)
Nst cash provided byl{used in) oparating activities 16,372 871 12 875,863
Gash flows from inveating activities
Payments for propery, infrastructure, plant and equipment 6.2 (10,398 %58) [6.770,973)
Payments for infangikde assets 5.2 (k) {37,132) {31,629)
Proceeds from sale of property, nirastruchee, plant and equipment 543 796 262 134
Payments for invesiments - Other Financial Assets (3 645 ZIE) (13,704 TE4)
Nat cash provided byl/{used in) investing activities (13,538, 028) (20,245, 232)
Gash flows from financing activities
Finance cosis {20, 556) {25,783)
Repayment of borrowings (86, 116) [136,373)
Repayment of lease liakdiies [251,774) [211,2749)
Mat cash provided byl[used in) financing activities {358, 448) (373 435)
Net imncrease [decrease) in cash and cash egquivalents 2878, 397 (7,742 BO4)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 2873672 10,616,477
Gash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 3,550,088 2873 672
Fnancing arrangements 56
Restrictions on cash assets 541
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202 2020
§ 5
Proparty
Buildings 564 676 1,104,510
Total property 564,676 1,104,510
Plant and squipment
Heriage plant and eguipment
Plant, machinery and eguipment L 353,183
Fixtures, ftfings and furniure 2427849 223,983
Irtangible Assats 37132 3 629
Total plant and equipment 1,184,784 608, 706
Infrastructure
Roads 3,163,945 3,219,159
Bridges and culverts 299,308 206,434
Footpatihs and cydeways 246431 ER N
Drainags 1,221,609 132,183
Recreafional, leisure and community faciliies 1,155,029 -
Parks, open space and streetscapes B0 296 1,213,703
Total infrastructurs 8 686 618 a,088 267
Total capital works sxpanditure 10,438,089 8,802 602
Reprasanted by:
New asset expenditurs 1,300,807 340,244
Asset renewal expendiure 4 395,768 4 Ba3, 710
Asset expansion expendiure 918 854 -
Asset upgrade expenditure 3,620 630 1,598,648
Total capital works sxpanditure 10,436,089 8,802 602

The above statement of capital works showd be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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OVERVIEW

Introduwction

The Strathbogie Shire Councl was esiblished by an Order of the Govemnor in Counc on 18 Novemiber 1934 and s a body corporate. The
Council's main office is located at the comer of Binney and Bury Streats, Ewoa, Victora 3666,

Gtatemant of complianca

Thess financial statements are a general purpase financial repot that consists of a Comprehensive Income Statement, Balanoe Skeat,
Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows, Statement of Capital Works and Notes accompanying these financial
statemends. The general purpose fmancial report complies with the Awstralian Accourting Standards [AAS), other authortative
promauncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board, the Local Government Act 1989 | and the Local Government (Planning and
Reporting} Regulations 2014 .

Significant accounting policies

2

Ib)

Basis of accounting
Thie accrual basis of accounting has Been used in the pregaration of these financial statements, whereky assets_ akiibes, equity, mcome
and expenses are recogrised in the reporting pericd to which fhey relate, regardiess of when cash is received or paid.

Judgements, esfimates and assumphions ane required fo b2 made about the carrying values of assets and liakiliies that are not readily
apparert from other sowrces. The estimates and associated judgements are based on professional judgemant dermved from historzal

exparience and vasiows oiher faciors that are believed o be reasonakle wnder the circumstances. Actual results may diffier from fhese
estimates.

Revisions to accounting esimates are recognised in the penod in which the esSmate is revised and also in fulure perods that are affectsd
by the revision. Judgements and assumpdions made by management in fhe application of AAS's that have significant efiects on the financial
statements and es@mates relate to:

- the fair value of land, buidings, infrastructure, plant and equipment [refier to Note §.2)

- the detesminiation of depreciation for buldings, infrastructure, plant and egquipment [refer to Mabe §.2)

- the determination of employes provisions (refer o Note 5.5)

- the determination of landfill provisions (refier to Mote 5.5)

-the determination of whether performance olligabions are sufficiently speciic so as to determire whether an arrangement is within the
scope of AASE 15 Revenue from Contracts with Cusfomers or AASE 1058 lncome of Not-for-Profit Enfifies [refer to Mote 3)

- the detesmination, in accordance with AASE 16 Leases | of the lease term, the esimation of the discount rate when not implicit in the lease
and whether an arrangement is in substance short-tarm or low value (refer fo Mote 5.8)

- othier areas requiring judgements

Unlesz ofherwise stated, all accourting policies are consistent with thase apglied in the prce year. Where apgrogriate, comparative figures
have been amended fo accord with cumrent presentabion, and disclosure has been made of any materal changes to comparatives.

Impact of Covid-18
On 16 March 2020 a state of emergency was declared in Viciona due io the global pandemic COVID-19 virus, known as coronavirus. &

state of disaster was subsequently declared on 2 Awgust 2020, While the impacts of the pandemic have abated somewhat throwgh the 2020-
# year, Counci has noted the following significant impacts on its financial operations:

Council received addifional $756K capital grant from Federal Government under RLCIP for roads constructions. Also recefved non recurrent
capital grants totaling 51.08 million for variows iniiatives for economic swpport. Part of this is an additional 33 partime staffing positions for
Working for Victoria grant funding of $1.40 milkon and received over two financial years (2019720 and 200/21).

Council has refunded $43K foodhealih registration fees. Council also applied zeto percent rate ncrease for 20/ fnandcal year. Thers are
no Aoticeakls impact for asset revaluation due ta Covid 19. There was a positve impact o delivery of large capital works due to addifional
grarit fundings and additional staffing from Working for Victorda grant. Customer service and other possible services were moved fo online
environment. There were no other business disruptions during the year. overall impact to the councils operations durng the last year has
becn immatenial even with the considerakle impact io service that comes with having to be closed io the public.
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Note 1 Performancs against budget
The performance against budget notes compare Council's financial plan, expressed through its annual budget, with achal performance. The Local Gowemment
{Planning and Reporfing) Regulations 2044 requires explanation of any material variances. Council has adopied a matenality threshold of the lower of 10

percent or $100,000 where further explanation is warranied. Explanations have not been provided for variations below the matariality fireshold unless the
variance is considered io lbe materal because of its nature.

These notes are prepared to meet the requirements of the Local Govemment Aot 1959 and the Local Govemment [Flanning and Reporiing) Reguiations 2014 .

1.1 Incoma and expanditura

Budget Actual Varianca Varianca
20 2021 0 201
§ $ § % Raf
Incoma
Rates and charges 19,942 000 20,085,572 143,572 1% 1
Statuiney fees and fines 454 000 651 448 167,440 3% 2
User fees 602,000 T4T 079 145,078 24% 3
Grants - operating 8,416,000 7,714 366 [T01,634) -B% 4
Grarts - capital 5,214,000 5,785,233 71,233 11% 3
Confributions - monetary 275,000 311,706 36,706 13% [ ]
Coniributions -non- monetary - 1,363 611 1,363,811 100% T
et gaimi{loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (839,000) 143 869 baza6e -11T% 8
Share of net profitsilosses) of associates and joint ventures - 28,141 28,141 100%
Other income 424 000 483 808 50,808 14% b
Total incoma 34,528,000 37,324 834 2,796,834 8%
Expanaas
Employee costs 12,167 000 12,078,311 B8,688 1%
Materials and services 12,581,000 11,812,354 TG0, 648 % 10
Depreciation 5,835,000 6,253,080 [418,020) % "
Amortisation - Intangible assets - B4 569 (64, 668) 100%
Amortisation - Right of use assets 227 000 236,078 (8,078) -A%
Bad and doubdful debis 1,000 13430 (12430) -1243% 12
Borowing costs 20,000 20,556 [358) -1%
Fimance costs - Leases 26,000 744 4256 1d%
Other expenses 303,000 459 546 [156,548) -50% 14
Total expenzses 1,160,000 30,858,778 00,222 1%

Surphuai|deficit] for the year 3,368,000 6,365,058 2,906,812 %
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(1) Explanation of material variations

Inc:ome:

1

Rates and charges

Statuiory fees and fines

Usier fees

Graris - operating

Grants - capital

Contributiors-maonetary
Contributions -non-
Gain on disposal of
Assets

Oither income

Expenses

Increass in rales income due o supplementary rates from new subdivisions.

Favourable variance dus to increase in subdivision fees ($108K), planning application fees ($25k) and health registrafion fees ($27k).
Favowrable variance dus to increased income from tip fees ($66k), saleyard fees ($34k) and lease income ($32k).

Less than budgeted operating grant received is mainly due to undendtilised working for Vichona grant (51, 374k) which partly offset with
urbudgeted grants; local government outdoor eating & entertamment ($230k), community conmecior program (§124k), business
concierge & hospitality support ($60k), women bullding surveyors program grant ($75k), greening Eurca ($55k), GoFish Nagambie
($20k) and additicnal grants receipt for municipal emengency management [$73k).

Increase in capital grant income is mainly due to receipt of fixing couniry roads grants [$1,354k) which was originally bugeted in

2019720 year. This partly offset by gramts not yet recefved local road and community infrasiruchure funding grants ($8683k) and drought
funding grants [$200k]. The kalance amount offset by un-eamed income cartied forward.

More than budgeted dus io moreased developer contributions ($19k) and mamtenance comtribution received ($98k).

Gireater than budget by $1.364k due in grealer than anficpated Developer Gifled Assats received such a5 Vidkers Road estale
[$790k) and Vireyard estate ($3523k).

Gamn on sale of assets is mainly dwe fo bether price received on disposal of wehickes at secondhand market and betber price received
from =ale of plant and equipments at auctions.

More than kudgeted mainly dus more than budgeied income protection inswrance income [$95k) which partly offsat by decrease in
miscellaneous income.

10 Materials and services

1

DrepreciationAmorisation

12  Bad and doubiful debis

4 Otker expenzes

Materials and services less than budgeted dus to savirgs in assels mantenance expenses ($277k), savings in extemal contracior
expenses ($504K), savings in wility expersiture (5128%) and savings in fraining and development expense ($100k). This parfy offset

Iy increase in landfll provision (S538K).

Due to increased depreciation expenditurs in buildngs ($150k) and infrastruchee assets [($282k).

Increass in kad and doubtful debts is mainly dwe to write off of long owistanding unrecoverable delotor Balances which nclude
infringementipenalty charges, Health/Food regrstration fees and hinng income.

Dwue to edaction expenses ($111k) and councillor conference and training exponses ($33k) which were crigially budgeted undar
materials and services.
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Capital works

Froperty
Buildings
Total property

Plant and equipmeant

Plart, machinery and equipment
Fixtures, fifings and fumitura
Total plant and squipmant

Infrastructurs

Roads

Erdges

Footpaths and cycleways

Drainage

Recreafional, Leisure & Community FaciiSes
Parks, open space and sireetscapes

Total infrastructurs

Total capital works expenditura

Representad by:

MNew asset expenditure

Asset renewal expenditure

Asset expansion expendire
Asset upgrade expendiure

Total capital works expenditura

(i) Explanation of material varations

Raf Itam

Budgst Actual Varianca Varianca
piirl nH
$ H 5 % Ref
&78, 000 AT [413,324) 4%
BT8, 000 564,676 [413,324) A%
1,262,000 942 505 [319,493) -25% 1
570,000 247 289 [327,711) -5T% 2
1,832,000 1,184,784 (647 208) -35%
6,613,000 5,163,945 (1,449,055) -21% 3
513,000 298,308 [213,6592) 4% 4
378,000 246,431 [131,569) -35% 3
1,031,000 1,221,609 190, 609 18% [ ]
1,332,000 1,155,029 [176,971) -13% T
2 827 D00 600,296 (2,226, 704) -T9% 8
12,694,000 B.686,618 (4,007 382) -31%
15,504,000 10,436,088 (5,087 841) -313%
2,296,000 1,500,807 [795,193) -35%
9,559,000 4,395,768 (5,183,.232) -H%
2,507,000 18,884 (1,588,118) £3%
1,142 000 3,620,630 2,478 630 217%
15,504,000 10,436,020 (5,067 811) -33%
Explanation

1 Plant, machinery and equipment
2 Fixtures, fittngs and fumiture

3 Roads

] Fooipaths and cyceways

B Drairage

Facilifes

Recreational, Leisure & Community

Surplus dus to defayed replacement of grader ($220k) and large loader ($104k).
Cinema seating replacement delayed to 21722 (§130k) and other [T replacement [$150k).

Savirgs in reseal [$461k), zero class [$943k), rehabiltafion [$87k), re-sheet ($83k) and kesb & charmel [$38k)
programs. Reclassification of general buedget allocation ($255k). Work in progress projects that nesd o be
caried forward; Creek Junction Road ($401k) and Hamrys CreskiBonrie Doon Road ($346K) intersection
realignments and Magamibie Indusiral Estate Drainage ($53k). Parly offset by increased expenditure in fixing
Couniry Roads - Mullers Road, Nagambie [$440k).

Mot procesd with bridges & major culverts program [$450k) due to tenders received were too high. Partly offset
by Haerys Cresk Rioad Major Culvert work (S2368k) part of which ofginally budgeted under roads.

Savings in footpath renewal ($41) and fracks & trails ($28k) programs. Work in progress project Rocides
Padestian Footiwidgs [$45K) and projacts not undertaken due to heribge vegetation overlay Strathibogie
township foobpaths [$25k).

Increased expendiure in Ewoa - Augment Casle Creek Laves $313k which parfy offset by savings in drought
funding projects [§118k).

Work in progress project Strathbogie recreation reserve dubhouse pavilion ($245k) and Nagambis Recreation
Reserve nethall cowt/canpark (552k) which partly offset by increased expenditure in Violet town skate park
($80k] and Vicket town market infrastructure [$31k).

g FParks, open space and sireetscapes Work in progress projects drought funding (236k). Nagambie foreshore walk (677k), strectscapes rencwal

($5%9k), Nagambie active space [§70k), Magambie splash park [$43k). Projects mot staried or not progressad
($195k) and project management expenses which were allocated among projects ($400K).
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Note 2 Analysis of Council results by program
Council delivers its functions and activiies through the following programes.

2 (a) Community & Planning

Community & Planning provides high guality community focused programs. Service areas include maternal and
child health, youth, seniors, community grants, arts and culture, tounsm and economic development programs.
It alen includes strategic and statutory land use planming.

Corporate Leadership
Corporate Leaderchip provides effective governance, policy development, communication and human resources.

Corporate Operations

Corporate Operations provides strategic and financial management of the organization. Serice areas indude
regulatory services, local laws, financial management, emergency management, assets management, operations
and emergency management.

Mayor & Councillors
Mayor & Councillors provides services for mayor and elected membears.
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2 (b) Summary of revenues, expenses, assets and capital expenses by program

. Grants included
Income Expenses Surplus/iDeficit) in income Total aszets
2021 5 $ $ $ $
Community & Planning 3579188 {4,817 B62) (1,238.472) 3,044 230 47 596 608
Corporate Leaderchip 97 646 (3,143,282 (3,045 638) - 31,054,393
Corporate Operations 340291 {22 857 311) 11,085 610 10,455 369 226 809 234
Mayor & Councillors 6,363 {412,809) (406 445) 4 078,386

37,696,120  (31,331,063) 6,365,056 13499599 309,536,621

Grants included

Income Expenses Surplus/{Deficit) in income Total assets
2020 5 5 L] § $
Community & Planning 6,289 656 (5,243.401) 1,046 255 5,571,514 &4 321,780
Corporate Leadership 96,144 (2,048, 727) (1,953,583} - 25,144 377
Corporate Operations 25,152,026 (17,502, 713) 7,649313 7,145 516 214 544 629
Mayor & Councillors 4015 {351,091) (347 076} - 4 306,855

31,541,541 (25.146,932) 5,394,909 12717330 308,417 664
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Mote 3 Funding for the delivery of our services
3.1 Rates and charges

Council uses Capital Improved Value (CIV) as the baziz of valuation of all properties within the municipal distict. The CIV of a
property iz the valuation of the land and all improvements on the land.

The valuation base used to calculate general rates for 2020021 was $3.689 million (2019720 $3.514 million).

General rates

Municipal charge

Waste management charge
Special rates and charges
Total rates and charges

17.266,867 16,220,930
- 913,057
2818.705 2,689,797
- 936

20,085,572 19,824,720

The date of the latest general revaluation of land for rating purpeses within the municipal district was 1 January 2020, and the
valuation will be first applied in the rating year commencing 1 July 2020.
Annual rates and charges are recognised as revenues when Councl issues annual rates notices. Supplementary rates are
recognised when a valuation and reaszessment is completed and a supplementary rates notice issued.

3.2 Statutory fees and fines
Building fess
Planning fees
Health registrations
Animal regiztrations
Land information certficates
Fire Prevention Motice Infringements
Total statutory fees and fines

113489 66,113
395,119 217,164
27 463 14,12
98,088 83824
20,762 16,583
328 3,361
661,449 401,657

Statutory fees and fines (induding parking fees and fines) are recognised as revenue when the sernice has been provided, the

payment is received, or when the penalty has been applied, whichever first occurs.

3.3 User fees

Tip fees

Magambie Lakes evernts

Saleyard operations revenus
Swimming pools revenue

Fentlease Charges

Eurca Cinema

Sephic tank fees

(her user charges and contributions
Total user fees

Liser fees by timing of revenue recognition
Uzer fees recognized at a point In tme
Total user fees

130,006 148,373
11,910 20,320
253 464 231,9%5

3148 10,193
118,323 93337
23,687 54520
0234 14,787
126,307 89,803
747,079 661,298
7470719 B63.298
747,079 661,293

User fees are recognised as revenue at & point in time, or over time, when (or as) the performance obligation is satisfied. Recognition

i based on the underhing contractual terms.

3.4 Funding from other levels of government
(Grants were received in respect of the following
Summary of grants
Commonweal#h funded grants
State funded grants
Total grants received

9,640 626 8,629,624
3858973 2.520,740
13,499,559 11,580,364
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A 2020
$ $
(a) Operating Grants
Recumrent - Commonwealth Government
Financial Assictance Grants 5173674 5592672
Senior Citzens Grants - 2 bl
Recurrent - State Government
Matemnal & Child Heakh 221404 196,893
Community Safety 18673 9763
Youth 6,608 T
Pests and Plants Program Bl 31 Bl 231
Municipal Emergency Resource Programme 133,200 60,000
Supported Playgroup bl b3d 34 481
Vulnerable Persons Register 18,216 1154/
Boat Ramp Maintenancs 170 8,500
School Crossing Supervision 30,205 24 B98
Other 25241 490
Total recurrent operating grants 6,418,510 6,107 410
Non-recurrent - Commonwealth Government
Ervironmental planning - 5,000
Tourism & Events 51,100 -
Non-recurrent - State Government
LGA Small Scale Infrastructure Grant - 10,395
Economic Development 60,000 -
Greening Euroa 65,350 -
Environment 10,000 -
Toursm & Evenis 290,000 -
Emergency & Disaster Management 121,006 316,561
Working for \ictonia b5 B4 191,631
Plarnirg and Business Caze 2,500 58,271
Creafive Victonz-Youth - 25000
WaterWaterways Management - 28,000
Rural Council Victoria Summit - A0,000
Other 40,000 -
Total non-recurrent operating grants 1,295 856 1,298 158
Total operating grants 7,714,366 7 405 568
(b} Capital Grants
Recurrent - Commonwealth Government
Roads to recovery 2154 37 4154 352
Total recurrent capital grants FEL Ry FRLVRLY

Non-recurrent - Commonwealth Government
Drought Funding 900,000 900,000
Infraztructure Funding Grant 196,300 B
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2 2020
$ $
Non-recurrent - State Government
Roads and Bridges 1,503,668 886,194
Buildings Y633 115,000
Recreation F45,000 55 300
Footpaths - 5000
Pick My Project - 9,350
Other Flood Recovery Grants 41280 18,720
Flood Event 12/2017-Capital * - (127 125)
Environment - Capital - B0 406
Total non-recurrent capital grants 1625881 215444
Total capital grants 5785233 4174796
() Unspent grants received on condition that they be spent in a specific manner
Operating
Balance at start of year 273,582 30,000
Received during the financial year and remained unspent at balance date 160,800 273,582
Received in pricr years and spent during the financial year (129.210) (30,000
Balance at year end 305,172 273,582
Capital
Balance at start of year 1,164 948 ]
Received during the financial year and remained unspent at balance date 3401555 1,164 945
Received in pricr years and spent during the financial year (1,164,948) 0
Balance at year end 3,401 555 1,164,948
(Grant income is recognized at the point in time when the council satishies its performance obligations az specified in the underdying
agreement.
* 2020 - Dekit balance in grant income is due o reversal of excess income accreed in 201819 which indude flocd event grant
$112.125 and Southem Aurora Memonal Garden grant $15,000.
15 Contributions
Monetary 311,706 355,983
Mon-monetary 1,363611 -
Total contributions 1,675,317 355 983
Contrbutions of non monetary assefs were recenved in relation to the following assef dasses.
Foads 330,009 -
Kerb & Channel 102,560 -
Footpath 278450 -
Crainage 601,892 -
Land under roads a0, 00 -
Total non-monetary contributions 1,363,611 -
Monetary and non monetary contributions are recognised as revenue when Council obiaine confrol over the contnbuied assst.
3.6 Met gain{loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment
Procesds of sale h43 29 26214
Written down value of assets disposed (399.427) (162, 370)
Total net gainf{loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 143 869 9,764

The profit or loss on sale of an asset iz determined when control of the aszet has passed to the buyer.
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2N 2020
3.7 Other income $ $
Irterest 105520 162 861
Interest on rates 122 904 101,606
Diesel rebaie 65,917 64 318
Insurance recoveries %576 22 586
Crther 93,891 103,572
Total other income 483 808 474 943

Interest is recognized as it iIs eamed.

(rher mcome is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is recognized when Councll gaing condrol

over the nght to receive the income.

Mote 4 The cost of delivering services
4.1 (a) Employee costs

Wazes and zalanes
WorkCover
Superannuation

Fringe benefits tax
(Ciher

Total employee costs

{b) Superannuation
Council made contributions to the following funds:

Defined benefit fund

Employer contributions to Local Authories Superannuation Fund (Vision Super)
Employer coninbufions - other funds

Employer contributions payakle at reporting date.

Accumulation funds

Employer contributions to Local Authories Superannuation Fund (Vision Super)
Employer coninbutions - other funds

Employer coninbutions payable at reporting date.

Refer to note 9.3 for further information relating to Council's superannuation obligations.

4.2 Materials and services

Building mainienance
(General mainienance
Utiiies

Office administration
Information technology
[nzurance

Conzultants

Legal fees

Emergency Expense
Waste Management
Total materials and services

10592117 §,961,109
190,742 173,593
954 147 828,063

84 695 134,925
256,010 17121
12,078,311 10334,811
59,242 61,144
5247 6114
449 024 422704
428532 326,91
877 556 749 625
17949 17294
648 836 441 156

4205400 4,108,108

297979 267,025

1,565,734 1,493 265
760,836 £87 652
374 095 326,537
1065114 1,235.1%0
14041 134,774
1,389 434,399
2 152 560 2169904
11812354 11318010
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201 2020
4.3 Depreciation § $
Property 1,030 464 965 865
Plant and equipment 444 ART 4220
Furniture and Equipment 187 672 161,768
Infrastructure 4 530 467 4,441 143
Total depreciation 6,253,000 6,030,978

Refer fo nofe 5.2{ ¢ ), 5.8 and 6.2 for 3 more detaied breakdown of depreciation and amorfization changes and accounting policy.

4.4 Amortisation - Intangible assets

Software M,Eﬁi 59,341
Total Amortisation - Intangible assets 64,669 59 845
4.5 Amortisation - Right of use assets
Property 9208 9,206
Plant and equipment 226 872 190 526
Total Amortisation - Right of use assets 236,078 199732
4 i Bad and doubtful debts
Rates debiors - 429
(Other debiors 13430 49 804
Total bad and doubtful debts 13,430 50,233
Movement in provisions for doubtful debts
Balance at the beginning of the year 15,80 7,025
Mew provisions recogrised during the year 7436 28 806
Amounts already provided for and witien off as uncollectible (3,710) -
Amounts provided for but recovered during the year {1,964) -
Balance at end of year 9573 35,831

Provizion for doubtful debt is recognised bazed on an expected credit lozs model. This model conzaders both historic and forward
locking information in determining the level of impairment.

4.7 Borrowing costs
Interest - Borrowings 20,536 23,783
Total borrowing costs 20,556 25,783

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the perod in which they are mcurmred, except where they are capitalised as part of a
qualifyng aseet constructed by Council.

4.8 Finance Costs - Leases

Interest - Lease Liabilifies 2,744 21,467
Total finance costs 1,744 21 467
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A 2020
49 Other expenses $ $
Auditors' remuneration - VAGOD - audit of the financial statements, performance statement
and grant acoquitials 41600 48,400
Auditars' remuneration - Intemal 57743 50,890
Councillors' allowances 193618 196,479
(Other Councillor expenses 43388 11,724
WOV of Infrastructure Azzets Renewed 12 650 170,940
Election Expenses 1_1 0.547 26676
Total other expenses 450 546 505,109
Mote 5 Our financial position
5.1 Financial assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents
(Cash on hand 1293 1827
(Cach at bank 2948776 1,621,845
Term deposits 2 600,000 1,250,000
Total cash and cash equivalents 5,550,069 2873672
(b) Other financial assets
Share in MAV Purchazing Scheme 2032 2032
Term deposits - current 17,350,000 13,704 764
Total other financial assets 17,352,032 13,706, 796
Total financial assets 22902101 16,580 463
Councilz cash and cash eguivalents are subject to external restricions that limit amounts availzble
for discretionary use. Theze include:
- Trust funds and deposits (Note 5.3) 555,222 445677
Total restricted funds 55 222 445 677
Total unrestricted cash and cash equivalents 4 994 847 2427 995
Intended allocations
Although not externally resinicied the following amownts have been allocated for spechic future
purpozes by Council:
- Cash held to fund carried forward capital works 3,138,000 3.498.000
- Open space resenve 185,178 106,958
- Caravan Park (operating and capital expense) 112,391 73289
Total funds subject to intended allocations 3,495,569 3,680 247

(Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposiiz at call, and other highly liguid Investments with original maturities of three
months or less, net of outstanding bank overdrafis.

(her financial assetz are valued at fair value, at balance date. Term deposiis are measured at origingl cost. Any unresBzsed gaing and
lozses on holdinge at balance date are recognized as either a revenue or expenge.
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21 2020
(c) Trade and other receivables $ L]
Current
Fates debiors 2,157 164 213307
Special rate azsessment 11,886 9,184
Met GST Recewable 142 794 212 515
(her debtors 285,749 797840
Provision for doubthul debts - other debiors (9.573) (35,831)
Total current trade and other receivables 2588020 3,118,075
Mon-current
Statutory receivables
Special rate scheme 4109 h 513
Total non-current trade and other receivables 43,096 57,513
Total trade and other receivables 2631116 3,175,588

Short term receivables are carried at invoice amount. A provision for doubtful debts is recognized when there is objective evidence that
an impairment has occurred.  Long term receivables are camied at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

(d) Ageing of Receivables
The ageing of the Council's frade and other receivables (excluding statutory receivables) that are not impaired was:

Current (not vet due) 23618 504 879
Past due by up to 30 days 72204 2454
Past due between 31 and 180 days 46 350 163,932
Pact due between 181 and 365 days 128,910 43 255
Past due by more than 1 year 14 667 83320

Total trade and other receivables 285,749 797 840
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5.2 Non-financial assets 204 2020
(a) Other azsats 5 %
Prepayments 407 803 253,819
Accrued income 172,887 504 824
Iveniofies 9330 5289
Total other asscta 20,030 T8, 532

(b} Intangible zasats

Software 79,167 106,703
Total intangible assats 78,187 108,703
Software Tofal
Gross carmying amount
Balance at 1 July 2020 520,048 020,048
(Orher addibions 37,132 3T 132
Balance at 1 July 2021 B57,180 957 180
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Balance at 1 July 2020 B13344 813,344
Amortisation expense 64 BED 4 880
Balance at 1 July 2021 878,013 78013
Net ook value at 30 June 2020 108,704 108,704
Net ook value at 30 June 2021 78,187 79167

Intangitle assets with finite lives are amorised as an expense on a systematic kasis over the asset's useful life. AmorEsation is generally calculated on a straighd
line pasis, at a rate that allocates the asset value, less any estimated residual value over its estimated useful life. Estimates of the remaining useful lives and
amortisation method are reviewed at least annually, and adjustiments made where appropriate.

3.3 Payables
{a) Trade and other payables
Trade payables 2642774 1,646,354
Accrusd expenses 537,034 507,919
Total trade and other payablea 3170808 2,154,303

{b) Trust funds and deposits

Gurrent

Fire services levy &7 292 114,670
Retention amounts 185,683 133,432
Criher refundable deposts 247 084 133372
Total Gurrent trust funds and depoaita 300,056 301,474
Non-cument

Trust funds bequested 35,166 4,203
Total Mon-Gurrant frust funds and depoaits S5, 168 64203
Total trust funds and deposits 535,222 445 877

{c) Unearnad incoma

Geants received in advance - operating 305,172 213582
Grants received in advance - capital 3401 555 1,164 948
Oher - 3,182
Total unsarmed incoms 1708727 1,441,712

Amounts received as deposits and retention amounts confrolled by Council are recognised a5 bust fumds until they are returnad, fransfermed in accondance with

the pumpose of the receipt, or fodfeited. Trust fumds that are forfeited, resulting in council gaining contral of fhe funds, are to be recognised as revenue at the fime
of forfieit

Purpese and nature of tems

Fire Service Levy - Council is the collection agent for fire services lavy on behalf of the Siate Government. Councll remits amounts received on a <<monthiy>>

basis. Amounts dischosed here will be remitied bo the staie government in line with that process.

Retention Amounts - Council has a contractual right to refain certain amounts until a contractor has met certain requirements or a related warant or defect

period has elapsed. Sukject to the satisfactory complefion of the contractual obBigations, or the elapsing of ime, these amounts will be paid to the relevant
contractor in line with Council's confraciual obligations.
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5.4 Interest-bearing labilities 20 2020
5 $
Current
Bomowings - secured 91,000 B5 116
21,000 B6 118
Mon-cumant
Baomowings - secured 191 425 282425
191,425 282425
Total 282 425 368,541

Bomowings are secured by a registered charge over the coundl rates on the Personal Property Security Register.

{a) The maturity profile for Council's borrowings is:

Mot later than one year 91,000 BE 116
Later tham one year and naot later than five years 191 425 282 425
Later than five years - -

282 425 368,541

Baorrowings are initially measured at fair value, being the cost of fhe interest bearing liakdifies, net of transaction costs. The measurement basis subsequent to
initial recognition depends on whether the Council has categonised its interest-bearing liakilities as either financial kakdities designated at fair value through the
prafit and loss, or financial liakdities at amortised cost. Any diference between the initial recognised amownt and the redemption value is recognised in net result
over the period of the borrowing using the effective interest method.

The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the interest bearing lakiities. The Council determines the classificaion of its inferest beanng liakiliies
at imitial recognition.

3.5 Provisions

Employes Landifill Tatal
reatoration

202 $ $ H
Balance at beginning of the financial year 2,830,990 5,397 483 8448433
Additional provisions 1,248,685 - 1,248,695
Amounts used (756,028 - [756,028)
Change in the discounted amount arising because of _
fime and the affect of any change in the discount rate (54,630 538,034 473404
Balance at the end of the financial year 3,279,027 6,135,497 8,414,524
2020
Balance at beginning of the financial year 2748190 5,577,198 8,323 388
Additional provisions 1,030,226 - 1,030,226
Amounts used (B88,515] - [B88.515)
Change in the discounted amount arising because of
fime and the effect of any change in the discount rate (36.911] 20,265 (16,646)

Balance at the end of the financial year 2,850,880 5,587,463 8,448 453
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2 2020
{a) Employes provisions § $
Current provisions expected to be wholly ssttled within 12
Annual leave 745,568 415968
Long sarvice leave 203,184 34103
Other 444 M a44
B80,183 481,513
Current provisions expected to be wholly settled after 12
Annual leave 571,070 578246
Long service leave 1,410,446 1,551 652
1,881,518 2,128,898
Total current smployes provisions 2,061,708 2,611,413
Non-curment
Long service leave M7 318 238,577
Total non-current employes provisions M7 318 23 577
Aggregate carrying amount of employee provisions:
Current 2,561,709 2611413
Non-current M7 3ie 238577
Total aggregate carrying amount of employes provisions dare ozt 2,850,880

The calculation of employee costs and benefits includes all relevant on-costs and are calculated as follows at reporting date.

Wages and salaries and annual leave

Liakiliies for wages and salaries, including nom-monetary benefits, anmual leave and accumulated sick leave expacied o be wholly setied within 12 months of
fhe reporting date are recognisad in the provision for employes benefits in respect of employee senices up to the reporting date, classified as curent liabilities
and measured at their nominal values.

Liakilities that are not expected to be wholly setiled within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised in the provision for employee benefits as current
liakilities, measured at the present value of the amounts expected to be paid when the liakikties are setfied using fe remuneration rate expecied to apply at the
fime of setiement

Long service leave
Liakility for long service leave [LSL) is recognised in the provision for employee benafits. L5L is measured at present value. Unconditional LSL &= disdosed asa
current liakdity. Conditional LSL that has been accrued, where an employee is yet to reach a qualifying term of employment, is disclosed as a mon - current

lialbility.
20 2020
Key assumptiona: % %
- discount rate 0.88% 0.87%
- index rate 1.70% 1.60%
{b} Landfill restoration 5 $
Current 1,622,436 1,084 402
Mon-current 4,513,062 4 513,062
£,135 498 5,507 464

Cowncil &= chligated to restore [landfll] ste to a particular standard.  The forecast life of the sie is based on curent estimates of remaining capacity and the
forecast rate of infil. The provision for landfll restoration has been caloulated Basad on the present value of the expectad cost of works to be undertaken. The
expecied costof works has been esiimated based on cument understanding of work required to reinstate the site bo a suitable standard. Accordingly, the
estimation of the provision required is dependent on the accuracy of the forecast timing of the work, work required and related costs.

20 2020
Key assumptiona: % %
- discount rate 0.88% 0.87%
- index rate 1.90% 1.25%

3.6 Financing arrangements

The Cowncl has the following fumding arangemends in place as at 30th June 2021.

Bank overdraft 1,145,000 2,280,000
Loan faciiies 282,424 368,541
Credit card facilities 400,000 100,000
Total facilitie 1,527 424 2,758,541
Used facilfies {280,214) (376,383

Unused facilitiss 1237210 2382178




Strathbogie Shire Council Page 193 21/09/21
Council Meeting Agenda

Strathbogie Shire Council Notes to the Financial Report
202012021 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2021

3.7 Commitmenta
The Couwncd has entered indo the following commitments. Commitments are not recognised in the Balance Sheet Commitments are disciosed at their nominal
value and presented inclusive of the GST payakle.

Latsr than 1 Later than 2
year and not  years and not
Mot later than 1 later than 2 later than 3 Later than 5

201 year yaara yaars years Total
] ] ] ] ]
Oparating
Cpen space management 93251 158 849 - - 232,100
Consultancies 13 992 13,992 - - 2T 085
Home care sepvices 49 008 449,008 - a0
Cleaning contracts for council buldings 6,940 [29,493) - HT M7
Emergency 161,878 - - - 161,878
Assels 4 243 4242
Environment & Waste 43,598 43,598 43,598 130,783
Total Tiz2908 11 850 14,103 43 508 B92 460
Capital
Buildings - - - - -
Roads 1,890 621 - - - 1,880,621
Drainags - - - - -
Total 1,800,621 - - - 1,800,621

Latsr than 1 Later than 2
yoar and not  years and not
Mot |ater than 1 later than 2 later than 3 Later than 5

2020 year years yaars years Total
$ s 5 ] $
Operating
COpen space management 218,391 - - - 219,391
Gaovemance 90497 - - - &) 497
Home care samvices 13992 13,609 - - 27,801
Cleaning contracts for council buldings 44 553 44 553 122 - B3 228
Total 168,433 38,162 122 - 428,717
GCapital
Buildings - - - - -
Roads - - - - -
Drainage - - - B, -
Total - - - - -
3.8 Leasss

At imcepdon of a confract, all entities would assess whether a confract is, or contains, a lease. A confract i, or confains, a kease if the contract conveys the rght
to controd the wse of an identified asset for a pericd of time in exchange for consideration. To identfy whether a confract conveys the right fo conirol the use of
an identified asset, it is necessary bo assess whether:

- The coriract imctves the use of an idenlified asset

- The customer has the Aght to obilain sulstntially all of the economic bershits from use of the asset throughout the period of use; and

- The customer has the right to direct the use of the asset.
This policy is applied fo contracts enfered into, or changed, on or after 1 July 2019.
As a lessee, Council recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease akdiy at the lease commencement date. The righi-of-use asset is nitially measured at cost
which comprises the inifial amount of the lease abiity adjusted for:

- any lease payments made at or before fie commencement date less any lease ncentives received; plus

- any inifial direct costs incured; and

- an esfmate of costs o dismantle and remove the underdying asset or to resiore the underlying asset or the sie on which it = located.
The right-of-use assst is subsequently depreciated using the straightline method fom e commencement date to the earker of te end of he useful e of the
right-of-use assetor the end of he lease term. The estimated wseful lives of ight-of-use assels are determined on the same base as those of property, plant
and equipment. In addition, the nght-of-use asset is pericdically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain measurements of the lease
liakility.
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The lease liakdity is mitally measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the inberest
rate imglicit in the lease or, if that rate cannat ke readily determined, an appropriate incremental borowing rate. Generally, Councl uses an appropriate
inzremental bomowinig rate as the discount mate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease Rabilty comprse the following:
- Fixed payments
- Varalele lease payments that depend on an index or 3 rate, mitially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date;
- Amounts expected fo ke payable under 3 residual value quarantes; and
- The exercise prce under a purchase opfion that Council is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in an optional renewal period if Coundl is
reasonably certain fo exercise an extension opfion, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless Council is reasonably certain not to terminate
early.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a comesponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or i recorded in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Cowncdl has elecied to apply the temporary option availakble under AASE 16 Leases which allows nof-for-profit entiies to not measwre right-of-use assets at
initial recognition at fair value in respect of leases that have significantly kelow-market tems.

Right-of-Use Assets Plant &
Proparty Equipment Total

$ $ H
Balance at 1 July 2019 36 822 B44 775 681,587
Additions - 390,665 390,665
Amortisation charge [9.206) [190,526) (199,732)
Balance at 30 June 2020 27 816 B44.914 872,530
Balance at 1 July 2020 27 516 B44 914 872,530
Additions - - -
Amortisation charge [8.208) [226,871) (236,077)
Balance at 30 June 2021 18,410 618,043 636,453
Lease Liabilities 202 2020
Maturity analysis - contractual undiscounted cash flows % 1
Less than one year 184393 250,791
One o five years 492 559 B9 556
Maore than five years - -
Total undiscounted lease liabilities as at 30 Juns: 86,952 a1 347

Lease liakiities included in the Balance Shest at 30 Jume:

Currart 178,337 230,029
MNon-current 4741083 652421
Total lease liabilitiea G52 420 802450
Shorf-ferm and fow value leases

Cowncll has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liakiities for short-term leases of machinery that have a lease ferm of 12 months or less and
leases of low-value assets (individual assets work less than existing capitalisation thresholds for a ke asset up fo a maximum of ALD$10,000), including IT
eguipment. Counc recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-ine basis over the lease term.

2021 2020

Expanses relating to: $ $
Short-term leases 16.490 16,564
Leases of low value assets - -

Total 16,480 16,584
Varakle lease payments [rof incuded = memsummert of [ease esiffes) - -

Note & Assats we manage 20 2020
6.1 Non current asssts classifisd 28 held for sals $ $
Cost of acquisition 417,384 630 384

Total non current assets classified as held for sale 17 384 600,384

Monr-current assets classified as held for sake (inclwding disposal groups) are measured at the lower of its carrying amount and fair value less costs of disposal,
and are not sukject to depreciabion. Non-current assets, disposal growes and related liakiliies and assets are reated as curent and dassified as held for sale i
their carrying amount will k= recovered through a sale transachion rather than through confinuing use. This condilion is regarded as met only when the sale is
hiahlv probakle and the assef's sake (or diseosal arous sake) & emected to be comedeted within 12 months from the date of dassification.
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6.2 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment

Summary of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment

Property

Plant and equipment
Infrastructure

Work in progress

Summary of Work in Progress

Property

Plant and equipment
Infrastructure

Total

At Fair Value - Contribution . L . B, Transfers/ At Fair Value
30 June 2020 Additions 5 Revaluation Depreciation Disposal Write-off Reclassification 30 June 2024
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

62,053,067 1.518,202 50,700 (4.452,184) (1.030.483) - - 06,839 58,206,241

4 553,083 1.147.862 - - (632,158) (126,427} (882) - 4,041,287
213,027,857 4,226,008 1,312,811 41,728 (4.580.467) (12.,850) - 402,341 214,707,824
1,184,182 3.507.018 - - - - (50,266) (488,180) 4,171,752
280818278 10,398,976 1,363,611 (4,110,458) (6,253,089) (139,077) {51,158) - 282 027,083
- . . Transfers/ :
Opening WIF  Additions Write-off Reclassification Closing WIP
$ $ $ $ $
267,806 48,409 (41,388) (211.060) 683,879
916,286 3,458,807 (8,200} (258.120) 4,107,873
1,184 182 3,507,016 |50,266) (469,180) 4 171,752
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(a) Property
Land-  Land-non Landunder . Buildings - B"'::':“'i T Total Cultural and Workln & o operty
specialised specialised roads specialised - Buildings  heritage assets Progress
specialised
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
At fair value 1 July 2020 26,172,407 5,861,777 214,085 32,248 249 80872450 3,305,876 64178127 2,268,800 267,506 58,993,172
Accumulated depreciation at 1 July 2020 - - - - (35.705.541) (1.083,144) (36,798,685) - - (36,798 685)
26,172 407 5,861,777 214,065 32,248,249 25 166,910 2,212,532 27,379 442 2,298,300 267,896 62,194 487
Movements in fair value
Additicns - - - - 1.518,282 - 1,518,252 - 48,408 1,566,701
Contributions - - 50,700 50,700 - - - - - 50,700
Reclassification (26.172,407) 26,172,407 - - - - - - (17.755) (17,755)
Revaluation - (4.337,184) - (4,337, 184) - - - - - (4,337,184)
Disposal - - - - - - - - - -
Write-off - - - - - - - - (41,386) (41,366)
Prior year revaluation adjustment - - - - (715,000) - (715, 000) - - {715,000)
Transfers - - - - 193,305 - 193, 305 - {193,305) -
(26.172,407) 21,835,223 50,700 (4,286 484) 056,507 - 5996, 597 - {204.017) (3,493,304)
Movements in accumulated depreciation
Depreciation and amortisation - - - - (1.030,463) - {1,030,463) - - (1,030,4563)
Accumulated depreciation of disposals - - - - - - - - - -
Prior year revaluation adjustment - - - - G00.000 - &0, 000 - - 00,000
Transfers - - - - - - - - - -
- - = - 1430.463) - (430_463) - - [430,463)
At fair value 30 June 2021 - 27,687,000 264,785 27,961,765 81,860,047 3,305,876 65,174,723 2,268,800 3,870 595,499 268
Accumulated depreciation at 30 June 2021 - - - - (36.138,003) (1.083,144) (37,229,148) - - (37,229 148)

- 27,697,000 264,765 27,961,765 25,733,044 2212532 27945576 2,298,900 63,879 58,270,120
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{b) Plant and Equipment

Cultural and
Plant Fixtures heritage
machinery and fittings and assets - Arts Total I.,Ia"t and
equipment furniture & equipment
Monuments
$ $ $ $

At fair value 1 July 2020 4,844 540 3.843 365 2,148,850 10,834 864
Accumulated depreciation at 1 July 2020 3.148,116 3.132,865 - 6,281 781

1,695 434 710,699 2,146,950 4 553 083
Movements in fair value
Additions 242 505 205,157 - 1,147 662
Contributions. - - - -
Revaluation - - - -
Disposal (778.,781) - - (778,781)
Wite-off (882) - - (892)
Transfer 288,418 (885,419) - -

1,051 251 (683, 262) - 367 989
Movements in accumulated depreciation
Depreciation and amortisation (444 487) (187.872) - (632,159)
Accumulated depreciation of disposals 662,353 - - 652,353
Transfer (813,344) 813,344 - -

(G05,.478) 625,872 - 20,184

At fair value 20 June 2021 5,505,800 3,160,103 2,148,850 11,202,853
Accumulated depreciation at 30 June 2021 (3.754,503) (2.506,903) - 6,261, 586)

2,141,207 653,109 2,146,950 4,941,267
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{c) Infrastructure
. Footpaths ) Kerb and Parks open ll::ull'u_ral and Work In Total
Roads Bridges and Drainage channel spaces and heritage Progress Infrastructure
cycleways streetscapes assets
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
At fair value 1 July 2020 185,330,842 82,743,420 4,808,218 16,378,080 6,587,807 22,012 888 2,288,283 216,288 311,174,020
Accumulated depreciation at 1 July 2020 (57.900,801) (19,267.341) (1,445,484} (4.433,107) (2.638,792) (11417787} - - {97,103, 311)
137 430 142 43 476 085 3 460 735 11,944 983 3959115 10 595 093 2 288 263 916,286 214 070 709

Movements in fair value
Additicns 1.851,242 830,302 224 167 827281 84,288 228,608 - 3.458.807 7,684 613
Contributions 330,009 - 278,450 801,882 102,560 - - - 1,312,911
Reclassification - - - - - - - 17.755 17,755
Revaluation - - - - - {1,268,418) - - (1,268,419)
Disposal - (79,634) - - - - - - (79,634)
Write-off - - - - - - - {8,900) (8,300)
Transfers 9,541 103,288 16,081 114,878 - 28,688 - (275.875) -

2,200,782 053,058 521,728 1,544,151 166,846  (1,110,733) - 3,181,587 7,558 326
Movements in accumulated depreciation
Depreciation and amortisation (3,049 218) (B45,808) (108,338) (158,347 (113,108) [515,708) - - (4,590 48T)
Accumulated depreciation of disposals - B, 584 - - - - - - 66,984
Revaluation - - - - - 1,710,145 - - 1,710,145
Transfers - - - - - - - - -

(3,049, 218) (5T78.712) {108,338) (158,387 (113,108} 1,184,436 - - (2,813, 338)
At fair value 20 June 2021 197,821,734 83,807,382 5427048 17,922,240 6,784,763 20902, 153 2,288,283 4,107,873 318,732 346
Accumulated depreciation at 30 June 2021 (80,950,019} (18,846,053) {1,553,822) (4.501,504) (2.751.,801) (10,223,351} - - {99 916 649)

136671716 43 851 329 3874 126 13330736 4012852 10678802 2 J88 763 4107 873 218 815697
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Acguisition

The purchase methed of accounting is wsed for all acguisitions of assets, being the fair value of assets provided as consideration at the date of
Where assets ane constructed by Council, cost inciudes all materials wsed in construction, direct labour, Borowing costs ncumred during
consiruction, and an appropriate share of directly attibuiable varabkle and fied overheads.

In acoordance with Council's policy, the theeshold limits have applied when recognising assets within an applicable asset dass and wnless otherwise
siafed are consisient with the prior year.

Penod
Asset recognition thresholds and depreciafion periods H
Proparty
land - 10,000
Buildings
buidings 10 to 100 years 5,000
Plant and Equipmant
plant, machinery and equipment 2 to 20 years 1,000
fumiture and equipment 2to 10 years 1,000
leasad plant and equipment inciuding right of use asseis 3 to 5 years 5,000
Infrastructurs
road pavemants - sealed 40 to 130 years 5,000
road pavements - unsealed 25 to 40 years 5,000
road seals 18 to 40 years 5,000
formation and earfworks 100 years 5,000
bridges deck 50 to 120 years 5,000
bridges subsiruchure &0 i 250 years 5,000
culvers &40 i 250 years 5,000
footpaths 10 b2 60 years 5,000
dramage 100 years 5,000
parks open spaces and streetscapes 13 o 100 years 5,000
ket and channel 50 o 100 years 5,000
cultural and heritage asssts - 5,000
Land under roads
Counci recognises land under roads it controds at fair value.
Depreciation and amortisation

Buildings, land improvements, plant and equipment, nfrastruchere, and other assats having limited useful lves are systematically depreciated over
their useful ves fo the Councl in & manner which reflects consumption of the senvice potential embodied in those assets. Estimates of remaining
useful lives and residual values are made on a regular basis with major asset classes reassessed annually. Depreciation rates and methods are
reviewed annualy.

Where assets have separate identifiable components that are subject o regular replacement, these components are assigned distinet useful lves
and residual values and a separate depreciation rate is determined for each component

Rioad eartiworks are not depreciated on the basis that they are assessed as not having a limited useful life.

Sitraight ine dapreciation is changed kased on the residual usaful life a5 defermined each year.

Crepreciation periods wsed are li=ted above and are consistent with the prioe year unless otherwise stated.

Repairs and maintenance
Where fhe repair relates to the replacement of 3 component of an assst and the cost exceeds the capitalisation threshold the cost is capitalised and
depreciated. The carying vale of the replaced asset is expensed.

Leasehold improvements
Leasehold imgrovements are recognised at cost and are amortised over the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated wseful lifie of the
improwement, whichever is the shorter. At balance date, there are no leasehold improvements.
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Valuation of land and buildings

Valuation of land were underaken by a qualified independent valuer APY Valuers & Assets Management in June 2021. The valuation of land is at
fair value, being market value based on highest and best use permitted by relevant [and planning provisions. Depending upon fie nature of the
specilic assefs the valuation approach has incuded the adopdon of a sngular or mulple techniques; Market approach or Cost approach. Where
land use i restricted through existing planning provisions the valuation s reduced to reflect this limitation. This adustment i an unokservable input
in the valuation. The adjusiment has no impact on the comprehensive income statement.

Specdalised land is valued at fair value using site values adjusted for englobo (umdeveloped andior unserviced) characieristics, access rights and
privaie interests of other parties and enfilements of infrastructure assets and semices. This adjustment is an unokservable input in the valuation.
The adusiment has no impact on the comprehensive income statement. However, Level 2 inputs has been assumed by default for all land parcels,
as there is obsemakle market evidence.

Any significant movements in the unobservable inputs for land and land under roads will have a significant impact on the fair value of these assets.

The date of the current valuation s detailed in the following table.

Land and kuilding asset values disclosed in the financial statements are not expected o be matesially impacted by COVID-19 as at 30 June 2021. A
formal revaluation was undertaken for buidings and structures in June 2020 and land in June 2021.

Dhetails of the Councils land and buidings and information about the fair value hisrarchy as at 30 June 2021 are as fiollows:

Lawal 1 Laweld Level 3  Date of Valuation
Laind - 27 697,000 - Jun-21
Specalsed land - - - Jun-21
Land under roads - - 264,765 Jun-18
Heritzge Buidings - - 2298 %00 Jun-20
Buidings & site improvements - 2212532 25 733 044 Jun-20
Total - 0,908 532 28 206,709

Level 1 Inputs are quoted prices (unadusted) in active markets for identical assets or EabiliBes that the enSily can access at the measurement date.
Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are obsenakle for the asset or Kabdity, either directly or indirectly.

Valuation of infrastructure

The valuabion is at fair value as at 30 June 2020 plus all 2020021 additions at cost and is based on replacement cost less accumulated depreciation
as at the date of valuation. The base valuation of mnfrastructure assets conducted at 30 June 2020 was made by Uwe Paffrath, Cerfified Municipal
Engineer.

Parks, open space and sireetscapes were assessed as part of the 2020-2021 Open Spaces condition assessment contract by extemal Contractors
Maorphum Environmental (Bruce Stephens Level 3 Playground Assessor). Replacement unit rates have been applied o the asset condition to armve
at revaluabion figure as at 30th June and reviewed by Uwe Paffrath, Cerified Municipal Engineer.

The date of the current valuation i detailed in the following table.
The valuabion is at fair value based on replacement cost less accumulated depreciabion as at the date of valuation.

Dwetails of the Councils mfrastructure and information about fe fair value hierarchy as at 30 June 2021 are as follows:

Laval 1 Level2 Level 3  Date of Valuation

Roads - - 136,671,716 Jun-13
Bridges - - 43,851,329 Jun-13
Footpaths and cycleways - - 3874 126 Jun-19
Drainage - - 13,330,736 Jun-13
Ker and channel - - 4012852 Jun-19
Parks, open space and sireetscapes - - 10,678,802 Jun-21
Total - - 212,410,501

Description of significant unobservable inputs into level 3 valuations

Specialised land and land under roads s valued using a market based direct comparison fechnique. Significant unobservable npults nclude the
extent and impact of restriction of use and the market cost of land per square metre. The exient and impact of restrictions on use vares and results
in @ reduction to surrourding land valees between B5% and 95%. The market value of land varies significantly depending on the location of the
land and the curent market conditions. Currently land values range bebween $0.48 and $565 per square metre.

Specialised buildings are valued using a depreciated replacement cost technique. Significant unckservalble inputs include the curent
replacement cost and remaining useful ves of buldings. Current replacement costs are caloulated on a square metre basis and ranges from $200
to $700 per square metre. The remaining wseful ives of buildings are determined on the basis of the curent condition of bulldings and vary from 20
years to 120 years. Replacement cost is sensitive to changes in market conditions, with any increase or decrease in cost flowing through o the
valuation. Usefd ves of buldings are sensitive o changes in expectations or requirements that could eifher shorien or extend the wseful lives of

buildings.
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Infrastructure assets are valued based on the deprecated replacement cost.  Significant unobservable inputs nclude the current replacement
cost and remaining useful lives of infrastructare. The remaining useful Fves of infrastructure assets are determined on the basis of the current
condifion of the assat and vary from 18 years fo 120 years. Replacement costis sensitive to changes in market conditions, with ary increase or
decrease in cost flowing through to the valuabion. Usefu lves of infrastructure are sensitive to changes in use, expectations or reguirements that
could either shosten or extend the useful lves of nfrastrecture assets.

021 2020
Reconciliation of apecialised land L] $
Parks and reserves - 19,287 996
Waste management - 937,303
Civic centres - 2448 870
Counci depts - 673,883
Caravan parks - 2088281
Pre schaols - 399 599
Saleyards - 138 475

Total apacialiaed land - 26,172,407
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202 2020
6.3 Investments in associates, joint arrangements and subsidianss 5 $
(a) Investmanis in associates
- Gouleurn Valley Regional Likbrary Corporation 255,287 227,146

Goulbum Valley Regional Library Corporation

Background

The Goulbum Valley Regional Library Corporation was formed under the provisions of secon 195 of the Local Government Act 1989 on
1300920049 to provide lrary services within the local govemment area of Strathbogie Shire, Moira Shire and City of Greater Shepparion.
Council hodds 9 89% (2019720 9.88%) of eguity in the Comporation. Coundl has beo directors on the board of nine. Counci has the ability
to influence rather than control s operations.

Fair valus of Councils imsestment in Goulburn Valley Library Corporation 235,287 227 146

CGouncil's share of accumulated surpluai{deficit)

Council's share of accumulated surplus{defict) at start of year 227 145 218432
Reported sunplus[deficit) for year 28,141 B 714
Council's share of accumulated surplus{deficit] at end of year 235,287 227 146
Movement in camying vwalus of specific investment

Carrying value of imvestment at start of year 227 145 218432
Shiare of surplus|deficit) for year 28141 B 714
Share of asset revaluation -

Distribations recaived - -
Carrying vale of mvestment at end of year 235,287 227,148

Asspaates are all enfibes over which Council has significant influence but not control or joint conirol. Invesiments in assooiates are
accounted for using fhe equiy method of accounting, after iniSally being recognised at cost

Gommitiess of management

All entiies controlled by Cowncl that have matenal revenues, axpensas, assets or liabiliies, such as committess of management, have
b=en included in this financial report  Any ransactions belween these entiies and Council have been eliminated in full.

Avenel Memaral Hall

Creighton's Creek Recreation Reserve
Ewroa Band Hall

Ewroa Frendies Reserve

Gaoram Soldiers' Memarial Hall
Longwood Community Cenire

Miegoll Pulslic Hall

Moglonemiy Hall

Nagambie Recreation Resarve

Ruffy Recraation Reserve

Strathboge Memaonial Hall

Strathbogie Recreation Reserve
Takdeland Community Cenire Commities (Ruffy)
Violet Town Recreation Reserve
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Mots T People and relationshipa
7.1 Council and key management remuneration

{3} Related Partiea
Farent entity

Sirathlbogie Shire Counci is the parent entity.
Interests in subsidianes and associates are detailed in Mobe 6.3

(b} Key Managsment Personnsl
Dedails of parsons holding the posiBion of Councillor or ofer members of key management personned at any time during the year ars:

Councillors

Cr Chris Raskum (from 1772020 to Z3M02020, ard from 174172020
Cr Melarie Likes (from 17/41/2020)

Cr Kristy Hounigan (from 1711172020

Cr Lawra Binks (from 171 172020)

Cr Paul Murray {fram 17412020

Cr Req Dickinson (from 171 1/2020)

Cr Sally Hayes-Burke (from 174 1/2020)

Amanda McClaren (from 172020 to 231 072020)

Jobn Mason (from 172020 to Z3M02020)

Walcolm Littie (from 1772020 to Z3102020)

Alistair Thomson (from 172020 to 231002020)

Graeme (Mick) Wiliams (from /752020 to 23402020

Robert ‘Bok' Gardrer (from /772020 to 231020200

Chief Executive Officer

Director - Comporate Operations ®

Acting Director - Community & Planning (fom 5102020 fo 14/12/2020)
Executive Manager People & Culture

Execuiive Manager Governance & Customer Semice

Executive Manager Communications and Engagement

Total Number of Gouncillors

Total of Chisf Executive Officer and other Key Management Personnel
Total Number of Kay Managsment Parsonnel*

*Director - Commurity 8 Plarring role was filed by fw individuals and an acng officer during the year.

{c) Remuneration of Key Managsment Parsonnel

Total remumeration of key management parsonnel was as follows:

Shiort-term bensfits
Long-term benefits

Post employment benefits

Terminaton benafits
Total

The numbers of key management personnel whose iotal remuneration from Councl and any
related epdes, fall wikin the folowing bands:

$1-%9.000
$10,000 - $19,999
$30,000 - $38,999
$20,000 - $29,959
$30,000 - $38 9099
450,000 - $59,9%9
$60,000 - $58 999
$80,000 - $58,9%9
$100,000 - $109 936
$110,000 - $119 93¢
$150,000 - $959 999
$190,000 - $999 999
$200,000 - $209 939
$210,000 - §219 990
$260,000 - $2%9 999
$280,000 - $283 939
Tokal*

*Diractor - Commurity & Plarning rofe was filed by two individuals and an aciing officer during the year.

13

19

204
§

1314972
12459
129,963
15,720

1,071 634
82,840
58,187

1473014

1,233 731

Firal
Mo

-
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{d} Sensor Officer Remunsaration

A Senior Officer is an officer of Council, other than Key Management Persormel, who
a) has management responsibiliizs and repors directly fo the Chief Execufive; or
b} whose fotal arnual remuneration exceeds $1541 000

The rumber of Senior Officers are shovwn below in their nelevant income bands:

Income Hangs: Ho. M.

Pl

$150,000 - $953 996
$150,000 - $183 998 )
$170,000 - $179 939 - 3

-

Tolal Remureration for the reporing year for Senior Officers included above, amounied fo: 77 086 52T AT

72 Related party disclosure
(2] Tranaactions with related partiea
Dwring the perod Counci entered info the following transacions with related parties.
(rther Related Party Expenses 12,852 47 540

Burca Caravan Park - Operating and Capital Expenses * 55,095
Buroa Caravan Park - Lease Income * B8, 629

(b} Owtstanding balances with related parties

The folowing kalances are outstanding at the end of the reporing pericd in relation io
transacions with related parties

Eurca Caravan Park - Sundry Debtors (Lease] * Ba 522

(&) Loans todfrom related parties
There are no loans in existence at balance date tat have been made, guaranieed or secured by
fhe council to a relaied party.

{d) Commiémeants tofrom related partiss
The aggregate amount of commitments i exisience at balance date that have been made,
guaranteed or secured by the council to a related party are as fiollows:

Euroa Caravan Park - Commitments to related parfes - Amount allocated for specific pumposes * 112,394

* On 26 June 2013 Counc endered info a lease agreemer with a fenant for 21 years for Burca Caravan park and subsequently the lease
agreement was transfered io the new tenant Lilly Ann Pty Lid on 27 Feloruary 2017, Councllor Kristy Hourigan is a director of Lilly Ann Phy
Lid ard Kristy Hourigar became a Councllor from 1711 1/2020. There has been no change to #he terms and conditions of the lease
agreement during e year.
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Mote § Managing uncertainties
B.1 Contingent asssts and liabilities

{a) Contingant liabilitiea
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet, but are disclosed and if guan®fiable, are measured at
nominal valwe. Conbingent assets and labidibes are presented mousive of GST receivalble or payable, respecively.

Superannuation

Councl has cbbgations under a defined benefit superannuation scheme that may result in the need to make additional contributions fo the
scheme, matters relating to this potential cbligabon are ouflined below.  As a result of the volatility i finandcal markets the likelihood of malong
such contributions in future perods exists.

Future superannuation contributions

In addition fo the disdosed contributions, Strathbogie Shire Counci has paid no unfunded Rability payments o Vision Super during the 2020021
year (201920 $0). There ware no confributions cufstanding and no loans issued from or to the above schemes as at 20 June 2021. The
expecied conbribufions to ke paid fo the Defined Benafit category of Vision Super for the year ending 30 June 2022 are $0.

Landfill

Coundl do not have operational landfll. However council wil have to cary out site rehabilitation works at Violet Town old landfill in the future. At
balance date Council is unalble to accurately assess the financial implications of such works. Contractor has keen appointed to estimate the cost
of such works. Curenily councll has a budget of $5 million for the fuiure works.

Inzurance claima
There are no any major insurance claims that could have a material impact on fulure operations.

Lagal matters
There are no any major legal matters that could have a material impact on future operations.

Building cladding
Councl does not exposed bo any potential contingents that may exist in relation to reclification works or other matters associated with building
cladding that may have the potential to adversely impact on Council.

Liability Mutual Insurance

Coundl is a participant of the MAY Liakdity Mwheal Insurance (LMI) Scheme. The LM| scheme provides pubbc Eabilty and professional
imdemnity msurance cover. The LM scheme stbes that each participant will remain lable to make furher

contributions to the scheme in respect of any Imsurance year in which i was a participant to the extent of its parficipant's share of any shortfall in
the provision set aside in respect of that insurance year, and such Rability will continue whether or not the participant remains a partcpant in
fubure insurance years.

MAV Workcare

In November 2017, the Victorian WorkCover Authority (the Autharity) granted the Municipal Association of Victoria (MAV) a three-year self-
imsurance licence allowing it to provide workers' compensation msurance bo Victorian counclis. When the MAV WorkC are Scheme commenced,
there were 31 inaugural members, including the MAV.

In accordance with the Authority's decision not o renew the MAV's self-nsurance licence, the MAV WorkCare Scheme ceased operafion on 30
Jure 2021 The MAY is continuing fo support the orderly transiSion of daims management responsikilities o the Authority.

Cound was a paricipant of the MAY WorkCare Scheme.

The MAV WorkCare Scheme participation agreement stated that each participant would remain liakle to make further contributions to the
Scheme in respect of any inswrance year in which it was a participant io the extent of its participant's share of any shortfall in the provision set
aside in respect of that insurance year, and such labiity would continue whether or mot the participant remained a participant in future inswrance
years.

The net inandal impact on Council as a result of the cessation of the MAY WorkCare Scheme for the 2020-21 finandcal year is yet io be
determined. Any chligation is dependant upon the Authority's inifal actuarial assessment of the fad daims liabiities of the MAV WorkCare
Scheme.

In accordance with the Workplace Injury Rehabilifagion and Compensation Act 2013, there s a six- year liakdity pericd following the cessaton of
the MAV WorkCare Scheme. During the liakidity period, adjusiment payments may ke required (or received) by Council. The determination of
any adustment payments is dependent upon revised acluasial assessments of the Scheme's @il claims liakiliies as underiaken by the Authoty.

{c) Guarantesa for loana to other entities
Councl does not have any financial guarantees.
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8.2 Change in accounting standards
Ceartain new Australian Accounting Standards and inferpretations have been pulblished that are not mandatory for the 30 June 2021 reporting
pefod. Councl assesses the mpact of these new standards. As at 30 June 2021 there were no new accounting standards or infespretations
issued by the AASH which are applicable for the year ending 30 June 2022 that are expected to impact Counc.

8.3 Financial instrumenta
{a) Objectives and policies
The Councd's principal financial nstruments comprise cash assets, term deposits, receivables (excuding statutory receivables), payables
{excluding statutory payakles) and bank borrowings. Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for
recogrition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of inandal asset,
fnancial liakbiity and eouity mstrument is disclosed in the notes of fe fmancial statements. Risk management is carsed out by senioe
management under policies approved by the Council. These palicies incude identification and analysis of the sk exposure fo Council and
appropriate procedures, controls and risk minimisation.

{b) Markst risk

Market risk is #he risk that the fair value or future cash flows of councd financial insruments will flucluate because of chamges in market prices.
The Counc's exposure to market risk is primarily throwgh interest rate risk with only imsigniicant exposure to other price risks and no exposure
to foreign currency msk.

Interest rate nsk

Imberest rate Fsk refers to the sk that the value of a fimancial instrament or cash fows associated with the instrument will fuctuate dus o
changes in market inferest rates. Council's interest rabe bty risk arises primarily from long fesm loans and borrowings at fied rates which
exposes council io fair valwe mberest rate risk | Council does not hold any interest bearing financial instruments that are measured at fair value,
and therefore has no exposure to fair value interest rate risk. Cash flow interest rate rsk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial
imstrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Counci has minimal exposure fo cash flow interest rate risk throwgh its
cash and deposits that are at foating rates.

Imwestment of surplus furds is made with approved financal irstitutions under the Local Government Aot 1959 . Counci manages interest rate
risk by adopting an invesiment policy that ensunes:

- diversification of investment product;

- monitorng of return on irvestmend; and

- benchmarking of retums and comparison with budget.

There has been no significant change in the Council's exposure, or i objectives, policies and processes for managing interest rate risk or the
methods used to measure this sk from the previows reporfing period.

Inberest rate movements have not been sufficienty significant during the year to have an impact on the Council's year end result.
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() Gredit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a contracting entity will not complete its olligabions under a financial instrument and cause Council to make a financial
loss. Council have exposwrs to credit sk on some financial assets included in the balance sheet Particulasly significant areas of credit sk exist
in refation to outstanding fees and fines as well as loans and receivables from sporting clies and associafions. To help manage this nskc

- council have a policy for establishing credit limits for the entifies cound deal with;

- council may require collateral whers apprprate; and

- council only imvest sumplus funds with financial institutions which have a recognised credit rating specified in council's irvestment policy.
Receivalbles corsist of a large number of customers, spread across the ratepayer, business and govemment sectors. Credit fisk associated with
the cound's financial assets is minimal because the main debtor is secured by a charge over the rateable property.

There are no matenial fimancial assets which are individually determined bo ke impaired.

Councl may also be subject to credit risk for transactions which are not included in the balance sheet, such as when council provide a quarantes
fior another party. Details of our contingent liakilities are disclosed in Mote 8.1(k).

Thie maximum exposure o credit isk at the reporting date to recognised financial assets is e carrying amount, ret of any provisons for
impairment of fose assets, as disclosed in the balance sheet and notes to the financial statements. Council does not hold any collateral.

(d) Liguidity riak

Liguidity risk includes the risk that, as a result of cound's operational liguidity reguirements it will not have sufficient funds o settle a transachion
whin required or will ke forced to sell a financial asset at below value or may be wnable io settle or recover a financial asset.

Tao help reduce these risks Council:

- have a liguidity pobcy which targets 3 minimum and average level of cash and cash equivalents to be maintained;

- have readily accessible standby faciliies and other funding arangements in place;

- have a liguidity porifolo structure that reguires surplus funds to be invesied within various bands of liquid instruments;

- monitor budget to actual performance on a regular basis; and

- set limits on borrowings relating to the percentage of loans to rate revenue and percentage of loan principal repaymendts to rate revenue.

The Coundl's maximum exposure to liquidity fsk is fie carrying amounts of finandal liabilities as disclosed on the face of the balance sheet and
the amounts related to financial guaraniees disciosed in Mobe 8.1(c), and is deemed insignificant kased on prior pericds” data and current
assessment of Ask

There has keen no sigrificant change in Council's exposure, or its objectives, policies and processes for managing liguidity risk or the methods
used to measure this risk from the previous reporting period.

With the exception of korrowings, all financal liakilifies are expected o be setfled within normal terms of rade. Details of the matrity profile for
bomowings are disclosed at Mote 5.4,

Unless othenwise stated, the carrying amounts of financial instruments refiect their fair value.

(&) Senaitivity disclosure analysis

Taking inbo account past performance, future expectabions, ecomomic forecasts, and management's knowledge and experience of the financial
markets, Council believes the following movements are 'reasonably possible’ over the next 12 months:

- & parallel skift of + 0.25% and - 0.25% in market interest rates (AUD) from year-end rates of 0.33%.

These movements will not have a materal impact on the valuation of Councll's financial assets and liakiliies, nor will they have a material impact
on the results of Councll's operations.
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8.4 Fair valus measursment
Fair value hierarchy
Counci's fmancial assets and liabilities are not valued in accordance with the fair valee hierarchy | Council's financial assets and Rabiltes are measured
at amorised cost.

Counci measures cerlain assets and liabilifies at fair value where required or permitted by Australian Accounting Standards. AASE 13 Fair value
measwrement, aims fo improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a definifion of fair value and a single source of fair value measwement
and disdasure requirements for use across Australian Accounbing Standards.

All assets and Rabilibes for which fair value 5 measured or disclosed in the financal sGtements are categorised within a fair value hierarchy, describad
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoded (unadjusted) market prices in acfive markets for identical assets or Rabifes

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant 1o the fair value measurement is directy or indinecty cbservable; and
Level 3 — Valuation teckniques for which the lowest level input that is significart to the fair value measurement is unchbsernable.

Faor the pumpose of fair value disclosures, Council has determined dasses of assets and liabiities on the basis of the natue, charactesstics and risks of
tha assat or liability and hie level of the fair value hisrarchy as explained above.

In addition. Council determines whether transfers have cccurred between levels in the hisrarchy by re-assessing categorsation (kased on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Revaluation

Suksequent to the inifal recognition of assets, non-current physical assets, other than plant and equipment, are measured at their fair value, being the
price that would be recedved to sell an asset (or paid to transfer a Kabilty) in an ordedy transaction between market participants at the measuremant
date. At balance dabe, the Council reviewed the camying vake of the individual dasses of assets measured at fair value o ensure that each asset
materaly approximated its fair value. Where the carrying value materially difiered from the fair value at balance date, the dass of assst was revalued.

Fair value valuations are determined in accordance with a valuation hierarchy. Changes io the valuation hierarchy will only occwr if an exiemal change
in the restrictions or imitations of use of an asset resultin changes to the permissible or practical highest and best use of the asset. In addition, Council
undertakes a formal revalwagon of lard, bulldings, and infrastructurse assels on a regular kasis ranging from 2 to 5 years. The valuation is performed
gither by experienced council officers or independent experts.

Where the assets are revalued, the revaluation increments are credited directly to the asset revaluation reserve except to the extent that an increment
reverses a prior year decrement fior that class of asset that had been recognised as an expense in which case the increment is recognised as revenue
up to the amount of the expense. Revaluation decrements are recognised as an expense except where prior mcrements are included in the asset
revalation reserve for that class of asset in which case the decrement i taken fo the reserve to the extent of the remaining increments. Widin the
same class of assets, revaluation increments and decrements witin the year are offset

Impairment of assets

At sach reporting dabe, the Council reviews the carrying value of its assats to determine whether there is any indication that thess assats have been
impaired. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use, is compared io the assets carying value. Any excess of the assets carrying value over its recoverable amount is expensed o the comprehensive
income statement, unless the assetis camied at the revalued amount in which case, the impairment loss is recognised direclly against the revaluation
surplus in respect of the same cass of asset to the extent that the mpairment loss does not exceed the amount in the revaluation sunplus for that same
dass of asset.

8.5 Events occurring after balance date

Councilior Melanie Likos [Deputy Mayor) resigned as Counclor for the Lake Nagamivie Ward on 17 August 2021. Under the Local Govemment Act
2020 , a vacancy in the Lake Nagambie Ward now exists. A countiback of voies will ke undertaken for Lake Nagambie Ward and will ke camied out by
fhe Victorian Electoral Commission in accordance with Division B of the Act to appoint a new Councillor.

On 13 July 2021 the Viciorian State Govemment in response to COVID-19 imposed stage 5 restrictions on Victora from Frday 16 July 2021. No
adjustments to balances are required as at 30 Jume 2021.

All receivables and payables balances along with actual impacts on revenue and expenses and asset values are not expected to be further impacted by
theze events.

Disdlosures regarding COVID-19 have been made in the relevant notes o the statements.
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Mote &  Other mattera

91 Reservas
Balance at
beginning of Increment  Balance at end of
reporting period [dacramant) reporting period
{2) Assst revaluation reservas 5 § 5
202
Proparty
Land and land improvements 27 268 862 4,337 184) 22 931 678
Buidings 27 073,318 {115,000) 26,958,318
54342178 4,452, 184) 48,880 004
Plant and Equipment
Cultural and hesitage assets 1,541,200 1,541,200
Infrastructurs
Roads B9 ,369 647 - 89,369 647
Bridges 30,085,240 - 30,085,240
Footpaths and cycleways 1,500,453 1,600,458
Drainage 4026118 - 4,026,118
Parks, open space and strestscapes 6,444 B33 MAT28 B,7865,361
Kere and Channel 2954 B 2954 B4
Other infrastructure 17,083 - 17,0593
134,497 872 341,728 134,838,568
Total assst revaluation reserves 180,381,250 4,110,458) 186,270,782
2020
Proparty
Land and land improwements 27 268 863 - 7,268 863
Buidings 46,180,388 (19,107 070) 27,073,318
73,440 248 (19,107, 070) 54,342 179
Plant and Equipment
Cultural and hesitage assets 1,541 200 1,541,200
Infrastructurs
Roads B9 369 647 - £9,360 847
Bridges 30 085,240 - 30,085,240
Fooipaths and cycleways 1,600 453 - 1,600,458
Drainage 4026,118 - 4,026,118
Parks, open space and strestscapes - 6,444 635 6,444 G35
Kerk and Channel 2954 B4 - 2,854,841
Other infrastracture 17,083 - 17,083
128,053,237 444 B35 134 497 872
Total assst revaluation reserves 201,502 485 (11,121,235) 180,381,250

The asset revaluation reserve is used to record the increased (net) valwe of Council's assets over time.

b} Other reasrves

204

Bridge replacement resarve
DOpen space resemne

Total Other reserves

2020

Bridge replacement resarve
DOpen space resemne

Total Other reserves

Balanca at Tranafer from Tranafar to

beginning of accumulated accumulated  Balance at end of
reporting period aurplus aurplus reporting peried
5 5 $ 5

750,000 - 750,000

108,958 76,220 185,178

B358,958 76,220 835,178

750,000 - 750,000

108,958 - 108,958

B358,958 - 858,858
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0.2 Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities to $ $
Surplusi{defict] for the year 6,365,056 4,863 476
Depreciation/amorisation 6,553,837 6,280 356
Profitiiloss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and eguipment (143 869) (%9 TE4)
Written down value of infrastruchure assets replaced 12,650 170,940
Contributions - Non-monetary assats {1,363,611) -
Borrowing costsiFinance Cost 42,300 47,250
Trust fumds amd ofher deposits repaid -
Share of net profits of assocates (28.144) (8,714)
WIP 2xpended 201817 - reclassified as operating expensa 201718 -
Payments from Open Space Reserve -
Other 51,140 67,490
Changs in assets and liabiktiss:
(Increasa)idecraase in trade and other recevables 544 472 440 555
Trust fumds and ofher deposits recaived (repaid) 109,545 (304.013)
(Increasa)decrease in prepayments {151,984) (16,713)
Increasai{decrease) in accrued income azp a7 TBA2M
Increasai|decrease) in trade and cher payables 1,025505 (934.717)
{Decrease)increase in other liakiliies 2265015 1481712
(Increase)/decrease in vertones [#,041) 8,319
Increasal|decrease) in provisions 966,071 123,085
Mat cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 16,372,871 12,875,863

8.3 Buperannuation
Cound makas the majority of its employer superanmuation contributions in respect of its employees o the Local Authorfies Superannuation Fund (the Fund).
This Furd has two categosies of membership, accumulation and defined beneft, each of which is fundad diffierently. Obligations for contributions to fhe Fund are
recognised as an expense in Comprehensive Operating Statement when they are made or due.

Accumulation

Cound makes both employer and employee contributions to The Fund's accumulation category, Vision MySugerVision Suger Saver, on a progressive basis.
Employer confrilbutions are momally based on a fixed percentage of employee eamings (for the year ended 30 June 2021, this was 9.5% as required undar
Superannuaton Guaranies (5G] legislation).

Defined Benefit

Cound does not use defned benefit accounting for its defined benefit obligations under the Fund's Defined Benafit category. This is because the Fund's Defined
Benefit cateqory is a pooled muli-employer sponsoned plan.

There is na proportional sglit of the defined benefit liakilities, assets or costs between the parficpating employers as the defined benefit obfigation is a floating
obbgation between the paricipating employers and the only fime that the aggregate obligation is allocated fo specic employers is when a call is made. As a
result, the level of participation of Strathbogie Shire Councl in the Fund cannct be measured as a perceniage compared with other participating employers.
Therefore, the Fund Actsary is unakle fo allocate benefit labiiies, assets and costs between employers for the pumposes of AASE 119 Employee Benefits.

Funding arrangemants
Counc makes employer contributions to e Defined Berefit category of the Fund at rates detzrmined by the Trustee on the advice of the Fund Actuary.

A trienmial actuanial review for the Defined Benefit category as at 30 Jume 2020 was conducted and complated by the due date of 31 December 2020. The
vested benefl index (VBI) of the Defined Benefit category of which Coundd is a confributing employer was 104.6%. The financial assumpbions used fo caleulate
the VBI were:

Met imvestmant retums 5.6% pa
Salary mformation 2. 5% pa for two years and 2.75% pa thereafier
Price inflation (CPT) 2.0% pa.
As at 30 Jure 2021, an intesim achuarial investigagon is underway as the Fund provides lifefime pensions in he Defined Benefit categoey.
Vision Super has adhised that the estimated VB at 30t June 2021 was 109.7%.
The VBl is used as the primary fumding indicator. Because the VEI was above 100%, the 30 June 2020 actuarial imvestigafion determined the Defined Benefit
category was in a safisfactory financial position and that no change was necessary to the Defined Benefit category™s funding arrangements from prior years.

Employer contributions

Regular confribufions

Oin the kasis of the results of the 2020 triennial achearial nvestigation condwcied by the Fund Actuary, Cound makes employer contributions fo the Fund's
Diefined Berafit category at rates determined by the Fund's Trustee. For the year ended 30 June 2021, this rate was 9.5% of members' saladies (3.5% n
20192020). This rate is expeched bo increase in line with any increases in the 56 confribution rate and was reviewsd as part of the 30 June 2020 friennial
valuation.

In addition, Council reimburses the Fund bo cover the excess of the benefits paid as a consequence of refrenchment akove e funded resignation or retirement
benafit.
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Funding calls

I the Defined Benafit category is in an unsatisfactory financial posiion at an achuaral investigation or the Defined Benefit cateqory’s VEI is kelow its shortfall limit
at amy Sme other than the date of the actuarial investigation, the Defined Benefit category has a shortfall for fe punposes of SPS 160 and the Fund is reguired fo
put a plan in place so that the shortfall is fully funded within three years of the shorfall pocurring. The Fund monitors its VBI on a gquartery kasis and the Fund
has set its shortfall Bmit at 97%.

In the event tat the Fund Acluary determines that there = a shortfall based on the akove regquirement, the Fund's paricipating employers (including Cownci) are
reguired to make an employer contribution to cover the shorfall.

Using the agreed methodology, the shortiall amount = apporbioned between the participating employers based on the pre-1 July 1993 and post-30 June 1983
sapvice liabiifies of the Fund's Defined Benefit category, together with the employer's payroll at 30 June 1993 and at the date the shortfall has been calculated.

Dwue to fhe nature of the contractual obligations between the participating employers and the Fund, and that the Fund incudes lifetime pensioners and their
reversionary beneficaries, it s unlikely that the Fund wil be wound up.

[f there is a surplus in the Fund, fhe suplus cannot ke retumed to the paricipating employers.

In the event tat a paricipating employer is wound-up, the defined kenefit obligations of that employer will be transferred to that employer's successoe.

The 2020 trisnnial actuanal invesfigation surplus amounts

An actuarial invesigation is conducted annually for the Defined Benefit category of which Council is a confributing employer. Generally, a full actuarial
imvestigation is conducied every three years and interim actuarial investigations are conducted for each intervening year. A full investigation was conducted as
at 30 June 2020.

Thie Fund's actuarial investigation idendified the following for the Defined Benefit category of which Council is a contributing employer:

2020 018
(Triennial) (Interim)
$m $m
- & VB Swplus 100.0 151.3
- & fotal service liakility surplus 2000 2334
- A discounted accrued bensfits sumplus T8 256.7

Thie VB sunglus means that the market value of the fund's assets supporting the defined benefit obligations exceed the vesied benefits that the defined benefit
memkers would have been entified to if they had all exited on 30 June 2020,

The total service liability surplus means that the current value of the assets in e Fund's Defined Benefit category plus expected fubure contibutions exceeds the
value of expected future benefits and expenses as at 30 Jume 2020,

The discounted accrued benefit sunplus means that the current value of the assets in the Fund's Defined Benefit category exceeds the value of benefits payakle
in the fubure but accrued in respect of service to 30 June 2020

Councl was nobified of the 30 June 2020 VBI during August 2020 (2019 Awgust 2015).

Thea 2021 interim actuarial inveatigation
An inferim achuanal investigabion is being conducied for the Fund's posiion as at 30 June 2021 as the Fund provides [ifetime pensions in the Defined Benefit
cakegoey. It is anticipated that this achuarial rvestigation will be completed by Oclober 20219

Superannuation contributions
Contrisutions by Councl (excluding any wniunded liakidity payments) to the above superannuation plans for fe financial year ended 30 June 2021 are defailed
below:

0 2020
Schems Type of Schems Rate § $
Vision super Defined benafi B.50% 59,242 61,144
\ision super Accumulation fund 9.50% 478 532 472 704
Other funds Accumulation fund 9.50% 452,098 326,921

Counc hase't paid any unfunded Eabilty payments to Vision Super in 201920 or 2020021, Council does not expect to pay o
the Defined Benefit category of Vision Super for the year ending 30 June 2022,
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10 Change in accounting policy
AASB 1059 Service Concession Amangements: Granfors (AASE 10:58) (applies 202024 for LG Sector)
Ciouncil has adopbed AASE 1059 Semvice Concession Amangements: Grantors, from 1 July 2020. This has resulted in no changes in accounting
policies and adjustments to any amounts recognised in the financial statements. Council does ot consider it has any assets which are subject o

AASB 20187 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Definition of Material (applies 202021 for LG Sector]

Council has adopbed AASE 2018-T Amendments to Ausiralian Accouriing Standards - Definition of Matenal, from 1 July 2020. All mformation has
lbeen disclosed where material in nahee, amownt and impaict to ensure primary users of the gereral purpose financal Satements are informed and
can make decsions on the bass of the informaton disclosed regarding the erdity.

AASE 2181 Amendments to Ausiralian Accounting Siandands - References fo the Conceptual Framework (applies 202021 for LG
Sector)

Council has adopted AASE 20191 Amerdments to Australian Accouring Stndards - References io the Concephual Framework from 1 July 2020.
These financal satements present faify tie finandal position, fmancal performance amd cash flows of Coundal. There is a fair presenttion of te
effect of ransactions, ofher events and conditions in accordance with the definifions and recognifion citera for assets, lakiiies, income and
expenses set out in the conceptual Framework for financal reporting.

It i not expected that these standards will have any significant impact on couneil.
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Author: Director Corporate Operations
Responsible Director: Director Corporate Operations

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Local Government Performance Reporting Framework is a mandatory
system of performance reporting for all Victorian councils. It ensures that
councils are measuring and reporting on their performance in a consistent way to
promote transparency and accountability in the local government sector.

The Local Government Act 2020 (the Act) requires that Council pass a resolution
giving its approval to the Performance Statement 2020/21 and Governance and
Management Checklist prior to formal submission to the Auditor-General Victoria
and the Minister. The performance statement provides our community with audited
results against the prescribed performance indicators and measures.

The Act further requires that Council must authorise two Councillors to approve the
Report.

Draft copies of the Performance Statement 2020/21 and Governance and
Management Checklist have been circulated to Councillors for their consideration
and are attached to this report.

Council’'s Audit and Risk Committee considered both documents at its meeting on
17 September 2021 and endorsed them for adoption by Council.

RECOMMENDATION
That:
1. Council adopt, in principle, the —

a) Performance Statement 2020/21.
b) Governance and Management Checklist 2020/21.

2. Council authorise Councillors Raeburn and Murray to sign the 2020/21
Performance Statement.

3. The above Statements be included in the Annual Report and
submitted to the Hon. Shaun Leane MP, Minister for Local
Government.

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND

Under Section 131 of the Local Government Act 1989 (the old Act), the Annual
Budget 2020/21 included a list of prescribed indicators of service performance,
financial and sustainable capacity performance required by regulations to be
reported against in the performance statement. The Performance Statement
represents an independent certification of Council’s results against the prescribed
indicators.
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In addition, Section 131 and Section 98 of the Local Government Act 2020 requires
Council to report on Council’s assessment against the prescribed governance and
management checklist for 2020/21.

ISSUES, OPTIONS AND DISCUSSION

One of the Overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that Priority is to be given to achieving the best outcomes for the
municipal community, including future generations.

The Local Government Performance Reporting Framework is a mandatory
system of performance reporting for all Victorian councils. It ensures that
councils are measuring and reporting on their performance in a consistent way to
promote transparency and accountability in the local government sector.

This is the seventh year of operation of the Local Government Performance
Reporting Framework (LGPRF). There is a comparison between 2017/18,
2018/19, 2019/20 and 2020/21 with comments detailing any variances. All data
was collected according to the Local Government Act 1989 and 2020 and Local
Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014.

Subject to Council adopting the recommendation in this report, the Performance
Statement will be forwarded to the Victorian Auditor-General for certification. It is
also a statutory requirement for Council to include the Performance Statement in
the Annual Report 2020/21.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT
No community engagement is necessary in respect of this report although some of
the measures incorporate the result of the Annual Community Survey.

POLICY CONSIDERATIONS
Council Plans and Policies

The report is consistent with Council Policies, key strategic documents and the
Council Plan.

Regional, State and National Plans and Policies
The Performance Statement reports on indicators mandated by State Government
through its Local Government Performance Reporting Framework.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS

The proposal is consistent with sections 131 and 132 of the Local Government Act
1989 and Section 98 of the Local Government Act 2020 which, amongst other
things, requires the Council to “certify the statements in their final form”.

Conflict of Interest Declaration

All officers, and / or contractors, involved in the preparation of this report have
signed a written declaration that they do not have a conflict of interest in the subject
matter of this report.
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Transparency
Performance reporting is a key program promoting council transparency,

accountability and performance. The data in the Performance Statement will
appear on the Know Your Council website which will be available to the community.

FINANCIAL VIABILITY CONSIDERATIONS
Some indicators are directly from the Financial Statements.

SUSTAINABILITY CONSIDERATIONS

One of the Overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the economic, social and environmental sustainability of the
municipal district, including mitigation and planning for climate change risks, is to
be promoted.

Economic
The Performance Statement contains an indicator of performance in Statutory
Planning

Social

The Performance Statement includes reporting in Indicators relating to:
Maternal and Child Health

Aquatic facilities

Animal Management

Food Safety.

Environmental
The Performance Statement contains an indicator on waste diversion from landfill.

INNOVATION AND CONTINUOUS IMPROVMENT

Council continues to refine its end of year processes and with the advent of
Coronavirus COVID-19 the audit has been conducted remotely and officers have
adapted to this way of working.

COLLABORATION

Council staff and Council’s external auditor, the Victorian Auditor-General’s Office
and Council’s Audit Committee have been consulted as part of the preparation of
these reports.

CONCLUSION

The Chief Executive Officer and two Councillors are required to sign the
Performance Statement. It is recommended that Council adopt, in principle, the
Performance Statement, shown in Attachment 1.

The Chief Executive Officer and one Councillor are required to sign the
Governance and Management Checklist. It is recommended that Council adopt, in
principle, the Governance and Management Checklist, shown in Attachment 2.

ATTACHMENTS
Attachment 1: Strathbogie Shire Council Performance Statement 2020/21
Attachment 2: Governance and Management Checklist 2020/21
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i Strathbogie
- i aS/(itf)eg




Strathbogie Shire Council Page 217 21/09/21
Council Meeting Agenda

Strathbogie Shire Council

Performance Statement
For the year ended 30 June 2021

Performance Statement
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Description of municipality

Strathbogie Shire is a rural municipality located approzimately two hours from the Melboume CBD and covers
330,326 hectares. We have diverse and picturesque communities served by townships such as Euroa,
Magamkbie, Violet Town, Avenel, Longwood, Ruffy and Strathbogie with a population of over 10,000 and
growing. The Shire has an ageing population with 38% of residents aged 80 years and over. Approximatehy
eight out of ten residents were born in Australia and about 5% of people came from countries where English
was not their first language.

The Strathbogie Shire has a rural economic base of wool, grain, sheep and cattle production, extensive
vineyards, world class wineries and a wide range of intensive cool climate horticultural enterprises. The region
is alzo known as the Horse Capital of Victora due fo its ever expanding horse industry. Thoroughbred
breeding studs are the comersicne of this important industry, with many prestigious Melboume Cup winners
bred and trained in the shire. Magambie is also the birthplace of Black Caviar, the world champion horse, and
now has a life-size bronze statue sitting pride of place at Jacobson's Outlook.
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Sustainable Capacity Indicators

For the year ended 30 Jume 2021

Indicator { megsune
[fommala]

2018

Reaults

2015

Rezults

2020

R=aultz

021

Commanta

Popuiation
Expensas per head of municipa) popoiation
[Total expenses ! Munidpal population)
Infrastruciure par head of municipal popuiadon
[Value of infrastructure / Municpal population)
Populanon densty perlengih of mad
[Municipal population ! Kilometres of local noads)
OWN-SOWTE fevenue
DWN-500rcE revenue par head of municipal papuiaion
[Cwn-s0urce revenus | Municipal population)
Recurrent grants
Fecwrent grants par head of municipai popuiadon
[Recurrant grants / Municipal population]
Disadvantage
Felatve Socio-Economic Disadvaniage

[ndex of Relative Socio-Economic Disadwantage by dedie)

§3,031.18

$24,560.20

441

5187255

§747.68

4.00

$2,6591.78

§24,376.51

445

51,991,564

3571.58

4.00

5§2,647.81

£23,056.21

458

5199184

STEET2

4.00

52 516.50

2571525

4588

$2,015.06

15029

4.00
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Workiorce tumover
Beroniage of ST UmMover B.5%

[Wumder of permanent s resignations and iBrminaions / Averags
riumiber of permansnt staff for the finandal y=ar] x100

17.4%

20.6%

10.9%

DisFinitbons
“ndjusied undartying rovenis - meossns 1otal nooms other than:
fa)  mon-recurment grants used o fund caprial expendiune; and

{b)  mon-monstony sesel conmbubons; and

oy oominbutons o und capiial axpsndiund Som Sourcss obbesr than Bhose refemed o oD

Sinfrasinechure” msEns non-ourrant propoarty, pland and) oquipresend secluding lemd

“locad road” maans o seaked or unsaalksd noad Sor wnich Bhe oounol 8 e responsible road euthonty uncker B Foed Managesmont Aot 210

“Populabon” means S reskdont popuabon estimated by ocounol

“OWT BOLNDE FEVENLG " Mmaars odjusisd undartying rovenies oihar than revenuss Bad i nol under thes coerirodl of cowncil | iInduding gowarmimsand grants)

“redabrsn SCCio-BOCnOmic diesedvanimge”, 0 relabon 1o e muniopsity, measns the rolafeee SOC0-e0on0mMc dsadvaniago, snpressoed as @ decle for the naleyant
francial yoar, of T area in which the municipality is located sccording to T indax of Rolattee Socio-Eoonomic Disatwvaniage (Catalogue Mumbaer 2033058001

o SEIFA

“SEIFA" means the Sooo-Economic Indexos ior Areas pusishsd irom tme o tme by the Ausfalien Bursau of Stoisbos on i indome? webaie

“urresincied cash means @l cashoand cash squiabaris ofer Tion resinched casn.
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Service Performance Indicators

For the year ended 30 June 2021

Mumber of crifcal non-compliancs cuicome notifications and major
nan-compliance notifications about a food premises folowed up / Numbsr
of chfical non-compliance cuicome notifications and major non-
compliance noffications about a f0d premises) X100

Results | Resufis | Resulta | Results
Senicefndicatonmeasure 018 2019 2020 2021 Commeants
Aquatic Facilities
Lisitsahon of aquanc faciies 344 2.90 1.52 1.08 Shutdoswns due o Cowid 19
Mumber of visits 10 aquatic. facilities / Municpal population)
Animal Management
Heafth and safery
Animal Managemeant pmEScunons MNew in 2020 Hgi';é" 0% 0%
Mumber of successhil animal management prosecutions § Number of
animal management prosacutions] x 100
Food Safsty
Heafth and safery
Critical and major non-compiance autcomse notifcations 0.00% 100.00% | 8667% | 100.00% Improvemant to 100% follow up
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Gavernance
Satisfaction
Sansfacion with councy decisions
[Community sa¥sfaction rating out of 100 with how council has
performed in making decisions in e inberes of the community]

48 35

42

Libranias
Participation
Active Fbrary DOTOWErs in municipaity

Mumer of actve library borrowess in the last thres years | The sum o
the population for the |ast three years] x100

22.30% Z312%

24.17%

Maternal and Child Haalth IMCH]
Participation
Parfipatan in the MCH senvice

Mumizer of children who aitend the MCH serice al least once (in the
year) / Mumber of chidren eneolizd inihe MCH service] x100

Participation
Parficipaton in the MCH senvice by Abongina chaldran

Mumiaer of ADonginal chidren 'wha abend the MCH service at leasi
once (in the year) F Numbsr of Abonginal children ennalied in the BMCH
service] X100

Ti.67% T5.95%

S2.31% g 5%

T4.54%

&7 18%

=
B
"

T3.658%

Roada
Satisfaciion
Sansfaction with saaied local roads
[Community safsfacion rating out of 100 with how council has
performed on the condition of sealed local roads)

=1
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Statutory Planning
Decision making
Councll planring fecisans uphedid & VCAT 0.00% 0.00% 50.00%

Mumier of VCAT decisions that did not 52t aside council's decision in
redation bo @ planning application ! Mumber of VCAT decisions in redation
2 plamning applications) 100

0.00%

Waaste Collection
Wasre oiversion
Kerhside colechion waste ghveriag (om andHil 59.75% Bo.41% | T03T%

Mizight of recyclables and green onganics colisciad from kerbside bins

{ Weight of garbage, recydables and green anganics collecied fom
k=rbaite bins] X100

T1.01%

Definitions

“Aborgnal child™ means a child who 15 an Aboriginal person

"Abongingl person” has the same meaning as In tne Aboriginal Herttage Act 2006

"aClhve librany bommoser™ means 3 memiber of a lbrary who has bormossed a ook Trom e lorany

"mnnual report™ means an annual repord prepared by & councll under seciion 98 of the Act

“class 1 food premises” means food premises, winin ihe meaning of the Food Act 1984, thal have been declared as Class 1 food premises under secion

15 of thal At

“class 2 finod premises” means food premises, within the meaning of the Food Ack 1584 | thal have been declared &= class 2 food premises under section

15 of thal At
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“crilical non~compilance oulcome notiNcalion™ means a nolicabon recetvwed by councl under seclion 198403) or (4) of the Food Ac! 1384 , or advice given o
counc by an authorzed ofcer under that Act, of a deficlency thal poses an immediate serious Ehreat bo public health

“lood premises™ nas the same meaning &5 in e Food Act 1984
"local roEd™ means a seaied oF unsesied road for which the councll 5 e responsible road authonty under the Roed Managemeni Acl 2004

“major non-complance oulcome nofiicalion™ means a noéificalion received by a councll under secion 19M(3) or (4) of the Food Acf 1984, or advice given to
counc by an authonzed ofMcer under thal ack, of & defclency thal does nol pose an Immedlabe senous threat o public healtn bul may 9o so/17 no remedia
achion Is faken

"MCH" means the Malemal and Chilld Health Sendce provided by & councl bo support B heatth and development of children wihin Ehe municipaitty Srom
birth unbl school age

"populalion” means the resident population estimated by councll
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Financial Performance Indicators

For the year ended 30 June 2021

Dimension'indicaiorimeasure

Resulta

2018

Results

14

Ragulty

2030

Resuits

2021

23

Foracasts

23 2024 202

Material Yarationa and
Commants

Efficiancy

Expenditure jeval

Expenses per propey assessment
[Total expenses § Number of proparty

ASSe5EMENts]

Favenpe fevef

AVErafge fae per proparty Assessmentd

[Total rate revenue [gensral rates and
muricipal chamyes) / Number of property
A55235mMEts]

5396135

Hew in
2020

53,581.75

New in
J0210

3,568.25

32 14175

53,991.75

52 226 26

53,960.22

52,298 &6

5397040 5404230 $4,107.81

§2338.11 §2378.25 $2419.08

Liguidity
Working capitai
Culant assefs pompasd i current Fablites
[Curent assets | Current liabilities] x100
Unrestricted cash
Unnesiricied cash compared o current
Nahnes
[Unrestricted cash / Curment liabilides] x100

281.00%

138.10%

215.08%

91.96%

264 Td%

-14.85%

216.46%

14.65%

138.13%

§1.09%

12602% 12064%  108.59%

74.90% M.70% 20T

Chbligations
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Loans and borrowings

Loans and bomwings campansd o raRs 3T R 2.E5% 1.56% 1.41% 23.83% 21.495% 19.21% 17.42% Feducing debt lewais
[nferest beaning kaans and Borowings |
Rale revenus] x100
Loans and bomowings epaymeants comodred
o rates
[nferest and prncipal repayments on
imterest b2aring loans and borowings [ Rak
revenue] 1100
Indebiedness
Non-covment Aabiities comparsd io oW S0LTE
revenue
Mon-curent liabifties / Cwn soumce
rewenue] 1100
Asced renewal and upgrade
A552[ Enewal and UpgRoe compansd o Hew in Hewin
depresation 2020 2020
[Rsset renewal and asset upgrade expenss
! Asset depreciation] x100

3.05% 1.17% 0LE2% 0.55% 2.70% 2.50% 225%

=
F

Reducing dabt levels

30.35% 24.T4% 26.75% 20.06% 35.50% J3.01% J0.48% 25.33%

107.16% | 128.19% | 28375% 15311% 119.61%  121.41%

Operating position
Adjusted pndertying resoi
A gjursted underking swpks (or el -6.33% 1.03%: 0T % 3.32% -2 18% -ILBT% -127% -203%
[Rudusi=d undertying surplus [deficiy
Bdjusted undarying revenus] x100

Stability
Rates copcentation
Fates compared 1o adjusted wndedying

— 2 16% G3.73% 63.15% 62.7% 5. 0% B31% B 53% 9. 11%

[Fate rewenue | Adjusted underying
revenue] X100
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Rates effort
Raies compared oo Dropey valas 0. 64% 0.58% 0.56% 0.49% 0.49% 0.50% 0.51% 0.515%

[Fate rewenue ! Capital improved value of
raleable properties in the municpalty] =100
Rafired indicators Results | Results | Fesults
Eervice findicator f measure 2018 015 20 Commaents
Animal Managemant
Heafth and saffefy

Reteed in | Fetired in THiE MEISUIE Was

Animal management prosacunons a a 2070 2020 rep :l:.euj by AMAT Feom 1
Juty 2018,
:HL mber of successhll armmal ma Mg e
pros2cutions]
Efficiancy
Fevenne ieval
. . . . TS MEISUNE Was
\ / v0al rat I ynal 1
:rﬁgﬁ Eﬁ;;n?E per Eamena §1,998.20 | $2,035.00 EEE:EE : HEE"E?; M1 o000 $0.00 000 5000 [rlz:lp;;-:ed by E4 fram 1 Jufy

[Residential rale revenue | Mumber of
residential property assessmants]

Obligations
Asced renewal
. THis MESSUNE Was
. Refred in | Fetired in
ASES[ ENEWa compared o depresanan 478 % | 147.17% 2990 020 0.00% 0.00% 0% R replaced by OS5 m 1 July
- 2019,

IAssat renswal exnense | Asset depreciation]
100
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Other Information

For the year ended 30 June 2021

‘. Basis of preparaion

Coundil is required 1o prepare and incuds & porformancse statement within s annwal report. The
performance staismant inchudes b resubs of e presonbed sustsinable capadty, senios parformancs
and fmancial performance indicators and measures ingether with o desoription of thea municipal district and
an mxplanation of malenal variations in the resuls. This stabemant has boan prepaned 1o maeat the
requirements of the Local Governmant Aot 1989 and Loosd Gowamment (Planning and Raporting)
Raguiahans X114 (aa par the treraitonal proviskons of T Locs Govermimant Aot 20007

fﬂm-ppln:ll:hhrﬂ.th i tha performanos Smbemssnd hare basn propaned on eooouning besoes
corestsbent with thosa reporbsd in Se Fnaonoal Stetements. The other resulls are bassd on rdormaton
drawn from oounol indormation systems or from Third parties (e.g. Australian Bursay of Statstios).

The performanos stabermend presents the actual results. for the curnent ywear and fior the presoribed finanoial
parformancs indicatom and maasures, the resulis forscast by $e councils strategic rescurcs plan. Tha
Local Govarmmant (Planning and Raporting) Reguiabons 20 14 requires sxplanation of any matenal
wanations in tha resulis contained in the performance statement. | fias agopbed malenakty threshokds
relovant io sach indcalor and measure and explanations. have nol besn provided for varations below To
miateriakty thresholds unlms the varianos is considersd b be mglenal bocauss of s naturs.

The forecast figures included in the performancs stabement are those sdopied by council in s strabsgic
resounoe plan on 28 Juns 20044 and which formes. part of the council plan. The sbadegic resource plan
inchudes estimates based on ey assumpbons abwoul the future Fat woers reevant of the ime of adopSon
anved @irmesd a4 @ohiesdng susisinabikty cvar e kong 1anm. Delaled informaticn on the actual financial resuks
is comained in #e General Purposs Financial Statements. Tha strategic resource plan can b obitained by

oontacting council
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Certification of the Performance Statement

Ir ey opanion, the sooampanying pericmance siolsment hes boon prepared in sooordance with tha Looo!
Govermimend Act 1985 and the Local Govarnmant [FPlanning and Reparting) Regulstons 2014 [as poar T
ransibional provisons ol the Loca Govarrmmeant Ao SO0

Upel Sathurusingis SR
Principal Accounting Officer

Dratasd:
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in ouwrr opinion, the scoompanying periemmance striement of T foowncd nama) for the pear ended 30 June
H121 presents fairly T results of council's performanos in scocordance with the [ ocal Govammeanr Aot

15909 aind the Local Govermymand {Blanming and Reponting)| Reguilstions 3044 (as par the transitional
prossisions of T Loosd Governmant Act X030

The paronmanos stalement contains the relevant performance indicators, messunes and results in nelation
to servico performancs, fnancial performancs and sustainakiks capaoity.

At tve daie of signing, wa are not awars of any droumsiances that waould render any particulars in the
performance statement b be miskesding or inaoowmabe.

e have boen authorised by the oowncil and by the Local Govermmant (Planndag and Reporting)
Raguiztons 2014 o cortfy this performance statsmant in s final form

bz Sakoimon

Chief Executive Officer
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ATTACHMENT 2:

DATA INPUT 5 - GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT CHECKLIST

Govermnance and Management item

Y T Adopled In accordance with section 55
(GC1 Counci's commitment to engaging with the commiunity B
on matters of pubilic Inferest)
Community engagement guidelines (guideines to
(GC2 assist siail to determine when and how o engage wilh Current guidelines In operation
the community)
Financlal Plan (plan under seciion 91 of the Act Ty [Tl e T ]
(GC3 outiining the Nnanclal and non-fnanclal resources A
required for at least the next 10 nanclal years)
Asset Plan (plan fhat sets out ihe asset mainfenance T TR T
GC4 and renewal needs for key Infrastructure asset classes
with section 92 of the Act
for at least the next 10 years)
lees Revenue and Rating Plan {plan sefting out the rating Adopled In accordance
structure of Councll lo levy rales and charges) with section 93 of the Act
Annual budget {plan setfing out the services fo be
ccs provided and initiafives fo be underiaken over the next Budgef adopted In accordance
12 monins and the funding and ofher resources witn section 94 of the Act
required)
Risk policy {policy outiining Councirs commitment and
[F=0 approach to minimising the risks to Council's operations) ELTL LI
Fraud palicy (policy ouflining Council's commitment and
[F=E approach to minimising the risk of frawd) B e e e
Municipal emergency management plan (plan under Prepared and maintained In accordance
(GCa section 20 of the Emergency Management Act 1986 for | with section 20 of the Emergency
emargency prevention, response and recovery) Manzgement Act 1986
Procurement policy (policy outiining the principles, YT T e
GCID processes and procedures that will apply fo all e et
purchases of goods and services by the Councll)
Business continulty plan (plan sefting out ihe aclions
(GC11 tnat will be taken to ensure that key services confinue fo | Current plan in operation
operate In the event of a disaster)
Disaster recovery plan (plan seting out the sclions tnat
(GC12 will be undertaken fo recover and restore business Current plan in operafion
capabliity In the event of a disaster)

Date Applicable
{single em date)

Supporting comments
imuitiple Hemsidates)

1f 'No' @

Reason for "No™ response

YES 1EM22021
YES Z0/DEZ013
SRP 1472020 Financial Plan not due for adoption until
SAW2Z021
YES 14072020
Mot due for adoption urll I0E2022
MO
YES 20/06/2021
YES 202021
ul
YES 1062019
YES 20/02/2018
MEMPC adoption 19112019
YES 30/01/2020
YES 16022021
YES Z20/04/2021
YES 240052017
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Risk management framework (ramework outlining
GC13 Councl's approach fo managing risks to the Councis Current framework In oparation YES 16062019
operations)
Audit and Risk Committee (advizory commities ar Established In accordance
(GC14 YES 16/MDEZ020
Councll under seclion 53 and 54 of the Act) with section 53 of the Act =
Internal audit independent accounting professionals
engaged by the Councll io provide analtyses and -
[Fe recommendations almed at improving Councirs e YES Fi0sEmE
governance, risk and management controls)
Performance reporting framewark {3 sei of Indicalors
miaasuring fnancial and non-nancial periormance
(GC16 9 pel " Current framework In operation NO
Inciuding ihe performance indicators refermed to In
section 131 of ihe Local Government Act 1383)
Councll Plan report (report reviewing ihe performance TITRRR0, 1522020, B2E20=-1, 200452021
of the Council against the Councll Plan, Incieding the
GC1T y Current report YES
resulls in relation to the sirategic Indicators, for the first po =
slx months of the Tnancial year)
S0 2020,15M 22020,18/0172021 167202021 185721
FInanclal reperting (quarlerly stalemenis o Council Quarterly stalsments prasented ko Councll
under seclion 138({1) of ine Local Government Act 1989
GC18 In accordance with section 138{1) of the YES
comparing buadgeted revenue and expenditure with o
actual revenue and expenaiture.)
| Audit Commities 18122020, 1232021,18M121
Risk reporting {six-manthly reports of sirategic risks to
GC19 Counc's operalions, fheir ikesnood and consequences | Risk reporis prepared and presented YES
of occurring and risk minimisation strategles)
29/7r2020,18/6r2020, 152020, 20/ 0/2020, 151 22020, 1801/
Performance reporting (six-monthly reports of i '1: B ——— > o e
ez Indicators measuring the resulfs against nnanclal and Performance reporis prepared and vES ;1:,'21'1 U2, 10A2021 200420211 BIN2021. 150020
non-fnanclal performance, including performance presented .
Indicators refarred fo In section 131 of the 1989 Act)
Annual report (annual report under sections 131, 132
and 133 of the Local Government Act 1989 to the o aas ALY
GC21 Gouncll In accordance with sechion 134 of YES 151272020
community containing a report of operalions and audited the 1089 Adl
financlal performance statements)y
Councliler Code of Conduct (Code setfing out the e T and adoplsd In
(GC22 standards of conduct fo be Tollowed by Counclliors and YES
accordance with section 139 of ihe Act
oiner matters.)
16022021
Delegations (documents setting out the powers, auties E,;I:E:“F:I[s?;ZT:;?::::T:E:E:‘:: "
(GC23 and functlons of Councll and the Chiel Execulive OMcer e o Bg — -tTp? YES
that nave been delegated to members of stam) 1 & 7}
e 181062020
Meeting procedgures (Governance Rules governing ine | Govemance Ruses adopled in
(GC24 conduct of meelings of Councll and delegated accordance with section 60 YES
committees) of the Act
ZS/DEZ020
Enter single tem Enter multiple temsdates as:
date as: [name of them][odmmyyyy]
jdaimmiyyyy] £.9. Road Management Plan 24/07/2013

eug. 21/0772011

2.0 Quarierty Statement Mo.1 23/07/2014
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9.5

951

GOVERNANCE AND CUSTOMER SERVICE

Adoption of Mutual Respect Charter

Author: Executive Manager, Governance & Customer Service

Responsible Director: Chief Executive Officer

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

A draft Mutual Respect Charter has been developed to underline the commitment
to inclusive and respectful interactions between Councillors, the community and
Council staff.

Council is committed to interacting more with its community in relation to decision
making, as set out in our Public Transparency Policy and Community Engagement
Policy. In being more consultative, there have been a growing number of incidents
where interactions between the Council, community and staff have not been
respectful. This, in turn, has an adverse impact on maintaining a safe workplace.

In a recent survey auspiced by the Equal Opportunity Commission, and completed
by 60% of Council staff in June 2021, 13% of respondents stated that they had been
bullied in the past 12 months. Drilling down into this data, it was apparent that of
those that had experienced bullying, 20% identified that the perpetrator was a
member of the community.

While there is a Councillor Code of Conduct, Staff Code of Conduct and a Customer
Service Charter that set out values and behaviours in our day-to-day interactions
with others, it is felt that stronger and more concise statements around the
expectations for the conduct of all interactions is required. Further, a greater focus
on community interactions is required, particularly given the results of the People
Matter survey.

State and Federal legislation require Council to identify risks to the health and safety
of employees and the community and to take action to mitigate those risks. The
draft Charter outlines the responsibilities and rights of all that are involved in Council
business. Being treated with dignity, fairness and respect is at its very core. That
is, Council has identified a risk to the health, wellbeing and welfare of staff,
Councillors and the community, and the draft Charter is one way to mitigate this
identified risk.

By adopting a clear statement around rights and behaviours, Council is enabling all
parties to be able to call out inappropriate behaviour and to allow complaints around
a breach of the Charter to be made to the Mayor or to the Chief Executive Officer.

Council also reserves the right to modify, curtail or decline service in response to
ongoing unacceptable behaviour which because of its nature or frequency raises
health, safety, or equity issues. This course of action will only be taken if absolutely
necessary, however it is felt important that all parties be put on notice that repeated
unacceptable behaviour will not be tolerated and will be acted upon.
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9.5.1 Adoption of Mutual Respect Charter (cont.)

Challenging inappropriate behaviour is an integral part of the cultural change we
are trying to drive across the organisation to drive the highest standards of good
governance, ethical behaviour and integrity. Itis also a demonstration of leadership
in a broader social context by stating that there is zero tolerance to disrespectful
behaviour of any form.

It is recommended that the draft Mutual Respect Charter be adopted by Council and
that an education and awareness campaign be conducted to ensure all parties are
aware of their rights and responsibilities. This includes the display of the Charter
around Council offices, at Customer Service Centres and information being
available on our website and social media pages. One key message that will form
part of this campaign is that verbal abuse, harassment and disrespect of any kind
is not acceptable and will not be tolerated.

RECOMMENDATION
That Council:
1. Adopt the Mutual Respect Charter.

2. Endorse the display of the Mutual Respect Charter in all Shire of
Strathbogie workplaces and Customer Service Centres.

3. Endorse the implementation of an education and awareness
campaign to ensure all parties involved in Council business are aware
of their rights and responsibilities under the Mutual Respect Charter.

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND

A number of organisations have, in recent times, implemented a mutual respect
charter in an attempt to make a clear statement that disrespectful behaviour will not
be tolerated, regardless of a position someone holds and irrespective of the role
any party has in interacting with Council, Council staff (including our volunteers and
contractors) or the community.

In working more closely with our community Council officers have been exposed to
more frequent unacceptable behaviour from members of the public in particular.
This is borne out by the results of the People Matter Survey recently undertaken in
June 2021 for the organisation by the Equal Opportunity Commission.

It is essential, however, that respectful and inclusive behaviour works both ways —
that is Councillors and staff alike must ensure that decisions are explained,
processes are clear and consistent and that interactions are courteous, fair and
open.

The draft Mutual Respect Charter sets the ‘ground rules’ for all interactions within
and external to Council in the hope that all exchanges between parties are open,
productive and respectful regardless of whether or not people agree with each
other.
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9.5.1 Adoption of Mutual Respect Charter (cont.)

ISSUES, OPTIONS AND DISCUSSION

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that Priority is to be given to achieving the best outcomes for the
municipal community, including future generations.

A number of mutual respect charters/policies have been reviewed in the
development of the Mutual Respect Charter. In particular, the City of Stonnington
Mutual Respect Charter was one that the elected Council highlighted as a good
example of this type of document.

The draft Mutual Respect Charter presented in this report takes a broader approach
in comparison by highlighting the behaviours of three groups; the community,
Council staff (including volunteers and contractors) and the elected Council.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT
One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the municipal community is to be engaged in strategic planning
and strategic decision making.

No community consultation has been undertaken to develop the draft Mutual
Respect Charter, however it is proposed that a community, Councillor and staff
education campaign be conducted to ensure all stakeholders are aware of their
rights and responsibilities under the Charter.

Furthermore, the promotion of the Charter to the community will support the
creation of a culture where complaints about interactions with Councillors or
Council staff can be made to the appropriate person, whether the Mayor in the case
of the former or the Chief Executive Officer in the latter. It is essential that any such
complaints be investigated and acted upon.

POLICY CONSIDERATIONS

Council Plans and Policies

The Mutual Respect Charter is consistent with the following aspects of the 2017-
21 Council Plan:

Mission “To support our community to grow through effective partnerships,
engagement and equitable and efficient delivery of services.”

Values “To be a respectful, innovative, open and transparent, inclusive, fair and
ethical Council.”

Commitment to Engagement and Communication “We will be a more inclusive
Council, by engaging and communicating in an open and honest Manner with our
local community and key stakeholders”.
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9.5.1 Adoption of Mutual Respect Charter (cont.)

Regional, State and National Plans and Policies
One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that regional, state and national plans and policies are to be taken into
account in strategic planning and decision-making.

Mutual respect policies and charters are being adopted by a wide variety of
councils, government departments and quasi government agencies.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that Council decisions are to be made and actions taken in accordance
with the relevant law.

The provision of a safe workplace, free from bullying and harassment, is a
requirement for employers under the Occupational Health and Safety Act 2004.
This Act also requires an organisation to ensure the community is not placed at risk
by the conduct of employees. Section 35 of this Act requires organisations to
consult with its staff around health and safety risks and the measures which should
be taken to mitigate those risks.

Section 49 of the Local Government Act 2020 requires the Chief Executive Officer
to prepare a staff code of conduct, while section 139 requires Council to adopt a
Councillor Code of Conduct implementing the conduct principles outlined by the
Act and any regulations. The code must prohibit discrimination, harassment
(including sexual harassment) and vilification.

Federal legislation, in the form of the Fair Work Act 2009, Sex Discrimination Act
1984 and the Human Rights Commission Act 1986, also sets out responsibilities
for organisations to take active measures to prevent, and effectively respond to
complaints about, bullying, sexual harassment and other behaviours that are
detrimental to the health and welfare of staff and the community.

Overall, failure to address the issues raised by staff in the People Matters Survey
and the experience of current Councillors, exposes Council to tangible risks in
relation to breaching the aforementioned legislation.

Conflict of Interest Declaration

All officers, and/or contractors, involved in the preparation of this report have signed
a written declaration that they do not have a conflict of interest in the subject matter
of this report.

Transparency
One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the transparency of Council decisions, actions and information is
to be ensured.

One key purpose of the draft Mutual Respect Charter is to clearly articulate
expectations around behaviours when interacting within and to Council. The
Charter sets out everyone’s roles, rights and responsibilities.
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9.5.1 Adoption of Mutual Respect Charter (cont.)

The document also clearly annunciates Council’s willingness to take action against
those who breach the Charter, particularly those who are consistently and
frequently disrespectful and abusive in their interactions with other parties.

FINANCIAL VIABILITY CONSIDERATIONS
One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the ongoing financial viability of the Council is to be ensured.

Failure to address the concerns raised by staff in the People Matter survey, and
anecdotal feedback from Councillors in relation to the occurrence of inappropriate
behaviour from members of the community, can expose Council to potential future
action which could have financial impacts on the organisation, whether it be through
legal action or increases in WorkCover premiums.

SUSTAINABILITY CONSIDERATIONS

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that the economic, social and environmental sustainability of the
municipal district, including mitigation and planning for climate change risks, is to
be promoted.

Social
Setting out clear standards of conduct and behaviour is one way in which Council
can promote social cohesion and inclusion.

By challenging inappropriate behaviour and interactions, the draft Mutual Respect
Charter recognises the potentially debilitating and destructive consequences of
verbal abuse and other forms of disrespectful behaviour on an individual’s health
and wellbeing.

INNOVATION AND CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT
One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is the pursuit of innovation and continuous improvement.

The draft Mutual Respect Charter is a proactive way in which Council can address
some of the concerns raised by staff and Councillors in relation to verbal abuse and
inappropriate behaviour, while also ensuring that our interactions with the
community display the leadership and courtesy expected of Councillors and
Council employees.

In adopting this Charter, Council will join a growing number of organisations who
are challenging inappropriate social behaviour.

COLLABORATION

One of the overarching governance principles in section 9 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is that collaboration with other councils, levels of government and
statutory bodies is to be sought.

Discussions have been held with senior staff from the Strathbogie Shire Council in
relation to the development of their Mutual Respect Charter.
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9.5.1 Adoption of Mutual Respect Charter (cont.)

HUMAN RIGHTS CONSIDERATIONS

The adoption of the draft Mutual Respect Charter upholds the Charter of Human

Rights and Responsibilities Act 2006 in that it:

o offers protection from degrading treatment, maintaining an individual’s dignity;

¢ upholds freedom of thought, conscience, religion and belief but requires
differences in opinion to be communicated in a courteous and respectful
manner;

e protects people’s ability to take part in public life without fear of abuse or
degrading treatment;

e protects the security of all parties by promoting respectful behaviour; and

e enables all parties to receive a fair and equal hearing without fear of reprisals.

CONCLUSION

The drafting of a Mutual Respect Charter is a proactive way in which Council, and
the organisation, can make a very clear and public statement that all interactions
with, and from, Council must be respectful, fair and courteous.

Being able to express differences of opinion is essential to the pursuit of good
governance, good decision making and continuous improvement, however
disagreeing with others or being frustrated at a decision made by Council is not an
excuse for verbal abuse, degradation of others or disrespect.

It is essential that Councillors and Council officers (including volunteers and
contractors) set an example within our community that people must be fair,
courteous and respectful to each other. The adoption of this Charter will support
existing codes of conduct and policies to achieve this.

ATTACHMENTS
Attachment 1: Draft Mutual Respect Charter
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ATTACHMENT 1: Draft Mutual Respect Charter

Strathbogie Shire Council

- Mutual
Respect
Charter

September 2021

Ensuring we are fair, efficient and kind

Strathbogie Shire Council is strongly
committed to ensuring all interactions with
our community are fair, efficient, and kind.

Our goal is also to ensure occupational
health and safety standards and duty of care
obligations are always adhered to.

Working with our community, and including their
knowledge, thoughts and feedback into our
decision-making process is a priority for Council.
In doing this we acknowledge there will be times
when there are opposing views.

This Mutual Respect Charter has been
developed to promote the highest levels of
integrity, inclusiveness and good govermnance.
This includes appropriate, respectful behaviour
that supports our values of providing a safe and
respectful workplace.

In considering the broad diversity of interests
and needs of the Strathbogie community, the
Charter outlines the rights and responsibilities of
the community, Councillors, Committee
members and Council staff (which includes our
contractors and volunteers) in all our
interactions.

The community has the right to:

+» Be treated with dignity, courtesy and
respect

+« Be given reasons that explain decisions
affecting them

« A fair and impartial assessment based on
the facts and merits of the matter
A timely response
Respectfully communicate concerns and
views without fear of reprisal
Access Council’'s complaints process
Be informed about the actions taken and
outcome of any complaint

The community has the responsibility to:

» Express their opinions in ways that are
respectful and concise
Respect the rights of others
Provide accurate and complete information
when dealing with Council staff, contractors
and volunteers

» Deal with issues positively to find
acceptable solutions to problems.

* Respect the privacy of Council staff out of
working hours.
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Strathbogie Shire Council

September 2021

Mutual Respect Charter

Councillors and Committee members
have the right to:

Be treated with dignity, courtesy and respect
A safe and healthy working environment
Expect honesty, cooperation and reasonable
assistance from the community

+ Have zero tolerance to any verbal abuse,
offensive, threatening and/or bullying
behaviour

& Modify, curtail or decline service in response
to unacceptable behaviour which because of
its nature or frequency raises health, safety,
or equity issues.

Councillors and Committee members
have the responsibility to:

+ Be inclusive of, and actively engage with, the
municipal community to gain input from a
broad cross section of people, groups and
bodies

+ Actively listen to what others have to say
without making judgement or interrupting
them and for this to be reciprocated

+ Represent Council professionally.

Council staff, contractors and volunteers
have the right to:]

+ Be treated with courtesy, objectivity, faimess,
and respect

= A healthy and safe workplace that is free
from any verbal abuse, intimidation, or
undermining bullying behaviour from any
officer, Councillors and/or community

+ Respectfully communicate information,
advice, and seek direction without fear of
reprisal.

Council staff, contractors and volunteers
have the responsibility to:

+ Provide reasons for decisions that are
consistent and in line with Council policies
and relevant legislation

+ Be clear on how the matter will be handled,
including compliance to statutory andfor
legislative processes

+» Respectfully communicate with Councillors
and our community, actively listening and
considering differing points of view.

“Strathbogie Shire Council is committed

to providing a safe and healthy

workplace, promoting wellbeing, dignity

and respect for all.”
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9.5.2 Business Management System

The September 2021 Business Management System Report includes reports as
follows:-

= Building Department — August 2021 Statistics

= Planning Department — Planning Application Approvals — Development Cost
(Capital Improved Value) - August 2021

= Customer Enquiry Analysis Report — Report for August 2021

= Waste Management Reporting ~ Year to Date — August 2021

= Actioning of Council Reports Resolutions — Council Meeting Tuesday 17
August 2021

= Qutstanding Actions of Council Resolutions to 31 August 2021

= Review of Council Policies and Adoption of new Policies — August/September
2021

= Records of Informal Council Briefings / Meetings — 1 to 31 August

By reporting on a monthly basis, Council can effectively manage any risks that may
arise. The Business Management System will also incorporate Council’s corporate
goals and objectives.

DISCUSSION

Building and planning permit activity continues to be strong, particularly in the Lake
Nagambie Ward, where a significant amount of new subdivisions are being
released to the market.

Customer requests lodged for the month focused on Council assets and roads, with
many reports of potholes and drainage issues caused by high levels of rainfall and
wind/storm events. The allocation of outdoor crews has shifted in response to
these events and also to respond to strict Covid 19 pandemic controls in relation to
the definition of authorised work. Outdoor crews are focusing on safety and hazard
reduction work, such as drainage clearing/works as a result.

RECOMMENDATION

That the report be noted.
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BUILDING ACTIVITY

AUGUST 2021

A report on new building permits recorded in Council’s building permit register in

August 2021

Council ward | Number of lodgements Total works value
Honeysuckle Creek 3 $291,703.00
Hughes Creek 3 $105,600.00
Lake Nagambie 15 $3,498,506.00
Mount Wombat 4 $276,572.00
Seven Creeks 5 $455,914.00
30 $4,628,295.00
Seven Creeks
£455.914.00
Honeysuckle Creek
£291,703.00
Mount Wombat
£276,572.00
Hughes Creek
£105,600.00
Lake Nagambie
£3,458,506.00

Honeysuckle Creek

Permit Number PS;?;“ ‘ Works ‘ Building Use Town (\;\?osrtk(;f

6345775219162 | 9/08/2021 | Construction of Shed Boho $30,800.00
8199300329947 | 24/08/2021 | Construction of Shed Earlston $32,828.00
8922427559795 | 20/08/2021 | Construction of Dwelling Violet Town $228,075.00

Hughes Creek

Permit Number

Permit

Building Use

Date

1644866641845 | 20/08/2021 | Re-erection of Dwelling Longwood $80,500.00
3111795831465 | 17/08/2021 | Construction of Shed Avenel $15,900.00
3574617551753 |5/08/2021 | Construction of Shed Avenel $9,200.00
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Lake Nagambie

Permit Number ngt‘;'t Building Use C\;\?::kc;f
1259334296476 | 3/08/2021 | Construction of Dwelling & Garage Nagambie $298,250.00
1465008072486 | 12/08/2021| Construction of Dwelling & Garage Nagambie $393,510.00
2330298543936 | 13/08/2021| Construction of Carport Nagambie $15,200.00
2880382261465 | 2/08/2021 | Construction of Shed Kirwans Bridge $14,441.00
2981653043267 | 30/07/2021| Construction of Dwelling & Garage Nagambie $371,168.00
3283309964534 | 3/08/2021 | Extension to Shed Bailieston $22,600.00
3605126491758 | 4/08/2021 | Construction of Shed Nagambie $47,960.00
4712989586524 | 6/08/2021 | Construction of Dwelling & Garage Nagambie $696,108.00
5319956925162 | 25/08/2021| Extension to Dwelling Bailieston $350,000.00
6071494311505 | 20/08/2021| Construction of Dwelling & Garage Nagambie $220,000.00
7333269303946 | 10/08/2021| Construction of Dwelling & Garage Nagambie $286,090.00
7646235225048 | 9/08/2021 | Construction of Dwelling & Garage Nagambie $424,461.00
9211673571557 | 3/08/2021 | Construction of Dwelling & Garage Nagambie $268,000.00
9594663742176 | 24/08/2021| Construction of Shed Tabilk $53,736.00
9987329843603 | 3/08/2021 | Construction of Shed Goulburn Weir $36,982.00

Mount Wombat

Permit Number el Building Use

3515244930126 | 11/08/2021| Alterations & Additions to | Dwelling & Garage Kelvin View $99,000.00
4971881557146 | 2/08/2021 | Construction of Shed Creightons Creek | $127,488.00
7437554357913 | 25/08/2021| Construction of Shed Ruffy $20,384.00
7868472614294 | 1/09/2021 | Construction of Carport Creightons Creek $29,700.00

Seven Creeks

Permit Number PDe;rtrélt Building Use (\:/\(I)Srtk(;f

2204616653231 | 30/08/2021 | Construction of Shed Euroa $14,000.00
3797523677998 | 3/08/2021 | Construction of Dwelling & Carport Euroa $398,834.00
5384174495594 | 19/08/2021 | Construction of Shed Euroa $9,800.00
6790940058459 | 17/08/2021 | Construction of Shed Euroa $27,480.00
7800308835677 | 30/07/2021 | Construction of Carport Euroa $5,800.00
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PLANNING APPLICATION APPROVALS — DEVELOPMENT COST (CAPITAL
IMPROVED VALUE)
AUGUST 2021

..I:' Planning Applications Determined

Strathbogie  August 2021
SFTreg
Hughes Creek $311.000.00
Avenel $150,000.00
Longwood $161,000.00

Lake Nagambie
Bailieston

Goulburn Weir
Kirwans Bridge
Nagambie

Nagambie

Mount Wombat
Creightons Creek

Gooram

Ruffy

Seven Creeks

Euroa

Total Value

$2,472,617.00
$40,617.00

$120,000.00
$12,000.00
$2,000,000.00
$300,000.00

$69,200.00
$29,700.00

$30,000.00
$9,500.00

$30,000.00
$30,000.00

$2,882,817.00
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Lake Nagambie

472817000
52472, s

.

Mount Weombat
$68,200.00

Seven Creeks
$30,000.00

Hughes Creek
$311,000.00

$2,500,000.00

$2,000,000.00 |

$1,500,000.00

$1,000,000.00 |

$500,000.00

$0.00

Hughes Creek Lake Nagambie Mount Wombat Seven Creeks
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CUSTOMER ENQUIRY ANALYSIS REPORT

- REPORT FOR AUGUST 2021

-.I:' Request Throughput Analysis

> 80% 50-80% < 50% .
1

c
N
Strathbogie 01/08/2021 to 31/08/2021 1o . '
Y = R Overdue /Remaining <33% 34-70% =70% !
Service Area Existing New Completed Remaining | C| Within Time OverTime |0O| Pending Service Area
Requests Requests Requests Requests | N R | Resources Usage
Community Services 3 28 27 4 @ 2 2 D 0 [ ]
Corporate Services 20 121 114 27 ] 11 16 J 0 I-
Council Property 53 53 43 62 @ 6 55 ] 1 I
Customer Services 3 14 12 5 % 1 4 5 0 [
Economic Growth 4 256 252 45 @ 12 33 ] 0 [
Emergency Management 12 15 2 5 ] 2 3 ) 0 ]
Feedback 5 4 2 7 o) 2 5 ] 0 I
Other Assets 63 34 32 65 ] 4 61 ) 0 | |
Public Space Assets 109 36 54 82 L) 7 75 i 9 .
Reoad Assats 174 105 99 179 9 17 162 ] 1 |
Statutory Services 40 164 149 55 @ 16 38 D 0 a
Waste Management [ 17 15 8 ] 2 [ X 0 | |
Total 529 847 821 544 82 460 11
Request Ageing
B 8+ Weeks QOver 4 to 8 Wesks Over 1te 4 Weeks Over 0 to 1 Weeks Over Within Time
200
o .
100
50 . _— . - e
0
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Community Services

Customer Services

Feedback

Road Assets

0 Access and Inclusion

B Children and Family Services
B Committees and Boards
I Communily Aclivilies

B Community Devalopment

B Community Funding

[ Customer Service

I VicRoads agency

[0 Feedback

[ Briciges
B Footpaths
I Maturestrip
I Roads

Bl Signs

I Traffic Lights

Service Usage

Corporate Services

Economic Growth

Other Assets

Statutory Services

Council Property

[ Comemunicafons

W Council 1 Cinema

I Councl Grants

[ Cints Cstodian I Council Praperty

I Finarce _ )

I Geograshic Infarmation Systems I Libraries

N Human Resources

J FfirBlicn & Camrnaton N Pest Cantral
Technology
Precussmant Bl Saleyards

W Recerds Management

N Risk Managamant [ Swimming Pools

Emergency Management

0 Economic Development [0 Emergency Call Out

N Planning N Emergency Management

I Tourism I Fire Hazard

Public Space Assets

0 Cultural & Heritage 0 Open Spaces

W Drainage N Park/Resarve
I Engineering B Flayground
N Fleet Management I Public Lighting
I Underground Assets I Tree

1 Animals - Domestic Waste Management

I Animals - Qther

I Building Services
I Environmental Health
I Infringement Review
O Local Laws

N Waterways

[ Enwironmmental Protection

N Waste Management
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150

100 —

Remaining Requests by Original Request Date

2015 October
April
May
June
July

20e August
September
Movember
December
January
February

March

2020 .
Agpril

June

July

Apr2019

Jun2019 Aug2018

Oct2018 May2019 Julz01s

‘Community
Sernvices

Corporate
Services

Sep20i8

Council
Property

New2018

Dec2019

Customer
Services

Jan2020

Feb2020

Economic
Growth

Apr2020 Jul2020

Emergency
Management

Sep2020 Mew2020 Jan2021

Feedback Other Assets  Public Space
Agzels

Mar2020 Jun2020 Aug2020 Qet2020 Dec2020 Feb2021 Apr2021

Road Assets

Jun2021 Aug2021
Mar2021 May2021 Jul2024

Statutony
Services

Waste
Management
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August 1 2 1 5 3
September 2 3 L] 1
2020 October 1 2 1 5 1
November 3 2 2 1
December 2 7 3 1
January 3 3 1 2 2 2
February 2 1 7 4 3
March 5 2 5 5 8 3
April 1 4 1 8 3 20
2021
May 3 2 2 1 5 3 14 3
June 1 6 1 3 1 1 10 8 15 5
July 2 g 10 2 19 8 a7 6
August 19 18 3 23 2 2 16 18 46 26
Total 27 83 5 45 5 7 85 o 180 55
Definitions
Service Area Grouping of services by area of responsibility Service Activities that provide value to the customer
Existing Requests open prior to reporting period Remaining Requests incomplete at end of reporting
period
New Requests made dunng reporting period Completed Requests completed dunng reporting penod
Within Time Remaining Requests where defined deadline Over Time Remaining Requests where defined deadline
is after reporting period is before the end of the reporting period
Pending Requests where additional resources are
Resources required to continue. This includes labour,
materials, and financial resources.
Complete An indicator showing the rafio of Completed Overdue An indicator showing the ratio of Overdue
New requests and New requests. Designed to Remaining requests and Remaining requests. Designed

represent how well we are keeping up with
the demand for a service.

to represent how well we are keeping to the
defined deadlines.
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Kerbside Collection Tonnages

WASTE MANAGEMENT REPORTING
YEAR TO DATE - AUGUST 2021
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ACTIONING OF COUNCIL REPORTS RESOLUTIONS
COUNCIL MEETING = TUESDAY 17 AUGUST 2021

12
10
8
6
4
2
. | |
Reports Notices of Motion Notices of Closed Portion  Urgent Business Total Number of
Rescission Resolution/s Resolutions
H Number of Reports M Reports Resolutions Actioned
B Reports Resolutions not Actioned Reports Resolutions in Progress

B Reports Resolutions Deferred B Total Number of Reports Resolutions
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OUTSTANDING ACTIONS OF COUNCIL RESOLUTIONS TO
31 AUGUST 2021

This Report is to advise the Executive Management Team, Councillors and the
community of the status of previous Council resolutions which are in progress but
are yet to be finalised.

Council Item Description
Meeting Date No.

16 March 2021 9.15 Reduction in Load Limit for Kirwans Bridge
(Recommendation 5 yet to be implemented)

20 April 2021 10.1 Notice of Motion
- Climate Emergency Declaration

Officer Update:

Due to the implications of COVID-19 and the
postponement of the originally scheduled Climate
Change Forum the decision was made to change it to
an online forum. This will include videos from our
speakers, an interactive Q and A monitored by
Communications and Environment Teams and a
prioritization exercise to gauge people's areas of
interest.

Once this work had been completed, the Climate
Change Action Plan will be developed for Council and
the Community to endorse.

REVIEW OF EXISTING COUNCIL POLICIES
AND ADOPTION OF NEW POLICIES

Review of Policy Name Details
Policy /
New Policy

Nil.
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RECORDS OF INFORMAL COUNCIL BRIEFINGS / MEETINGS

For period 1 to 31 August 2021

Record of Informal Council Briefings / Meetings

Record in accordance with Council’s Public Transparency Policy 2020

Note: Details of matters discussed at the meeting that have been designated confidential under
Rule 103 of the Governance Rules and sections 3 and 125 of the LG Act 2020 are described in a
separate “confidential addendum” that will be reported to the next closed Council meeting

Name of Meeting:  Informal Council Briefings / Meetings
Date of Meeting: Tuesday 10 August 2021
Time: 12.45 p.m. - 5.15 p.m.

Attendees:
Councillors

Chris Raeburn
Laura Binks

Reg Dickinson
Sally Hayes-Burke
Kristy Hourigan
Paul Murray

Officers

Julie Salomon (Chief Executive Officer)

David Roff (Director, Corporate Operations)

Amanda Tingay (Director, Community and Planning)

Dawn Bray (Executive Manager, Governance and Customer Service)
Kristin Favaloro (Executive Manager, Communications and Engagement)
Uwe Paffrath (Manager, Asset Planning (Iltem 7)

Apologies
Cr Melanie Likos

Councillors / CEO Discussions

Review of draft Agenda for August 2021 Council Meeting

Review of Agenda / Submissions to Road Management Plan

Kirwans Bridge Proposed Development

Proposed Nagambie Accommodation

Mutual Respect Charter

Councillors Only Discussions

Extraordinary Council Meeting - Receiving / Hearing of submissions to Road
Management Plan

N

NoOo,~®

Declaration of Interest/s under Local Government Act 2020 (General Conflict of Interest -
Section 127 / Material Conflict of Interest — Section 128

Councillor/s - NIL

Officer/s — NIL
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Record of Informal Council Briefings / Meetings

Record in accordance with Council’s Public Transparency Policy 2020

Note: Details of matters discussed at the meeting that have been designated confidential under
Rule 103 of the Governance Rules and sections 3 and 125 of the LG Act 2020 are described in a
separate “confidential addendum” that will be reported to the next closed Council meeting

Name of Meeting:  Informal Council Briefings / Meetings
Date of Meeting: Tuesday 17 August 2021
Time: 12.30 p.m. —7.22 p.m.

Attendees:
Councillors

Chris Raeburn
Laura Binks

Reg Dickinson
Sally Hayes-Burke
Kristy Hourigan
Paul Murray

Officers

Julie Salomon (Chief Executive Officer)

David Roff (Director, Corporate Operations)

Amanda Tingay (Director, Community and Planning)

Dawn Bray (Executive Manager, Governance and Customer Service)
Bruce Rowley (Manager, Project Delivery (Item 4)

Apologies
Cr Melanie Likos

Kristin Favaloro (Executive Manager, Communications and Engagement)

Councillor/CEO Discussions

Future Structure for Informal Council Briefings / Meetings
Draft Vision Review / Council Plan / Financial Plan
Nagambie Boardwalk

Councillors Only Discussions

Council Meeting

ogabkwnpE

Declaration of Interest/s under Local Government Act 2020 (General Conflict of Interest -
Section 127 / Material Conflict of Interest — Section 128

Councillor/s -
Matter No. LGA 2020 Names of Councillor/s who Did the Councillor/s leave the
Interest Section disclosed interest meeting?
6/9.2.2 128 Cr Sally Hayes-Burke (Left meeting at 6.19 p.m. /

returned at 6.47 p.m.)

It is noted that the meeting was
adjourned from 6.25 p.m. to 6.44
p.m. to rectify livestreaming
issues

Officer/s — NIL
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Record of Informal Council Briefings / Meetings

Record in accordance with Council’s Public Transparency Policy 2020

Note: Details of matters discussed at the meeting that have been designated confidential under
Rule 103 of the Governance Rules and sections 3 and 125 of the LG Act 2020 are described in a
separate “confidential addendum” that will be reported to the next closed Council meeting

Name of Meeting:  Informal Council Briefings / Meetings
Date of Meeting: Tuesday 24 August 2021
Time: 12.00 p.m. —4.45 p.m.

Attendees:
Councillors

Chris Raeburn
Laura Binks

Reg Dickinson
Sally Hayes-Burke
Kristy Hourigan
Paul Murray

Officers

Julie Salomon (Chief Executive Officer)

David Roff (Director, Corporate Operations)

Amanda Tingay (Director, Community and Planning)

Dawn Bray (Executive Manager, Governance and Customer Service)
Kristin Favaloro (Executive Manager, Communications and Engagement)
Jason McConkey (Team Leader, Compliance) (Items 2 & 3)

Apologies

Councillor/CEO Discussions

CCTV

Local Laws

Draft Vision / Council Plan / Financial Plan
Councillors Only Discussions

arwdE

Declaration of Interest/s under Local Government Act 2020 (General Conflict of Interest -
Section 127 / Material Conflict of Interest — Section 128

Councillor/s - NIL

Officer/s — NIL
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Record of Informal Council Briefings / Meetings

Record in accordance with Council’s Public Transparency Policy 2020

Note: Details of matters discussed at the meeting that have been designated confidential under
Rule 103 of the Governance Rules and sections 3 and 125 of the LG Act 2020 are described in a
separate “confidential addendum” that will be reported to the next closed Council meeting

Name of Meeting:  Informal Council Briefings / Meetings
Date of Meeting: Tuesday 31August 2021
Time: 3.45 p.m. —4.45 p.m./6.00 p.m. —6.13 p.m.

Attendees:
Councillors

Chris Raeburn
Laura Binks

Reg Dickinson
Sally Hayes-Burke
Kristy Hourigan
Paul Murray

Officers

Julie Salomon (Chief Executive Officer)

David Roff (Director, Corporate Operations)

Amanda Tingay (Director, Community and Planning)

Dawn Bray (Executive Manager, Governance and Customer Service)
Kristin Favaloro (Executive Manager, Communications and Engagement)

Apologies
1. Extraordinary Council Meeting Agenda Review
2. Extraordinary Council Meeting - Draft Community Vision, 2021-2025 Council Plan

and 2021/22-2030/31 Financial Plan

Declaration of Interest/s under Local Government Act 2020 (General Conflict of Interest -
Section 127 / Material Conflict of Interest — Section 128

Councillor/s
Matter No. LGA 2020 Names of Councillor/s who Did the Councillor/s leave
Interest disclosed interest the meeting?
Section
2/55.1 128 Cr Hourigan Yes
(Left meeting at 6.02 p.m. /
returned at 6.12 p.m.)

Officer/s — NIL
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10. NOTICES OF MOTION

11. NOTICES OF RESCISSION
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12.

12.1

URGENT BUSINESS

Qath of Office
Councillor-Elect for Lake Nagambie Ward

In accordance with Section 30(1) of the Local Government Act 2020 (the 2020 Act),
a person elected to be a Councillor is not capable of acting as a Councillor until the
person has taken the Oath of Office.

Section 31 of the Act states that the office of a Councillor becomes vacant if a
person elected to be a Councillor does not take the Oath of Office within three
months after the day on which the person was declared elected.

The oath is taken in accordance with section 30(1) if the Local Government Act
2020, regulation 5 of the Local Government (Governance & Integrity) Regulations
2020 and Part 2 of the Oaths and Affirmations Act 2018.

The Oath or Affirmation must be signed and dated before the Chief Executive
Officer.

The elected representative for the Lake Nagambie Ward will now be invited to take
the Oath or Affirmation of Office and to sign the document in the presence of the
Chief Executive Officer.
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13. CONFIDENTIAL BUSINESS

Confidential Appendices

These appendices have been classified as being confidential in accordance with
section 66(2)(a) and Part 1, section 3 of the Local Government Act 2020 as they

relate to:

(9) private commercial information, being information provided by a business,
commercial or financial undertaking that—
(i) if released, would unreasonably expose the business, commercial or

financial undertaking to disadvantage

C.A.1 (9) Tender for Contract CN21/22-01: Operation and
Management of Pools

NEXT MEETING

The next monthly Meeting of the Strathbogie Shire Council is scheduled to be held on
Tuesday 19 October 2021, commencing at 6.00 p.m.

It is intended that this meeting be held at the Euroa Community Conference Centre,

however, it should be noted that if coronavirus restrictions are in force, the meeting will be
held virtually.

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS, THE MEETING CLOSED AT.............. P.M.
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